Public Document Pack

CYNGOR SIR
. YNYS MON

% ISLE OF ANGLESEY
COUNTY COUNCIL

Mr Richard Parry Jones, BA, MA.
Prif Weithredwr— Chief Executive

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfeydd y Cyngor - Council Offices
LLANGEFNI

Ynys Mén - Anglesey

LL77 7TW

Ffon / tel (01248) 752500
Ffacs / fax (01248) 750839

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD

NOTICE OF MEETING

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DYDD MERCHER,
11 MAWRTH, 2015 am 2 o’r gloch

WEDNESDAY, 11 MARCH 2015 at 2.00 pm

YSTAFELL BWYLLGOR 1,

COMMITTEE ROOM 1, COUNCIL OFFICES,

SWYDDFEYDD Y CYNGOR, LLANGEFNI LLANGEFNI

Swyddog Pwyllgor

Mairwen Hughes . .
(01248) 752516 Committee Officer

Aelodau Annibynnol / Independent Members

Mrs. Denise Harris Edwards

Mr. Islwyn Jones (Is-Gadeirydd/Vice-Chair)

Mr. Leslie Lord
Mrs. Dilys Shaw
Mr. Michael Wilson (Cadeirydd/Chair)

Yn cynrychioli’r Cyngor Sir / Representing the County Council

Y Cynghorydd/Councillor Trefor Lloyd Hughes
Y Cynghorydd/Councillor Dafydd Rhys Thomas

Yn cynrychioli’r Cynghorau Tref/Cymuned / Representing the Town/Community Councils

Y Cynghorydd/Councillor Raymond Evans

Y Cynghorydd/Councillor John Roberts




AGENDA

DECLARATION OF INTEREST

To receive any declaration of interest by any Member or Officer in respect of any item of
business.

MINUTES OF MEETING (Pages 1-4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 19 December, 2014.
(ENCLOSURE ‘A’)

STANDARDS COMMITTEE FORUM (Pages 5 - 34)

3A To confirm the minutes of the Standards’ Committee Forum held on 26 November,
2014.
(ENCLOSURE ‘B’)

3B To receive a summary of the meeting from the Solicitor (Corporate Governance).
(ENCLOSURE ‘C’)

CONDUCT COMPLAINTS TO THE PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES
(Pages 35 - 38)

A report by the Solicitor (Corporate Governance) in the form of an up-dated matrix for
County Councillors. For information and any questions.
(ENCLOSURE ‘CH’)

TRAINING FOR TOWN AND COMMUNITY COUNCILS ON THE CODE OF CONDUCT
(Pages 39 - 92)

5A To receive a report from the Solicitor (Corporate Governance) on the training session
held on Town and Community Council Clerks on the Code of Conduct.
(ENCLOSURE ‘D’)

5B Discussion as to dates for next training event. (Monitoring Officer)

REVIEW OF REGISTERS (Pages 93 - 96)

To receive a report from the Solicitor (Corporate Governance) on the findings of the review
of registers and to discuss action plan.
(ENCLOSURE ‘DD’)

CONSULTATION ON WHITE PAPER (Pages 97 - 234)

To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer on the White Paper and the review of the
Ombudsman’s powers for the purpose of seeking the Committee’s comments prior to
responding to the Consultation.

(ENCLOSURE ‘E’)

LATEST BRIEFING NOTES (Pages 235 - 264)

To receive a report from the Solicitor (Corporate Governance) on the latest briefing notes
prepared by the legal department.
(ENCLOSURE ‘F’)

EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE (Pages 265 - 268)

Verbal update by the Monitoring Officer.
See attached Report and decision of the Executive (9 February, 2015) and full Council (26



February, 2015).
(ENCLOSURE ‘FF’)

10 ANY OTHER BUSINESS




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting held on 19 December, 2014

PRESENT:

IN

ATTENDANCE :

APOLOGIES:

ALSO
PRESENT:

Independent Members

Mr. Michael Wilson (Chair)
Mr. Islwyn Jones (Vice-Chair)

Ms. Denise Harris-Edwards, Mr. Leslie Lord, Mrs. Dilys Shaw.
Representing the County Council

Councillors T.LI. Hughes, Dafydd R. Thomas.

Legal Advisor (Mr. Peter Keith-Lucas of Bevan Brittan LLP),
Committee Officer (MEH).

None

Ms. Annie Ginwalla and Ms. Rhiannon Williams — Public
Services Ombudsman for
Wales;

Councillor Peter Rogers;

Witnesses
(When called to give evidence)

Principal Valuation Officer ,
Technician .

Mr. Patrick Geal

1 DECLARATION OF INTEREST
No declaration of interest made by a Member or Officer.

2 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 11 September, 2014 were confirmed as correct.

3 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

The Legal Advisor stated that it is a presumption that Hearings are taken in public unless
there is an overriding reason to hold them in private. The private issue in respect of this
Hearing is the land transaction and the evidence by Mr. Geal. The Chair asked
Councillor Rogers who confirmed that he had no objection to the hearing proceeding in

Page 1



public, subject to Mr. Geal’s view in respect of his own evidence. Accordingly the
Committee resolved not to exclude the press and public, but to reserve a decision in
respect of Mr. Geal’s evidence until he was present and then to seek his view in respect
of his own evidence.

It was agreed that the Hearing to be taken in public.

REPORT

Submitted — a report by the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) investigating
a complaint raised by the Chief Executive in relation to alleged breaches of the Members’
Code of Conduct in respect of his involvement in the disposal by the County Council of an
area of land at Dwyran and a chronology of events and Issues List prepared by Mr. Keith-
Lucas and previously provided to all parties.

The Chair outlined the procedure for the Hearing and all present agreed to the procedure
as set out in the Agenda.

Councillor Rogers made submissions as to why the allegations should be dismissed
without a hearing, including the Investigating Officer’s involvement in a previous matter,
the absence of additional officer evidence and Councillor Rogers’ concern at the propriety
of other Council actions. The PSOW'’s representative explained that she had no
involvement in another matter other than that she had been aware that a colleague had
had a telephone conversation with Councillor Rogers. Mr. Keith-Lucas advised that none
of the matters submitted invalidated the hearing and that the Committee should determine
the allegations purely on the facts which could only be evidenced by a hearing. The
Committee resolved to proceed with the hearing.

The Chair invited Ms. Ginwalla (representing the Public Service Ombudsman for Wales)
formally presented her report outlining the key issues of the complaint received by the
previous Public Service Ombudsman for Wales and the alleged breach of the Code of
Conduct in his failure to record his personal and prejudicial interest in matters relating to
the sale of land at 6 Glandwr, Dwyran. Having considered the complaint the former
Ombudsman decided that there was sufficient evidence to start an investigation.
Evidence was gathered from Officers of the Council together with email, letters,
correspondence in respect of this matter. A statement was also obtained by Mr. Geal.
The Ombudsman was satisfied that there was a close relationship with Councillor Rogers
and Mr. Geal between March 2012 and August 2013. The relationship was enhanced
with a marriage between the children of both parties in 2013.

Members of the Standards Committee and Councillor Rogers were given an opportunity
to question Ms. Ginwalla and a question and answer session entailed.

2 Officers from the Estates Management Section gave evidence as withesses to the
Committee and Members of the Standards Committee and Councillor Peter Rogers were
given an opportunity to question the Officers.

Following a recess for lunch, Councillor P. Rogers stated that Mr. Geal would give
evidence as a witness to the Standards Committee. The Chair asked Mr. Geal if he was
happy to give evidence in public. Mr. Geal said he was happy do so. Accordingly, the
Committee resolved to continue in open session.

Members of the Standards Committee and Councillor Rogers were given an opportunity
to question Mr. Geal.

The Chair invited Councillor Rogers to address the Standards Committee. Members of
the Standards Committee and the representative from the Public Services Ombudsman
for Wales were given an opportunity to question Councillor Rogers.

The Standards Committee retired to private session to make a decision on whether or not
the Code had been breached.

Page 2



The Committee determined as follows :-

(a) That Councillor Rogers had been acting in his capacity as a member of Isle of
Anglesey County Council at all material times and so was subject to the Council’s
Code of Conduct;

(b) That his relationship with Mr. Geal was such as to amount to a close personal
association from before the date of Councillor Rogers first involvement in this matter
in March 2012, and that, as the land transaction affected the well-being of Mr. Geal,
accordingly Councillor Rogers had a personal interest in the land transaction from that
date;

(c) That Councillor Rogers, on his own admission, had not considered whether he had a
personal interest in the transaction, contrary to Paragraph 10(1) of the Code of
Conduct, had not disclosed that personal interest in correspondence or at any
meeting, and accordingly had failed to comply with Paragraphs 11(1) and 11(2)(a) of
the Code of Conduct, and had failed to notify the Monitoring Officer of this personal
interest, contrary to Paragraph 11(4);

(d) That Councillor Rogers relationship with Mr. Geal did not materially change through
the period of this matter, despite the wedding between the 2 families in September
2013;

(e) That throughout the transaction Councillor Rogers sought to facilitate the land
transaction for the benefit of both Mr. Geal and the County Council, and did not seek
to advantage Mr. Geal at the Council’s expense. Accordingly, his personal interest
was never such that it might reasonably have been perceived as likely to prejudice his
perception of the public interest, and so it did not amount to a prejudicial interest;

(f) That Councillor Rogers did not at any time use his position to put unreasonable
pressure on any officer or with any wrongful intent. Further, the Committee found that
there was no financial advantage to Mr. Geal in changing from restrictive covenant to
an overage arrangement, and accordingly found that he had not improperly used his
position to seek to confer any advantage on Mr. Geal.

The Committee then resumed and the Chairman advised Councillor Rogers that the
Committee now had to determine whether to impose any sanction and, if so, what would
be an appropriate sanction, and sought representations from Ms. Ginwalla and Councillor
Rogers.

The Committee retired to private session to consider the issue of sanction.

The Committee took into account the fact that there had been no financial benefit to Mr.
Geal, or financial detriment to the Council. They recognised that Councillor Rogers had
throughout been seeking to resolve wider estate matters and had apologised for failing to
identify that he had a personal interest in the transaction, but were concerned at his
criticism of the Investigating Officer.

The Committee determined as follows :-

e To suspend Councillor Rogers from being a Member of the County Council for
a period of 1 month;

e To express to the Chief Executive the Committee’s concern at the apparent
leaking from within the County Council of the information as to the making and
nature of the complaint;

e To express to the Chief Executive the Committee’s concern that this land
transaction took so long to resolve. The 2 County Council representatives of
the Standards Committee will seek to meet the Chief Executive on this point to

Page 3



see whether it is possible to introduce some system of targets for completion
of these transactions, as this order of delay is not only frustrating to the
prospective purchaser but potentially damaging to the authority at a time when
it needs to generate income;

e Torecommend that, wherever an invitation to tender for land is sent out by or
on behalf of the County Council, that invitation must contain full particulars of
the land to be sold and of the terms and conditions upon which it is to be sold,
including any restrictive covenants and fees, to enable prospective purchasers
to determine exactly what it is that the County Council is seeking to sell and to
enable the prospective purchaser to raise any queries and to make a firm bid
for the property.

The Committee resumed and the Chair advised Councillor Rogers of the Committee’s
resolution.

MR. MICHAEL WILSON
CHAIR

Page 4



Agenda Item 3

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
B

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE NORTH WALES STANDARDS COMMITTEE
FORUM -HELD AT COMMITTEE ROOM 1, ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

ON WEDNESDAY, 26' " NOVEMBER 2014

PRESENT:-
Isle of Anglesey Michael Wilson (Chair)
Islwyn Jones (Vice-Chair)
Robyn Jones (Deputy Monitoring Officer)
Awena Walkden (Solicitor to the Monitoring Officer)
Conwy Howie Roberts (Chair)
Flintshire Edward Hughes (Chair)
Robert Dewey (Vice-Chair)
Gwynedd Iwan Evans (Monitoring Officer)
Sion Huws (Propriety Officer)
Wrexham Ceri Nash (Vice-Chair)
Snowdonia National Park David Vaughan (Chair)
Fire and Rescue Authority Jane Eyton-Jones (Chair)
Denbighshire lan Trigger (Chair)

Gary Williams (Monitoring Officer)

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence submitted on behalf of Sioned Wyn Davies (Wrexham),
Trevor Coxon (Wrexham), John Roberts (Conwy), Gareth Owens (Flintshire),

Gwilym Ellis Evans (Gwynedd), Sam Soysa (Gwynedd), Rev. Wayne Roberts

(Denbighshire), and Lisa Jones (Denbighshire).

2. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Standards Committee Forum held
on 29" April 2014 were submitted for approval.

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting of the North Wales Standards
Committee Forum held on 29" April 2014 be received and confirmed as a
correct record.

3. QUESTIONS TO THE OMBUDSMAN.

The Ombudsman, Mr Nick Bennett, was in attendance to reply to the questions
raised by the North Wales Standards Committee Forum. A copy of the questions
and responses are attached to these minutes (attachment)

CC-017339-AP/243694 Page 1

Page 6



4. OPEN SESSION FOR ITEMS OF CURRENT INTEREST

A summary of the training conducted by the Isle of Anglesey County Council to the
Clerks of the Isle of Anglesey Community Councils was presented by Mike Wilson,
Chair of the Isle of Anglesey County Council and Awena Walkden, Solicitor to the
Monitoring Officer. It was explained to the Forum that:-

1. Presenting a training session to the Clerks of the Community Councils was
well received with positive feedback despite their initial reluctance to attend.
2. It was explained to the Clerks that it was part of their role to understand the

Code of Conduct, and to advise the Community Councillors; this helped to
encourage them to attend the training sessions.

3. Presenting training to the Community Council Clerks should reduce the
number of complaints received by the Ombudsman in respect of Town and
Community Councils because the Clerk should feel more confident in
dealing with issues or, at least recognising the issues and seeking
Monitoring Officer advice.

4. The majority of Town and Community Councils were in attendance.

5. The feedback from the training has been very positive and has led to a
closer relationship between the Legal Service and the Clerks, which in turn
should lead to issues being dealt with before they lead to a complaint stage.

RESOLVED: That Awena Walkden will send a copy of the training pack to the Forum
for their information, and will provide a further up-date on progress in respect of the
training to the Forum at its next meeting.

5. DATE AND VENUE OF THE NEXT MEETING

A suitable date for the next meeting of the Forum would be arranged at Denbighshire
County Council, by Sian Harland at Conwy County Council.

RESOLVED: Sian Harland to liaise with Gary Williams in respect of inserting a date
for the next meeting.

The meeting ended at 11.35am

CC-017339-AP/243694 Page 2

Page 7



COUNTY COUNCIL COUNTY CDU\'CH

X4 WreXharn CINGOR SR ;ﬂrf;::f bych
—~A ey ir Ddinbyc Slr Fflnt
: Wit ISIE OF ANCLESEY Denbighshire Fllnlﬁhlre

COUNTY COUMEIL

Questions and Responses from the Ombudsman

Question

1

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 allows for regional
Standards Committees to be formed. When the regulations are in place, how
does the Ombudsman suggest that this power should be exercised among the
North Wales Authorities. What is the current timetable for bringing this power
into effect?

Michael Wilson (Chair) - Isle of Anglesey

OMBUDSMAN :-

| worked on the Willams Commission and am a strong supporter of
collaborative working in the public sector. | am supportive of regional Standards
Committees being formed, and believe it is the way forward. | understand that
the Welsh Government.are looking to bring the regulations into place next year,
however, | do not have a timetable for this.

Why do cases accepted by the Ombudsman take so long to investigate?

Surely a member who has been accused of misconduct has a reasonable
expectation that the allegation(s) be addressed and determined as soon as
possible?

There is also a public interest for the electorate in knowing as soon as possible
whether their democratically elected representative has breached the code of
conduct.

John Roberts (Vice-Chair) — Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

If there is a problem with the timescale for dealing with complaints | will look at
this.. There is.a graph within the Williams Report known as the “graph of doom”
which states that demand for public services is going up, whereas the budget is
going down.

There has not been a huge increase in the number of code of conduct
complaints received, and in fact there has been a decline. This however does
change during election years where the numbers of complaints increase. The
problem we have is with vexatious complaints. We need to make sure that
vexatious complaints are not investigated and are thrown out as soon as
possible.

We are funded by tax payers’ money, and also investigate life or death NHS
failures, which we believe has a higher public interest for investigation, rather
than vexatious complaints raised on code of conduct issues.

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 8




The statistics for the timescales in which we deal with code of conduct
complaints are as follows :-

1. We decide whether or not to investigate 81% of complaints received
within 4 weeks;

2. 85% of complaints which are then passed to investigation stage are
investigated within 9 months;

3. Only 15% take longer than 9 months.

However, where we can make further improvements.to timescale in which we
deal with complaints, we will. We cannot do anything to speed up the
Adjudication Panel for Wales’ timescales, or that of the Standards Committees,
as these are outside our control. | want to bring in a third test to my two stage
test and that “is there a public interest in investigating the complaint?” It makes
sense that any matter which is not in the public interest should be set aside. |
am not saying that we are going to do'less work, we are going to do more, but
we cannot indulge in wasting tax payers money in investigating vexatious
complaints.

3 In a letter to the Ombudsman from the Chairman of the North Wales Standards
Committee Forum (NWSCF) it was asked whether:-

(1) The Ombudsman would be willing to provide sanctions guidance
specifically tailored to the needs and powers of standards committees
rather than seeking to apply relevant passages from the Adjudication
Panels Guidance; and

(i)~ The first issue of “The Ombudsman’s Code of Conduct Casebook”
was considered very useful. However, the NWSCF considers that it
would be even more useful if case summaries could be published as
and when the cases are concluded, perhaps on the Ombudsman’s
website? It was asked whether or not this could be accommodated
or, alternatively, might the case summaries be published quarterly?

Negative responses to each request was received from the former Ombudsman.
Is the current Ombudsman willing to re-visit these issues and, if not, could he
elaborate on the reasoning behind his predecessor’s decision.

lan Trigger (Chair) — Denbighshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

We do not have the resources to publish a monthly casebook, but we may be
able to publish information on reported cases on the website as soon as they go
live.

In relation to the sanctions guidance, | have not discussed this matter with my
predecessor, however, | am not convinced there is a problem with consistency
of sanctions being provided by the Standards Committees across Wales,
however, it is something we can consider if you think it would be helpful.

4 In the Ombudsman’s Guidance on Local Resolution Protocols (page 6 of the

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 9




Guidance to the Code) it is mentioned that there is an expectation on County
Councils to implement local resolution procedures to deal with low level
complaints and that: “these mechanisms are initially being adopted by
principal councils, but | am supportive of this extending to cover
community councils in due course”.

This anticipates that County Councils may be expected to operate local
resolution protocols in community council disputes? Alternatively, does the
Ombudsman envisage that such protocols should be adopted by Community
Councils themselves and operated by those Councils? Even if these
anticipated arrangement are not “rolled out” does the Ombudsman think that
Standards Committees should take an active role in sorting out minor
complaints within Town and Community Councils, before they are escalated to
the Ombudsman?

Edwards Hughes (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-
Currently 50% of the Code ofConduct of complaints we receive are from
Community Councils.

In a conference held by.One Voice Wales recently, the Community Councils
attendees seemed keen for the Local Resolutions Protocol to be extended to
Community Councils, however Monitoring Officers appeared less keen.

The Monitoring Officer for Gwynedd County Council confirmed that he is yet to
be persuaded that there is capacity to deal with Community Councils’ Local
Resolution Protocols, both within the Council, and within the Community
Councils themselves due to the time restraints on the Clerk. However,
introducing the public interest test may assist in reducing the number of
Community Council complaints raised.

5 It is understood that the Ombudsman will publish new Guidance on the Code of
Conduct (particularly in light of Calver). Is the Ombudsman able to give any
indication as to when this new guidance will be available and to provide some
information regarding the timeframe for consultation on any draft?

David Vaughan (Chair) — Snowdonia National Park

OMBUDSMAN :-

The Guidance on the Code of Conduct has been amended in light of Calver but
it will need to be revisited again as a result of the Heesom judgment, and the
fact that we want to introduce a new public interest test.

6 Within our Whistleblowing Policy we refer to the Ombudsman as a regulator to
whom an employee may speak regarding their concerns. Does the
Ombudsman have a role here? If so, what kind of whistleblowing complaints
would fall within the Ombudsman’s remit? Should this be removed from our
policy?

Michael Wilson (Chair) — Isle of Anglesey

OMBUDSMAN :-
| am not a regulator but am of course prepared to receive whistleblowing

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 10




complaints which relate to the Code of Conduct and its breach.

7 What percentage of complaints received by the Ombudsman, investigated by
the Ombudsman, referred by the Ombudsman to a Standards
Committee/Adjudication Panel, are from Community Councils as opposed to
unitary authorities? The concern is that the public will see the word “Councillor’
and be unable to distinguish between County Councillors and Community
Councillors.

Robert Dewey (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

50% of the complaints we receive are from Community Councils; 15% of these
are investigated and 5% are referred to Standards Committee.

In respect of the 50% of complaints received against County Councillors, 19%
are investigated, and 1% are referred to the Standards Committee.

8 Where the Ombudsman refers a matter to a Standards Committee for hearing
and the Council’s own Legal Section is conflicted by the subject matter of the
referral, what (if any) are the Ombudsman’s views on whom should provide the
legal advice to the Standards Committee?
lan Trigger (Chair) — Denbighshire
OMBUDSMAN.:-
| am of the view that neighbouring authorities should assist.

It was-accepted within the Committee that where they can, legal services will
assist each other, however, this may be difficult on specific issues due to each
Council’'s own graph of doom:

9 How does the Ombudsman intend to develop his role in relation to the Code of

Conduct? Does he have any new initiatives in mind?

John Roberts (Vice-Chair) - Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

I'do not have any new initiatives in mind, however, | wish to add a third public
interest test-and will also be providing simple guidance on personal and
prejudicial-interests.

10 The NWSCF wrote to One Voice Wales earlier this year requesting support for

Community Councils in developing the ethical content of their websites when
this becomes a statutory requirement (see letter attached). We are yet to
receive a response. What advice will the Ombudsman provide to Community
Councils on this issue?

Edwards Hughes (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

I would like to see a copy of any response you receive from One Voice Wales
on this as | would be interested in receiving their views. Equally, | would also be
happy to listen to any comments you may have on what sort of guidance you

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 11




would like to receive, and we can see if it's something that we are able to assist
with.

11

Will you as the Ombudsman, consider passing more breaches of the Code of
Conduct, to the Standards Committees to deal with at a local level.
Howie Roberts (Chair) — Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

Yes, we will consider passing more breaches of the Code of Conduct to
Standards Committees, and during a meeting in Swansea last week in which |
was present, there was an expectation that this would happen. The take up was
however poor with only four cases being investigated at local level up to April
this year. The problem appears to be that Standards Committee do not appear
to have an appetite for taking on local hearings. It is however noted that the
Standards Committees present would be happy to take more matters on at a
local level and | will continue to refer cases where appropriate.

12

Whether the Ombudsman has any intention of clarifying paragraph 10 (2) (b) of
the Members' Code beyond that contained in the Guidance issued in
September 2012 (page 27). That Guidance indicated that the then Ombudsman
would review that Guidance in light of any future decisions and case law on the
effect of this provision.

David Vaughan (Chair) = Snowdonia National Park

OMBUDSMAN .-

The Welsh Government has indicated that it is going to remove paragraph 10
(2) (b) of the Members’ Code of Conduct when relooking at the Local
Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013.

13

A complaint is usually made against a member as a member of a particular
authority. Consequently any suspension would be from acting as a member of
that authority. Often however, the member will also be a member of another
relevant authority (e.g. a county councillor who is also a community councillor).
This can lead to a situation, where a member is suspended for behaviour which
is considered unacceptable for a member of any authority (e.g. conduct that
brings the office into disrepute) but he/she is free to continue to act as a
member of another authority in the meantime.

Robert Dewey (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

Any suspension prevents a Councillor from acting on the authority from which
they have been suspended, but does not ordinarily suspend that member from
any Community Council to which they have been appointed, unless the
allegations are sufficiently serious, in which case the suspension can be
extended to other committees and other Authorities such as Community
Councils.

14

Do you think that the North Wales Standards Committee Forum is a good idea?

Howie Roberts (Chair)

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 12




OMBUDSMAN :-
Yes | do believe the Forum is a very good idea as it encourages sharing
expertise, and also provides consistency across North Wales.

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 13




This page is intentionally left blank



ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
C

Page 15



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

MEETING: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE: 12™ March 2015

TITLE: Update on Ombudsman’s questions
REPORT BY: Awena Walkden, Solicitor Corporate

Governance

PURPOSE OF REPORT:

To report back to the Standards Committee on
the Ombudsman’s questions (26.11.2014)

CONTACT OFFICER:

Awena Walkden, Solicitor Corporate

Governance (Ext 2563)

1. On the 26" of November 2014 the Ombudsman attended Anglesey County Council for

a meeting of the North Wales Standards Committee Forum (“NWSCF”) where he was
presented with a list of questions from members of the Forum. The Anglesey
Standards Committee invited him to attend as it was our turn to host the event and it
was felt that it would be a good opportunity for the NWSCF to meet the new
Ombudsman and to hear about his new initiatives.

A copy of the questions posed to the Ombudsman along with his answers are
attached at Appendix 1.

The Ombudsman explained to the Forum that during his short term as the
Ombudsman for Wales he has come up with a few new initiatives regarding the
process for Code of Conduct complaints. The most significant of these initiatives are
as follows:

() he wants to bring a third test into his two stage test on whether a Code of Conduct
complaint should be investigated; this third test will be “Is there a public interest in
investigating this complaint?”

(i) he is looking at the possibility of extending the use of the local resolution protocol
to Community Councils however he is aware that this may not be a popular option
for Monitoring Officers due to their heavy workloads.

(i) he will be bringing in new guidance on the Code of Conduct as a result of the
Heesom judgment and further, he will delete the reference to paragraph 10.2(b) of
the Code of Conduct from the Guidance.

The overriding message from the Ombudsman during the Forum meeting was that he
needs to cut down on looking into vexatious complaints raised by the public and by
councillors against each other as these complaints (and the investigation of them) are
unlikely to be in the public interest. The introduction of the Public Interest Test should
assist with reducing the number of vexatious complaints raised. The Ombudsman’s

CC-017471-AP/240428 (249582) Page 1

Page 16



budget is tightening and as the Ombudsman also looks into NHS related “life or death”
cases he believes that the public interest is best served in pursuing these claims.

The Ombudsman’s office has produced a document setting out the investigation
process followed by them (copy attached — Appendix 2).

CC-017471-AP/240428 (249582) Page 2

Page 17



ATODIAD / APPENDIX
1

Page 18



COUNTY COUNCIL COUNTY CDU\'CH

X4 WreXharn CINGOR SR ;ﬂrf;::f bych
—~A ey ir Ddinbyc Slr Fflnt
: Wit ISIE OF ANCLESEY Denbighshire Fllnlﬁhlre

COUNTY COUMEIL

Questions and Responses from the Ombudsman

Question

1

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 allows for regional
Standards Committees to be formed. When the regulations are in place, how
does the Ombudsman suggest that this power should be exercised among the
North Wales Authorities. What is the current timetable for bringing this power
into effect?

Michael Wilson (Chair) - Isle of Anglesey

OMBUDSMAN :-

| worked on the Willams Commission and am a strong supporter of
collaborative working in the public sector. | am supportive of regional Standards
Committees being formed, and believe it is the way forward. | understand that
the Welsh Government.are looking to bring the regulations into place next year,
however, | do not have a timetable for this.

Why do cases accepted by the Ombudsman take so long to investigate?

Surely a member who has been accused of misconduct has a reasonable
expectation that the allegation(s) be addressed and determined as soon as
possible?

There is also a public interest for the electorate in knowing as soon as possible
whether their democratically elected representative has breached the code of
conduct.

John Roberts (Vice-Chair) — Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

If there is a problem with the timescale for dealing with complaints | will look at
this.. There is.a graph within the Williams Report known as the “graph of doom”
which states that demand for public services is going up, whereas the budget is
going down.

There has not been a huge increase in the number of code of conduct
complaints received, and in fact there has been a decline. This however does
change during election years where the numbers of complaints increase. The
problem we have is with vexatious complaints. We need to make sure that
vexatious complaints are not investigated and are thrown out as soon as
possible.

We are funded by tax payers’ money, and also investigate life or death NHS
failures, which we believe has a higher public interest for investigation, rather
than vexatious complaints raised on code of conduct issues.

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 19




The statistics for the timescales in which we deal with code of conduct
complaints are as follows :-

1. We decide whether or not to investigate 81% of complaints received
within 4 weeks;

2. 85% of complaints which are then passed to investigation stage are
investigated within 9 months;

3. Only 15% take longer than 9 months.

However, where we can make further improvements.to timescale in which we
deal with complaints, we will. We cannot do anything to speed up the
Adjudication Panel for Wales’ timescales, or that of the Standards Committees,
as these are outside our control. | want to bring in a third test to my two stage
test and that “is there a public interest in investigating the complaint?” It makes
sense that any matter which is not in the public interest should be set aside. |
am not saying that we are going to do'less work, we are going to do more, but
we cannot indulge in wasting tax payers money in investigating vexatious
complaints.

3 In a letter to the Ombudsman from the Chairman of the North Wales Standards
Committee Forum (NWSCF) it was asked whether:-

(1) The Ombudsman would be willing to provide sanctions guidance
specifically tailored to the needs and powers of standards committees
rather than seeking to apply relevant passages from the Adjudication
Panels Guidance; and

(i)~ The first issue of “The Ombudsman’s Code of Conduct Casebook”
was considered very useful. However, the NWSCF considers that it
would be even more useful if case summaries could be published as
and when the cases are concluded, perhaps on the Ombudsman’s
website? It was asked whether or not this could be accommodated
or, alternatively, might the case summaries be published quarterly?

Negative responses to each request was received from the former Ombudsman.
Is the current Ombudsman willing to re-visit these issues and, if not, could he
elaborate on the reasoning behind his predecessor’s decision.

lan Trigger (Chair) — Denbighshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

We do not have the resources to publish a monthly casebook, but we may be
able to publish information on reported cases on the website as soon as they go
live.

In relation to the sanctions guidance, | have not discussed this matter with my
predecessor, however, | am not convinced there is a problem with consistency
of sanctions being provided by the Standards Committees across Wales,
however, it is something we can consider if you think it would be helpful.

4 In the Ombudsman’s Guidance on Local Resolution Protocols (page 6 of the

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 20




Guidance to the Code) it is mentioned that there is an expectation on County
Councils to implement local resolution procedures to deal with low level
complaints and that: “these mechanisms are initially being adopted by
principal councils, but | am supportive of this extending to cover
community councils in due course”.

This anticipates that County Councils may be expected to operate local
resolution protocols in community council disputes? Alternatively, does the
Ombudsman envisage that such protocols should be adopted by Community
Councils themselves and operated by those Councils? Even if these
anticipated arrangement are not “rolled out” does the Ombudsman think that
Standards Committees should take an active role in sorting out minor
complaints within Town and Community Councils, before they are escalated to
the Ombudsman?

Edwards Hughes (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-
Currently 50% of the Code ofConduct of complaints we receive are from
Community Councils.

In a conference held by.One Voice Wales recently, the Community Councils
attendees seemed keen for the Local Resolutions Protocol to be extended to
Community Councils, however Monitoring Officers appeared less keen.

The Monitoring Officer for Gwynedd County Council confirmed that he is yet to
be persuaded that there is capacity to deal with Community Councils’ Local
Resolution Protocols, both within the Council, and within the Community
Councils themselves due to the time restraints on the Clerk. However,
introducing the public interest test may assist in reducing the number of
Community Council complaints raised.

5 It is understood that the Ombudsman will publish new Guidance on the Code of
Conduct (particularly in light of Calver). Is the Ombudsman able to give any
indication as to when this new guidance will be available and to provide some
information regarding the timeframe for consultation on any draft?

David Vaughan (Chair) — Snowdonia National Park

OMBUDSMAN :-

The Guidance on the Code of Conduct has been amended in light of Calver but
it will need to be revisited again as a result of the Heesom judgment, and the
fact that we want to introduce a new public interest test.

6 Within our Whistleblowing Policy we refer to the Ombudsman as a regulator to
whom an employee may speak regarding their concerns. Does the
Ombudsman have a role here? If so, what kind of whistleblowing complaints
would fall within the Ombudsman’s remit? Should this be removed from our
policy?

Michael Wilson (Chair) — Isle of Anglesey

OMBUDSMAN :-
| am not a regulator but am of course prepared to receive whistleblowing

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 21




complaints which relate to the Code of Conduct and its breach.

7 What percentage of complaints received by the Ombudsman, investigated by
the Ombudsman, referred by the Ombudsman to a Standards
Committee/Adjudication Panel, are from Community Councils as opposed to
unitary authorities? The concern is that the public will see the word “Councillor’
and be unable to distinguish between County Councillors and Community
Councillors.

Robert Dewey (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

50% of the complaints we receive are from Community Councils; 15% of these
are investigated and 5% are referred to Standards Committee.

In respect of the 50% of complaints received against County Councillors, 19%
are investigated, and 1% are referred to the Standards Committee.

8 Where the Ombudsman refers a matter to a Standards Committee for hearing
and the Council’s own Legal Section is conflicted by the subject matter of the
referral, what (if any) are the Ombudsman’s views on whom should provide the
legal advice to the Standards Committee?
lan Trigger (Chair) — Denbighshire
OMBUDSMAN.:-
| am of the view that neighbouring authorities should assist.

It was-accepted within the Committee that where they can, legal services will
assist each other, however, this may be difficult on specific issues due to each
Council’'s own graph of doom:

9 How does the Ombudsman intend to develop his role in relation to the Code of

Conduct? Does he have any new initiatives in mind?

John Roberts (Vice-Chair) - Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

I'do not have any new initiatives in mind, however, | wish to add a third public
interest test-and will also be providing simple guidance on personal and
prejudicial-interests.

10 The NWSCF wrote to One Voice Wales earlier this year requesting support for

Community Councils in developing the ethical content of their websites when
this becomes a statutory requirement (see letter attached). We are yet to
receive a response. What advice will the Ombudsman provide to Community
Councils on this issue?

Edwards Hughes (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

I would like to see a copy of any response you receive from One Voice Wales
on this as | would be interested in receiving their views. Equally, | would also be
happy to listen to any comments you may have on what sort of guidance you

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 22




would like to receive, and we can see if it's something that we are able to assist
with.

11

Will you as the Ombudsman, consider passing more breaches of the Code of
Conduct, to the Standards Committees to deal with at a local level.
Howie Roberts (Chair) — Conwy

OMBUDSMAN :-

Yes, we will consider passing more breaches of the Code of Conduct to
Standards Committees, and during a meeting in Swansea last week in which |
was present, there was an expectation that this would happen. The take up was
however poor with only four cases being investigated at local level up to April
this year. The problem appears to be that Standards Committee do not appear
to have an appetite for taking on local hearings. It is however noted that the
Standards Committees present would be happy to take more matters on at a
local level and | will continue to refer cases where appropriate.

12

Whether the Ombudsman has any intention of clarifying paragraph 10 (2) (b) of
the Members' Code beyond that contained in the Guidance issued in
September 2012 (page 27). That Guidance indicated that the then Ombudsman
would review that Guidance in light of any future decisions and case law on the
effect of this provision.

David Vaughan (Chair) = Snowdonia National Park

OMBUDSMAN .-

The Welsh Government has indicated that it is going to remove paragraph 10
(2) (b) of the Members’ Code of Conduct when relooking at the Local
Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013.

13

A complaint is usually made against a member as a member of a particular
authority. Consequently any suspension would be from acting as a member of
that authority. Often however, the member will also be a member of another
relevant authority (e.g. a county councillor who is also a community councillor).
This can lead to a situation, where a member is suspended for behaviour which
is considered unacceptable for a member of any authority (e.g. conduct that
brings the office into disrepute) but he/she is free to continue to act as a
member of another authority in the meantime.

Robert Dewey (Chair) — Flintshire

OMBUDSMAN :-

Any suspension prevents a Councillor from acting on the authority from which
they have been suspended, but does not ordinarily suspend that member from
any Community Council to which they have been appointed, unless the
allegations are sufficiently serious, in which case the suspension can be
extended to other committees and other Authorities such as Community
Councils.

14

Do you think that the North Wales Standards Committee Forum is a good idea?

Howie Roberts (Chair)

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 23




OMBUDSMAN :-
Yes | do believe the Forum is a very good idea as it encourages sharing
expertise, and also provides consistency across North Wales.

C-015386-RWJ/237831 (243462)

Page 24




ATODIAD / APPENDIX
2

Page 25



/Ombudsman

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAN FOR WALES
OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU

Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure (Version 11)

Contents

0.0 Principles 2
1.0 Workpro 3
2.0 Assessment 4
3.0 The investigation 5
4.0 Concluding the investigation 7
5.0 Challenges to decisions 8
6.0 Publication of reports 9

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 1 of 9

Page 26



Principles

The Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) is committed to offering a high
standard of customer service and to assessing, and, when appropriate, investigating
complaints that members have breached their authority’s Code of Conduct.
Members who are the subject of a complaint may find it stressful. Therefore it is
important that the decision whether to investigate a complaint is made and conveyed
as speedily as possible.

We will comply with the duties imposed upon us by the Equality Act 2010, Article 6 of
the European Convention on Human Rights (ECHR) and the FREDA! Principles.

Special care needs to be taken when responding to vulnerable people and our
communications with them need to be sensitive and appropriate to their needs.
Examples of steps we have taken to assist people in dealing with us include Easy
Read, transcribing conversations, face to face visits, Braille, referring complainants
to advocates and the provision of material on CD or tape.

The Ombudsman has encouraged local authorities across Wales to implement local
resolution procedures to deal with low level complaints which are made by a member
against a fellow member. Typically these complaints will be about alleged failure to
show respect and consideration for others as required by paragraph 4(b) of the Code
or the duty not to make vexatious, malicious or frivolous complaints against other
members under paragraph 6(1)(d). Any such complaints should be closed at step 2
and referred back to the Council’s Monitoring Officer for consideration under this
process.

The decision to investigate a complaint is one which requires careful consideration.
Investigations have potentially significant implications for the member. However we
need to be mindful of our role in building confidence in local government in Wales by
promoting standards in public life.

In determining whether to investigate a complaint of a breach of the Code the
Ombudsman applies a two stage test:

0] In the first instance he aims to establish whether there is evidence that a
breach actually took place.

(i) The second test is whether the breach alleged would be likely to lead to
a sanction being imposed on the member.? In using his discretion the
Ombudsman takes account of the outcomes of previous cases

' FREDA = Fairness; Respect; Equality; Dignity; Autonomy
> The Ombudsman regards a sanction as being a censure, suspension or disqualification of the member

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 2 of 9

Page 27



considered by Standards Committees and Adjudication Panels across
Wales and decides accordingly.

In reaching that decision, the investigator® should base the decision on the
information available. The complaint must be supported by direct evidence as
opposed to assertions.

The level of proof required for a breach of the Code is the balance of probability. It is
important that any investigation is proportionate to the breach of the code alleged.

Many complaints received are politically motivated or vexatious. Whilst it is
necessary to be mindful of this the decision to investigate or not must be taken on
the merits of the evidence presented and the application of the two stage test.

Our decisions will be made openly and transparently. The reasons for decisions not
to investigate will be conveyed in a way that meets the recipient’s particular
requirements, and will be given to those whom we are required to inform. Decisions
taken under delegated authority are subject to review by the Review Manager or the
Ombudsman.

If whilst assessing or during an investigation the second limb of the two stage test is
not met we will ask the relevant Monitoring Officer whether they wish to investigate
(or further investigate) the matter at a local level (see paragraph 2.3 for assessment
process and paragraph 3.6 for process during an investigation).

At all times we should avoid bias and also be mindful of the need to avoid giving the
appearance of bias. Our process is to gather all the evidence available,
proportionately to the breach involved, and to make decisions on the basis of the
evidence gathered.

The Ombudsman has provided statutory guidance on the Code of Conduct* which
will need to be considered when making a decision.

1. Workpro

1.1. Workpro is the means by which complaints are recorded and progress of the
complaint monitored and managed. There are four distinct steps relevant to Code
complaints:

Step 1 — Enquiry
Step 2 — Assessment

3 Throughout this procedure the term investigator refers to Senior Investigating Officers and Investigating
Officers.

* “The Code of Conduct for members of local authorities in Wales — Guidance from the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales” (April 2010 revised in September 2012)

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 3 0f 9

Page 28



Step 3 — Investigation
Step 4 — Report

1.2. All actions taken and written documents prepared during the course of an
assessment or investigation of a complaint must be recorded and stored within the
complaint record on Workpro.

1.3. Throughout this procedure “file” refers to the paper file and “record” refers to
the Workpro entries.

1.4. A number of templates are available on Workpro. Whilst these can save time
and effort, care must be taken to ensure that, if used, the final document is
appropriate to the circumstances of the case.

2. Assessment

2.1. When the complaint is received in the Complaints Advice Team (CAT) the
following will be notified :

(@) The Monitoring Officer

(b) The Clerk to the Community Council, if appropriate
(c) The accused member

(d) The complainant

2.2. The investigator will assess the information contained in the complaint against
the two stage test. If the first stage is not met, the investigator will reject the
complaint and will notify the complainant in writing and via their preferred method of
communication (if different). That letter will set out the reasons in full for the decision
and will be copied to those persons set out in paragraph 2.1(a) to (c)

2.3.  Where the decision to investigate, or the complaint itself, is likely to have a
high public profile the file must be referred to an Investigation Manager (IM).

2.4. Occasionally, the information in the file may suggest that the complaint has
merit but that the complainant has not been able to supply direct evidence of the
matter being complained about or has not named witnesses to the event being
complained about. In these circumstances a “minded to” letter should be sent to the
complainant giving them an opportunity to provide further information. This letter
should explain the investigator’s thinking and why the first limb of the two stage test
has not been passed. Ten working days should be allowed for a reply. If no reply is
received the complaint should be rejected (see paragraph 2.2). If a reply is received,
the investigator needs to re-assess the complaint and decide if:

(@) It should be rejected; in this case paragraph 2.2 should be followed; or
(b) It should be investigated; in this case paragraph 2.4 should be followed.

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 4 of 9

Page 29



If the investigator concludes that the first stage of the two stage test is met but not
the second stage the investigator will refer the file to the Director of Investigations
(DOQI) via their IM. If the decision is agreed by the DOI the investigator will write to
the relevant Monitoring Officer informing them that we are minded not to investigate
the complaint and asking them to confirm whether they believe a local investigation
is appropriate (giving ten working days to respond). If no reply is received in that time
the file can be closed. If the Monitoring Officer asks for an extension of time to
respond a reasonable extension can be agreed by the investigator. A copy of the
letter will be sent to the complainant and the member being complained about.”

Where the Monitoring Officer agrees that an investigation is not warranted the
complaint will not be investigated and the parties informed accordingly.

Where the Monitoring Officer indicates that a local investigation is appropriate we will
start an investigation and immediately refer the matter formally to the Monitoring
Officer under section 70(4) of the Local Government Act 2000.°

2.5. If after assessing the complaint the investigator concludes that the two stage
test has been met the investigator should prepare an assessment note setting out
the reasons for the decision and which provisions of the Code are engaged. Where
the complainant has accused the member of breaching more than one paragraph of
the Code an evaluation of each potential breach should be included in the
assessment note. If the investigator has identified areas of the code where there are
potential breaches not identified by the complainant, these too should be referred to
in the assessment note.

2.6. The decision to begin an investigation must be approved by the Ombudsman
(or in his absence, the DOI).

3. The investigation

3.1. Once the decision has been made to investigate the complaint, the IM (in
conjunction with the DOI in complex or high profile cases) may re-allocate the file to
another investigator. The investigator will identify the scope of the investigation,
which witnesses to seek evidence from and what other evidence to gather and make
a note of this on the file.

3.2. Once the scope of the investigation has been agreed, those identified in
paragraph 2.1 will be contacted to inform them of the investigation. The accused
member will be told that comments are not required at this stage. The Monitoring

> Both parties should be informed that it would not be appropriate to contact the MO about
the matter at that stage

® The Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officer and Standards
Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001/2281 outline the way in which the matter should be
dealt with by Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees.

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 50of 9

Page 30



Officer and Clerk to the Community Council (if appropriate) will be asked for relevant
information.

3.3.  Written evidence from witnesses asking for their accounts of events can be
obtained in several ways, for example:-

(a)Face to face interviews;
(b)Telephone interviews;
(c)Written questions.

The investigator will identify the most appropriate way for witness evidence to be
gathered, but as a general rule, the more serious the breach being investigated, the
greater the benefit from face to face or telephone interviews with formal written
statements being obtained.

3.4. During the course of an investigation, other potential breaches of the Code
may be identified, either involving the member under investigation or another
member. When this happens, the investigator will prepare a written brief for the IM,
who will refer the file to the DOI for a decision. The DOI may decide what action to
take or to refer the decision to the Ombudsman. If the scope of the investigation is to
be widened, the steps set out at paragraph 3.2 are to be taken. However if the
extended investigation is against another member, a new record and file are to be
opened before that member, the Monitoring Officer and, where appropriate, the Clerk
to the Community Council are informed (see paragraph 3.2).

3.5.  When all the evidence has been gathered the investigator will review the
information to decide if the evidence is supportive of a breach of the Code.

If so, the evidence gathered will be sent to the member informing them that a face to
face interview will be arranged. Where the evidence does not support a breach the
investigator will consider the most appropriate way to close the investigation. (See
paragraph 4.2)

3.6  When the member’'s comments on the evidence have been received the
investigator will consider the most appropriate way forward (see paragraph 4.2).

If having reviewed the evidence a finding of no further action is appropriate the
investigator will write to the relevant Monitoring Officer informing them that the
Ombudsman is minded to make a finding of no further action. The Monitoring Officer
will be asked to confirm whether they believe that further local investigation is
appropriate (giving ten working days to respond). If no reply is received from the
Monitoring Officer in that time the file will be closed. If the Monitoring Officer asks for
an extension of time to respond this can be agreed by the investigator, provided any
extension does not have an adverse impact on the length of the ongoing

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 6 of 9

Page 31



investigation. A copy of the letter will be sent to the complainant and the member
being complained about.’

Where the Monitoring Officer agrees that further investigation is not appropriate a
letter report (step 4 — see paragraph 4.2) will be issued making a finding of no further
action.

Where the Monitoring Officer indicates that further local investigation is appropriate
we will close the investigation at Step 3 and formally refer the matter to the
Monitoring Officer under section 70(4) of the Local Government Act 2000.%

During the investigation, it might become apparent that it is appropriate to
discontinue the investigation for other reasons (e.g. the serious iliness of a key
witness or the accused member). A decision to discontinue an investigation for any
reason must be approved by the DOI.

4. Concluding the investigation
4.1. The investigation can be concluded by one of four findings:-

(a)There is no evidence of a breach of the Code;

(b)That no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters investigated,;

(c)That the report of the investigation be forwarded to the Monitoring Officer for
consideration by the Council’s Standards Committee; or

(d)That the report of the investigation be referred to the President of the
Adjudication Panel for Wales (APW) for determination by a tribunal
established by him.

4.2. Findings will be conveyed in accordance with the following table:-

Finding Letter | Report | Draft | Decision Maker
No evidence of breach | €S | YesS No Ombudsman/DOI
No further action Yes |Yes No Ombudsman/DOI
Refer to Standards No Yes Yes Ombudsman
Committee

Refer to APW No Yes Yes Ombudsman

’ Both parties should be informed that it would not be appropriate to contact the Monitoring
Officer about the matter at that stage

8 The Local Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officer and Standards
Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001/2281 outline the way in which the matter should be
dealt with by Monitoring Officers and Standards Committees.

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 7 of 9

Page 32



A letter report will follow the templates on Workpro. After the draft report has been
considered by the Ombudsman (or DOI in his absence) it will be sent to the member
for comments before it is finalised.

If a letter is appropriate it should fully explain the reasons for the decision. If a finding
under (a) or (b) is made copies of the final report/letter should be sent to:-

(Complainant;
(a)(ilMember;
(b)(iii)Monitoring Officer;
(c)(iv)Clerk to the Community Council (if appropriate).

If a finding under (c) or (d) is made copies of the final report should be sent to the:-

a) Member
b) Monitoring Officer

The complainant and the Clerk to the Community Council (if relevant) should be
informed of the outcome of the Ombudsman’s investigation using the relevant
template letter. Every letter report/report should include a summary of the complaint
and the Ombudsman’s findings as a stand-alone document. Where a finding under
(c) or (d) is made the investigator must ensure that Workpro is updated to record the
hearing outcome decision and that an updated version of the summary including the
hearing outcome is prepared and saved on Workpro. In cases where an appeal
against the hearing outcome is lodged, the investigator must also record this on
Workpro.

5. Challenges to decisions

5.1. There will be occasions when a complainant wishes to challenge a decision not
to investigate. The investigator will ensure that any challenges are recorded in
Workpro The challenge will be referred to the Review Manager who will decide
how best to respond by either:-

(a)Reviewing and responding personally;

(b)Referring the matter to the investigator who dealt with the matter to draft a
response for his consideration;

(c)Commissioning a review and response from a different Senior Investigating
Officer or another IM,;

(d)Referring the matter to the DOI,

(e)Referring the matter to the Ombudsman,;

(f) Referring the matter to the Ombudsman’s Corporate Services Manager
(complaints about members of our staff).

5.2. Challenges to a (c) or (d) finding cannot normally be considered as the
Ombudsman is “functus officio” which prevents him re-considering a report.

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 8 of 9

Page 33



However if significant new evidence is presented, such as to amount to a new
complaint, or if the finding was clearly perverse, then he may re-consider the matter.
In such cases the challenge should be referred to the Review Manager in the first
instance.

6. Publication of reports

6.1 Decisions not to investigate will not normally be published. However,
summaries of cases where an (a), (b), (c), or (d) finding has been made will be
made available in the Code of Conduct Casebook. . Where a (c) or (d) finding has
been made and the matter has been referred to a standards committee or for
adjudication by tribunal we will refer requests for information to the relevant
Monitoring Officer or Registrar of the Adjudication Panel whilst the hearing is
outstanding. We will publish the summaries of such cases in the Casebook when
the hearing has been concluded.

Policy Owner CMRG

Policy & EIA approved 11/03/2013

by CMRG

Due date of next Review Ongoing

For publication to : Intranet Yes
PSOW website Yes

Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
Code of Conduct Complaints Procedure V11 Page 9 of 9

Page 34




Agenda Item 4

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE CH

Page 35



CWYNION A GYFLWYNWYD I'R OMBWDSMON AC YMCHWILIADAU A WNAED GANDDO - "0” ~=YNGHYLCH CYNGHORWYR CYNGOR
SIR YNYS MON - DIWEDDARIAD

UP TO DATE COMPLAINTS TO AND INVESTIGATIONS BY THE OMBUDSMAN - “"0” -REGARDING ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY
COUNCILLORS - UPDATED

PWYLLGOR SAFONAU - 12.03.2015 - STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Enw’r Cynghorydd

Name of Councillor

Enw’r Achwynydd

Name of Complainant

Cyfeirnod y Ffeil

File Reference
(i) Un ni/Ours
(ii) lloll

Dyddiad y
Gwyn -“0”

Complaint
date - “0”

Canlyniad Ymholiad “O” a'r
dyddiad neu’r sefyllfa gyfredol
Result of “O” Investigation and
date or the current situation

1. Cynghorydd Sir /
County Councillor

o¢ abed

Prif Weithredwr / Chief

Executive

(i) 017339
(i) 20130411
8

29.10.13

11.09.14 - Aeth y mater i
wrandawiad llawn o’r Pwyllgor
Safonau ar 19.12.2015. Mae'r
Cynghorydd wedi cyflwyno apél i
Banel Dyfarnu Cymru yn erbyn y
penderfyniad ac rydym yn
disgwyl am ddyddiad ar gyfer yr
apél / The matter went to a full
hearing of the standards
committee on the 19.12.2015.
The Councillor raised an appeal
against the decision with the
Adjudication Panel for Wales and
we await an appeal date.

2. Cynghorydd Sir /
County Councillor

Member of public/aelod o’r

cyhoedd.

17724

08.04.2014

16.02.15 — The Ombudsman has
decided not to investigate/Mae’r
Ombwdsmon wedi penderfynu
peidio ymchwilio.

3. Cynghorydd Sir /
County Councillor

Member of public/aelod o’r

cyhoedd.

17726

08.04.2014

16.02.15 — The Ombudsman has
decided not to investigate/Mae’r
Ombwdsmon wedi penderfynu
peidio ymchwilio.

4. Cynghorydd

Deputy Chief Executive/

18079

11.11.2014

17.02.2015 - The ombudsman

CC-017471-AP/249583




/€ abed

Enw’r Cynghorydd

Name of Councillor

Enw’r Achwynydd

Name of Complainant

Cyfeirnod y Ffeil

File Reference
(i) Un ni/Ours
(ii) llo”

Dyddiad y
Gwyn - “0”

Complaint
date - “0”

Canlyniad Ymholiad “O” a'r
dyddiad neu’r sefyllfa gyfredol
Result of “O” Investigation and
date or the current situation

Sir/County Councillor

Dirprwy Brif Weithredwr

has decided to investigate/Mae’r
Ombwdsmon wedi penderfynu
ymchwililo.

CC-017471-AP/249583




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
D

Page 39



CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON / ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

MEETING: STANDARDS COMMITTEE

DATE: 12" MARCH 2015

TITLE OF REPORT: TRAINING SESSIONS FOR TOWN AND
COMMUNITY COUNCIL CLERKS ON THE CODE
OF CONDUCT

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT: TO RECEIVE FURTHER INSTRUCTIONS FROM

THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

REPORT BY: AWENA WALKDEN, SOLICITOR CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
CONTACT OFFICER: AWENA WALKDEN, SOLICITOR CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE (ext 2563)

1. INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

The role of the Standards Committee is to promote and maintain high standards of
conduct amongst members and to assist Members to keep to the Code of Conduct. A
great deal of emphasis is placed on training, and to this end, four training sessions were
arranged in September 2013 specifically for Town and Community Councillors.

Due to the lack of support for the training that took place in September 2013, the
Standards Committee decided to take a different approach in Autumn 2014 by conducting
the training for the clerks of community councils only, as the clerks were the main
attendees in the training sessions that took place in 2013.

The training session was held on 30" October 2014 (10:00am - 12:00pm), and a copy of
the training slides pack from the session is attached as Enclosure 1 to this Report.
(17471/233773)

This report provides a review of the attendance record of the training sessions, proposals
as to the actions required, and proposals for future training events.

2. ATTENDANCE AT THE TRAINING SESSIONS

Detailed figures of attendance are attached at “Enclosure 2”. (17471/207993)
Positive feedback was received in relation to the training, and copies of the feedback
forms received can be found at “Enclosure 3”. (17471/237948)
3. ACTION REQUIRED

From enclosures 2 and 3, it is clear that there was good support for this training.
CC-017471-AP/238718 (249584) Page 1

Page 40




Of the 40 Community Councils across Isle of Anglesey, 29 were represented at the
training which is a 73% attendance rate of Anglesey’s Town and Community Councils.

This shows that the training was more successful than that conducted last year by One
Voice Wales, and accordingly, it would appear that the Town and Community Councils
responded well to the clerk only invitation, and this could be as a result of us emphasizing
to them within correspondence leading up to the session, the importance of them having a
good understanding of the Code of Conduct, and further, the Chair and Vice-chair of the
Standards Committee attended a meeting of the Town and Community Clerks earlier in
the year where this message was re-iterated.

4. ACTION TAKEN

As a post-training exercise, we wrote to the clerks that attended the session the week
following the training session to thank them for their attendance, and to provide them with
feedback forms for them to complete.

We also sent a letter to the Community Councils that did not attend the training to provide
them with a copy of the material from the training session, and to highlight to them the
great attendance we had at the session, and the importance of them attending such
events in the future.

Copies of these letters can be found in “Enclosure 4”.
5. FUTURE TRAINING

The training sessions we held for the clerks were focused on the clerks’ role, as the clerks
have responsibility for running the Council and for advising community Councillors on the
Code of Conduct. Given the success of the training events, the Standards Committee
need to consider the following options for future training:-

I.  Continue with the specific training for clerks, and make this an annual “refresher”
session.

ii. Conduct a similar session targeted at Town and Community Councillors next year
however, noting the poor turnout which we had in 2013, it is unlikely that this
would be a popular event or should the focus for next year shift back to members
of the community council, i.e. target on the basis of risk?

iii. Look at different options for training, for example, going out to train the
Community Councils with particular problems in their authorities,

We would welcome your comments on areas to focus our attention on, and with any ideas
you may have as to how to improve on the training.

6. RECOMMENDATION

That the Committee agrees future training delivery.

CC-017471-AP/238718 (249584) Page 2

Page 41



ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
1

Page 42



Cod Ymddygiad
Code of Conduct

Clercod Cynghorau Cymuned
Ynys M6n
Community Council Clerks
Anglesey
Hydref / October 2014

29/10/2014

“Cadw Ty"

Seswn gan:-
Mika Wison, Cadeirydd Annibynnol y
Pwyligor Safonau
Awena Walkden, Cyfreithwraig —
Liywodraethiant Corfforaethol
Lyn Ball, Psnnasth Swyddogaeth
(Busnes y Cyngor) Swyddog Monitro
laith

Trefniadau / Cyfleusterau
Amseriad
Rhaglen

* Cyfwyniad gest y Cadeirydd

- Coindin » Swyddogaeth y Clarr

“House Keeping”

¢ Session by--

— Mike Wiison, Independent
Chairman of the Standards
Committes

~ Awena Walkden, Solicitor -
Carporate Govemance

~ Lynn Bafl, Head of Function
{Council BusinessyMonitoring
Officer

* Language
* Armngements / Facilties
«  Timing
*  Agenda
~ introduction om the Chalmas
- Background mnd Rale of te Cherk

“Cadw Ty"

Y Cad

+ Yn gyfiredinol

" Ymddygiad
- ¥r hyn y mae'n taid iddynt ei
whneud

- Y1 hyn y mae'n haid iddynl
beidio &'l wnaeud

¢ Diddordebau
Liuniseth
Plismona'r Cod
Enghretfftiau o achesion y cafwyd gwybod
amdanynt

* Trafocesth dan arweinad Mike Wilson

ac Awena Walkden

Gwybadaeth ynghyich cysyitiadau ac
adnoddeu

Crynodeb sitweddol

“House Keeping”

~ The Code
* Generally
+ Behaviours
- What they must do
~ What they must not do

* interests
- Refrestunents
Policing the Code
~  Examples of reparted cases.

« Discussion to be led by Mike

Wilson andt Awena Walkden

= Contact information and resources
- Key summary

'

Page 43



Cefndir

+  Cynrychiolwyr Cymunedol

+  Dylstswydd statudol i walthredu'n
foesegol

«  C4d Ymddyglad Mandadol

Background

Community Representatives
Statutory duty lo act ethically
Mandatory Code of Conduct

Consequences of breaching the Code

29/10/2014

+ Canlyniadau torrir Cad - parsonal sanchion
. coab bersonol ~ loas of reputation
- ool e da - legal chafenge
- her gyfraithiol
4
Roly Clerc Role of the Clerk
«  Disgwykadau'n amrywio «  Expactations vary
+ “y Cierc Hanfodol «  “the Essential Clerk”
. Masbobamesrynddvietseyddar  +  Alwaysthe Coungillor's duty
Qynghorydd «  Asaminmum:-
+ O leiaf:- — Copy Code
- Copi o'r C&d — Undertakings
- Ymgymerisdau — Retain undartakings
- Cadw Ymgymeriadau — Retain Declaration Forms
- Cadw Flurfienni Datgan — Minutes
- Cofnodion -~ See the lasue and get advice
- Gweld y broblem a chaisl cyngor ~ Web presence?
- Presencidet ary We? — Transfer of Assels?

- Troagwyddo Asedau?

Y Cbd - yn Gyffredinol

1. Pa bryd mae’r Cod yn berthnasol

+  Arfusnes y Cyngor
- Y tu mewn i'r Cyngor
- Y tu aan {'r Cyngor
- Ffurfiol ac anffurfiol

+  “Bobamser ac mewn unrhyw
swyddogeeth”
- Defnydd amhviodol o't swydd

- Ruyn anfri - thaki bod cysyitiad,

The Code - Generally

When does the Code apply?

On Council business
- Inside the Council

- Outside the Councit
- Formal and Informal

“At afl imes and in any capecity”
- Improper use of position
- Disrepute ~ must be & knk e.g.

Page 44




Y Céd ~ Ymddygiad (1)
Yr hyn y mae'n rhaid i Gynghorwyr i
wneud

*  Hyrwyddo cydraddokiet

*  Trin eralll & pharch

+  Darparu mynediad | wybodaeth

«  Gwneud penderfyniadau ar sail y
rhinweddau

+  Rhoi sylw dyledus i gyngor
Swyddogion

*  Glynu wrth unrhyw reolau ynghyich
costau

*  Rhoi gwybod am unihyw achosion o

domi't Cod neu ymddygiad troseddol

gan Gynghorydd aralt

Cy gydag

The Code — Behaviours (1)

29/10/2014

What Counclilors must do

*  Promote equality

¢« Treat others with respect

+ Provide access to information

* Make decisions on the merits

» Have due regard to advice of Officers

« Abide by any rules on axpenses

* Report any breaches of the Code or
criminal bshaviour by another
uncior

*  Cooperate with investigations

Y C4d - Ymddygiad (2)

Yr hyn y mae'n rhaid | Gynghorwyr
beldio &'l wneud

*  Derbyn thoddion/lletygarwch answyddogol

¢ Datgelu gwybodasth a rociwyd yn
gyfrinachal

¢+ Defnyddic sdnoddau’t Cyngor mewn modd
amhnodal

*  Gwneud cwynion biinderus neu falesus
*  Ceisio cael mantuis

+  Dwyn anfri ar y swydd

The Code - Behaviours (2)

What Counciliors must not do

*  Accept unofficil gifie/hospitality

*  Discloss information given in confidence

¢ Use Councl resources improperty

* Make vexatious of makicious complaints.

*  Sesk to gain an advantage

*  Bring the office into disrepute

Diddordebau Personol (1) -

Yn Gyffredinol

* Rbaid i't cyhoedd fod yn hyderus fod y
penderfyniadau er budd gomu iddynt

« Diddaordeb proffasiynol neu bersonol y
tu akan Tw swyddogaeth a ak wrihdaro
Qyda'u dyletswydd fel Cynghorydd o
ran gwasanaethu'r gymuned

+  Os oes gan Gynghorydd ddiddordeb
yna rhaid iddo/iddi ef ddatgen ac
efallal y bydd raid ddyrt adael yr
ystafel

Personal Interests (1)

Generally

* The public must have confdence that

decisions are in their best interests

* A professional or personal interest
outside their role which may confiict

with their duty as a Councilior in
serving the community

+ I & Councilior has an interest they

must declare it and may have to lsave
the room

Page 45



Diddordebau Personol (2) -
Yn Gyffredinol ... parhad

Mae diddordeb personol yn bodoli o8 yw'
sitem dan drafodaeth yn ymwneud & /.yn
debygol o gael effafth ar un neu rmgor o
categoriau a restric yn 'y Cod

1, Y Cynghorydd
2. “Cydnabod agos personol y
Cynghorydd
3. Yn cael effaith ar y Cynghorydd {neu
gydrabod agos personol) i raddau
heiaethach na mwyafrf au hetholwyr
4. Yn cynnwys anffurfiol hefyd

Personal interests (2)
Generally ... cont
A personal interest axists ¥ the item und
discussion 0 o b omﬂ
one of more cal in
Code
1.The Councilior

2.The Councilor's *close personal
associates”

3.Affects the
l nlocll toa qrulor sﬂem
the majority of their electorate

4 Incudes informal too

20/10/20) 4

Diddordebau Personol (3) -
Cydnabod Agos Personol

Pwy sy'n ‘Gydnabod Agos
Personol’

+  Cyloiion agos

«  Cydwelthwyr gyda chysyMiadau cryf
« Cydnabod Busnes

« Perthnasau agos

+ Rhywun y bu mewn anghydfod A nhw

+  Ond nid pobl y daw ar eu traws yn
achiysurot, perthnasau pell neu bobl y
daeth | gysylitiad & niw drwy'r gwaith

Personal Interests (3) -
Close Personal Associate

Who Is 'a Close Personal
Assoclate’

+  Ciose friends

¢ G with strong

« Business associates

Close relatives
Or someons with whom they have
been in dispite

»  But not casual acquaintances, distant
relatives or people whom they come
into contact with through work

Diddordebau Personol (4) -
Categoriau

+  Swydd neu fusnes

»  Cyflogwr neu fusnes y maent yn
bartner/cyfarwyddwr ynddo

«  Rhywun sydd wedi cyfrannu at eu
costau etholiad neu dreuliau
aelodau

o Unrhyw gwmni y mae ganddynt

gyfranddaliadau o dros £25k

ynddo, neu ragor nag 1% o
gyfanswm gwerth y
cyfranddaliadau ac sydd ag eiddo
neu dir yn eich ardal

Personal Interests (4) -
Categories

+ Job or business

« Employer or a business in which
they are a partner/director

» Someone who has contributed to
their slection costs or member
expenses

« Any company where they have
shares over £25k, or more than
1% of the total share value, and
which has premises or land in
your area

Page 46



Diddordebau Personol (4) -

Categoriau ... Parhad

*  Unrhyw gontract y mas eich Cyngor yn
o wneud gyda busnes y maent yn
bartner, yn gyfarwyddwr sy n derbyn
141 neu & chyfranddaliadau ynddo

¢ Unrhyw dir y mae ganddynt fudd
ynddo yn ardai eich Cyngor

*  Unrhyw dir sy'n cael ei osod gan eich
Cyngor i fusnes y maent yn bartner, yn
gyfarwyddwr ay’n derbyn tAl neu &
chyfranddaliadau ynddo

*  Unrhyw dir yn ardal eich Cyngor y mae

i'w ddefnyddio am

o loiaf 28 diwmod

*  Unrhyw gorff y maent wedi cael eu
sthol, eu penodi neu eu henwebuy iddo
gan eich Cyngor

Personal Interests (4) -

29/10/2014

Categories... Cont

*  Any contract that your Council makes

with a business in which they are a

partner, paid director or hoid shares
* Any land in which they have an

interest in your Council's area

* Any land let by your Council to a
business in which they are a pariner,
paid director or share holder

¢ Anyland in your Council's area in

which they have a licence to occupy
for at least 26 days

« Any body to which they have heen
elected, appointed of nominated by

your Councit

Diddordebau Personol (4) -

Categoriau ... Parhad

*  Unrhyw awdurdod neu gorff

cyhoaddus sy'n cyflawni
dd o natur g 3

elusen, corff sy'n Hunio bam
gyhosddus neu bolisi, undeb Rafur neu
gymdeithas broffesiynol, ciwb neu
gymdeithas breifat yn ardal eich
Cyngor y maent yn askd ohono neu &
swyddogaeth reoll

+ Diddordebau Lies / Arannol

Personal Interests (4) -
Categories ... Cont

*  Any public authority or body exercising

functions of a public nature, chartty,
body forming public opinion or policy,
trade union or professional
association, private ciub or society in

your Council's area of which they are a
member or in @ managament position

*  Wellbeing / financial inerests

Diddordebau Personol (5) -
Datganiadau

Beth ddylai Cynghorwyr ei wneud

os oes ganddynt Ddiddordeb

Personoi?

+ Datgan y diddordeb ar lafar ym mhob
cyfarfod

«  Datgan y diddordeb wrth wneud
syiwadau ysgrifenadig neu iafar y tu
alan i gyfarfod

*  Lierwi ffurflen datgan diddordeb

*  OND mae ganddynt hawl | gymryd
rhan mewn irafodaeth a phieidieisio
oni bal bod y diddordeb yn un sy'n
rhagfamy

Personal Interests (5) -

Declarations

What Do They Do If They Have a

Personal Interest?

*  Declare & verbally at all meelings

+  Declare it when making written or
verbal representations outside a
meeting

*  Complete a deciaration of interest form

»  BUT they are entitled to take part in
discussions and vote uniess # is a

Page 47



Prejudicial Interests (1)
Generally

Are personat inmerests which a member of
the public would regard as kkely to

Diddordebau sy’n
Rhagfarnu (1) ~

Yn Gyffredinol

Unsiyw ddiidordebau personol a fyddal,
yn nhgh aalodau o cyhoedd, yn debygol
o gasi d a7 aku Cy dd i fod

yn wrthrychol, er enghraifft:

- Mae merch y Cynghorydd yn byw drws
nesa i safle be bwriedir codi tai newydd

- Mas maby Cynghorydd yn mynychu
yagol leol y bwriedir &l chau

& Councilior's abiity to be
objective, for example:

. The Councillors daughter lives next to
a proposed ske for a new housing
davelopment

. The Councilior’s son attends a local
school which is due for closwve

29/10/2014

o Ynmynd y tu draw i ddiddordebau
personol

= Rhesymau statudol cyfyngedig

- dros hanner y Cynghorwyr yn rhannu
ciddorded
- hyder y cyhomdd
- cyfran syweddol or cyhoadd
- oyfewnhad oherwydd rélarbenigedd
- satydiind gwirtddol
- o ddiddordeb It ardal
Cais yagrifenedig 1 Swyddog Moniro
Panel y Pwyligor Safonau
Mynychu gwrandawiad cyhoeddus
Efakai y bydd cyfyngiadau
Rheidrwydd | ddatgeh

Diddordebau sy'n Prejudicial Interests (2) -

Rhagfarnu (2) - Datgan Declaration and

a Gadael y Cyfarfod Withdrawal

Beth ddylal Cynghorwyr i wneud What Do They Do if They Have &

os oss ganddynt D sy'n Prejudicial ?

Rhagtarnu? «  Declare the interest and jeave the

+  Datgan y dddordeb a gadael y meeting during the discusaion
cyfaifod yn ysiod y drafodaeth + Must not try to influence the decision

« Rhai idynt beidio & cheisio «  Must hot make writien or verbal
dylarwadu ar y penderfyriad representations

+  Rhaki kdyrt bekiio & gwneud unriyw
sywadau ysgrifenedig neu lafar UNLESS

ONi BAl + The Standards Commities as granted

+ Fod y Pwyigor Safonau wedi thol a dispensation
::M.mamw.u st The public have & fight to speak(but

. gan y cyhoed A ust leave aftar having spoken)
rhaid Kidynt adael ar &1 siarad) they m ve after having )

17

Diddcraebau 8y i Rhagrariv (2] PreJuaiCiaTInterests (2] ~

Clﬂllul'I: Arbennig - Dispensations

«  Sicrhau cydbwysedd rtwng . "
oyfrm d taidd & fryder Balance dom:z:ﬂc participation with
cyhoeddus

+  Owverreaches prejudicial inlerest
«  Limied siatutory grounds:
~  haif + Councillrs share intarest
~  publc confidence
— signifcant propartion of the public
Justified by role/expertise

+  Standards Committes Panel
«  Aftendance at public hearing
«  May be imiations

« Disclosure requiremernt

Page 48



29/10/2014

Diddordebau~ Crynodeb Interests - Summary
* Diddordeb Personol * Pemsonal interest

- datgan a chymryd rhan yn y ~ declare and participate
drafodaeth ~ technical breach

- tor-amod technegol

+ Personal and prejudicial interest

+ Diddordeb Personol ac un sy'n ~ declare and withdraw

Rhagfamu ~ serious risk

- datgan a gadael v cyfarfod

- riag ddifrifol

*  Apply for a dispensation?

+ Cyfwyno cais am ganiatdd arbennig? + Look ahead and apply for a

dispenaation
Edrych ymiaen a chyfwyno cais am
ganiatAd arbennig

Seibiant ar gyfer  Refreshment
Liuniaeth Break

15 munud 15 minutes

Plismona'r Céd (1) Policing the Code (1)

SWYDDOGAETHAU A ROLES AND
CHYFRIFOLDEBAU RESPONSIBILITIES
1.0mbwdsmon Gwasanaethau 1.Public Services Ombudsman for
Cyhoeddus Cymru Wales

2.Panel Dyfranu Cymru 2.Adjudication Panel for Wales
3.Pwyllgor Safonau 3.Standards Committee

21

Page 49



Plismona’r Cad (2) parhad ...

1. Qmbwdsmon Gwasanaethay
Cyhoeddus Cymru

- rol ddeublyg

- “yr hidiiad cyntaf” dany Céd

- prawf trothwy

- ymchwiliadot / erlyniadol

- dim camau peilach ney

- cyfeirio 't Pwyligor Safonau neu
- cyfeirio | Banel Dyfarmu Cymru

Policing the Code (2) cont ...

29/10/2014

1. Public Services Ombudsman
for Wales

dual role
~ “first sift” under the Code
threshold test

investigative/prosecutorial
~ no further action or

~ refer to Standards Committes
or

refer to Adjudication Panel for
Wales

Plismona’r C8d (2) parhad ...

2,Pansl Dyfamu Cymoy

«  *Pwyligor Safonau” cenedlaethol

+  Statws triblwnlys / 3 aelod / cyfreRthiwr
1 bargyfrefthiwr yn cadeirio

*  Ynderbyn:

cynrychiciasth gireithiol
+ arypepurm’, 08 008D yn LT
«  Cosbau eydd ar gael
o dimoamau pellech
. oeryid
el om hyd mt 1 Iwyddyn
Gwahardd am hyd at 5 miyredd

Policing the Code (2) cont ...

Adjudication Pans| for Wales
+ national "Standards Commitiee”
«  {iribunal status / 3 members / chained

by solicior / bamister

*  receives.

23

Plismona’r Cdd (2) parhad

+ dyletswyddau statudol

« el om gyinod hyd M6 mie
o cyfrifoldebau erall

.« qweler yr wdroddiad It Cyngor 8/6/2014
MMM

e
- caniathd wrbenig
- yfiorddiant s datbivgied

Policing the Code (2) cont..

+  other responsibiiities

—  new report o Counch 8/6/2014
oo e o i
oy ety e s
Hpermilee

dispensations
fraining end development
~ ravew regisiers

'

Page 50



Trafodaeth dan
arweiniad Mike
Wilson ac Awena
Walkden

Discussion to be led
by Mike Wilson and
Awena Walkden

P

29/10/2014

Gyswilt ac A £3]
+  Os oas gennych unvhyw smheuseth,
gofynmwch {'r Swyddog Mondro

— Lynn Ball - Swyddog Moo
it 800 01248 752580/ abost

- Re

tobyn Jorwes - Dirprwy Bwydcdeg Monkro
T v 01248 752134/ abast
MM 0aY Lk

- Awens Walklan - Cykemtmna) (Liywodreetin
Corfiorsathal)
vl Bon 01248 762580 / about
G ooy b

~ M Wikeon, Cadeitydd y Fwyligor Sefnay
il Mon 01248 762686/ ebost

Contact information and Resources (1)
if in douldt ask the Monitoring Officer
- Lynn Bat - Monioring
(801248 752506 / arma.
Racaengieney 0oy b
- Habyn Jones - Daputy Monioring Offosr

o 51248 7621347 amast
Dascaddenglensy gov A&

~ Awane Wkden - Sollofar (Carporme
Governance)
tnl 01248 7525637 et
xalunolesey oy vk

- Wik Witecn, Chei of the Standards Commistes
1001240 752506 ensae
hacGangieey. ooy ub

Gwybaodseth Gyswit ac Adnoddaeu (1)

+  Cod Ymddygiad Statudol

- YGed

Contact informetion and Resources (1)

¢ Statutory Code of Conduct
Code

~ Cankwwan Gundanca
o e s L
> 0 Sl sttt Cuivh SO " s - Py CotiComt s, ACuh_i_ Lo
earh JOCamnrei HCseuvt M. amerseth, Mbiar s 2021 1% oMo Counal . _smwrgt_be THi. S0 _sve
TSN
=~ Pubbshed cases
= Achowion a P . v ————
o o s eovet e
——
o ot v
Dinpanaations
Cantemd Abennig P
PR
Principies of Conduct in Pubiic il
¥ uyacrion Ymddyghad mewn Bywyd Cyhosdes

27

Page 51



Gwethradweh & unwaith o rewyn
safyife

T
wdqmywymewgn

Conclusion

Trost others with respect and consideration
mmmmmmnmw

28

29/19/2014




Nodyn Briffio i Aelodau
Rhyddid Mynegiant Gwleidyddol v Y Céd Ymddygiad

1. Céd Ymddygiad yr Aelodau (“y C6d”)
Ymysg pethau eraill, mae’n rhaid i Aelodau, yn unol &'r Céd:-
- Drin eraill gyda pharch ac ystyriaeth
- Peidio & bwlio na hambygio eraill
- Peidio ag ymddwyn mewn ffordd y gellid ei hystyried yn rhesymol fel un sy'n
dwyn anfri ar rél yr Aelod neu’r Cyngor.

2. Mynegiant Gwleidyddol

Mae achosion a benderfynwyd gan y Llys dros y blynyddoedd, ynghyd ag achosion
sy'n dal i esblygu, wedi sefydiu’r diffiniad isod o’r hyn sy'n cael ei gyfrif fel
mynegiant gwleidyddol:-

“Gwybodaeth am faterion sy’n ymwneud & threfnu bywyd economaidd,
cymdeithasol a gwleidyddol y wilad...”

Beth mae hyn yn ei olygu mewn gwirionedd ac yn ymarferol? Mae'r diffiniad o
sylwadau sy'n cael eu hystyried yn fynegiant gwleidyddol yn un eang, a gall
gynnwys sylwadau sy'n ymwneud & sut mae cyfarfodydd yn cael eu cynnal, sut
mae sefydliadau’'n cael eu gweinyddu a sut mae pobl yn cyflawni eu dyletswyddau
cyhoeddus.

Mae'’r Uchel Lys a’r Ombwdsmon wedi dweud yn benodol bod disgwyl i wleidyddion
(ac Uwch Swyddogion) fod & “chroen tewach” nag eraill; yn 8l pob tebyg oherwydd

eu bod wedi dewis gweithredu o fewn amgylchedd gwleidyddol.

Mae'r disgwyliad hwn yn arbennig o berthnasol i drafodaethau gwleidyddol, sef
trafodaethau a ddisgrifiwyd yn aml gan yr Ombwdsmon fel “taro a gwrthdaro’.
Mae’'n glir bod sylwadau am wleidyddion eraill sy'n wawdlyd, yn goeglyd neu'n
ddychanol yn cwrdd &'r diffiniad o fynegiant gwleidyddol. Fodd bynnag, os gellir
dehongli't sylwadau hynny'n rhesymol fel rhai maleisus, hiliol, homoffobig ac ati,
neu fel rhai sydd mor eithafol eu bod yn amhriodol, mae sylwadau o'r fath yn colli’r
diogelwch cyfreithiol ychwanegol a roddir i fathau eraill o fynegiant gwleidyddol.

Nid yw sylwadau a ddiffinnir fel rhai “gwleidyddol’ wedi eu cyfyngu'n unig i'r rheini a
wneir o fewn cyfarfodydd ffurfiol y Cyngor a gallant gynnwys sylwadau gan Aelodau
it cyfryngau, gan gynnwys cyfryngau cymdeithasol. Mae'n cynnwys deunydd
ysgrifenedig yn ogystal & deunydd llafar.

Dim ond y sylwadau hynny y gellir ystyried yn rhesymol (h.y. yn wrthrychol) eu bod
yn ymosodol iawn, yn warthus, yn hiliol, yn faleisus neu’n gwbl amhriodol yn yr iaith
a ddefnyddir sy'n debygol o gwrdd & trothwy'r Ombwdsmon ar gyfer ymchwilio
iddynt mewn achosion pan fo'r pwnc yn un gwleidyddol.

Yn yr un modd, pan fo Aelodau yn codi “materion gwleidyddol’ gydag Uwch
Swyddogion gall yr Ombwdsmon hefyd wrthod ymchwilio os yw ef/hi o'r farn bod
gan yr Aelod hawl i gwestiynu’r Swyddog am bryderon dilys. Wrth gwrs mae’r cyd-

Page 53

CC-017421-AP/222063 Tud 1



destun yn hollbwysig a byddai statws y Swyddog, rél yr Aelod a'r ffordd yr oedd yr
Aelod wedi dewis mynd ar drywydd y mater oll yn ffactorau perthnasol.

3. Gwrthdaro gyda’r Céd

Mae gwrthdaro posib rhwng darpariaethau'r Cad, fel y disgrifir nhw ym mharagraff 1
uchod, a hawl Aelodau i feirniadu gwleidyddion eraill.

Ym mharagraff 4 isod nodir rhai enghreifftiau o achosion a benderfynwyd ac sy'n
rhoi blas ar sut mae'r llysoedd yn gweld pethau ar hyn o bryd:-

4, Enghraifft A — R (ar sail Calver) v Panel Dyfarnu Cymru [2012] EWHC 1172

Yn yr achos hwn, penderfynodd y Panel Dyfarnu (y Pwyligor Safonau Cenedlaethol
i bob pwrpas) gadarnhau dyfarniad y Pwyligor Safonau fod Aelod wedi methu &
dangos parch ac ystyriaeth tuag at eraill trwy wneud sylwadau ar-lein am gyd-
aelodau a'r ffordd yr oedd y Cyngor yn cael ei redeg.

Cafodd yr Aelod gerydd gan y Pwyligor Safonau ac ar 6l i'w apel i'r Panel Dyfarnu
fethu, fe wnaeth gais am adolygiad barnwrol o’r achos yn yr Uchel Lys. Roedd y
Llys yn fodlon bod y sylwadau a wnaed, a oedd yn niferus ac yn aml, yn rhai
coeglyd a dychanol ond, oherwydd bod y rhan fwyaf o'r cynnwys yn ymwneud a'r
ffordd yr oedd y Cyngor yn cael ei redeg a gallu ei Aelodau a'i Glerc (Cyngor
Cymuned oedd hwn), daeth y Llys i'r casgliad bod y sylwadau yn disgyn o fewn y
diffiniad o fynegiant gwleidyddol. O’r herwydd, roeddent yn denu diogelwch
cyfreithiol ychwanegol dan Erthygl 10 y Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol a
chasglwyd felly fod dyfarniad y Pwyllgor Safonau, a gafodd ei gadarnhau gan y
Panel Dyfarnu, yn ymyrraeth anghymesur gyda hawl yr Aelod i ryddid mynegiant
gwleidyddol. Cafodd y penderfyniad gwreiddiol i roi cerydd i'r Aelod ei roi o'r neilltu
felly gany Llys.

Enghraifft B - Livingstone v Panel Dyfarnu Lloegr [2006] EWHC 2533 (Gwein.);
[2006]

Mae'r Aelodau’'n siwr o gofio’r achos hwn, pan siaradodd Maer Llundain (ar y pryd)
gyda gohebydd yn ei gyffelybu i gard mewn gwersyll-garchar. Casglodd yr Uchel
Lys nad oedd y sylw hwn yn enghraifft o ryddid i fynegiant gwleidyddol oherwydd
nad oedd y geiriau wedi eu defnyddio mewn swyddogaeth swyddogol nac wrth i Mr.
Livingstone gyflawni ei swyddogaeth fel Maer. O'’r herwydd, nid oedd y Cd&d
Ymddygiad yn berthnasol ac, wrth gwrs, os nad oedd y Céd yn berthnasol nid oedd
modd iddo gael ei dorri.

Fodd bynnag, fe gasglodd y Llys na fyddai'r Maer fod wedi bod ag unrhyw hawl i
ddiogelwch uwch ar gyfer mynegiant gwieidyddoi petai’r Cd yn berthnasol, a hynny
oherwydd nad oedd yn mynegi barn wleidyddol ond, yn hytrach, ei fod yn “indulging
in offensive abuse.”

I'n dibenion ni, petai'r achos hwn yn digwydd yn awr dan y Céd ar gyfer Cymru,
byddai'r Maer wedi bod yn torri'r Cod oherwydd bod ein Céd ni'n dweud yn benodol
bod y ddyletswydd i beidio & dwyn anfri ar rél yr Aelod yn berthnasol pan fo'r Aelod
yn gweithredu mewn unrhyw swyddogaeth (gan gynnwys swyddogaeth bersonol).
Cafodd y CA6d yng Nghymru ei newid o ganlyniad i'r penderfyniad yn achos
Livingstone.

Page 54

CC-017421-AP/222063 Tud 2



Sut bynnag, mae sylwadau'r Llys ynghylch dehongli mynegiant gwleidyddol yn
ddilys a dibynnir yn rheolaidd arnynt mewn achosion Llys.

Enghraifft C — Y Cyng. Heesom - APW/005/2010-011/CT

Yn yr achos hwn roedd nifer o honiadau a chasgliadau ar bob un o’r materion. O
ganlyniad i'w heffaith net fe gafodd yr Aelod ei anghymwyso. Fodd bynnag, wrth
asesu rhai o'r honiadau daeth y Llys i gasgliad penodol fod honiadau'r Aelod fod
gwasanaeth/ adran o’r Cyngor yn “shambolic” ac yn “shambles’, yn fynegiant
gwleidyddol oherwydd eu bod yn ymwneud &'r ffordd yr oedd y Cyngor yn cael ei
redeg. Roedd y sylwadau felly yn disgyn o fewn y diogelwch yn Erthygl 10 y
Confensiwn Ewropeaidd ar Hawliau Dynol a chasglwyd nad oedd y sylwadau felly'n
torri'r Cod.

Enghraifft D - Y Cyng. Jones - APW/004/2012-013/AT

Yn yr achos hwn, penderfynodd y Llys nad oedd sylwadau'r Cynghorydd Jones
wedi eu cyfeirio tuag at gyd-aelod ond at Swyddog. Fel gweithiwr cyflogedig, dylai
bod gan y swyddog hawl i gael ei ddiogelu rhag ymddygiad amharchus a rhag cael
ei hambygio (h.y. yn unol & chyfraith cyflogaeth). O'r herwydd, nid oedd yr
ymddygiad yn disgyn o fewn y trefniadau diogelwch ar gyfer “mynegiant
gwleidyddol”. Byddwch yn sylweddoli felly bod yr achos hwn, a benderfynwyd ar 6l
4A uchod, yn awgrymu bod y diogelwch uwch ar gyfer Aelodau wedi ei lastwreiddio
pan fo Aelodau’n gwneud sylwadau sy’'n ymwneud & Swyddogion.

5. Casgliad

Felly, os yw unrhyw sylw a wneir gan wleidydd yn “fynegiant gwleidyddol’ (mae hwn
wedi ei ddiffinio’n eang) bydd yn denu diogelwch uwch ac mae’n annhebygol y bydd
yr Ombwdsmon yn ymchwilio i achosion o'r fath os cyflwynir cwyn.

Fodd bynnag, ni roddir diogelwch uwch os gwneir sylwadau sy'n atgas iawn neu'n
ddifriol iawn mewn unrhyw ffordd, yn arbennig felly os ydynt yn faleisus, yn rhan o
ymgyrch sydd wedi ei thargedu neu os ydynt yn hiliol, yn homoffobig ac ati. Mae'r
prawf yn un gwrthrychol. Hynny yw, nid yw'r bwriad a'r effaith yn berthnasol o ran a
yw'r Coéd wedi ei dorri ai peidio; er y gallent fod yn berthnasol i'r gosb.

Mae sylwadau a wneir yng ngwres trafodaeth, neu sylwadau unwaith ac am byth,
yn hytrach na phatrwm o ymddygiad, hefyd yn llai tebygol o ddenu diddordeb yr
Ombwdsmon.

Lynn Bali
Pennaeth Swyddogaeth(Busnes y Cyngor)/Swyddog Monitro

Page 55

CC-017421-AP/222063 Tud 3



Crynodeb o achosion i’'w hadrodd i'r

HYRWYDDO
CYDRADDOLDEB A
PHARCH

APW/003/2011-012/CT,
APW/005/2012-013/CT &
APW/007/2012-013/CT —
Cyngor Cymuned
Coedpoeth

Roedd 3 atgyfeiriad ar
wahén gan yr
Ombwdsmon ac fe'u
hystyriwyd gan un
tribiwnlys.

Yr honiadau oedd bod
y cyn Gynghorydd wedi
torri Cé6d Ymddygiad y
Cyngor Cymuned
uchod trwy ei
ymddygiad a’i arestio
wedi hynny am dorri'r
heddwch yn ystod
gwrthdystiad, methu
dangos parch ac
ystyriaeth i Glerc y
Cyngor Cymuned, ei
ymddygiad, ei arést, ei
garcharu wedyn a
diffyg cydweithredu
gyda’r awdurdodau
perthnasol yn codi o
brotest mewn Llys Sirol
a’i fethiant i
gydweithredu
cydweithrediad wrth i'r
Ombwdsmon
archwilio’r honiadau

Yn absenoldeb
unrhyw ymateb ac
ystyrlon gan y cyn
Gynghorydd daeth y
tribiwnlys i
benderfyniad
unfrydol bod y cyn
Gynghorydd, drwy ei
weithgaredd yn torri'r
Céd Ymddygiad a
hefyd drwy ei
agwedd annerbyniol
tuag at yr ymchwiliad
a'r ffaith nad oedd yn
talu unrhyw syiw i'r
Cod yn gyffredinol, a
bod hynny’'n dangos
nad oedd yn addas i
ddal swydd
gyhoeddus a'i fod yn
annhebygol o ddod
yn addas dros y 5
miynedd nesaf.

Felly fe benderfynodd y
tribiwnlys y dylid ei
wahardd am 5 mlynedd
rhag bod yn aelod na
dod yn aelod o'r Cyngor
Cymuned neu unrhyw
awdurdod perthnasol
arall.

Page 56



hyn.

Cyngor Cymuned
Llanfaelog

Gwnaed nifer o gwynion
ynglyn ag ymddygiad
Cynghorydd o Gyngor
Cymuned Llanfaelog.
Honnwyd bod y Cynghorydd
wedi defnyddio iaith ddrwg a’i
fod wedi ymddwyn yn
amhriodol yn ystod cyfarfod.
Penderfynodd yr Ombwdsmon
ymchwilio’r mater i benderfynu
a oedd tystiolaeth o doriadau
o'r Cod Ymddygiad, sy’'n gofyn
am i aelodau ddangos parch
ac ystyriaeth at eraill ac i
beidio ag ymddwyn mewn duill
a allai ddod ag anfri ar y rél o
fod yn aelod ac ar y Cyngor ei
hun. Cafwyd tystiolaeth gan
bob aelod o’r Cyngor oedd yn
bresennol yn y cyfarfod.
Roedd y dystiolaeth a
gasglwyd yn cefnogi'r ffaith i'r
Cynghorydd gael ei glywed yn
dweud geiriau annymunol o
dan ei wynt. Fodd bynnag, nid
yw'n ymddangos bod yr iaith a
ddefnyddiwyd yn cael ei
chyfeirio’n benodol at unrhyw
unigolyn. Dywedodd y
Cynghorydd ei bod yn bosibl
iddo fod wedi defnyddio’r iaith

Daeth yr Ombwdsmon i'r
casgliad bod y
dystiolaeth yn awgrymu
bod ymddygiad y
Cynghorydd efallai wedi
torri'r C6d. Fodd
bynnag, tra na fyddai
mewn unrhyw
amgylchiadau yn
cymeradwyor defnydd o
iaith o'r fath, wrth ddod
i'w benderfyniad, roedd
yr Ombwdsmon yn dwyn
mewn cof mai
digwyddiad unigol oedd
hwn a bod y sylwadau
wedi eu gwneud yng
ngwres y foment ac nad
oeddent wedi eu cyfeirio
at unrhyw berson
arbennig. Ar sail hyn,

penderfynodd yr
Ombwdsmon nad oedd
angen cymryd unrhyw

gamau pellach gydar

materion a ymchwiliwyd.

Page 57



a ddisgrifiwyd fel ffordd o
leisio ei rwystredigaeth yn
ystod y cyfarfod.

Cyngor
Mwmblws

Cymuned

Y

Honnodd Cynghorydd bod
aelod arall o Gyngor Cymuned
Y Mwmblws wedi methu a
chadw at y Cod Ymddyagiad. Yr
honiad oedd bod y
Cynghorydd oedd yn cael ei
gyhuddo wedi dwyn anfri ar
swydd Cynghorydd ac ar y
Cyngor drwy wneud
datganiadau camarweiniol am
ei asedau i Dribiwnlys
Cyflogaeth.

Barnodd yr Ombwdsmon nad
oedd tystiolaeth i awgrymu y
gallai ymddygiad y
Cynghorydd fod wedi torri'r
Cod. Ei gasgliad oedd y dylai
ei adroddiad gael ei gyfeirio i
Swyddog Monitro Dinas a Sir
Abertawe i'w ystyried gan y
Pwyllgor Safonau.

Daeth it casgliad bod
ymddygiad y Cynghorydd
mewn perthynas a
datganiadau camarweiniol a
wnaeth ynglyn &'i asedau yn
cyfateb i dorri'r Cod yn yr
ystyr ei fod wedi dwyn anfri
ar ei swydd fel Cynghorydd
a hefyd ar y Cyngor.
Penderfynodd y dylai'r
Cynghorydd gael ei
ddiarddel o fod yn aelod o'r
Cyngor am gyfnod o 18

wythnos.

Yn dilyn hyn fe apeliodd y
Cynghorydd i Banel Barnu
Cymru. Fe gymeradwyodd
y Panel yn unfrydol y
penderfyniad bod y
Cynghorydd wedi torri'r Cod
Ymddygiad. Cymeradwyodd
hefyd y penderfyniad i'w
ddiarddel rhag bod yn aelod
or Cyngor am gyfnod o 18

wythnos.
Gellir gweld penderfyniad

Page 58



Panel Dyfarnu Cymru yma.

DATGELU A
CHOFRESTRU
DDIDDORDEB

Cyngor Cymuned

Blaengwrach

Derbyniodd yr Ombwdsmon
gwyn bod Cynghorydd wedi
torri'r Cod trwy barhau yn yr
ystafell pan oedd y Cyngor
Cymuned yn trafod materion
yn ymwneud a'i gwr.

Er bod cof y partion yn
amrywio ynglyn a’r union
amgylchiadau lle roedd y
Cynghorydd wedi aros yn yr
ystafell pan roedd materion yn
ymwneud a&'i gwr yn cael eu
trafod roedd yr Ombwdsmon
o'r farn na ddylai fod wedi
parhau yno. Cyfrifoldeb pob
aelod yw penderfynu a oes
ganddynt ddiddordeb personol
a’'i pedio ac nid yw
safbwyntiau aelodau eraill ar y
mater yn berthnasol. Hefyd,
mae'n glir bod mater yn
ymwneud a pherson sy'n
perthyn mor agos i aelod yn
achosi diddordeb personol a
rhagfarnus.

Mae'r Cod ei hun a
chyfarwyddyd yr
Ombwdsmon i aelodau
yn eithaf clir ar y
materion hyn.

Canfu'r Ombwdsmon
bod tystiolaeth y gallai
toriad fod wedi digwydd
o dan ddarpariaethau
perthnasol y Cod, ond ei
bod yn annhebygol y
byddai cosb yn cael ei
osod pe bai'r toriad yn
cael ei ganfod. Yn unol
a'r gweithdrefnau,
ymgynghorodd yr
Ombwdsmon a'r
Swyddog Monitro, oedd
yn cytuno bod cosb yn
annhebygol ond
dywedodd y byddai'n
rhoddi cyngor priodol i'r
Cyngor Cymuned ynglyn
a diddordebau personol.

Casglodd yr Ombwdsmon
nad oedd angen cymryd
unrhyw gamau pellach yn
amgylchiadau’r gwyn
arbennig hon.

O safbwynt pryderon ynglyn
a sylwadau amhriodol yn
cael eu gwneud gan y
Cynghorydd, nid oedd yr
Ombwdsmon wedi ei
ddarbwyllo bod y sylwadau
fel y'u hadroddwyd yn
darparu digon o dystiolaeth
o doriad. Casgliad yr
Ombwdsmon mewn
perthynas a'r mater hwnnw
oedd nad oedd tystiolaeth o
doriad o dan y ddarpariaeth
berthnasol.

Page 59



Briefing Note to Members

Political Freedom of Speech v Code of Conduct

1. Members’ Code of Conduct (“the Code”)

Among other things, the Code requires all Members:-

- To treat others with respect and consideration;

- Not to bully or harass others;

- Not to behave in a way which could reasonably be regarded as bringing the
role of Member, or the Council, into disrepute.

2. Political Speech

Cases decided by the Courts, over the years and still evolving, have established the
following definition of what amounts to political speech:-

“Information on matters relevant to the organisation of the economic, social
and political life of the country ...”

But what does this actually mean in practice? Examples of comments which fall
within the definition of political speech are broadly defined, and may include those
relating to the way in which meetings are conducted, the administration and
management of organisations and comments relating to the performance of others
in their public duties.

The High Court, and the Ombudsman, have specifically stated that politicians (and
Senior Officers) are expected to have “thicker skins” than others; presumably
because they have chosen to operate within a political environment.

This expectation of resilience applies particularly to political debate, which the
Ombudsman has frequently described as “the cut and thrust”. It is clear that
comments about other politicians, which are mocking, sarcastic or satirical, meet
the definition of political speech. However, if those comments may reasonably be
interpreted as malicious, racist, homophobic etc, or so extreme as to be
inappropriate, then such comments lose the extra legal protection which other
political speech attracts.

Comments defined as “political” are not just confined to those made within formal
Council meetings and can include Members' comments to the media, including
social media. It includes written material as well as verbal.

Only those comments reasonably (i.e. objectively) considered as highly offensive,
outrageous, racist, malicious, or entirely inappropriate in the language used, are
likely to meet the Ombudsman’s threshold test for investigation in cases where the
subject matter is political.

Similarly, when Members raise “political issues” with Senior Officers the
Ombudsman may also decline to investigate if he/she takes the view that the
Member was entitled to question the Officer about legitimate issues of concern.
Clearly, context is everything and the seniority of the Officer, the role of the Member
and the manner in which the Member pursues the issue would all be relevant

features. Page 60

CC-017421-AP/211154 Page 1



3. Conflict with the Code

There is a potential for conflict between the provisions of the Code, as described in
paragraph 1 above, and the right of Members to criticise other politicians.

In paragraph 4 below are some examples of decided cases which give a flavour of
the Courts’ current thinking in this area:-

4, Example A — R (on the application of Calver) v Adjudication Panel for Wales
[2012] EWHC 1172

In this case the Adjudication Panel (effectively the national Standards Committee)
acting as an appeal jurisdiction upheld a finding of the Standards Committee that a
Member had failed to show respect and consideration to others by posting online
comments about fellow Members and about the way in which the Council was run.

The Member was censured by the Standards Committee and, having failed in his
appeal to the Adjudication Panel, sought a judicial review of the case in the High
Court. The Court was satisfied that the comments posted, which were many and
often, were sarcastic and mocking but, as the majority of the content related to the
way in which the Council was being run, the competence of its Members, and its
Clerk (this was a Community Council) the Court concluded that the comments fell
within the definition of political speech. As such it attracted additional legal
protection under Article 10 of the European Convention on Human Rights. So, the
finding of the Standards Committee, upheld by the Adjudication Panel, were found
by the Court to be a disproportionate interference with the Member's right to
political freedom of expression. The original decision to censure the Member was
therefore set aside by the Court

Example B - Livingstone v Adjudication Panel for England [2006] EWHC 2533
{(Admin); [2006]

Members will doubtless recall this case, when the (then) Mayor of London spoke to
a journalist, likening him to a concentration camp guard. The High Court concluded
that this comment did not constitute political free speech because the words were
not used in an official capacity, nor in the performance of Mr Livingstone’s function
as Mayor. As such, the Code of Conduct did not apply and, clearly, if it did not
apply then it could not be breached.

However, the Court did conclude that if the Code had applied, the Mayor would not
have been entitled to enhanced protection for political expression as he was not
expressing a political view but, rather, “indulging in offensive abuse".

For our purposes it should be noted that if the facts of this case occurred now,
under the Wales Code, the Mayor would have been in breach of the Code as our
Code specifically states that the duty not to bring the role of Member into disrepute
applies when acting in any capacity (including personal). The Code in Wales was
changed as a result of the decision in the Livingstone case.

In any event the comments of the Court regarding interpretation of "political
expression" is valid and is regularly relied upon in Court proceedings.

Page 61

CC-017421-AP/211154 Page 2



Example C - Clir Heesom - APW/005/2010-011/CT

In this case there were numerous allegations, and findings, on each issue. As a
consequence of the net impact the Member was disqualified. However, in
assessing some of the allegations, the Court specifically concluded that the
Member's claims that a service/department of the Council was “shambolic” and “a
shambles”, were held to be “political expression”’, because they were about the way
in which the Council was run. The comments therefore fell within the Article 10
protection of the ECHR resulting in the conclusion that these comments were not a
breach of the Code.

Example D - Clir Jones - APW/004/2012-013/AT

In this case it was decided by the Court that Councillor Jones' comments were not
directed at a fellow Member but at an Officer who, as a paid employee, should be
entitled to protection from disrespectful and harassing behaviour (i.e. an
employment law obligation) and therefore the conduct did not fall within the
protection of "political expression”. You will appreciate that this case, decided after
4A above, suggests a watering down of the enhanced protection for Members
insofar as their comments relate to Officers.

5. Conclusion

So, if any comment made by a politician constitutes “political expression” (and this
is broadly defined) it will attract enhanced protection, and is unlikely to be
investigated by the Ombudsman in the event of a complaint being lodged.

However, political comments which are highly offensive or degrading in some way,
particularly if they are motivated by malice, form part of a targeted campaign, or are
racist, homophobic etc, will not get enhanced protection. The test is an objective
one. Thatis, the intention and effect are not relevant to the issue of whether or not
the Code has been breached; although they may be relevant to sanction.

Comments made during the heat of a debate, or which are “one offs”, rather than a
pattern of behaviour, are also less likely to attract the interest of the Ombudsman.

Lynn Ball
Head of Function (Council Business)/Monitoring Officer

Page 62
CC-017421-AP/211154 Page 3



Summary of Cases to report to the Standards Committee

PROMOTION OF

EQUALITY AND RESPECT

APW/003/2011-012/CT,
APW/005/2012-013/CT &
APW/007/2012-013/CT —
Coedpoeth Community
Council

There were 3 separate
referrals from the
Ombudsman which
were considered by a
single tribunal.

The allegations were
that the former
Councillor had
breached the above
Community Council's
code of conduct by his
behavior and
consequent arrest for a
breach of the peace
during a
demonstration, failure
to show respect and
consideration to the
Clerk of the Community
Council, his behavior,
arrest, subsequent
imprisonment and non-
cooperation with the
relevant authorities
arising from a protest at
a County Court and his
lack of cooperation with
the Ombudsman’s

in the absence of
any proper of
meaningful response
by the former
councillor the tribunal
concluded by
unanimous decision
that the former
councillor had, by his
actions in breaching
the code of conduct
and in his
unacceptable attitude
to the investigation
and general
disregard to the
code, demonstrated
that he was unfit to
hold public office and
was unlikely to
become fit over the
next 5 years.

Accordingly the tribunal
decided that the
councillor be disqualified
for 5 years from being or
become a member of the
community council or
any other relevant
authority.

Page 63



investigation of these
allegations.

Llianfaelog Community
Council

A number of complaints were
made regarding the behaviour
of a Councillor from Llanfaelog
Community Council. It was
alleged that the Councillor had
used bad language and had
behaved inappropriately
during a meeting.

The Ombudsman decided to
investigate the matter to
determine whether there was
evidence of breaches of the
Code of Conduct, which
requires members to show
respect and consideration to
others and not to conduct
themselves in a manner which
could bring the role of
member or the Council itself
into disrepute.

Evidence was obtained from
all members of the Council
who were present at the
meeting. The evidence
gathered supported the fact
that the Councillor was heard
muttering offensive words
under his breath. However, it
does not appear that the

The Ombudsman found
that the evidence
suggested that the
Councillor’s actions may
have breached

the Code. However,
whilst he would not in
any circumstances
condone the use of such
language, when
reaching his decision,
the Ombudsman was
mindful of the fact that
this was an isolated
incident, the

comments were made in
the heat of the moment
and were not directed at
a particular person. On
this

basis,

the Ombudsman decided
that no further action
needed to be taken in
respect of the matters
investigated.

Page 64



language used was specifically
directed at an individual. The
Councillor said that it was
possible he used the language
described as a means of
voicing his frustration during
the meeting.

Mumbles
Council

Community

A Councillor alleged that
another member of Mumbles
Community Council had failed
to observe the Code of
Conduct. It was alleged that
the accused Councillor had
brought the office of
Councillor and the Council into
disrepute by making
misleading statements about
his assets to an Employment
Tribunal.

The Ombudsman concluded
that there was evidence to
suggest that the Councillor's
conduct may

have breached the Code. His
finding was that his report
should be referred to the
Monitoring Officer of the City
and County of Swansea, for
consideration by the
Standards Committee.

It found that the Councillor’s
conduct in relation to
misleading statements he
had made about his assets
amounted to a breach of the
Code in that it had brought
his office as Councillor and
the Council into disrepute. It
decided that the Councillor
should be suspended from
being a member of the
Council for a period of 18
weeks.

The Councillor subsequently
appealed to the Adjudication
Panel for Wales. The
Adjudication Panel for Wales
unanimously endorsed the
decision that the Councillor
had breached the Code of

Conduct. It also endorsed
the decision to suspend him

Page 65



from being a member of the
Council for a period of 18
weeks.

The decision of the
Adjudication Panel for Wales
can be found here.

DISCLOSURE AND
REGISTRATION OF
INTEREST

Blaengwrach Communit
Council

The Ombudsman received a
complaint that a Councillor
had breached the Code

by remaining in the room
when the Community Council
discussed matters relating to
her husband.

Although the recollections of
the parties varied as to the
exact circumstances under
which the Councillor remained
in the room when matters
relating to her husband were
discussed it was the
Ombudsman’s view that she
should not have remained. It
is the responsibility of each
member to decide whether or
not they have a personal
interest and the views of other
members on the matter

are not relevant. Further, it is
clear that a matter concerning
a person so closely related to
a member gives rise to a

The Code itself and the
Ombudsman’s Guidance
to Members are quite
clear on these matters.
The

Ombudsman
provisionally found that
there was evidence that
a breach may have
occurred under

the relevant provisions
of the Code, but that it
was unlikely that a
sanction would be
applied if the

breach were found. In
accordance with his
procedures, the
Ombudsman consulted
with the Monitoring
Officer, who agreed that
a sanction was unlikely
but said that he would
issue appropriate advice
to

The Ombudsman concluded
that in the circumstances of
this particular complaint, no
further action was
necessary.

With regard to the concerns
about inappropriate
comments being made by
the Councillor, the
Ombudsman was not
persuaded that the
comments as reported
provided sufficient evidence
of a

breach. The Ombudsman’s
finding in relation to that
matter was that there was
no evidence of a

breach under the relevant
provision.

Page 66



personal and prejudicial

interest.

the Community Council
on the subject of
personal interests.

Page 67



ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
2

Page 68



Rhestr o Fynychwyr / List of Attendees — 30.10.2014

Rhif / No

Cyngor / Council

Enw / Name

1 Trewalchmai Margaret Price
2 Llanelian a Llanbadrig Carli Evans-Thau
3 Moelfre Gwenda Parry
4 Llanddona Geraint Parry
5 Llanfair M E Griff E. Pritchard
6 Llanidan Meic Jones
7 Rhosyr Myra Evans
8 Bryngwran, Llanddyfnan, Graham Owen
Penmynydd a Star
9 Llangefni Janice Davies
10 Cwm Cadnant a Alun Foulkes
Llanfihangelescleifiog
11 Llanfair yn Neubwill Mai Owen
12 Llanfachraeth a Bodffordd Derek Owen
13 Rhosybol Gwenda Pritchard
14 Porthaethwy Meinir Wyn Davies
15 Aberffraw Menna Evans
16 Amlwch Marilyn Hughes
17 Mechell Helen Beck
18 Biwmares Trevor Ashenden
19 Llanfairpwill Dafydd Owen
20 Llanerchymedd Sydna Roberts
21 Tref Alaw Anna Jones
22 Treaddur Gwilym Evans
23 Llanfaethlu John Arfon Jones
24 Pentraeth Eifion Jones

CC-017471-AP/207993

Page 69

Page 1



ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
3

Page 70



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Teitl y Cwrs...... Code of Conduct Training..............

Dyddiad............ 30/10/2014 ...

1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/
Very Useful Useful

Y ]

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i’'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda:

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

................................................................................... Attendance Name
................................................................................................... Authority

......................................................................................... Course Title

1.0verall how useful was the training?

Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Only Slightly Not at All

] ]

What skills have you learnt which will be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

The ability to differentiate between the different types of interest, where to seek advice, what to do if we have no

QUONUM BEC..iiviiriiiniiisniiieesnires s eer s eersecesnenseasanseesane s

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn?

2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

The examples given to clarify the differences between the types of interest as these will help us cascade the

information to our Council Members. .......cccoeu.e..

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid?

4, Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

ary pwnc?

Dalawn lawn Gwael
(b) Safony Cyflwynlad

Da lawn lawn Gwael

0000

(c) Deunydd

Da lawn lawn Gwael
o0 0T
Sylwadau

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

Very Good Good Fair Poor

~ O O O

(b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair Poor

y U O

(c) Handouts & Materials

Very Good Good Fair Poor
Comments
Page 71

An electronic version of the handout would also be very useful.



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

<,
Enw’r Mynychydd...... :76“‘\'4 .......... ‘V‘OCM’ (€

Awdurdod...............c ....... e ’r//er ...... L ,a’ﬂ'ﬁf’\“ ..............................................................

Teitly ers(‘;d .............. ’\’\0}0& R TN =

pyddiad........ =8 .S g T O

1.Ary cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/
Very Useful Useful

V []

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?

(iylwad u os gwelwch yn dda: Lol (A o
V& Ty

Isle of Anglesey County Council

Course Appraisal Sheet

1.0verall how useful was the training?

Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Only Slightly Not at All

] ]

What skills have you learnt which will be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

N

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid?

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

arypwnc?
Da lawn lawn Gwael
(b) Safon y Cyflwyniad

Dallﬁn E:l Iﬁ G“ﬁl

(c) Deunydd
Gwael

Da lawn lawn
40 0 0
Sylwadau

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

Very Good Good Fair Poor

NN NN

(b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair

N N

(c) Handouts & Materials

Very Good Good Fair Poor
Comments

poor 20 NOV 2014

P



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén Isle of Anglesey County Council
Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet

Myl4 £ EVANS.

ENWE IMYNYCRYAG ... e e e T aas s s ss s et s s 8 08 SRR RSt Attendance Name
: < vwED R ffolSY

Awdurdod................. (/ VNGO/& ................ 7M .............. '>,€ ........................................ Authority

Teitly ersh’\//ffa’ai7£)’/+'\"l/C’oD ......... V IMA-DVG—;&D .......................... Course Title
3, Qo s

Dyddiad..........cccevvririvrnuns O ........................................................ q— ........................................................................................... Date

1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?

hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful

yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?

Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

................................................................................................................................................................................................................

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?

4, Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:

(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
L] O O O O

(b) Safon y Cyflwyniad (b) Standard of Presentation

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
L] L] O O 0

(c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials

Da@vn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor

Sylwadau Comments

Page 73



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

Enw’r Mynychydd.............. Carli EVANS-TRAU e cevir st ssrsseirsiesnrsssssssssssssssessrsssssnessssanaeresesene s e Aft@Ndance Name
Awdurdod............cccorvenruenee Cyngor Cymuned Llaneilian a Cyngor Cymuned Llanbadrig ...........oonvevnirinnne Authority
Teitl y CWIS........ceveerrierreeCOA YMAAYGIAD ..ottt s rsss s nsnsens s e e COUTSE Titl@
Dyddiad.........cccoereeurrereen... 30/10/2014....... ....Date
1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?
hyfforddiant?
Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All
Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which wili be useful
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:
...Gwell dealltwriaeth 0'r Cod YMAAYBIBU......ccocmreremcnmnmie i s s s s bessss e s e ssbass s sss s sssass s s s
2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?
....Trafod gyda’r swyddogion PErthNasol ... s s s e s s st e sk e e
3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?
...... AMSEru’r CWrs YN YStOA Y AVAT ..ot e sttt e st sr s st e seb b e b et b s ars e et
4, Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (if Fair or Poor, please comment below)
(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?
ary pwnc?
Dalawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(b) Safony Cyflwyniad {b) Standard of Presentation
Dalawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
{c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials
Dalawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
B 0 O [ O 0O O
Sylwadau Comments
...... Hyfforddiant defnyddiol iawn a llawer gwell na'r disgwyl, dylid efallai darparu hwn i gynghorwyr yn
ogystal a chlercod yn hytrach na cwrs Un Llais CyMIPRGE. 74 o ceverrmimmeimimmsiininnsss s s e



Cynpor Sir Ynys Mon
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Enw’r Mynychydd

Awdurdod. . o i
Teitly Cwrs ey i !

; i
Dyddiad |

1Aty cyfan, pa mor ddetnyddiol ocdd y
hyfforddiant?

Detnyddiol/
Hlcadul

Defnyddiol iawn/
WYeary Uaeful
z |

|
i !
| .
Paspitiau a tydd yn ddefnyddiobi'r swydd
yi ydych yo ebwneud/am et woeud?
Sylwadau os pwetwoh yn ddae
[ U RPN SO UL N ST
2.Pa apweddau oedd yn ddetnyddiol tawn?

[ T IR ,\&‘k»:r

1oPa apweddan oedd y Hewal detinyddiod o
beth fyddwch yn newid?

4 Po mor etfethnol oedd yr

{0y tawn neu Gwael, rhowdch fanylion iad)

{a) HyHtorddwi fwraig yi nhermaa gwybodaeth
ary pwne?

Da lawn Da Liwn Gw el
W I
] I .

(b) Safon y Cyflwyniad

Da lawn Da lawn Gwaed

| | | o o
I R I

{¢) Deunydd

30 lawn 1 fawii Cowaed
| L |
N ! | Lo b

Sylwadau

Isle ot Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

b - . Attendance Name
o { ‘ .

¢ s ¥ L VoL Authority
: ‘ L S Course Title

s Date
L .Overall how useful was the training?

Yohydip/ Dim o gwbl/
Ny Sliphtly Not at All

| ‘ i
What skills have you learnt which will be useful

in present/future post?

Please comiment:

2. What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?
¢ * v ' = PP OPERRUPRRRTON
4. How cifective was the trainer in terms of:
(M Fair or Poor, please comment below)
(.t} Knowledpe on the subject work?
Very Good Good fair Poor
C I
| ]
i ] [ | i l
{b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair Poor
| NN
{¢) Handouts & Materials
Very Good Good Foar Poor
L | ' E } l
i {
i | Lo
Comments
X ' [ b ..'\,‘z.':«..‘s}.:\!,j.l».‘::&,..‘..
2 N ’
Page 75

Page 1



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén Isle of Anglesey County Council

Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet

Enw'r Mynychydd......... MICHAEL E JONES............. Attendance Name

Awdurdod..............ccccccene. CYNGOR CYMUNED LLANIDAN......ccveerveerrrerreconnns Authority

Teitly Cwrs..........ccccuue. HYFFORDDIANT I'R CLERCOD AR Y COD YMDDYGIAD......... Course Title

Dyddiad..........cccoermrreenne. HYDREF 30ain, 2014.........ccccrneemerrrrerenene Date

1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?

hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All
L] [] []

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful

yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?

Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

Gwybodaeth par: Diddordebau Personol / Diddordebau sydd yn Rhagfarnu
2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?
Pa bryd mae’r cod ymddygiad yn berthnasol.

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?

Roeddwn yn hapus iawn gyda'r cyflwyniad. Hwyrach y buaswn wedi hoffi clywed mwy o engreifftiau o achosion.

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4, How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?
Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
- (b) Ssafony Cyﬂwymad (b) Standard of Presentation
~ Dalawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(c) Deunydd {c) Handouts & Materials
Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
Sylwadau Comments

Mae’'n dda gwybod fod cymorth ar gael ar y pen arall i°'r ffon os bydd angen!

Page 76

- NAT7A714 ADIDAAQAAO DaAarme 4



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén Isle of Anglesey County Council

Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet
Enw’r Mynychydd Graham Owen...........cccccenenns Attendance Name
Awdurdod Bryngwran, Llanddyfnan and Penmynydd Community Councils............cccccvveneriinnnninn. Authority
Teitl y Cwrs Code of Conduct............ovveiern et Course Title
Dyddiad 30.10.14.............conmmrnererinnmss et Date
- 1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?

hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All
Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?

Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

The role of the clerk in advising members re code

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?
All
3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?
None
4, Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4, How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (I Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?
Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(b) Safony Cyﬂwymad {b) Standard of Presentation
" Dalawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials
Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
Sylwadau Comments

An excellent course, easy to follow and Lynn, Awena and Mike very approachable and ready to help. Good
to know that we clerks can pick up the phone at any time to ask you for advice and i am pleased that you
want to work with us on this subject. Page 77

AN ANATATA ADIARAOAD Pana 1



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Enw’r Mynychydd Margaret Price

Awdurdod Cyngor Cymuned

TrEWAICHMAI .. ceteeireiriserrernieesieseamosestsssessssasasrssnssssrsssness

Teitly Cwrs
Hyfforddiant ar y Cod Ymddygiad

Dyddiad30 Hydref 2014

1.Ary cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/
Very Useful Useful

]

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda:

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn?
Gwybodaeth fwy cyflawn o’r Cod

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid?

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

ary pwnc?

Da lawn lawn Gwael
(b) Safony Cyflwymad

Da lawn lawn Gwael

S0 0 O

(c) Deunydd

Da lawn lawn Gwael
Sylwadau

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

Attendance Name

.............................................................................................. Authority ...

Course Title

Date
1.0verall how useful was the training?
Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Only Slightly Not at All

L] [

What skills have you learnt which will be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(if Fair or Paor, please comment below)

(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

Very Good Good Fair Poor

0 O O L

{b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair Poor

0 0O o b

(c) Handouts & Materials

Very Good Good Fair Poor
Comments
Page 78

Paace 1



Roedd y cwrs gwerth chweil. Ms Ball yn arbennig o dda yn ei chyflwyniad o’r cwrs ac yn gwybod ei gwaith
yn dda iawn. Llawer iawn gwell na'r cwrs a gyflwynywyd gan Un Llais Cymru. Awgrymaf fod y Cyngor Sir
yn cynnal pob cwrs o hyn ymlaen.

Page 79

MO NATATA ADIDUINAQ Paqge 2



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén Isle of Anglesey County Council

Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet
Enw’r Mynychydd............... HEIBN Mai BECK.....oucveeereeesecerennsses ettt eeseoseeseesees e oot oo eee oo e Attendance Name
Awdurdod............... CYNBOr CyMUNEA MECHEIL..........c.oveecrnresneccere s oee e eeeees oo Authority
Teitly Cwrs............... Hyfforddiant Cod YMAAYZIad.........eevvvvvveeceeveeeeeosceeceemseosseeeoreese oo oo eee oo Course Title
Dyddiad............... 308N 0 HYAYef 2014.......oooooi ittt eee e s oo eee e oeeeeseeee Date
1.Ary cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?
hyfforddiant?
Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All

y [] [] []
Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefayddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

............... Sut i wneud yn siwr bod pawb yn dilyn y Cod Ymddygiad. Mae gennyf fwy o wybodaeth am y pwnc nawr,
ynghynt, nid oeddwn yn siwr iawn. Mae'r ffaith ein bod wedi cael cysylitiadau i ofyn cwestiynau yn werthfawr
FBWIL ettt s e a1 as 8 R4 085 52 e e e e o0ttt oo ee e e eeeees e

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

............... Roedd bob agwedd yn DEITNNGASOL. ...ttt es s et et cee et e e s s e ee e eee e e e e eee e ees
3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what

beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?

............... Roedd y cwrs yn gyfan gwhbl yn ddiddorol. ... .o seeesses e ees oo e eeeeee e eeso

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:

{os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth {a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?
Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
A I N 0 O 0O

{b) Safon y Cyflwyniad (b) Standard of Presentation

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
0 O O O O

(c) Deunydd {c) Handouts & Materials

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
A H L O O O

Sylwadau Comments

Page 80

I N4 T7A74 ADYIDNAOAC



d|ddorol

Page 81

NS AT ATA ADSNIMAANO A O



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Awdurdod...........SMNEoR  TRE ¢

TeltlyCwrs......ooovvvcn

OYOAIad.c S0-10- Iy

1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/
Very Useful Useful

g L]

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?
Sytwadau os gwelwch yn dda:

Defnyddiol/

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn?

S - 1 B VL T o

¢$D\prwexhb

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

o Attendance Name

e AUthority

s COUTse Title

................................................................................................................ Date

1.0verall how useful was the training?

Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Only Slightly Not at All

L] L]

What skills have you learnt which will be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

.....................................................................................................................

2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid?

—

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
{os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(if Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?
Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Gﬁi Fair Poor
(b) Safon y Cyflwyniad (b) Standard of Presentation
Da Iawp Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials
Da lawn Da - lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
Sylwadau Comments
ARl bod. 0.y SWGAL.. Gt A0S Bt Madegraddd. &0 F bt  CALARY

%W&ncwuvwwﬁgﬁgaﬁﬂwfﬁcaWMd

Lr e bod gn croctd as Ce

CC0174A74.ADMOIMNAD

dugau pan neoe Cyo\gkoru_yt R usgdd



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon Isle of Anglesey County Council

Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet

Enw’r Mynychydd........ ( x\ch‘/mﬁE\/A . .. > k ............................................................................. Attendance Name
Awdurdod................. CTnGo ST mAEITHAS. T.RELRINYR . Authority
Teitly CWrS ... LA LRIV TN I LT ADALETMED . Course Title
Dyddiad.......c.ooo... R A Y 6N et S Date
1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?

hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful

yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?

Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

CF R  PAN 7B TR MAFDS QTDA  Cralep WY A

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4, How effective was the trainer in terms of:

(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) (If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
L] L] O 0O G

{b) Safon y Cyflwyniad (b) Standard of Presentation

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor

{c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
L O O HEn N

Sylwadau Comments

reenPBIC B3 et st s

P N1T7471 ADIDIARARQ Bama 1



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

éﬂz&@ e
EnW'r MYNYChYAd......ccooouoiiicircircnierensienieesss R sssss o en e itaes e crenassesenns ‘S ............................ Attendance Name

C\{NGQ & C’)’{W\D‘é\"\mg ..... L‘L' /m% ........... Authority

AWAUIAO........ooiiomreeciirrieriiieirrireever et esssreenasse st

Teitly Cwrs........ Ca) ..... %MBO\\C_:!\ ........................................................................................ Course Title
Dyddiad..........occcoemmererciniuenns ,%@\c@\\ ................................................................................................................ Date

1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/
Very Useful Useful

] v

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda:

iy o

2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid?

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

ary pwnc?

Da lawn lawn Gwael
(b) Safon y Cyflwymad

Da lawn lawn Gwael

Vo0 O O

{c) Deunydd

Da lawn lawn Gwael
Sylwadau

CCNAT7A741-AD/ORRAAR

1.0verall how useful was the training?

Ychydig/ Dim o gwhbl/
Only Slightly Not at All

L L]

What skills have you learnt which will be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

brreduy ofpean g !
particularly useful? e V\\\) Qd

20T ...... NCAAN...... = VFQJ{H‘OUJ\ 0‘@1&@

3. What aspects did you find of little use and'n\/t\
would you change?

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

Very Good Good Fair Poor

O O O

(b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair Poor

NN N

(c) Handouts & Materials

Very Good Good Fair Poor
Comments

O == o 1= i OO

Page 1



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén
Taflen Asesu Cwrs

Isle of Anglesey County Council
Course Appraisal Sheet

Awdurdod........ (, \juég& ..... C\ﬂMQ\Z\/""MS ..... L ’M%T\'*LMG'LL‘MWQ ...... Authority
Teitly Cwrs................. COO&MOD\./S lAj) ................................................................................................ Course Title

Dyddiad........................g..Q.(l of!
1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr
hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/
Very Useful Useful

] L]

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i'r swydd
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda:

..... Nim, Wdwzl

1.0verall how useful was the training?

Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Not at All

Onllyéligh/tll [:I

What skills have you learnt which witl be useful
in present/future post?
Please comment:

2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a
beth fyddwch yn newid? e

Soenmo) o Axaky

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr:
(os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth

ar y pwnc?

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael
(b) Safon y Cyflwyniad

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael
(c) Deunydd

Da lawn Da lawn Gwael

Sylwadau

3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
would you change?

A Puw 21600 O DLARDD

4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
(If Fair or Poor, please comment below)

{(a) Knowledge on the subject work?

Very Good Good Fair Poor

= U U

(b) Standard of Presentation
Very Good Good Fair Poor

U g

(c) Handouts & Materials

Very Good Good Fair Poor
Comments

M l n Pana 1 *



Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon Isle of Anglesey County Council
Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet

EnW'r MyNychydd..........occooicicr v ssass s Meinir Davies.......coccccovvesnicnniinens Attendance Name
AWAUPAOG....... ..ot et Menai Bridge Town COUNCil..c.c.oocvceveinnnnccnnccniriesniinenns Authority
Teltl Y CWIES......c.crerieeieerrec e inens s Code Of CONAUECE ...t e e srsses e sssanne Course Title
DYAGIAU.........ccoee s s e s s ees s bbb e s bR s e R bR s 30/10/14...oiireicrersaeeaens Date
1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?

hyfforddiant?

Defnyddiol iawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/

Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All

Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i’'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful

yr ydych yn ei wneud/am ei wneud? in present/future post?

Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:

.................................................. No.row. sicalls, . Bwd. fobe miore of Mo (mke...
2.Pa agweddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?

3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what

beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?

4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4. How effective was the trainer in terms of:
{os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) ()f Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?

ary pwnc?

Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(b) Safony Cyflwynlad (b) Standard of Presentation

Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
(c) Deunydd (c) Handouts & Materials

Da lawn lawn Gwael Very Good Good Fair Poor
Sylwadau Comments

W'\UWK,“\WM&MM

Aﬁﬁr:\uﬂjoﬂ%\

e DN A i s Mk 4 laBage 86



|
Cyngor Sir Ynys Mén Isle of Anglesey County Council
Taflen Asesu Cwrs Course Appraisal Sheet
ENW’'r Mynychygg..........cemmmmmmmesorree KCC}(. ...... \z‘(("’\( ................... CLLTKC’ ........ Attendance Name

Awdurdod...... 10N M M.M l{(:‘ﬁoﬂf BQMQ(M fk @M&C%&ﬂ/mmoﬂty
Teit] Y CWIS....ocorvccnrrrsennennersesssnnrererene s AAM (7 r‘:{) ............ ..Course Title
-

Dyddiad.............ccovnnnnniiineimessrensnensonensns Bveressasesershressessisessassarastnsesasens e s st s bbb Date
1.Ar y cyfan, pa mor ddefnyddiol oedd yr 1.0verall how useful was the training?
hyfforddiant?
Defnyddiol lawn/ Defnyddiol/ Ychydig/ Dim o gwbl/
Very Useful Useful Only Slightly Not at All
Pa sgiliau a fydd yn ddefnyddiol i’'r swydd What skills have you learnt which will be useful
yr ydych yn ei wneud/am el wneud? in present/future post?
Sylwadau os gwelwch yn dda: Please comment:
o B M 20D,
eddau oedd yn ddefnyddiol iawn? 2.What aspects did you find particularly useful?
.............. LYl ;ﬂ.e\{ﬂ@%‘fmwézka( DAG.
3. Pa agweddau oedd y lleiaf defnyddiol a 3. What aspects did you find of little use and what
beth fyddwch yn newid? would you change?
4. Pa mor effeithiol oedd yr: 4, How effective was the trainer in terms of:
{os lawn neu Gwael, rhowch fanylion isod) {if Fair or Poor, please comment below)

(a) Hyfforddwr/wraig yn nhermau gwybodaeth (a) Knowledge on the subject work?
ary pwnc?

Da,-_l—_a_\jvn , I[_\ﬁl Gwljel Very[Glood Good I‘ﬁ Poor

{b) Safony Cyﬂwyniad (b) Standard of Presentation

v gD O 700

{¢) Deunydd {c) Handouts & Materials

Da lawn Da / lawn Gwael Very Good GooT Fair IEQj'

Sylwadau Comments
............................................................................................................................. SRRy A1 0 (1011 \ T A
................................................................................ Pageaza,

CC-017471-AP/233848 Page 1



ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
4

Page 88



3 Tachwedd/November, 2014

Annwyl oll
Par:Hyfforddiant Céd Ymddygiad

Ymbhellach i’r hyfforddiant ar y Céd
Ymddygiad i Glercod Tref a Chymuned a
gynhaliwyd gan Adran Gyfreithiol y Cyngor
Sir ar 30.10.14, hoffwn ar ran y Pwyllgor
Safonau eich llongyfarch a diolch i chi am
eich presenoldeb yn yr hyfforddiant, ac
rydym yn wir gobeithio bod yr hyfforddiant
wedi bod yn ddiddorol ac yn llawn
gwybodaeth i chi.

Mae’n bwysig iawn i’r Cyngor Sir sicrhau
fod yr hyfforddiant y mae’n ei gynnig yn
ddefnyddiol ac yn cyrraedd disgwyliadau’r
mynychwyr ac rwyf wedi amgau ffurflen
atborth i chi ei llenwi a’i hanfon yn 6l ataf
drwy e-bost neu’r post os gwelwch yn dda.

ADRAN Y DIRPRWY PRIF WEITHREDWRAIG
DEPARTMENT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

LYNN BALL LL.B., (Hons.)Cyfreithiwr/Solicitor
PENNAETH SWYDDOGAETH (BUSNES Y CYNGOR) /
SWYDDOG MONITRO

HEAD OF FUNCTION (COUNCIL BUSINESS) /
MONITORING OFFICER

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON /

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfa'r Sir / Council Offices
LLANGEFNI

Ynys Mon / Anglesey

LL77 7TW

DX: 701771 — LLANGEFNI

ffon / tel: (01248) 752563
ffacs / fax: (01248) 752132
E-Bost — E-mail: AWXCE@anglesey.gov.uk

Ein Cyf — Our Ref. AW/SO/CC-017471-AP
Eich Cyf — Your Ref.

Dear all
Re: Code of Conduct Training

Further to the training on the Code of
Conduct for Town and Community Council
Clerks held by the County Council’s Legal
Department on 30.10.14, | would, on
behalf of the Standards Committee, like to
congratulate you and thank you for your
attendance and we hope that you found
the training interesting and informative.

It is very important that the County Council
ensures that the training it provides is
useful and meets the expectations of the
attendees and | enclose a feedback form
for you to complete and return either via e-
mail or by post please.

Yn gywir / Yours sincerely

Mike Wilson
Cadeirydd — Pwyllgor Safonau
Chairman — Standards Committee

CC-017471-AP/234086

Page 89



4 Tachwedd/November, 2014

Annwyl
Par:Hyfforddiant Céd Ymddygiad

Ymhellach i'r gwahoddiadau a anfonwyd
allan y flwyddyn yma mewn perthynas a
hyfforddiant ar y Céd Ymddygiad i Glercod
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned, yr ydym yn
ysgrifennu atoch gan nad oeddech yn
bresennol yn yr hyfforddiant ar 30.10.14.

Fel yr ydych yn gwybod, mae hyfforddiant
ar y Céd Ymddygiad o fudd i chi fel Clerc
gan fod dyletswydd arnoch i helpu
aelodau sydd yn gofyn i chi am gyngor
ynglyn &’r Céd Ymddygiad.

Yr ydym yn wir yn gobeithio y byddwch yn
gallu mynychu’r sesiwn hyfforddiant nesaf
a gynhelir gan y Cyngor Sir y flwyddyn
nesaf (manylion i ddilyn yn ystod vy
flwyddyn nesaf). Yr ydym yn falch iawn o
ddweud bod yr hyfforddiant a gynhaliwyd
eleni wedi bod yn boblogaidd ofnadwy,
gyda chynrychiolwyr o 29 o’r 40 Cyngor
Cymuned ar draws yr Ynys wedi mynychu.

CC-017471-AP/234072

ADRAN Y DIRPRWY PRIF WEITHREDWRAIG

DEPARTMENT OF THE DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE

LYNN BALL LL.B., (Hons.)Cyfreithiwr/Solicitor

PENNAETH SWYDDOGAETH (BUSNES Y CYNGOR) /

SWYDDOG MONITRO
HEAD OF FUNCTION (COUNCIL BUSINESS) /
MONITORING OFFICER

CYNGOR SIR YNYS MON /

ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL
Swyddfa'r Sir / Council Offices
LLANGEFNI

Ynys Mon / Anglesey

LL77 7TW

DX: 701771 — LLANGEFNI

ffon / tel: (01248) 752563
ffacs / fax: (01248) 752132
E-Bost — E-mail: AWXCE@anglesey.gov.uk

Ein Cyf — Our Ref. AW/SO/CC-017471-AP
Eich Cyf — Your Ref.

Dear
Re: Code of Conduct Training

Further to the invitations sent during this
year with regard to training on the Code of
Conduct for Town and Community Council
Clerk, we write to you since you did not
attend the training on 30.10.14.

As you know, training on the Code of
Conduct is useful to you as a Clerk since
you have a duty to assist members who
ask you for advice regarding the Code.

We sincerely hope that you will be able to
attend the next training session which will
be held by the County Council next year
(details to follow next year). We are
pleased to report that this year’s training
was extremely popular with
representatives from 29 of the 40 councils
across the island attending.

Page 90



Er mwyn eich helpu gyda’ch
dyletswyddau, rydym yn amgau copiau o’r
dogfennau gafodd eu cylchredeg yn ystod
yr hyfforddiant.

Rhowch wybod i mi os gwelwch yn dda os
bydd gennych unrhyw gwestiynau ynglyn
a’r dogfennau.

In order to assist you with your duties, we
enclose copies of the documents
circulated during the training.

Please let me know if you have any
guestions regarding the documents.

Yn gywir / Yours sincerely

Mike Wilson
Cadeirydd — Pwyllgor Safonau
Chairman — Standards Committee

CC-017471-AP/234072

Page 91

Page 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 6

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
DD

Page 93



76 abed

Review of reqgisters — Summary of Findings 2015

The Standing Register

The Register of Declarations at
meetings

Register of Gifts and Hospitality

Training Record

Examples of school governor
status not being declared as a
personal interest despite the
fact that the members are
shown as being school
governors on the Authority’s
internal list.

Councillors  not  providing
enough detail on land interests
in 1.6. This needs to be more
detailed and if there are no
land interests this should be
declared as “none or no
interest”. There may be a lack
of understanding amongst
councillors as to what a land
interest is.

Abbreviations of outside
bodies, charities and
associations used which are
unclear. Members  should
provide the full name and
address of the body/charity of
which they are a member.
However, one reviewer pointed
out that the Authority also uses
abbreviations and so perhaps
the councillors believe this to
be an accepted practice.

Not enough detail being
provided on business activities

1. Examples of members ticking
box to say they have an
interest but then no detail on
the interest being provided.
Is this because they are
unsure?

2. Not enough detail being
provided on what the
personal and prejudicial
interests are.

3. Confusion on prejudicial
interest and what it is —
especially when  talking
about family and friends.

4. Members are still not
providing enough
information about what the
interest is and how it relates
to agenda items.

5. A reviewer recommended that

councillors’ attendance at
outside  bodies’ meetings
where Members are
representing  the  Council
should be monitored. Do these
Members ever report back to
the Council after such
meetings?

6. Inconsistent declarations of

interest in meetings relating to
the same matter — voting in

1. Still very few disclosures being
made.

2. Value of the gifts and
hospitality received should be
indicated.

3. Thereis no link on the website
to gifts and hospitality of co-
opted members and this is
something that should be
considered.

Suggest training records
are kept for co-opted
member members;

Can training records be
placed online?

Records should be
updated to show how
many training sessions the
members were actually
invited to attend.

A lot of members have
not attended training on
webcasting and each
councillor should be
encouraged to attend this
training.

Not a lot of training has
taken place this year.

CC-015794-LB/246992

Page 1




G6 abed

10.

involved in — descriptions need
to be provided of the type of
business being undertaken.

List of outside bodies and
school governors should
include appointment dates.
There are still anomalies
between membership of
outside bodies, as recorded by
the council, and those declared
in the forms. They are not
always declared in the forms
although they are listed on
each councillor’s “front page”.
Can the list of outside bodies
be made simpler by listing the
name of each councillor and
the body to which they have
been appointed to in list
format?

Outside body membership
listed on Councillor’s annual
report but not always on the
standing register, and vice-
versa. The standing register
and annual report of each
councillor need to be
consistent.

Recommend that a link is set
up from each members’ file on
‘declarations’ to their Annual
Report.

Some members have not
updated their registers since
they were elected in May 2013

some and abstaining in others;
this shows a lack of
understanding, or perhaps
councillors are using the
interest to avoid voting on
matters which are
controversial where perhaps
they were entitled to vote?

Not all declarations made in
meetings have made it to the

web — is this an officer or
councillor issue?
Some unnecessary

declarations are still being
made — e.g. when members
are not actually present in the
meeting. It would complete
the paper trail if the original
hand written declarations (as
completed at the meeting by
the councillors) could be
readily available on-line as the
completion of these forms
have identified problems in
the past.

A member had declared a
personal interest in being a
local member on a planning
issue and left the room whilst
the matter was being
discussed. Members should
know that being a local
member is not a personal
interest within the definition
of the code and so the

CC-015794-LB/246992

Page 2




96 abed

11.

12.

13.

and those members’ registers
are not necessarily correct and
accurate.

Members are not always
declaring their membership of
various bodies in the right
boxes and are not always
completing 2.1-2.6 adequately.
(there appears to be confusion
between 2.2 and 2.3).
Employment activities are not
always placed in the right
section.

To simplify the review a list
should be produced for each
councillor detailing all their
responsibilities and
membership of outside bodies
and committees within the
council.

10.

personal interest does not
need to be disclosed.
Members are occasionally
declaring interest in meetings
orally but then not completing
the paperwork.

CC-015794-LB/246992

Page 3




Agenda Item 7

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
E

Page 97



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

MEETING: STANDARDS COMMITTEE
DATE: 12" March 2015
TITLE OF REPORT: Reforming Local Government and

Inquiry into Powers of Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales

REPORT BY: Awena Walkden, Solicitor Corporate
Governance
PURPOSE OF REPORT: To collate the Standards Committee’s

views in order to respond to the
consultation.

1. Introduction and Background

The Welsh Government has been looking to reform Local Government in Wales for quite
some time and has recently published a paper called “Devolution, Democracy and
Delivery”. You will find this document attached to this Report as Appendix 1. The paper
is the summary of the main changes that the Local Government wishes to make under the
“Williams Report”.

There are highlighted matters within the consultation paper which are relevant to
the Standards Committee. We require your views please on these changes to allow
us to respond to the consultation.

Further, the National Assembly for Wales is undertaking an inquiry into the powers of the
Public Service Ombudsman for Wales with a view to changing the Ombudsman’s powers.

We will require your views on the changes to the Ombudsman’s role as they affect
the Standards Committee in order for us to respond to this consultation by the 15
March 2015.

2. Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

The Local Government (Democracy) Wales Act 2013 makes provision for the
establishment of:- joint Standards Committees in Wales, the electronic publication of
declarations of interest, and powers to enable the transfer of misconduct
reports/members’ dispensation requests between Standards Committees to overcome
potential conflicts of interest. It is expected that these changes will come in to force later
this year.

Also, this year the National Assembly will bring forward legislation to modify the Model
Code of Conduct for Local Authority Members to facilitate the operation of local resolution
and to clarify the position of members with constituency interests.

CC-017471-AP/249191 (250350) Page 1

Page 98



They will also exempt local authorities from publishing misconduct reports during ongoing
proceedings.

The Welsh Assembly believe these reforms will improve and strengthen the ethical
standards framework, however, they are seeking views on whether there should be any
further reforms, in particular, in respect of more serious misconduct cases. The Welsh
Assembly believe there should be a new power for standards committees to consider
cases where there are serious concerns that an elected member is failing to fulfill their
duties satisfactorily. They would provide standards committees with appropriate sanctions
which could be imposed, and there would need to be safeguards against vexatious
complaints.

An appeals process for elected members would also need to be considered which could
be internal or to the Adjudication Panel for Wales, or another body. The National
Assembly are taking views on the most appropriate procedure.

Additional duties will also be placed on Leaders to ensure that diversity is respected, and
the Monitoring Officer and the Standards Committee will have monitoring roles in this
respect.

3. Finance Committee Inquiry: Consideration of Powers: Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales

| have attached at Appendix 2 papers setting out an inquiry into the powers of the Public
Services Ombudsman for Wales.

We require your opinion on the proposed amendments to enable us to provide a response
to the consultation as soon as possible.

The main points to note from the consultation are as follows:-

1. The Ombudsman would like to be able to receive complaints orally and is looking for
opinions on what other form of submission would be acceptable as at present the
Ombudsman can only accept complaints in writing.

2. The Ombudsman would prefer to focus on complaints that deal with service users and
service delivery, rather than local authority and community council complaints. If this
was to happen then the Ombudsman would cease to have any involvement in county
councillors’ breach of the Code of Conduct, or indeed community councilors, and
instead, such issues would all be dealt with internally.

We have attached a copy of the WLGA’s comments on the proposed reform to the
Ombudsman’s role to assist you in this exercise. That/those relevant to the Standards
Committee are highlighted.

We would be grateful if you could read the consultation papers and at the meeting of the
Committee let us know your collective views on the proposed changes so we can feed
back on the Consultation.

Awena Walkden

CC-017471-AP/249191 (250350) Page 2

Page 99



ATODIAD / APPENDIX
1

Page 100



Ve

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

WWW.cymru.gov.uk

Devolution,
Democracy and
Delivery

White Paper
Reforming Local Government:
Power 1o Local People

Date of issue: 3 February 2015
Responses by: 23:59 on 28 April 2015



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Overview

How to respond

Related documents

OGL

© Crown copyright 2015
WG24127

The White Paper ‘Reforming Local Government: Power to Local
People’ is the Welsh Government'’s statement of intent about
the future of Local Government in Wales.

The White Paper sets out the Welsh Government’s proposals
for reform in the following fields: local democracy, the roles
and remuneration of Elected Members and senior officers,
community governance and Community Councils, community
rights, corporate improvement, service performance, scrutiny,
audit, inspection and regulation, and finance.

This consultation covers a large number of matters. Many are of
interest to the general public but some are technical in nature
and may only to be of interest to Local Authorities. We have
designed a web-based consultation survey to make collecting
and analysing responses easier. It can be found at:

http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/power-to-
local-people/?lang=en

You may choose to address all the issues raised by this White
Paper or to complete a shorter version of the survey which
focuses on the main matters of public interest. You will be able
to choose your preferred option when you start the survey.

A Word version is also available but we strongly encourage
respondents to use the online survey.

To respond to the consultation, please either complete the
online form or request the accompanying questionnaire and
return it either by email RLGProgramme@\Wales.gsi.gov.uk

or by post to

Reforming Local Government
Welsh Government

Cathays Park

Cardiff

CF10 3NQ

This document is also available in a shorter, plain English version
and a youth friendly version on the Welsh Government website.
Large print, Braille and alternative language versions of this
document are available on request.

Page 102


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/power-to-local-people/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/power-to-local-people/?lang=en
mailto:RLGProgramme%40Wales.gsi.gov.uk?subject=

White Paper - Power to Local People

Data protection How the views and information you give us will be used

Any response you send us will be seen in full by Welsh
Government staff dealing with the issues which this
consultation is about. It may also be seen by other Welsh
Government staff to help them plan future consultations.

The Welsh Government intends to publish a summary of the
responses to this document. We may also publish responses

in full. Normally, the name and address (or part of the address)
of the person or organisation who sent the response are
published with the response. This helps to show that the
consultation was carried out properly. If you do not want your
name or address published, please tell us this in writing when
you send your response. We will then blank them out.

Names or addresses we blank out might still get published
later, though we do not think this would happen very often.
The Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Environmental
Information Regulations 2004 allow the public to ask to

see information held by many public bodies, including the
Welsh Government. This includes information which has not
been published. However, the law also allows us to withhold
information in some circumstances. If anyone asks to see
information we have withheld, we will have to decide whether
to release it or not. If someone has asked for their name and
address not to be published, that is an important fact we
would take into account. However, there might sometimes be
important reasons why we would have to reveal someone’s
name and address, even though they have asked for them
not to be published. We would get in touch with the person
and ask their views before we finally decided to reveal the
information.

Page 103



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Page 104



White Paper - Power to Local People

Contents

Ministerial Foreword — Our Vision for Local Government in Wales Vi
1. Power to Local People 1
2. Balancing the Responsibilities of National and Local Government 14
3. Renewing Democracy 24
4. Connecting with Communities 43
5. Power to Local Communities 55
6. Corporate Governance and Improvement 61
7. Performance in Local Government 68
8. Strengthening the Role of Review 75
9. Reforming Local Government Finance 87
10. Conclusion 96
11. Glossary of Terms 97

Page 105



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Ministerial Foreword — Our Vision for Local Government in Wales

If you visit the Gwent Archives at their magnificent new facility in the
General Offices of the former steelworks in Ebbw Vale, you can read the
minutes of the Tredegar Workmen'’s Medical Aid Society where Councillor
Aneurin Bevan and his colleagues sought to put in place co-operative
health solutions for their local community. These records are a reminder
that at its best, Local Government in Wales has always had an activist
nature, engaging co-operatively with local communities to find collective
solutions.

We want all our Councils to be activist Councils, engaged in delivering modern, accessible, high
quality public services with their communities. As we have developed our plans, we have looked
at the best international experience, and drawn on the experiences of the co-operative councils
movement in the UK. But we should never forget that Wales has always pioneered co-operative
models, both in Aneurin Bevan's time and today. In 11 Local Authorities in Wales, tenants voted
for community mutual or social enterprise solutions for the management of their social housing.
The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 legislates for the creation of co-operative
and mutual models in social care.

In this White Paper, we set out the terms of a new deal for Local Government in Wales.

More than 15 years after the establishment of the National Assembly, it is time to recast

the relationship between National and Local Government in Wales. Our new deal for

Local Government, based on a smaller number of stronger Councils, will result in National
Government in Wales setting a small number of clear national priorities, following the passage
of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill, enabling Local Government to determine
with local people the bulk of local priorities.

We recognise that Local Government in Wales is currently under severe pressure as a result

of UK Government austerity policies and rising demand for services. This is not an easy time
for anyone in Local Government, whether they are Councillors or Council workers. It is
therefore critical that we allow Local Government to focus on key priorities and learn from the
best practice — tried and trusted as well as innovative — in improving the delivery of services
across Wales.

Meanwhile, we must ensure local Councils are wholly representative of local communities.

We need a far more diverse range of Councillors. There is a direct challenge to the leadership

of Local Government to ensure this. Local Councils that reflect local communities are more
likely to achieve the trust of those communities when difficult decisions have to be taken by
local leadership. We should be making it easier for new people to enter Local Government at
Town or Community and Principal Council level. We must ensure the system of allowances for
Councillors does not mean that Cabinet Members and those with senior responsibility payments
simply become another part of the paid bureaucracy. We should be seeking to reduce the cost
of politics and management in Local Government.

Page 106



vii

White Paper - Power to Local People

At a time when public service organisations all around the world are learning that the old ways
of doing things are not sufficient for the future, Wales has the opportunity to leap beyond
others if our minds are open to the possibility. If we want to reshape our public services, and
reshape our localities, then we need to see strong, adaptive leadership across all our public
services, including Local Government.

We are ambitious for Local Government in Wales, and for our local communities. This White
Paper sets out our vision for Local Government in Wales, and explains how we will take these
proposals forward.

s

Leighton Andrews AM
Minister for Public Services

Page 107



viii

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Page 108



White Paper - Power to Local People

1. Power to Local People

This Chapter sets out the history and development of Local Government in
Wales. This is the context for our vision of more inclusive and accountable

Local Government which shares power and responsibility with the communities
it serves. It reminds us that this is nothing new. There is a long history of
community activism in Wales which the Welsh Government has consistently
promoted and supported since 1999. While Local Government structural reform is
necessary, it is not sufficient. 21st Century Local Government in Wales will require
a new kind of political leadership which is not institutionalised as part of Local
Authority bureaucracy, and democratic representation which is a more balanced
reflection of the diversity of our communities.

Finally, this chapter gives a brief overview of the content of the remaining
Chapters in this White Paper.

1.1 Introduction

Modern Local Government in Wales came into being at the end of the 19th Century,
the culmination of a series of great Victorian reforms designed to bring order to ‘a chaos as
regards authorities, a chaos as regards rates, and a chaos as regards areas’.

The 1888 Local Government Act created County Councils in the ‘historic’ counties of Wales,
formerly established by Henry VIII. The new Councils, elected by a new and extended franchise,
brought the administrative powers of the Justices of the Peace, such as maintaining roads and
bridges, jails, lunatic asylums and licensing, funded by levying county rates, under democratic
control. The Police became the responsibility of joint committees of the Justices of the Peace
and the new Councils.

Six years later, the 1894 Local Government Act created rural and urban District Councils which
took on the powers of the sanitary boards and the Improvement Commissioners, including
water supply, sewerage, street cleaning, paving, and providing markets and cemeteries. The Act
also established civil Parish Councils which continued to provide relief for the poor through the
Poor Law Unions but now under democratic oversight of Poor Law Guardians made up of
Elected Members from the new District Councils. Together, these two acts set the foundations
for modern Local Government in Wales.

Over the next 30 years, the County Councils took on more responsibilities, for secondary
education in 1889, elementary education in 1902, and maternity and children’s services in
1918. District Councils expanded their operations in utilities and became major owners of local
electricity, gas and water supply companies.

The first significant reform of the two tiers of Local Government came in 1929. The role of the
County Councils was strengthened at the expense of the Districts. The Poor Law Unions and

1 George Goschen, President of the Local Government Board, 1871, quoted in British local government reform: the nineteenth
century and after, J.P.D. Dunbabin, The English Historical Review, Vol.92, No. 365
Page 109



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Guardians were abolished and the Counties were given responsibility for public assistance,
infirmaries, hospitals and workhouses, along with all highways. They were also tasked with
reforming the lower tiers of government, which led to a number of District Councils being
abolished and many parishes merged.

The next 15 years were the most expansive for Local Government in Wales. The County and
District Councils between them looked after the roads and pavements, they gave welfare to the
poor and basic social services, they built municipal hospitals and schools and ran the education
system, they provided vaccinations and maternity services, many provided gas and electricity
through their own companies, they were responsible for water, sewerage and sanitation, and
they regulated public protection, businesses and planning.

Following the War, nationalisation of key infrastructure and industries, combined with an
increasing focus on achieving social equity sparked a wave of reforms, as part of which

Local Government lost most of its responsibilities for health, social security and utilities.
Nationalisation of electricity in 1947 transferred over 50 Local Authority supply companies in
Wales to the new Electricity Boards. The following year all Local Authority owned gas companies
in Wales were taken over by the Wales Gas Board, although Local Authority water supply
companies would not be nationalised until 1973.

The creation of the National Health Service in 1948 transferred all municipal hospitals into the
new NHS, although many community health services remained with Local Government until
1974. The setting up of a system of National Assistance in 1948 finally did away with the Poor
Law of 1601. Principal Local Authorities lost their role in poor relief but gained responsibility for
housing the vulnerable and new powers to help disabled people. It also transferred responsibility
for people with mental health conditions to the new NHS.

As a result of these major changes to the functions of Local Government, by the early 1950s
there was a growing consensus that further reform was needed. The Local Government map
no longer reflected the urbanised population of the second half of the century. There were
concerns with the inefficiency of small authorities, especially the rural Districts, but also
municipal Boroughs which were seen to be inadequate for the growing towns and cities
they served. This resulted in the setting up of a Local Government Commission for Wales

in 1958. The Commission first reported in 1963 but was dissolved in 1967 with none of its
recommendations implemented.

Reform was finally achieved through the Local Government Act 1972. This Act created a two-
tier system in Wales of eight Counties and 37 Districts with a division of functions between
them. Broadly speaking, the Counties were responsible for the major services such as education,
social services, transport, roads and fire services, and the Districts for environmental health,
refuse collection, housing, licensing, local planning and rate collection. Water and sewerage
were placed in the hands of regional Water Boards. Policing had been reformed in the

late 1960s with the creation of four constabularies in Wales but these remained under the
supervision of Police Authorities comprising two-thirds Elected Members from the Counties
and Districts until they too were abolished by the creation of directly elected Police and Crime
Commissioners in 2012. The 1972 Act also abolished the Parish Councils in Wales and created
Community Councils.

The 1980s marked a period of increasing National Government control of Local Government.
The introduction of the block grant and rate capping were used to control Local Government
expenditure and many services previously provided by Councils were outsourced through

Page 110



White Paper - Power to Local People

compulsory competitive tendering. Council tenants gained a right to buy their properties at a
discounted rate under the Housing Act 1980. This led to a wholesale reduction in public sector
housing, damaging the ability of Councils to maintain their remaining stock. There was an
attempt to reform Local Government finance with the introduction of the Community Charge in
1989/90, but in the face of massive public hostility this was replaced by Council Tax in 1993.

However, the two-tier system of Counties and Districts established in 1974, with frictions
between the tiers, was soon regarded as a compromise solution that could not last. The Local
Government (Wales) Act 1994 replaced them with a single tier of 22 unitary bodies known as
Principal Councils.? The Act also removed the administration of the fire services from individual
Local Authorities by creating three combined Fire and Rescue Authorities.

The Government of Wales Act 1998 created the National Assembly for Wales and enshrined a
formal structural relationship between the new Government of Wales and Local Government
in the form of the Partnership Council for Wales and the Local Government Scheme. Following
devolution, the relationship between National and Local Government has grown organically

in some respects but, despite the further devolution of powers and responsibilities to the
Welsh Government, its formal relationship with Local Government is still set out as at Day 1 of
devolution in 1999.

Since devolution, Local Government reforms have focused primarily on performance, that

is, service and financial efficiency. The role of the Audit, Inspection and Regulation agencies
increased through initiatives such as Best Value and the Wales Programme for Improvement.
The Local Government Act 2000 brought in further reforms aimed at the internal organisation
of Local Authorities which, in many respects, had not changed much over the preceding
century. These reforms were designed to change Councils’ traditional administration role into
one of corporate management, to streamline decision-making in Local Authorities through the
creation, ultimately, of an executive decision-making Cabinet held to account by committees of
backbench Members. The 2000 Act also included provisions which recognised the community
leadership role of Local Authorities and loosened some of the legal constraints on them by
giving them the power to do almost anything which promoted the economic, social and
environmental well-being of their areas.

In Wales, a number of Assembly Measures and Acts have put in place an improvement regime
overseen by the Auditor General for Wales, simplified the process for making byelaws, and
made provisions for strengthening local democracy and transparency. Other reforms have
addressed the performance of major Local Government services. Significant reforms in
education are aimed at transforming services which have too often failed Welsh children,
while major legislation in the field of social services is aimed at safeguarding children and
preparing these services for a rapidly ageing population.

More recently, attention has turned forcefully to the issue of how local democracy works

in Wales. It is abundantly clear that those sitting in Council chambers across Wales do not
adequately reflect the communities they serve. Diversity is not a marginal issue. It is critical
for the business of Local Government and the keystone of effective democracy. While some
Councils have made progress on actively giving communities and their own workforce a voice
in decisions which affect them, many continue to approach this in a piecemeal way. This fails

2 The terms ‘Principal Councils’ and ‘Principal Local Authorities’ refer to the 22 County or County Borough Councils. They do
not include Fire and Rescue Authorities, National Parks Authorities or Town and Community Councils.
Page 111



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

to recognise the role of Local Authorities as agents for change and the power of people to add
hugely to the value of Local Government through social enterprise, community entrepreneurship
and local leadership.

The aim of our current Local Government reforms, therefore, is to ensure Local Authorities
fully embrace their role as community leaders, activists and agents of change, the makers

and shapers of the places they serve, and to ensure they improve delivery and create better
outcomes for their communities. The people of Wales deserve to be served by organisations
fit for the 21st Century. The Welsh Government believes this can only be achieved by a radical
reshaping of local democracy in Wales.

1.2 Democracy and Delivery

A recurring theme throughout the history of Local Government is the conviction that there is a
tension between the competing demands of democracy and delivery: that democracy is most
healthy when it takes place in a small area, and service delivery performs best when it is subject
to economies of scale. This is a tired argument. Turnout at national elections is consistently
higher than for Local Government elections and the greatest number of uncontested seats is

in Community Council elections. And while economies of scale can certainly increase efficiency
and value for money, effective services, especially preventative services, are often those which
are more personalised and tailored.

The major reforms of Local Government in 1929, the late 1940s, 1974, 1996 and 2000 have
all been turning points, requiring the renewal of Local Government in response to powerful
external forces — changing demographics, rising social expectations and new technology.

To these external forces, which continue to apply today, the acute financial challenges we now
face add a new challenge for Local Government in Wales.

Local Government funding in Wales has fared as well as could be expected for most of the
period of austerity. A three-year settlement in 2008-09 gave Local Authorities relative protection
from subsequent cuts to the Welsh Government’s budget in the latter part of the spending
review period. The Welsh Government then protected Local Authorities from the worst of
austerity between 2011-12 and 2013-14, whilst Councils in England suffered significant cuts.
As the Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) put it in In Defence of Localism, “it is fair
to say that local government in Wales has received better revenue settlements than elsewhere
during this period”.

This protection gave Local Authorities in Wales the opportunity to renew themselves, to
transform the way they worked, their relationship with partner organisations and the public and
the way they delivered services. Many did not seize this opportunity. Therefore, leadership has
not risen to the challenge, collaboration has stuttered, and parochial interests have prevailed.
Transformation requires Local Authority leadership to ensure the focus at the centre of the
Authority is on excellence in performance and change management, and service centres whose
focus is innovation in design and delivery. Therefore, we have excellent service delivery blunted
by lacklustre corporate centres, and excellent corporate centres undermined by conservative
service delivery.

Structural change is necessary. The Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery

made the case compellingly that smaller Councils simply do not have the resilience, expertise
or leadership capable of transforming their organisations or supporting their communities in
a complex, changing world. The Welsh Government has accepted this case and will legislate

Page 112



White Paper - Power to Local People

to bring it about. Fewer, larger Councils are necessary to strengthen democracy and delivery.
However, we agree that to focus only on structure is to miss the point.

Local Government in Wales faces challenges of finance, culture and leadership. The democratic
challenge is about Council chambers which reflect the diversity of the communities they serve,
which are responsive to the community’s needs and which see building social capital, in terms
of community empowerment and resilience, as their core purpose. The delivery challenge is

for Elected Members to assert accountability, challenge complacency and drive out mediocrity.
This White Paper makes proposals which are intended to improve both democracy and delivery.
It is the Welsh Government’s role to put the best possible policy and regulatory framework in
place and this is what we will do. However, in the end, it is the quality of leadership at all levels
in Local Government which will make the real difference.

We expect that implementing the reforms we propose in this White Paper will deliver new
purpose for, and greater innovation in, the design of Local Authorities in Wales. They will set out
the role of Local Government in Wales for the next generation and, for those working in Local
Authorities or aspiring to be Councillors, will create a framework where flexibility, innovation
and opportunity are integral to serving communities and creating a relationship with them
which is meaningful and respectful.

The history of the development of Local Government and, indeed, of Local Government
legislation, predominantly concerns specific service delivery matters. This has led inevitably to
corporate structures based on service silos which are now a relic of the past. These proposed
reforms are intended to refocus our Councils on their place-shaping role. To do this, they need
visionary leadership supported by adaptive and strategic corporate capability which is prepared,
first and foremost, to embrace the challenge of change.

In the future, there will be much greater diversity in delivery through mutuals, in-sourcing, joint
commissioning and community ownership. Managing this complex environment will require

a different approach to local governance. This is not a licence or an encouragement for Local
Authorities to wash their hands of some services, or not to care about some aspects of well-
being in their area. Quite the opposite.

The purpose of our proposed reforms is to move decisions closer to the people of Wales in

their local communities, to empower local people to secure better services, and to strengthen
community engagement in decision-taking. At a time of austerity, Councils will need to engage
more closely with local communities to identify shared purpose and shared expectations of what
is feasible in service delivery.

1.3 Legislating for Change

In the previous White Paper, Reforming Local Government,® we set out our intention to bring
forward two pieces of legislation. The first is the Local Government (Wales) Bill to allow for
certain preparatory work to enable a programme of Local Government mergers and reform.
This was introduced into the National Assembly on 26 January 2015. The second Bill will

be published as a Draft Bill for consultation in the Autumn of 2015 and introduced into the
Assembly in 2016, after the Assembly elections. The second Bill, based on the proposals in
this White Paper, would complete the programme of Local Authority mergers and establish a

3 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/wh itel—:?a per-reforming-local-government/?lang=en
age


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?lang=en

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

statutory Public Services Staff Commission. It will also contain a new and reformed legislative
framework for Local Authority democracy, accountability, performance and finance.

In the longer term, there is a need for a more fundamental review of the funding of Local
Government and it is likely separate legislation will be required to deal with these matters.

We asked preliminary questions on these issues in Reforming Local Government and we have
listened to and considered your views. It is these elements which we turn our attention to in
more detail in this White Paper, under the following headings.

1.4 Balancing the Responsibilities of National and Local Government

We discuss the relationship between the different spheres of government in Wales and how
this has developed since devolution in 1999. We clarify the role of the Welsh Government as
setting standards and defining a limited number of national expectations. We establish that the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill sets a framework for the whole public service in
Wales. We examine the role of Local Government as an agent of change in their locality, in their
relationship with other public services and at the regional level, particularly city regions.

We set out our intention to legislate to complete the programme of Local Authority mergers.
We intend to give a general power of competence to Local Authorities, and a power to ensure
consistent provision of Community Councils or other democratic models of neighbourhood
participation.

We are seeking views on whether the constitutions of Local Authorities could do more to
articulate their values and relationship with local people.

We are also seeking views on whether there is a case, in the longer term, for undertaking a
fundamental review of the body of Local Government legislation with a view to simplification,
ensuring that it supports agile and activist 21st Century organisations.

1.5 Renewing Democracy

For Local Government to operate effectively, there needs to be clarity about roles and
responsibilities. Elected Members should closely reflect the diversity of voices and aspirations in
the communities they represent.

We propose to set out in legislation the roles and responsibilities of the Leader, Cabinet
Members, Elected Members and the Chief Executive. We will take further action to increase
the diversity of Councillors. We will take action to reduce the cost of politics and management
in Local Government and to bring more consistency to the appointment and remuneration of
senior officers.

We are seeking views on whether the way we pay Elected Members at present is still
appropriate, whether the number of terms an Elected Member may serve should be limited,
and whether there should be a right of recall. We are seeking views on whether the restrictions
which prevent some Local Authority officers from standing for election should be relaxed.
Finally, we are seeking views on whether Local Government elections should continue to occur
every four years or whether we should consider alternatives.

Page 114



White Paper - Power to Local People

1.6 Connecting with Communities

At the heart of our vision for Local Government in Wales is a new relationship with local
communities. We propose to achieve this by giving Elected Members a leadership role at the
head of Area Boards within their Local Authorities, in order to ensure the new, larger Authorities
are closer to their communities.

As part of this, we need to raise the ambition of Community Councils so they are better placed
to deliver important community services in the future. This means building their capacity and
capability, as well as strengthening their governance and their engagement with other services
and the third sector. We propose to give a power to Local Authorities to review Community
Councils in order to achieve these objectives, and to complete these reviews by 2022.

1.7 Power to Local Communities

In order to realise our ambition of Local Authorities which actively share power and
responsibility, we will set out the role we see for mutualism, co-operation and shared ownership
in the transformation of public services. We set out the way in which communities can engage
with Local Authorities in joint endeavour and how people can protect land and property of
community value for the future. We intend to achieve this by giving community bodies a
number of rights which they can exercise in relation to services and assets.

1.8 Corporate Governance and Improvement

We believe visionary and focused leadership is the most important factor in ensuring Local
Authorities are able to provide sustainable outcomes for local areas. To achieve this, Councillors
must be supported by a capable, adaptive and strategic management team. We discuss how
Local Authorities might be best supported to improve their leadership capacity and capability.

We propose the following changes:

e strengthening the role of Local Authority Audit Committees;
e repealing Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009;

e introducing a system of annual self-assessment, complemented by biennial peer-review,
to support Local Authorities in improving their corporate capability and capacity; and

e giving Welsh Ministers powers to commission independent reviews of Local Authority
corporate capability and capacity, and, dependent on the findings, to take action to
support change and improvement.

We also ask for views on whether there are any elements of the 2009 Measure which should be
restated within the new arrangements, and whether they can be strengthened.

1.9 Performance in Local Government

We discuss the management and improvement of service delivery in Local Authorities. Key to
this is effective corporate planning to inform decisions and policy development. We consider
the importance of management information and data in service planning, performance
management and assessment by Scrutiny Committees, the public, external review bodies and
other stakeholders.

Page 115



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

We propose the following changes:

e A statutory requirement for all Local Authorities to produce and publish a corporate
plan which covers the short, medium and long term. This will be complemented by
a requirement for the Local Authority to produce an Annual Report setting out its
performance over the preceding year. The corporate plan and Annual Report will
incorporate the Authority’s well-being objectives, as intended by the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Bill.

e The creation of a single online information portal where comparable information will
be published regarding the performance of all Local Authorities, as well as other key
documents such as the corporate plan, self-assessment, peer review and inspection
reports.

e A statutory requirement for all Local Authorities to have an online (and offline)
complaints process. We will require Local Authorities to publish information (where
appropriate) on complaints, including how complaints have been considered and action
taken.

1.10 Strengthening the Role of Review

We will discuss the role of scrutiny by Elected Members (internal review) and audit, inspection
and regulation bodies (external review) in supporting Local Authorities to deliver better
outcomes for local areas. We do not believe internal and external review processes work
together well enough. We discuss how we will strengthen internal review to ensure it has more
impact on Local Authority decision-making. We also discuss the benefits of sharing information
between the different external review bodies and with internal reviews.

We propose the following changes:

e Requiring Local Authorities to set out regularly "key decisions’ they will be considering so
as to enable internal review to be planned more effectively.

e Strengthening Scrutiny Committees’ forward planning by requiring them to make
reference to ‘key decisions’ and corporate plans, as well as setting out what they intend
to scrutinise and who they will engage with in doing so.

e Requiring external review bodies to share information with each other and with local
Scrutiny Committees.

® Requiring external review bodies to coordinate their work in respect of Local Authorities
and produce a combined assessment of each Local Authority every two years.

e Requiring external review bodies to produce a joint annual assessment of the state of
Local Government in Wales.

We also ask for views on whether we should take further steps to protect the independence of
the Democratic Services functions and the support they provide for Elected Members’ scrutiny
responsibilities.

1.11 Reforming Local Government Finance

We set out how the funding of Local Government will need to change to support the reforms
outlined elsewhere in this paper and to provide a more effective framework for funding

Page 116



White Paper - Power to Local People

authorities. We also discuss the need for clearer financial governance and accounting
arrangements and how these may be simplified in the future.

We propose a phased approach to developing a Local Government finance system fit for the
new Authorities, which in the shorter-term will include the necessary changes to effect mergers
and the reforms proposed in this paper.

In the longer-term, we intend to consult on and bring forward further legislation to effect more
fundamental changes to the Local Government finance system. The longer-term approach will
enable us to design a system which takes account of wider changes to the powers and fiscal
responsibilities of the National Assembly for Wales and allows Local Authorities to raise more of
their finance themselves.

1.12 Conclusion

This is a significant programme of Local Government reform which is justified by the magnitude
of the financial, social and technological change we are currently facing. It is the beginning of a
new era in the history of Local Government in Wales.

Our proposed legislation will support and enable, but Local Authorities will need to act for
themselves and work with communities and the Welsh Government to begin the process of
reform now. This is our opportunity together to create new Local Authorities with a philosophy
and purpose fit for the 21st Century. We believe this is best achieved in partnership with Local
Government and the people of Wales.

Page 117



10

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

2. Balancing the Responsibilities of National and Local Government

This Chapter discusses the relationship between the different spheres of
government in Wales and how this has developed since devolution in 1999.

We clarify the role of the Welsh Government as setting standards and defining
a limited number of national expectations. We establish that the Well-being of
Future Generations (Wales) Bill sets a framework for the whole public service in
Wales. We examine the role of Local Government as an agent of change in their
locality, in their relationship with other public services and at the regional level,
particularly city regions.

We set out our intention to legislate to complete the programme of Local
Authority mergers and discontinue the use of the name ‘County Borough’.

We intend to give a general power of competence to Local Authorities, and a
power to ensure consistent provision of Community Councils or other democratic
models of neighbourhood participation.

We are seeking views on whether the constitutions of Local Authorities could do
more to articulate their values and relationship with local people.

We are also seeking views on whether there is a case, in the longer term, for
undertaking a fundamental review of the body of Local Government legislation
with a view to simplification, ensuring it supports agile and activist 21st Century
organisations.

2.1 Introduction

If Local Government in Wales is to deal with the challenges of this generation and the next,
we believe reform is needed in every aspect of its operation. Delivering this transformation
begins with clarifying the role of Local Government as part of the system of government in
Wales, and its relationship with Welsh Government within an evolving devolution settlement.

At the heart of this relationship, as in all countries with local and national governments, is the
extent to which Local Government makes its own decisions and is accountable to local people,
and the extent to which it is exercising responsibilities on behalf of National Government and so
subject to oversight. In terms of Local Government, improvement and reform should be based
on both a pull from the public as much as a push from National Government.

The Welsh Government sets national policy and strategic direction for key services such as
education, social services, waste and planning. It does this because in these important areas,
people and families across Wales are entitled to the same high standards of service wherever
they live. For these services, the people of Wales rightly expect the Welsh Government to set
standards and monitor performance. Where these standards are not met, Local Government
must be held to account and the public expect the Welsh Ministers to intervene to put things
right, and to do so swiftly and decisively (see 6.6 below).

The same is true of the way Local Government makes decisions to spend public money and the
way it runs its affairs. In the first instance, it is always the responsibility of local Councillors and

Page 118



White Paper - Power to Local People

their officers to ensure their Council is run with integrity, honesty, fairness and transparency.

In general, this happens across Wales. Where this is not the case, the remedy will often be
through the courts but in some circumstances, the Welsh Ministers will have a duty to intervene
on behalf of local people to protect their interests and restore trust in local democracy.

In other areas, however, people want much more choice about their local priorities. What's right
for Anglesey may not be right for Pembrokeshire. And what'’s right for the people of Milford
Haven may not be right for the people of Crymych. In these circumstances, Local Government
must be accountable to local people for the decisions it makes and local people must be
empowered to make this happen. This principle of subsidiarity extends to the responsibility of
Local Government to ensure the efficient and effective provision of community government
(see 4.8 below).

2.2 Local Government and Devolution

Both National and Local Government in Wales have a responsibility to provide the leadership
necessary to serve the people of Wales well in a constantly changing political, legal and
constitutional environment.

Prior to the establishment of the National Assembly in 1999, Wales was represented in the UK
Government Cabinet by a single Secretary of State in the Welsh Office. From the inception

of the Assembly, there was a much closer relationship between the Welsh Ministers and

Local Government leaders.* Today, most Ministers in the Welsh Government have portfolio
responsibilities which bear on Local Government.

The Government of Wales Act 1998 recognised that, because of the nature of the devolution
settlement at the time, the Assembly and Local Government would need to work in partnership.
It achieved this by creating a statutory Partnership Council for Wales made up of Assembly and
Local Government Elected Members, and a Local Government Scheme, in which the Assembly
must set out how it proposes to sustain and promote Local Government in Wales. In due course,
these became responsibilities of the Welsh Ministers.>

This partnership approach has been acknowledged in other ways too. Recognising the potential
for confusion over lines of responsibility between the Assembly and Local Government, a
number of policy statements and agreements were concluded over the years: Freedom and
Responsibility in Local Government (2002), A Shared Responsibility (2007) and A Compact for
Change (2011).

Performance management is central to this relationship: “The way in which local government
performance is defined, assessed and reported goes to the heart of central-local relations”.®
Therefore, since the first Assembly, Welsh Government and Local Government have worked
together to develop an approach to Local Government performance and improvement
management which currently includes the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 and grant
incentivised Outcome Agreements.

4 A new partnership? The National Assembly for Wales and Local Government, Laffin, Taylor and Thomas, Joseph Rowntree
Foundation, 2002

5 For further information on the Partnership Council, including membership and papers, see
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/partnership/pcfw/?lang=en

6 Learning to Improve: An Independent Assessment of the Welsh Government's Policies for Local Government,
2007-2011, Cardiff Business School, Welsh Government Social Research, 2013 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-
research/7945310/?lang=en

Page 119


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/partnership/pcfw/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/7945310/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/7945310/?lang=en

12

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Responsibility for effective performance and delivery rests squarely with Local Authorities,

as does responsibility for service or corporate failure. Too often, neither the Executive, senior
management nor scrutiny have addressed problems before they have become failures identified
through audit or inspection. This has led to interventions directed by the Welsh Ministers.

While it is difficult to see that the public would accept anything less in extreme circumstances,
intervention as a consequence of audit and inspection should be the last line of defence, not the
first. The root of the matter is the failure of local leadership to put in place effective governance,
improvement and performance controls. Chapters 6 to 8 below set out our proposals for
strengthening performance and improvement management in Local Government.

As the governance of Wales continues to develop and mature, and with further devolution of
powers to the Assembly in the pipeline, it is time to rethink relations between National and
Local Government. We are in a very different position from 1999.

2.3 Present Role of Local Government

We set out in Chapter 1 how the responsibilities of Local Government have changed over the
years. Access to health services, welfare, standards of education or supply of clean water were
once considered purely local matters. This is no longer the case. They are matters of national
interest and in some cases are best now delivered by national or regional organisations.

The question of what is best delivered locally, regionally or nationally will change over time,

as society changes, as expectations change and as technology transforms the way we live our
lives.

Today, Local Authorities exercise a range of powers to improve well-being in their areas.
For example:

e Mandatory powers: the things Local Government must do, such as education,
social services, safeguarding children, waste collection and disposal, housing,
development planning, library services, environment and local transport.

e Discretionary powers: these are things Local Government may do, such as promoting
economic development, the arts, culture, leisure, sports and tourism.

e Regulatory powers: this is how Local Government protects the public through services
such as trading standards, environmental health, and the licensing of alcohol sales and
consumption, taxis and other activities.

The responsibilities of Local Government are laid out in statute but they are not fixed. Rather,
they are fluid, they can and do change over time. It is reasonable and necessary to ask from time
to time whether some of these services may be better delivered in a different way. In education,
for example, the needs of each individual child are unique, but the educational entitlements of
children in Flintshire and Monmouthshire are not. Education must be delivered locally, in schools
staffed with local teachers, but there is less reason to presume educational services should not
be commissioned regionally or nationally. The same could be said for other services, such as
social services or waste.

No vision for the future of Local Government in Wales can be reduced to a single set of
responsibilities or a simple supposed autonomy. The single most important factor for Local
Government in Wales to be successful in the next generation is the quality of leadership.
Legislation is not the solution for securing quality leadership, but we can legislate to ensure
the Leaders of Local Authorities have every opportunity to exercise their leadership effectively,

and to ensure effective support is available I;c)o enaleI% them to develop and grow as leaders.
age



13

White Paper - Power to Local People

2.4 Working Together

Over recent years, there has been increasing recognition that if we are to tailor services
around individuals, public service providers need to work together and with providers from
other services and the third sector, breaking down unnecessary barriers, and breaking out of
traditional silos. The ‘“Team around the Family’ is one such example. This model brings a wide
range of professionals together to work with a family in order to help it address the breadth
of challenges it is facing. The focus is on working with the family as a whole; parents, carers
and the wider family play a central role in the whole process. We need to bring this style of
approach to different services to ensure organisations work together to meet people’s needs.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill seeks to address this by requiring public
bodies to take into account the need to take an integrated approach and to work collaboratively
in order to find shared solutions for people and communities. Local Government exercises

many powers but often it must do so in partnership. This is essential as we focus increasingly

on working with people before they find themselves in difficulty or crisis, or before their health
has deteriorated seriously as the way to improve people’s lives, prevent harm and reduce
unnecessary demand for costly services.

The main public services currently come together through the Local Service Board, under

the leadership of the Local Authority, to develop a single integrated plan for their area. This
enables partners to agree their common objectives, in other words, their strategic priorities for
tackling inequality and improving well-being in the area. This is crucially important to make sure
everybody is pulling in the same direction and understands what their role is.

On a day to day basis, however, the responsibilities for working together fall to managers and
front-line staff. Looking after our ageing population means Local Government and the NHS
working together as one team. Making our communities safe places to live can only happen

if Local Government, the Police and others work closely together on issues such as anti-social
behaviour, safeguarding children, preventing young people from going missing, traffic control,
and managing town centres during major events and festivals. Since major services are often
provided by third sector bodies, they too need their place at the table.

Public services also need to work together behind the scenes, to make services more cost
effective, for example, by coming together to share their purchasing powers through the
National Procurement Service, so the goods and services they all use can be bought at the best
price — such as ICT, vehicles, energy, construction and professional services. Coordination of
delivery is improving but there is still a long way to go. The Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Bill will put Public Services Boards and local well-being planning on a statutory footing.
Other Acts of the Assembly, such as the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014,

put specific requirements on Local Government to work with partners to deliver services for
particular groups.

This will build upon and strengthen work which is already underway — such as that being led
by the Minister for Economy, Science and Transport to develop further the opportunities which
can be gained from working with and across Local Authorities to coordinate work on economic
development and provide a better service to business.

Working in partnership is hard. It requires trust between leaders, managers and front-line staff
in different organisations. People need to develop new skills and to understand service users’
needs, and those of their families or carers, in great detail. There are practical issues around

Page 121



14

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

sharing information, making systems talk together and finding effective ways to refer people
between organisations seamlessly. There are management challenges when staff from different
organisations are located together in the same place. There are governance and financial issues
because working together challenges the way we manage public money, for instance when
action by one organisation reduces the costs to another. It requires new ways of holding public
services to account through democratic scrutiny, not just for what each organisation has done,
but how they have acted together in the best interests of the public.

Local Government plays a central role in this landscape. Its democratic legitimacy and place-
shaping role give Local Government the leadership authority to convene partners, broker
relationships and solve problems.

2.5 Regional Working and City Regions

In addition to working with other services within a local area, Local Government must
increasingly provide leadership and exercise powers beyond individual Local Authority
boundaries, as a regional agent of change.

This regional working is already happening in the commissioning of both front-line and back
office services, such as social services, adoption and fostering services, services for reducing
youth offending and substance misuse, services for missing children, highways, legal and
professional services. The Welsh Government expects this trend to continue, with some shared
services being commissioned nationally or regionally for the whole of the public sector, where
this makes financial sense, and this could also include the development of virtual shared services
and virtual back-offices. In section 8.6 we discuss accountability arrangements for regional
collaboration.

Following the Hill Review’ on the future structure of education services in Wales, the Welsh
Government developed and agreed a national model for regional working. This has led to
education school improvement services being delivered on a regional basis via four consortia
rather than 22 individual local authorities. We expect this to lead to improved capability and
capacity at senior level and produce savings to be directed to the front-line or directed to
supporting education activities.

The regional role of Local Government is of particular importance in the context of the Welsh
Government's city regions approach.

Urban development and the growth of cities is the most significant feature of the global
economy in our generation. Since 1950, the population of urban areas has grown more than
five times, from 746 million to 3.9 billion.2 54% of the world population now lives in urban
areas, a proportion which is expected to reach 66% by 2050. Meanwhile, the growth of the
rural population is expected to decline after 2020.

There is growing evidence that investing in the largest cities, such as London, at the expense
of second cities, including those in Wales, results in reduced economic performance overall

7 Review of Future Delivery of Education Services in Wales, Welsh Government, 2013
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/futuredelivery/?lang=en

8 World Urbanization Prospects, 2014 Revision, UN DepaEc)ment o{%ci)nomic and Social Affairs http://esa.un.org/unpd/wup/
age


 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/futuredelivery/?lang=en
 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/educationandskills/publications/guidance/futuredelivery/?lang=en
http://h
ttp://esa.un.org/unpd/wup/

15

White Paper - Power to Local People

and exacerbates regional inequalities, especially at times of economic downturn.® The ‘core
cities’ group'® in the UK includes Cardiff. These ‘core cities’ are centres for regional economic
prosperity, with their surrounding region dependent on them but also providing them with a
mobile workforce and an attractive hinterland. They all feature high levels of deprivation, either
within the cities themselves or the surrounding region, a legacy of unbalanced investment
following previous cycles of industrial growth and decline. With new investment, these second
cities are expected to be the main source of new jobs and growth in the next generation.

In Wales, the urban population is concentrated in the south with smaller centres along the
North Wales coast and in North East Wales. There are no towns with a population over 25,000
in mid Wales, or west of Colwyn Bay in the North or west of Llanelli in the South. The Welsh
metropolitan cities (which have developed alongside the historic cities of St Asaph, Bangor and
St Davids) are Cardiff (population 350,000), Swansea (240,000) and Newport (146,000). In
North East Wales, the larger Wrexham urban area has a population of just 66,000 but can be
considered part of a wider cross-border urban region which includes Deeside, Chester and the
Wirral.

According to the City Regions Task and Finish Group established by the Welsh Government

to investigate city regions in Wales, our cities generate only 33% of our wealth, which is
significantly the lowest proportion of all UK nations and regions."" However, almost 69% of the
Welsh population lives within the city regions identified by the Task and Finish Group in Swansea
Bay (700,000) and South East Wales (1.4 million), and there is significant potential for improving
economic performance in these areas with appropriate policies.

The Task and Finish Group considered there would be three main advantages to establishing
two city regions in South Wales, with parts of North East Wales considered part of a wider,
cross-border region:

e Larger and more efficient labour markets, so the chances of a good match between
employer needs and workers’ skills are increased.

e Larger potential markets for goods and services because of the concentration of activity
and transport cost savings; and a greater exchange of knowledge, ideas and innovation.

e A city region approach would make it possible for different parts of the region to decide
to specialise in a particular offering — whether housing, manufacturing facilities, business
services or leisure facilities.

The Task and Finish Group identified that the key to improved economic performance in these
regions is the integration of economic development, skills, regeneration, transport, planning and
the environment. This will require the Welsh Government, Local Government and the private
and third sectors to work closely together.

To enable this, the Welsh Government has taken a lead role by acting upon the
recommendations of the Task and Finish Group. City Region Boards have been established
in the Swansea Bay City Region and the Cardiff Capital Region to take this agenda forward.

9 See, for example, European Second Tier Cities in Austerity: Why Invest Beyond the Capital?, Liverpool John Moores
University, 2012 https:/ljmu.ac.uk/EIUA/second-tier-cities/index.htm

10 http://www.corecities.com/

11 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/businessandeconomy/policy/city-regions/?lang=en, Welsh Government, 2012
Page 123


https://ljmu.ac.uk/EIUA/second-tier-cities/index.htm
http://www.corecities.com/
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/businessandeconomy/policy/city-regions/?lang=en

16

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

These Boards are continuing to meet on a regular basis and are making good progress in
providing their respective regions with leadership, vision, and strategic direction. They will
continue to focus and refine their priorities as they seek to home in on those projects where
regional alignment and collaboration brings strategic and added value.

These arrangements reflect the fact the City Regions agenda is not a business as usual,

public sector agenda. It requires a collaborative and business-led partnership — connecting

the private sector with the public and education sectors. It requires a different order of
leadership, one which looks beyond parochial interests, willing to trade benefits and costs across
boundaries, moving at the pace of the fastest, not the slowest. Local Authorities must work
together and with their partners on matters such as the regional strategic development plan
proposed under the Planning (Wales) Bill, education and skills, and making our cities and their
surrounding regions attractive places for residents, visitors and business investment, using the
extensive powers at their disposal.

It is not the intention of the Welsh Government at this time to enable the creation of Combined
Authorities under the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009.
There are currently five such Authorities in England: Greater Manchester, Sheffield City Region,
North East, Liverpool City Region and West Yorkshire, with a further Combined Authority
proposed for Birmingham in 2015. Local Authorities in Wales already have extensive powers to
enter into collaborative arrangements with other Authorities. Taken together with the creation
of larger Local Authorities, the framework of the Wales Infrastructure Investment Plan and the
closer proximity of National Government to Local Government in Wales, the Welsh Government
does not believe there is currently a need for Combined Authorities in Wales, as defined under
the 2009 Act.

2.6 A Sustainable Framework for Public Services in Wales

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill sets a new context for relations between
National and Local Government, and the whole of the Welsh public service. The Bill provides for
well-being goals setting a framework within which the Welsh Ministers will set national strategic
direction and Local Government will set its local objectives, responsive to local need and subject
to local accountability.

The Bill underpins the public service reform agenda, clearly setting out how the specified public
bodies, including the Welsh Ministers and Local Government, will work to improve national and
local economic, social and environmental well-being. It directly addresses the issue of function,
not form, establishing five ways of working key to public bodies improving well-being in a
sustainable manner:

e |ong-term thinking — balancing the need to take action in the short term with the need
to meet the long term needs of Wales, especially where short term actions may have a
detrimental effect in the future.

e An integrated approach — considering how a public body’s objectives impact upon the
well-being goals and on economic, social and environmental well-being.

e Preventative action — taking action now in order to prevent problems occurring or getting
worse.

e (Collaboration — acting collaboratively with other bodies to assist in the achievement of
the body’s objectives, or another body’s objectives.

Page 124



17

White Paper - Power to Local People

¢ Involvement — involving the people and communities whose well-being is being
considered and engaging them in finding sustainable solutions.

The Bill strengthens the community leadership role of Local Government by placing an emphasis
on collaboration around place. It will require public services in a Local Authority area to work
together through the Public Services Board to improve local well-being. Ambitious Councils will
use the Board to drive forward the radical transformation which is needed across public services
by fully engaging with the community. Most importantly, both Local Authorities and Public
Services Boards are subject to local accountability for their responsibilities under the Bill. There
are no negotiated agreements with the Welsh Ministers and Ministerial intervention is limited to
extreme circumstances.

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 linked together local priorities in the community
strategy with Local Authority corporate and service improvement. The Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Bill will supersede this by providing a more integrated and streamlined,
whole public service approach.

The Bill paves the way for Local Government to act with greater autonomy, measured on the
outcomes it achieves, and reporting on fewer indicators. However, autonomy needs to be
balanced with appropriate accountability. This White Paper sets out how we intend to achieve
this through greater transparency of decision-making by Local Authority Cabinets (Chapter 3),
a stronger role for Elected Members (Chapter 4), giving communities a greater say in how and
by whom services are delivered (Chapter 5), strengthening corporate governance (Chapter

6), more effective performance management (Chapter 7) and better joining up of internal
and external review through inspection and audit (Chapter 8). We also discuss a new finance
framework for Local Government (Chapter 9).

We hope these improvements assist local leadership to get a grip on issues before they become
crises. We do not believe the public deserves anything less than top quality, proactive local
leadership which thinks ahead and takes decisive action. However, should failures still happen,
and where local leaders fail to take corrective action, the public will continue to expect the
Welsh Ministers to intervene, swiftly and decisively.

We propose a better-defined relationship between National and Local Government, with a
clearly defined leadership role for the Welsh Government in the fields of education, social
services, economic development and the environment, based around a limited number

of national expectations concerning the social, economic and environmental well-being

of communities. For example, in the field of education, these might be expressed as the
expectation that young people leaving primary school will have literacy and numeracy levels
appropriate to their age, and at secondary school, a rising proportion of young people will gain
five good GCSEs including English or Welsh and Maths, and the gap between pupils in receipt
of free school meals and other pupils will be closed. In other areas, while Welsh Government
may set clear aspirations, it will be for Local Government to determine local priorities.

We believe we already have evidence in Wales that the process of setting straightforward
national expectations has resulted in improved performance and responsiveness to the needs of
local communities and service users. The development of the Welsh Housing Quality Standard
(WHQS), for example, led to ballots where tenants in half of Welsh Local Authorities opted

to transfer the Local Authority housing stock to Community Housing Mutuals or other social
enterprises in the form of Registered Social Landlords. In those Authorities, faster progress has
been made on average in achieving WHQS status, generally three to five years earlier, resulting

Page 125



18

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

in real benefits for tenants. Many of those Community Housing Mutuals and Registered Social
Landlords have themselves been a spur to local employment and wider range of community
benefits, the creation of further social enterprises engaged in environmental management,
community energy purchasing or town centre regeneration. They have also been able to
leverage significant sums of alternative finance for the renovation of their own stock.

There is a similar situation with regard to waste. Local Authorities are responsible for collecting
and processing all domestic waste but targets are set nationally. Under our Towards Zero Waste
strategy, the Welsh Government has invested £676 million since 2001 in Local Authorities

to help them deliver against recycling targets, helping to save on landfill costs and generate
new jobs in Wales. Their progress has been impressive and the overall rate of recycling has
roughly doubled in the space of seven years. From a poor position relative to the rest of the
UK, recycling in Wales is now ahead of the other home nations by a wide and growing margin.
Wales is also fourth in Europe for municipal recycling. There are already 10,000 jobs in Wales
directly related to recycling. This has been achieved by a combination of investment, targets,
the risk of fines and behaviour change.™

The Partnership Council for Wales and the Welsh Government’s Local Government Scheme

will play an important role in taking forward this agenda for public services in Wales. However,
we propose that our focus within the Partnership Council and the Local Government Scheme
should switch to the assessment of the key national expectations and strategies for delivering
these as a single public service, and the management of developing collaborative practice
between Local Authorities, in partnership with the wider public service in Wales. In the provision
of corporate services such as back-office functions, procurement, ICT, human resources, and
payroll, there will be a general expectation of collaboration. The Partnership Council will have

a key role in fostering innovation and driving forward progress on the public services reform
agenda.

2.7 Local Authority Areas

The Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery recommended reducing the
number of Local Authorities in Wales through a series of mergers. The arguments for this
recommendation and supporting evidence were set out extensively in the Commission’s Report.
The Welsh Government accepted these arguments in a White Paper published in July 2014,
Devolution, Democracy and Delivery: Reforming Local Government. The White Paper set out the
Welsh Government's current preferred option, to merge Local Authorities on the basis of the
Commission’s Option 1, which would result in 12 new Authorities."

170 responses were received to the White Paper consultation. The consultation responses and
a summary report have been published on the Welsh Government’s website.'* While there
are different views about the mergers, not least from some Local Authorities and the Welsh
Local Government Association, there is also widespread conviction that reform is necessary.
This reinforces the evidence given to the Commission. The Welsh Government has taken these

12 http://wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2014/recycling/?lang=en

13 Option 1 as set out by the Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery, would involve merging the following
Local Authorities: Gwynedd/Anglesey, Conwy/Denbighshire, Flintshire/Wrexham, Ceredigion/Pembrokeshire, Neath Port
Talbot/Bridgend, Rhondda Cynon Taf/Merthyr Tydfil, Blaenau Gwent/Torfaen/Caerphilly, Monmouthshire/Newport, Cardiff/
Vale of Glamorgan. The following Local Authorities to continue: Powys, Carmarthenshire, Swansea.

14 http://wales.gov.uk/consuItations/localgovernment/whi:t)e—paper—reforming—local—govemmen‘r/?lang:en
age


http://wales.gov.uk/about/cabinet/cabinetstatements/2014/recycling/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?lang=en

19

White Paper - Power to Local People

views into account and remains firmly of the view both structural and organisational reform of
Local Government is necessary.

In September, the Welsh Government issued an Invitation to Principal Local Authorities in Wales
to submit proposals for voluntary merger.’> The Welsh Government received three expressions
of interest from the following Local Authorities: Conwy and Denbighshire; Bridgend and the
Vale of Glamorgan; and Blaenau Gwent and Torfaen.

The Welsh Government'’s intention is to proceed with mergers of Local Authorities, through the
second Local Government Bill to be introduced into the National Assembly for Wales in Autumn
2016.

The second Bill will set out the following provisions to enable orderly mergers:

e the date a new Authority comes into existence, and its name and status;

e electoral arrangements for a new Authority, the date of first elections and the length of
term of office for Councillors elected in first elections and thereafter;

e establishment, composition and functions of shadow Authority and shadow Executive;
e abolition of existing Authorities and standing down of Councillors of these Authorities;
e cancellation of elections to current Authorities;

e postponement of Community Council elections in areas affected by proposed merger
and extension of terms of sitting Community Councillors;

e duty on existing Authorities to collaborate in preparing for the new Authority and to
work with its shadow Authority or Executive;

e set out arrangements for achieving the timely transfer of property, the continuation of
rights and liabilities;

e staff matters; and
e financial matters.

Local Government too has a role, and a moral responsibility, to ensure it acts positively in ways
which support orderly mergers for the benefit of their local communities.

Merged Local Authorities will remain subject to the Welsh language standards set by regulation
under the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure 2011. Merging Authorities may be at different
stages in terms of their current practice and aspirations in relation to the use of the Welsh
language in service provision, policy making, operations, promotion of the language and record
keeping. Where it is the case that merging Authorities are at different stages, it is critical that
the higher standards must apply to the new merged Authority. This is an opportunity for Local
Authorities across Wales to be significantly more ambitious and aspirational for our shared goal
of a bilingual Wales. There will be a role for the Welsh Language Commissioner to monitor
standards during mergers and there may be a role for the Public Services Staff Commission

(see 2.9 below) to identify best practice in relation to the Welsh language and workforce
matters.

15 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/reforming-local-government/?lang=en
age


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/reforming-local-government/?lang=en

20

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

2.8 Status of the New Authorities

The new Authorities will be Principal Councils within the meaning of the Local Government Act
1972. The Welsh Government believes they should be corporate bodies known as “Counties”
and that the term “County Borough” should no longer be used. To most people, the historic
reasons behind the difference in names lost its significance years ago.

We recognise that the Council chair or Mayor plays an important civic role undertaking
ceremonial duties. Previously confined to County Boroughs only, we intend to make legal
provision that any of the new Councils should be able to nominate the chair of the Council as
Mayor, so this important function may continue.

This is, of course, different from the role of Elected Mayor which is a form of executive structure
a Local Authority may choose to adopt following a referendum of local people under the Local
Government Act 2000.

2.9 Public Services Staff Commission

The workforce in Local Government will be instrumental to the transformation we seek.
Our vision for the public service workforce is to build an engaged, motivated, and high
performing workforce, attract and retain talent, develop the right skills, and ensure equality
and diversity, underpinned by our social partnership approach, embodied in the Workforce
Partnership Council.'®

We intend to legislate to create a statutory Public Services Staff Commission in the second
Local Government Bill. In order to achieve this, the Welsh Government recently consulted on
establishing a non-statutory Public Services Staff Commission in April 2015. Its role will be to
ensure fairness and consistency, and to be an independent and impartial source of information
and advice. The Commission will be set up using powers under section 60 of the Government
of Wales Act 2006.

The recent White Paper consultation set out our proposals for such a Public Services Staff
Commission. It would have a remit to identify and propose practical solutions to issues arising
from reform which could be considered and implemented. The range of skills and experience
which the Commission will require includes human resources, leadership and organisational
change, finance and accountancy, employee relations, knowledge of Local Government

and its major responsibilities, other public services, organisational development, and Trade
Union organisation. A Secretariat to support the Staff Commission would be established with
complementary skills and experience. The Staff Commission would be required to consult
widely, such as with employers, trade unions, employees and the Workforce Partnership
Council, and forge links with other bodies such as the Independent Remuneration Panel.

It would seek out and disseminate best practice. It would not supplant existing bargaining and
negotiating mechanisms or undermine the successful partnership of the Workforce Partnership
Council.

16 Workforce Partnership Council: Partnership and Mana]q_;ng Chafgeé Welsh Government, 2012
age



21

White Paper - Power to Local People

The workforce matters to be considered by the Staff Commission could include:

e recruitment and retention of staff within and across Local Authorities before and during
mergers;

e transfer of staff from current to new Local Authorities;

e harmonisation of terms and conditions of service, for example, approaches to travel and
subsistence payments, flexible working hours and voluntary severance and redundancy
packages;

® job evaluation/grading;

e senior post recruitment and remuneration, in conjunction with the specific responsibilities
currently allocated to the Independent Remuneration Panel;

e pensions and impact of transferring staff to different public service pension schemes;
e impact on staff recently transferred to private sector contractors; and

e issues affecting the wider public service workforce, such as zero-hours contracts and
leadership development.

In 3.16 below, we raise the issue of achieving more consistency in appointments to senior roles
in Local Government, with the possibility of forming a Public Appointments Board or similar.
We would need to consider how such a Board would work alongside the Staff Commission.

2.10 Legal Competence of Local Government

Local Government operates in a challenging environment, where it needs the flexibility to work
in partnership with a range of public, private and third sector bodies with increasingly diverse
forms of service delivery, commercial activity and financial arrangements. Local Government
must be freed up to innovate.

Traditionally, Local Government has only been able to undertake activity expressly permitted
through specific powers or duties. The Local Government Act 2000 introduced the ‘power of
well-being’. This marked a radical shift, giving competence to Local Government to act in any
way which improved the well-being of people in each area, so long as it was not otherwise
prohibited from doing so by other legislation.

In practice, the power of well-being has sometimes proved to be problematic to exercise.

For this reason, Local Government in Wales has argued for a general power of competence.
We believe this is appropriate for Local Authorities and some Community Councils. The general
power of competence would allow Local Authorities and competent Community Councils

(see 4.9 below) to act in their communities’ financial interest to generate efficiencies and secure
value for money outcomes. They would be able to raise money by charging for discretionary
services and to trade. This is therefore a wide power, limited only by the need to ensure Local
Authorities and Community Councils do not do anything which they are specifically prevented
from doing by legislation. It would allow Local Authorities and competent Community Councils
to engage in activities potentially judged to be outside the well-being power, such as providing
certain indemnities and guarantees.

Page 129



22

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

In line with this, we intend to review the provisions of the Deregulation and Contracting

Out Act 1994 (as amended), as they apply to Local Authorities in Wales, to allow Local
Authorities generally to make decisions on how they deliver services, other than in prescribed
circumstances. It may be, for example, that the provision of back-office functions, procurement,
ICT, human resources, and payroll, where there will be a general expectation of collaboration,
might best be provided by a single national provider which could be a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Local Government in Wales. Other services might be more economically provided through
in-sourcing across a range of Local Authorities rather than out-sourcing. Our rules need to be
flexible enough to allow this.

2.11 Other Powers

We intend giving a general power to Local Authorities to ensure consistent and effective
provision of Community Councils and other democratic models of neighbourhood participation,
within their geographic areas (see 4.8 below).

Local Authorities in Wales have also argued for the devolution of other powers to Local
Government. In their evidence to the Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery
and in their document, In Defence of Localism, the Welsh Local Government Association
argued, for example, for public health to become a responsibility of Local Government.

The Welsh Government is in favour of giving more powers to Local Government but Local
Authorities must first demonstrate effective exercise of their existing powers.'” Reformed
Authorities, with greater capacity and capability, will have an opportunity to assert greater
responsibility and show tangible improvements. When this has been adequately demonstrated,
the Welsh Government will be prepared to consider the appropriateness of further devolution of
pOWers.

2.12 Local Authority Constitutions

Although rules are necessary to ensure good governance, too many can hinder decision-making
and stifle innovation. They can also make the working of Local Government opaque and
difficult to understand. The Welsh Government is therefore seeking views on whether some of
the procedures and processes of Local Government can be simplified, while at the same time
improving transparency.

The Local Government Act 2000, when taken together with the Local Government Act 1972
and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, requires Local Authorities to adopt a
constitution which sets out their standing orders and rules relating to procedures, conduct,
remuneration and role specifications relating to the governance, administration, finances,
commercial and collaborative activities. Their purpose is to enable Councillors, officers, the
public and stakeholders to understand how the Council makes decisions and who is responsible
for those decisions.

The result is Local Authority constitutions in Wales which range from around 250 pages to over
450. While Local Authority constitutions may need to be lengthy to fulfil statutory requirements,

17 See, for example, the statement by the First Minister in the National Assembly for Wales Record of Proceedings,
28 January 2014.

Page 130



23

White Paper - Power to Local People

it is doubtful whether documents of this length help local people understand their Authority’s
decision-making, or help communicate the values of the Authority to the people they serve.
We believe there is a case for requiring Local Authorities to have a constitution which is not
simply a rule book but which sets out first and foremost the Authority’s values, the principles
under which it will operate and, in particular, its relationship with the public it serves.

The Co-operative Council Constitution of the London Borough of Lambeth is just such an
example.™

In so far as the present Council constitutions reflect procedural rules required by legislation,

we are seeking views on whether specific bureaucratic burdens imposed by Local Government
legislation should be repealed or amended, with a view to simplifying Local Authority
procedures, and whether there is merit in developing a more streamlined model Local Authority
constitution. For example, whilst most Local Authorities now distribute papers in electronic
format, the Local Government Act 1972 requires papers to be distributed in hard copy.

This remains the practice in most Community Councils. These kinds of provisions need to be
updated to reflect the world we live in.

2.13 Review of the Body of Local Government Legislation

Legislation relating to the operation of Local Government has accumulated over the years and
much of it has been extensively amended. It seems plausible Local Government organisational
design and operating procedures, which were largely set down between the 1970s and 2000
and with their roots further back in the Victorian era, may not be best suited for the next
generation.

We are therefore seeking views on whether a fundamental review of the body of Local
Government legislation is justified. This would be a longer term ambition and could not be
accomplished prior to introducing the legislation proposed in this White Paper. It is a task which
might be undertaken, for example, by the Law Commission. However, it could allow a future
Assembly to create a new body of legislation for Local Government in Wales which was fully fit
for the 21st Century.

This could open the door to simplify significantly the way Local Government operates in the
longer term.

2.14 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

e Status of reformed Authorities

e General power of competence

e Deregulation and Contracting Out Act 1994
e Local Authority constitutions

e |egislative burdens and review of the body of Local Government legislation

18 http://lambeth.gov.uk/elections-and-council/about-lambeth/constitution-guide

Page 131


http://lambeth.gov.uk/elections-and-council/about-lambeth/constitution-guide

24

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

3. Renewing Democracy

For Local Government to operate effectively, there needs to be clarity about roles
and responsibilities and Elected Members should reflect the diversity of cultures,
voices and aspirations in the communities they represent.

We propose to set out in legislation the roles and responsibilities of the Leader,
Cabinet Members, Elected Members and the Chief Executive Officer. We will
take further action to increase the diversity of Councillors. We will take action to
reduce the cost of politics and management in Local Government and to bring

more consistency to the appointment and remuneration of senior officers.

We are seeking views on whether the way we compensate Elected Members at
present is still appropriate, whether the number of terms an Elected Member may
serve should be limited, and whether there should be a right of recall. We are
seeking views on whether the restrictions which prevent some Local Authority
officers from standing for election should be relaxed. Finally, we are seeking
views on whether Local Government elections should continue to occur every
four years or whether we should consider alternatives.

3.1 Introduction

Democracy is the foundation which gives Local Government the moral and political authority
to exercise the full range of powers and responsibilities vested in it by law. We believe this
was insufficiently stressed in the report of the Commission for Public Service Governance and
Delivery. At present, we do not believe local democracy is achieving its full potential in shaping
places and improving the well-being of people in Wales.

Enquiries into some recent failures in Local Government in Wales have revealed confusion
and ambiguity about who is responsible for what. For example, the recent peer review of
Carmarthenshire County Council noted:

“There was generally an inconsistency in the understanding of the respective roles of
elected members and officers, and the perception has been that the Chief Executive and
senior officers have dominated some of the decisions of the Executive Board to the extent
that the balance of governance has become disjointed and the Council is widely perceived
to be officer-led”. "

19 http://www.wlga.gov.uk/publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/report-4th-november-2014/
Page 132


http://www.wlga.gov.uk/publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/report-4th-november-2014/

25

White Paper - Power to Local People

Similar conclusions have been reached in reviews relating to other Local Authorities,

including Pembrokeshire,?® Merthyr Tydfil?' and Birmingham.?? This confusion undermines
effective leadership. The Welsh Government considers there is a need to clarify the roles and
responsibilities of the political and administrative leaders in Local Government. The statutory
responsibilities of some of these roles are set out in various pieces of legislation, but there is no
general description of the expectations of these key roles in Local Government. In Denmark,
for example, the Code for Chief Executive Excellence sets out clearly these different roles.?

Healthy democracy also depends on the public taking a vital interest in the work of their

Council and Councillors. This is unlikely to happen while our local politicians do not reflect the
communities they serve. This undermines public trust. Put simply, the vast majority of Councillors
are white, male and over 50. Part of the reason there is a shameful lack of women and ethnic
minority Councillors in Local Government in Wales may be because we have lost sight of what
we expect from local Councillors. Councillors were always meant to be part of the community
they represented but in recent times, we have seen a gradual shift towards more full-time,
professional, paid politicians. We do not believe this is what the public wants. It increases the
cost of local democracy and makes the role of the Councillor unattractive to many people.

We also need to ask whether it is healthy that Councillors and the Chief Executive can stay in
their roles indefinitely. While such commitment is admirable, it may also serve to make Local
Authorities less adaptable to change in a dynamic world and may restrict the opportunities
for broader participation in local democracy. Finally, as the National Assembly moves to a five
year electoral cycle, we need to consider what are the best electoral arrangements for Local
Government.

3.2 The Local Government Elections

Free and fair elections are the foundation of all democracies. Elections to the UK Parliament

are for a fixed five year term, as are elections to the National Assembly for Wales following
enactment of the Wales Act 2014. However, Local Government in Wales remains on a four

year electoral cycle. In practice this means that elections to Local Government — at both Local
Authority and Community Council level — coincide from time to time with either general or
Assembly elections. Where there are multiple elections in a single year there are arguments in
favour of holding different elections on one day, countering voter-fatigue for instance. However,
these proposals are often outweighed by the potential confusion of different ballot papers with
different voting systems and the greater potential for administrative errors.

20 Joint inspectorates’ review of inter-agency arrangements and practice to safeguard and protect children in Pembrokeshire,
CSSIW, 2011 http://cssiw.org.uk/our-reports/local-authority-report/2011/joint-inspectorates-safeguard-protect-children
pembrokeshire/?lang=en
A report on the quality of local authority education services for children and young people in Pembrokeshire County Council,
Estyn, 2012 http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/news/estyn-report-published-on-education-services-in-pembrokeshire/

Special Inspection — Implementation of Safeguarding Arrangements, Pembrokeshire County Council, WAQO, 2012
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/pembrokeshire-county-council-special-inspectionimplementation-safeguarding-
arrangements

21 Peer Review of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council, WLGA, 2012 http:/Avww.wlga.gov.uk/english

22 The way forward: an independent review of the governance and organisational capabilities of Birmingham City Council,
Sir Bob Kerslake, 2014 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-
organisational-capabilities-an-independent-review

23 http://www.publicgovernance.dk/?siteid=672&menu_start=672
Page 133


http://cssiw.org.uk/our-reports/local-authority-report/2011/joint-inspectorates-safeguard-protect-children-pembrokeshire/?lang=en
http://cssiw.org.uk/our-reports/local-authority-report/2011/joint-inspectorates-safeguard-protect-children-pembrokeshire/?lang=en
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/news/estyn-report-published-on-education-services-in-pembrokeshire/ 
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/pembrokeshire-county-council-special-inspectionimplementation-safeguarding-arrangements
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/pembrokeshire-county-council-special-inspectionimplementation-safeguarding-arrangements
http://www.wlga.gov.uk/english
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-organisational-capabilities-an-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-organisational-capabilities-an-independent-review
http://www.publicgovernance.dk/?siteid=672&menu_start=672

26

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

As part of the Welsh Government’s response to the second report of the Silk Commission

on devolution, we are seeking legislative competence to determine the running of Local
Government elections as part of a reformed devolution settlement. We also believe it is
important that candidates in Local Government elections are open and transparent about their
political affiliations. We are therefore seeking views on whether candidates in Local Government
elections should be required to record their membership of a registered political party on their
nomination form, whether or not they are standing on behalf of that political party.

Looking forward, Local Government elections could be moved to fixed five year terms with their
election cycle arranged so that they took place in different years to the general or Assembly
elections. This would mean an election day where the focus was primarily on Local Government.
The Welsh Ministers are currently able to achieve this by altering the date of Local Government
elections on a case by case basis under section 86 of the Local Government Act 2000.

In some Authorities elsewhere in the UK, elections have traditionally been held on the basis

of a third of Councillors elected in each year. There are arguments that suggest such a model
assists in ensuring more regular contact between political parties and the wider public,
although other evidence suggests it may foster short-termism and lack of continuity. This was
the conclusion of Sir Bob Kerslake's independent review of governance and organisational
capability in Birmingham City Council in 2014.2* A similar conclusion was reached by Bristol City
Council in March 2013 when they resolved to change from elections by thirds to whole council
elections from 2016. They believed it would increase voter turnout, reduce costs and “a clear
mandate from the electorate once every four years could enable the council to adopt a more
strateqic, long-term approach to policy and decision-making - and focus less on yearly election
campaigning”.?>

The Local Government Act 2000 allows the Welsh Ministers to alter the way in which elections
are held so that Councillors in Local Authorities are elected in phases, for example half of
Council seats could be elected in one year and the other half the next. This would have the
advantage of regular renewal of the body of Elected Members, though it would also have
implications for political balance and the leadership of Authorities, particularly where there is
not a decisive majority for one political group. There is, however, no evidence that the frequency
of elections makes any difference to the turnout at Local Government elections in the UK, which
is usually between 30% and 40%.°°

The Welsh Government is seeking views on both the length of Local Government election cycles
and the appropriateness of phasing within a Local Authority area.

3.3 The Role and Responsibilities of the Leader

Leaders should be selected by the Council on the basis of the commitments they make.
Therefore, Elected Members and the public have a right to know what they stand for. Where a
candidate is standing for Leader, the Welsh Government believes it is right they should publish
a written manifesto and present it orally to the Council before the election of Leader takes

24 The way forward: an independent review of the governance and organisational capabilities of Birmingham City Council, Sir
Bob Kerslake, 2014 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-organisational-
capabilities-an-independent-review

25 http://www.bristol.gov.uk/page/council-and-democracy/future-elections-bristol

26 Historic data for local, national and European elections are available at: http://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/
nov/16/uk-election-turnouts-historic
Page 134


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-organisational-capabilities-an-independent-review
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/birmingham-city-councils-governance-and-organisational-capabilities-an-independent-review
 http://www.bristol.gov.uk/page/council-and-democracy/future-elections-bristol
http://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/nov/16/uk-election-turnouts-historic
http://www.theguardian.com/news/datablog/2012/nov/16/uk-election-turnouts-historic

27

White Paper - Power to Local People

place, and subsequently present an annual statement of progress in delivering that manifesto.
The annual statement should set out the successes and challenges faced by their Council and
the steps the Leader has personally taken to eradicate poor performance or to take action
where it has happened. This will implement a specific recommendation of the Commission on
Public Service Governance and Delivery.?’

Leaders depend on Cabinet Members and the Local Authority officers to deliver, delegating
functions to them and holding them to account. The Leader, not the Chief Executive, is the
political spokesperson for the Council, while the Chief Executive is responsible for management
of the Authority and its staff. To ensure the public is clear on these issues, we propose the
Leader (or Elected Mayor) of a Local Authority should be given a statutory duty to set objectives
for each Member of the Cabinet and hold them to account each year for their progress, and for
these documents to be published.

We also believe the Leader should be required to set objectives for the Chief Executive, on
behalf of the Authority, assess their performance annually and make a report each year to
Council. The Leader should hold the Chief Executive to account for delivering the Executive’s
priorities which will include their political priorities and their proposed well-being objectives
under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill. In this context, it is important to
note that the Leader’s manifesto and annual statement are separate and different from the
Chief Executive’s corporate plan and annual report (see 3.13 and 7.2 below). The former sets
the Executive’s priorities, whilst the latter sets out how the Chief Executive will ensure the
Local Authority delivers those priorities operationally. There must be no confusion between
these roles.

Leaders must also be powerful advocates for equality and diversity, translating this into

positive action. Consideration should be given to the role of the Leader in promoting diversity,
for example, when selecting Elected Members for the Cabinet. We accept that there will be
circumstances where achieving diversity is not possible but in most cases, we can and should
do better than we are at present. We therefore propose that Leaders should have due regard
to equality and diversity objectives when selecting their Cabinet. It is essential Cabinets are able
to draw on as wide a range of views as possible in order to give them insight into the issues

of concern to residents of the area, especially those who may be disproportionally affected by
Council decisions. We therefore believe, where Leaders are unable to select a balanced Cabinet,
they should give serious consideration to co-opting additional, non-voting Cabinet Members,
to act as advisors.

3.4 The Role and Responsibilities of Cabinet Members

The Cabinet and scrutiny system introduced by the Local Government Act 2000 was intended
to improve the “inefficient and opaque”?® committee system which it replaced. The Act made
a clear distinction between the role of the Executive, comprising the Leader and Cabinet
Members, and the role of non-executive Elected Members. All Local Authorities in Wales
operate the Leader and Cabinet Executive model. The Leader and Cabinet system concentrates
many Local Authority functions in the hands of a ‘corporate’ centre. This has significantly
streamlined decision-making, however, there have been other consequences.

27 Recommendation 40, paragraph 4.77 in the Commission’s final report.

28 Local Voices: Modernising Local Government in Wales, Welsh Office, 1998
Page 13



28

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

An independent evaluation of Cabinet Executive arrangements in Local Government,
commissioned by the Welsh Government, assessed the impact the Cabinet system has had
on decision-making, democracy and accountability, and the extent to which the overview and
scrutiny arrangements of the Authority enable effective scrutiny of the Executive. As might be
expected, the views of ruling administrations about the Cabinet system are positive, whilst the
views of opposition Members are less so. While some Cabinets are transparent in the way they
work and make decisions, there is evidence that a culture of making decisions behind closed
doors continues in some areas and that scrutiny is often insufficiently robust to challenge this
lack of transparency effectively.

This is a serious criticism of the current system, but there is no evidence a return to the
committee system would lead to more effective decision-making or greater transparency.

It indicates, however, a pressing need to put in place mechanisms to improve transparency

and strengthen scrutiny (see Chapter 8), and to clearly differentiate between the roles of the
Executive and senior management team. Numerous reports have found the Cabinet system has
also led to a perceived diminution of the role of ordinary Elected Members.*

There is good evidence that in some Councils there is too much blurring of roles between

the Executive and senior management (see 3.1 above). Members of the Executive should not
become part of the bureaucracy. They are there to set the political direction of the Authority,
seeking to lead on behalf of the public, not to become part of the machinery of operation.
Their role is to challenge the senior management team and to ensure both national standards
and local priorities are delivered. At present, too often it appears that we have a full time
professional political cadre in Local Government, on top of a full time professional bureaucracy,
with too little separation of functions. This takes Local Government away from its roots and it is
not at all clear this is what the public wants.

The system has also led to higher leadership costs. Under the Local Government Act 2000,

the number of executive roles — the Leader and Cabinet Members — in a Local Authority

in Wales may not exceed ten. At present, all Local Authorities in Wales have at least seven
executive members and the majority have either nine or ten.?' Paradoxically, the trend in

many Local Authorities in recent years has been to reduce the size of the senior management
team to comprise a Chief Executive and a small number of corporate directors with a wide

span of responsibilities, although this is certainly not true in all Local Authorities in Wales.

This is in response to financial pressures, a conscious effort to break down service silos, and to
streamline decision-making. It is not clear why the rationale which has reduced the size of senior
management teams does not also apply to Cabinets.

A senior salary is payable to certain Elected Members whose work is considered to be full time.
Each Cabinet Member is considered full time and is entitled to a senior salary, as are some
other roles, such as chairs of scrutiny and the Council chairman. Some Cabinet roles come

29 An Evaluation of Welsh Local Government Executive and Scrutiny Arrangements, Downe et al, Welsh Government, 2015
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/independent-evaluation-welsh-local-governments-executive-scrutiny-
arrangements/?lang=en

30 See, for example, The Operation of New Political Management Structures in Local Government, Local Government and Public
Services Committee, National Assembly for Wales, 2004, and Frontline councillors and decision making
http://www.jrf.org.uk/publications/frontline-councillors-and-decision-making

31 Blaenau Gwent, Caerphilly, Carmarthenshire, Conwy, Gwynedd, Newport, Swansea, Wrexham (10); Cardiff, Neath Port
Talbot, Pembrokeshire, Powys, Rhondda Cynon Taf (9); Ceredigion, Denbighshire, Flintshire, Monmouthshire, Torfaen (8);

Anglesey, Bridgend, Merthyr Tydfil, Vale of Glamorgan (7).
age 136


http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/independent-evaluation-welsh-local-governments-executive-scrutiny-arrangements/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/independent-evaluation-welsh-local-governments-executive-scrutiny-arrangements/?lang=en
http://www.jrf.org.uk/publications/frontline-councillors-and-decision-making

29

White Paper - Power to Local People

with important legal responsibilities, for example, the Leader and the Cabinet Members for
social services and education. These may with good reason be considered full time roles, given
their responsibilities and the fact that education and social services account for two thirds of
Local Government spend. However, it is not clear whether all Cabinet posts should be seen

to be more or less full-time and whether the same levels of remuneration are appropriate for
all members of the Cabinet. The same consideration applies to the other roles carrying senior
responsibility allowances.

It may be that there should be full-time senior Cabinet and part-time deputy Cabinet positions.
This would have the advantage of opening up opportunities for new or younger Councillors

to experience executive decision-making without having to commit to a more or less full-time
position. An alternative is to use legislation to limit the number of Cabinet Members per
Authority, depending on size.

This raises the broader issue of the induction and training of Leaders and Cabinet Members,
and succession planning. Members of the Executive have very significant legal and financial
responsibilities and yet, at present, training for these roles is patchy or inconsistent at best.

For example, we are only aware of one area in Wales — Torfaen — where Elected Members have
been able to access degree level training.?? It is important we invest in our political leadership.
We therefore propose there should be a development programme, led by our public service
Academi, for new and existing Council Leaders, for Councillors with the potential to become
Cabinet Members, and for leaders of the opposition who have a realistic chance of making the
transition from opposition to government and become Council Leaders in the future.

We return to the issue of the remuneration of Elected Members and the appointment and
remuneration of senior officers below.

3.5 The Role and Responsibilities of Elected Members

The Welsh Government also intends to clarify the expectations which an Elected Member of a
Local Authority is expected to fulfil, including strengthening their roles as community advocates
through Area Boards (see 4.5). We would set out their need to communicate with and represent
their electorate, including the holding of surgeries and participation in community governance,
to attend and participate in the committees to which they are appointed, and to hold the
Executive to account through overview and scrutiny. All Elected Members must as a minimum
be accessible to the public through electronic mail, and by preference also through the use of
social media.

We should also require Elected Members to attend appropriate training. The responsibilities

on Elected Members will increase in larger, merged Authorities and the Welsh Government
believes it is prudent to invest in their skills. Under our proposals, Elected Members will need

to commit to continuing personal development in order to develop high levels of expertise

in finance, service and corporate matters to enable effective scrutiny of the Executive, and
expertise in communication to enable effective community engagement. Some will wish to
develop particular expertise in scrutiny, others in community engagement. At three recent
(November 2014) Welsh Government workshops with Councillors and Local Authority officials
on the impact of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011, the further training needs of
Councillors were identified as: equalities, code of conduct, regulatory roles, legal responsibilities,

32 http://www.uwtsd.ac. uk/wivvbl/news—and—developmentls:éunique—pubIic—service—training—partnership—Wins—nationaI—awa rd.html
age


http://www.uwtsd.ac.uk/wiwbl/news-and-developments/unique-public-service-training-partnership-wins-national-award.html

30

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

performance and risk management, freedom of information, data protection, use of social
media, ICT, remote working, and the Councillor’s role as a school governor.

Local Authorities are required to support Elected Members to publish annual reports and
Members are encouraged to produce them, although fewer than half currently do so. Some
Elected Members have argued that annual reports are not necessary as they are judged by the
public in the ballot box. It is difficult to see how most members of the public could judge the
achievements of individual Elected Members without being able to access regular information
about their Council and community activities. Therefore, the Welsh Government considers all
Elected Members should be legally required to produce an annual report. Whilst this should
include information about their attendance, membership of committees and Area Boards
(see 4.5), remuneration, training, case work and correspondence, they should focus more
explicitly on qualitative information about what they have achieved during the year and how
people and communities are better off as a result.

Elected Members are paid from the public purse and are responsible for significant decisions
about public spending, so their actions must be open to scrutiny by any member of the
community whose interests they represent, as well as other persons affected by their

actions. The Local Government ethical standards framework guides Elected Members on the
appropriate standards of conduct expected of them in undertaking their roles, whilst providing
reassurance to the public that action will be taken if things go wrong. In our 2012 ‘Promoting
Local Democracy’ White Paper,® we said the standards framework remained fundamentally
sound, but we proposed a number of changes to improve its overall operation, including the
adoption of local complaint resolution policies for low-level complaints between Members and
the capping of indemnities. The Welsh Government welcomes the positive response from all
Authorities in adopting such policies.

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 makes provision for the establishment
of joint Standards Committees, the electronic publication of registers of interests and powers
to enable the transfer of misconduct reports and Member dispensation requests between
Standards Committees to overcome potential conflicts of interest. These provisions will be
brought into effect later this year. Also, this year, we will bring forward legislation to modify
the model code of conduct for Local Authority Members to facilitate the operation of local
resolution policies and to clarify the position of Members with constituency interests. We will
also exempt Local Authorities from publishing misconduct reports during ongoing proceedings.

We believe these reforms will improve and strengthen the ethical standards framework.
However, we are seeking views on whether there should be any further reforms, in particular in
respect of the most serious cases. Standards Committees and Monitoring Officers already play a
key role in supporting and advising Members on conduct matters. There should be a new power
for Standards Committees to consider cases where there are serious concerns that an Elected
Member is failing to fulfil their duties satisfactorily. We would provide Standards Committees
with appropriate sanctions which could be imposed. There would need to be safeguards against
vexatious complaints.

It is important Local Authorities take full responsibility for the poor performance of Elected
Members and manage this internally in a transparent manner. It is also important that as part
of this process we consider an appropriate appeals process for Elected Members, whether that

33 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/promlocdemocracy/?lang=en
age 13


 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/promlocdemocracy/?lang=en
apxce
Highlight

apxce_1
Highlight

apxce_2
Highlight

apxce_3
Highlight


31

White Paper - Power to Local People

be internally within the Authority, to the Adjudication Panel for Wales or another body. We are
seeking views on the most appropriate procedure.

3.6 Diversity among Elected Members

The Welsh Government wants to reach a position where electors and communities can identify
closely with their elected representatives. This is best achieved when the membership of

elected bodies reflects, as much as possible, its electorate. This suggests an equal gender split,

a balanced age profile and a fairer representation of black, Asian and minority ethnic people,

as well as those with disabilities. This is not simply a desire to achieve greater equality, important
though that is. It is far more likely that a Council will make decisions which meet the needs of
the whole community if all interests are represented in the Council chamber. Unfortunately,

this is not the case at present.

A recent report by the Expert Group on Diversity in Local Government, On Balance,* showed
the make-up of Councils in Wales to be a poor reflection of the communities they serve. Around
25% of the population is aged over 60, but among Elected Members this rises to almost 60%.
Women make up just over half the population overall, but among Elected Members, women
are outnumbered by men by almost three to one. Only one Council has a female Leader
(Ceredigion) and only three Chief Executives out of 22 are women (Ceredigion, Torfaen and
Wrexham).

Out of 193 Cabinet Members in Wales, only 39 — one in five — are women. Only one Council,
Carmarthenshire, has more than three women Cabinet Members. At the time of writing, two
Councils, Anglesey and Bridgend, have no women in their Cabinets. It is quite possible there is
a similar position in respect of other protected characteristics, such as disabled people and those
who are lesbian, gay, bisexual or transgender, although we lack the necessary data. This poor
representation, both generally among Elected Members and specifically in leadership positions,
undermines trust in Local Government and in the eyes of many, also undermines its relevance
and legitimacy.

There is greater diversity in the third sector and among social enterprises. For example, women
account for a greater proportion of the workforce in the third sector (67 %) than either the
public sector (64%) or the private sector (40%). Among senior managers in the third sector,
women represent 50% of the workforce, compared with 46% in the public sector and just
24% in the private sector.>> However, very few people who work in the third sector consider
becoming a Councillor in Local Government. This is a vital loss to local democracy. It deprives
Local Government of committed community activists and prevents Local Government becoming
a more diverse, more effective agent of change. In 3.12, we set out our proposals to make it
easier for most Local Authority employees to stand for election.

If we want to encourage a more diverse range of people to seek elected office in Local
Government, we must ensure our Councils are places where an open culture thrives and people
are made to feel welcome and respected, whatever their background. Behaviour is key to this.

34 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en

35 Women'’s’ leadership, employment and participation in the third sector and social enterprises, Third Sector Research Centre,
Briefing Paper 40, 2010 http:/Awww.birmingham.ac.uk/generic/tsrc/research/workforce-and-workplace/women-in-the-third-
sector.aspx.

For further information on women in managerial roles in the third sector, see also Close to Parity, Rowena Lewis, Clore

Duffield Foundation, 2010 http:/Avww.cloresocialleadership.org.uk/Rowena-Lewis.aspx
Page 139


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en
http://www.birmingham.ac.uk/generic/tsrc/research/workforce-and-workplace/women-in-the-third-sector.aspx.  
http://www.birmingham.ac.uk/generic/tsrc/research/workforce-and-workplace/women-in-the-third-sector.aspx.  
http://www.cloresocialleadership.org.uk/Rowena-Lewis.aspx
apxce_4
Highlight


32

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

For example, On Balance quoted research3 which indicates that women, on achieving public
office, are more likely to resign from positions held and then to drop out of activity altogether.
We have seen evidence of this in Welsh Local Authorities, where the number of female Cabinet
Members has fallen since the 2012 elections. Whilst other factors, such as the timing of
meetings, may play a part, this also suggests that the atmosphere in our Councils may be overly
“macho”.

Changing behaviours in a Local Authority requires leadership. Therefore, we propose placing

a duty on Leaders, Group Leaders and Chief Executives to ensure diversity is respected. For
Leaders, this duty will extend to ensuring that there are coherent anti-bullying and harassment
policies in place for Councillors, not only in respect to Local Authority staff but also in respect
of other Councillors. Group Leaders should also be required to ensure they are taking this
responsibility seriously within their groups, and Chief Executives should be required to ensure
there are anti-bullying and harassment policies in place for staff. In each case, the Monitoring
Officer and Standards Committee will have enforcement roles. In addition, we need to support
our Elected Members appropriately and they should be due similar entitlements to a balanced
life as others working in the public and private sectors. For example, the Local Authority,

the public and the media should support them when they take maternity or paternity leave,
or when they need time out for caring responsibilities.

In 3.3 above, we set out our proposal that Leaders should be required to have due regard to
equality and diversity objectives when selecting their Cabinet, and that they should give serious
consideration to co-opting non-voting Cabinet members where they cannot achieve a balanced
Cabinet. We also believe the same principle should apply to committees of the Council,
including Scrutiny Committees, and that, where appropriate, Councils should make a decisive
effort to co-opt additional members to committees in order to achieve a diversity which more
closely reflects the local population.

The Welsh Government has published an action plan in response to the report of the Expert
Group.?” We have established a project, involving all relevant stakeholders, to pursue this plan
and are determined, as a minimum, to work with political parties and other partners to achieve
the goal of female candidates being selected in at least 40% of seats considered winnable by
the nominating party. We will continue to pursue this agenda diligently.

However, it is difficult for National Government to have an immediate and direct influence on
diversity in Local Government, or to legislate for diversity. Rather, Local Authorities, political
parties, and bodies such as the Welsh Local Government Association and the Society of Local
Authority Chief Executives in Wales, must work harder to encourage more diverse candidates at
local elections and to ensure Elected Members are accorded appropriate flexibility and support
in their roles. Prior to the last Local Government elections in 2012, the Welsh Government in
partnership with the Welsh Local Government Association ran an information campaign to
encourage people to become a Councillor, with a view to increasing the diversity of Councillors
across Wales. While it is our intention to run a similar campaign in advance of the next Local
Authority elections, we also believe that Local Government, in its own interests, must actively

36 Last in, first out — Gendered patterns of local councillor dropout, Allen, P. A., 2013. British Politics 8(2) pp. 207-224.

37 On Balance: Diversifying Democracy in Local Government in Wales, Report of the Expert Group on Diversity in Local
Government, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en

Page 140


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/expert-group-report/?lang=en
apxce_5
Highlight


33

White Paper - Power to Local People

promote democracy and diversity in democracy. The report of the Councillors” Commission,®
established by the UK Government in 2007, considered how to broaden participation in Local
Government. It called for Authorities to be charged with responsibility for “raising interest and
providing information on becoming a councillor” and “actively promoting the role of elected
councillors and their activities”, as well as facilitating other forms of civic participation.

Although provision in relation to this was included in the Local Democracy, Economic
Development and Construction Act 2009, it was not commenced and has since been repealed.
The Welsh Government believes it is time to implement the Councillors” Commission proposal.
In 3.13 below, we set out our intention to put a duty on the Chief Executive of a Local Authority
to promote engagement and diversity in democracy.

In many areas, Local Authorities already run Youth Councils whose work provides a crucial
young people’s perspective on the work of the Council. The Welsh Government has made clear
its commitment to children and young people by adopting the United Nations Convention on
the Rights of the Child (UNCRC) into law, through the Rights of Children and Young Persons
(Wales) Measure 2011. We encourage all Local Authorities to adopt the UNCRC but we also
believe they should give young people a voice and introduce them to local democracy through
Youth Councils. As part of the Chief Executive’s duty to promote engagement and diversity in
democracy, we intend to require the Chief Executive to establish a Youth Council.

3.7 Remuneration of Elected Members

There is legitimate public and media interest in the remuneration of Councillors. People rightly
expect that all those who choose to serve in Local Government uphold the public trust by
embracing the values and ethics implicit in such public service. At the same time, people who
give their time to serve their community through Local Government are entitled not to be out
of pocket for doing so. If we did not compensate people for their contribution, local democracy
would become the exclusive domain of the rich. Democracy must to open to everybody.

The salary of Cabinet Members is set by the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales.
The salary payable is determined by the size of the Council. Leaders earn between £43,000
and £53,000, Deputy Leaders £30,000 to £37,000, and other Cabinet Members £26,000 to
£32,000. This is based on them being full-time roles.

Councillors currently receive a payment of just over £13,000 per annum. This is based on

the role taking three days a week. The payment was introduced to replace an attendance
allowance which was widely seen as subject to abuse. We do not wish to disadvantage anybody
financially from being a Councillor as this would contradict our clear intention to increase
diversity among Councillors. However, it has now become an expectation. The payment affects
people differently. For a retired person, it is a significant extra income compared with the basic
single person State Pension in 2014-15 of £5,881 per annum. This may help explain the over-
representation of Councillors over 60. On the other hand, it may only partially compensate
somebody whose ordinary job is higher paid, or disadvantage a single parent with a part time
job by moving them into a higher tax bracket.

38 Representing the future: The report of the Councillors Commission, Councillors Commission, 2007 http://webarchive.
nationalarchives.gov.uk/200809101 34927/communitiespgov.uk/councillorscommission/

age 141


http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/communities.gov.uk/councillorscommission/
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/communities.gov.uk/councillorscommission/

34

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

The total cost of Elected Members, including the costs of Cabinets and senior responsibility
functions in scrutiny, is £21.7 million annually across Wales. We need to clarify whether we
intend to compensate Councillors for their time or pay them for the work they do. There is an
important difference.

The Welsh Government believes the system of remuneration for Councillors — Executive and
non-executive — needs to be clearly spelt out in such a way as the public can see how the levels
payable are arrived at. Councillors’ remuneration in Wales should be more in line with the
amounts paid in similarly sized Authorities in England, Scotland and Northern Ireland.

3.8 Release of Elected Members from Employment

Local Authorities play an essential role in improving the well-being and prosperity of our
communities. Organisations in the public, private and third sectors benefit greatly from their
work. Employers who release their employees to undertake civic responsibilities as a Councillor
are making a significant statement about their corporate social responsibility.

Many Local Authorities now conduct a great deal of their Council and committee business
outside of normal working hours. This makes it easier for those in employment to serve as a
Councillor and is potentially an important factor in promoting more diversity among Elected
Members. Nevertheless, Council business may still need to be conducted during the working
day and not all employees work from nine to five. In order to promote diversity further and
make it easier for people in employment to serve as a Councillor, the Welsh Government is
seeking views on whether the devolved public service organisations should be required to
release employees to undertake duties as an Elected Member, in the same way as many of these
organisations already release staff to undertake voluntary work. Consideration would need to
be given to the number of days per year that would be permissible. Given that Elected Members
receive a payment for their Council duties, any such leave should be unpaid. We welcome views
on this proposal.

If we were to proceed with these proposals, we would also encourage non-devolved public
service organisations, as well as the third sector and private businesses, to release employees for
Councillor duties on the same basis, as part of their corporate social responsibility.

3.9 Number of Elected Members

Our proposals to merge existing Local Authorities into a smaller number of new Authorities

(see 2.7 above) will have implications for the number of Elected Members in Wales. On average,
each Councillor in Wales serves a population of 2,401, significantly lower than England (3,814)
and almost half that in Scotland (4,259).

The Welsh Government believes we should see an overall reduction in the number of Elected
Members in Local Authorities to approximate more closely the position in the other parts of the
UK. We are seeking views on the number of Elected Members in order to inform work which
will be undertaken by the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales.

3.10 Term Limits for Elected Members

There has been significant research into whether there should be a restriction on the number of
consecutive terms an Elected Member may serve on a Council. This is known as a ‘term limit'.
At present, there is no limit. The Welsh Government’s survey of candidates in the 2012 Local

Page 142



35

White Paper - Power to Local People

Government elections® showed that 83% of elected candidates had served as a Councillor in
the past, suggesting that re-election is very common. The survey also showed that half of all
Councillors in Wales have served at least ten years, and media reports have identified some have
served over 50 years.

Whilst the research is not conclusive, term limits have shown greater competition in elections
and seen a more diverse pool of candidates.*® The Councillors Commission*' recommended term
limits should be introduced for Elected Members as well as for Leaders and Elected Mayors.
There is some evidence that turnover among newly Elected Members in the UK is greater
among younger, more diverse Councillors which has the effect of restricting diversity and
strengthening the cohort of predominantly older, male Elected Members.*

There are arguments against term limits, not least that the ballot box gives the electorate the
opportunity to impose their own term limits. However, the Welsh Government believes overall
there is merit in considering limiting the number of terms Elected Members, Leaders and Elected
Mayors may serve. We are seeking views on a proposal the limit should be five terms for Elected
Members, and a tighter limit of two terms for Leaders and Elected Mayors and for continuous
service in a Council’s Cabinet.

3.11 Recall of Elected Members

The Recall of MPs Bill,** currently making its way through the Houses of Parliament, causes

a Member of Parliament to lose their seat and a by election to be held if ten percent of the
electorate in the constituency sign a petition to call for this. Recall can only be triggered if
certain conditions are met. Broadly speaking, these are that the MP has been convicted of an
offence and imprisoned or they have been suspended from the House of Commons for at least
ten days.

The Welsh Government would welcome views as to whether similar provisions should be put
in place for Elected Members of Local Authorities. The conditions to trigger recall of an Elected
Member in Local Government could include, for example, where sanctions have been imposed
on a Councillor by a Standards Committee or the Independent Adjudication Panel following a
breach of the code of conduct or failure to perform effectively as an Elected Member (see 3.5
above).

3.12 Electoral Qualification

There are certain legal restrictions on who may stand for elected office. For example, to stand
for election to a Local Authority, a person must be over 18 and meet certain citizenship and
local residency or working criteria. A person may also be disqualified from standing for a
number of reasons, such as that they are employed by the same Local Authority or subject

39 Local Government Candidates Survey 2012, Welsh Government, 2013 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/local-
government-candidates-survey/?lang=en

40 For example, The Political and Institutional Effects of Term Limits, Sarbaugh-Thompson et al, 2004, Legislative Term Limits and
State Aid to Local Governments, Yakovle et al, 2012

41 Representing the future — The report of the Councillors Commission, Councillors Commission, 2007
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/communities.gov.uk/councillorscommission/

42 http://www.csbppl.com/2012/02/07/too-many-councillors-leaving-leaves-councils-too-homogeneous/ and The 2008 Survey
of Local Election Candidates, IdeA 2008, https://www1.plymouth.ac.uk/research/ceres/TEC/research/Surveys/Pages/2008-
Local-Candidate-Survey.aspx

43 http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2014-15/recallofmps/documents.html
Page 14


http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/local-government-candidates-survey/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/local-government-candidates-survey/?lang=en
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20080910134927/communities.gov.uk/councillorscommission/
 http://www.csbppl.com/2012/02/07/too-many-councillors-leaving-leaves-councils-too-homogeneous/ 
https://www1.plymouth.ac.uk/research/ceres/TEC/research/Surveys/Pages/2008-Local-Candidate-Survey.aspx
https://www1.plymouth.ac.uk/research/ceres/TEC/research/Surveys/Pages/2008-Local-Candidate-Survey.aspx
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2014-15/recallofmps/documents.html

36

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

of a bankruptcy restrictions order. This section seeks views on whether it should be easier for
employees of a Local Authority to stand for election to the same Authority and whether there
should be restrictions preventing Elected Members of Local Authorities also serving as either
Assembly Members or Community Councillors.

The Assembly’s Constitutional and Legal Affairs Committee, in its consideration of
disqualifications from election to the Assembly, has raised the issue of Local Authority Elected
Members serving as members of the National Assembly.** Given the demands on time and the
potential for conflicts of interest, the Welsh Government would welcome views on whether
Elected Members in Local Government should be disqualified from serving as an Assembly
Member at the same time. Such a provision would be a matter for the Assembly and would not
form part of the second Bill.

Almost half of all Elected Members of Local Authorities are also Members of one or more
Community Council and many have served their political apprenticeship in Community
Councils. It is important that this development path for elected representatives is preserved and
encouraged. Nevertheless, we have seen very little evidence this has led to improved relations
between Community Councils and Local Authorities, or to more extensive delegation of
functions to Community Councils, or that Community Councils are an effective means for Local
Authorities to engage with communities.

In addition, given the Welsh Government’s intention to give powers to Local Authorities to
review Community Councils (see 4.8 below), this would give rise to the potential for extensive
conflicts of interest where Councillors serve on both Local Authorities and Community Councils.
Therefore, we are seeking views on whether Elected Members of Local Authorities should be
disqualified from serving on Community Councils.

Officers and staff in Local Authorities generally have a thorough understanding of their
communities and a deep commitment to improving their well-being. Many would themselves
make effective Elected Members, but there are restrictions on some senior employees of a
Local Authority standing for elections.*® In particular, although all Local Authority employees
(including school staff) can stand for election unless they hold a politically restricted post
(generally higher paid officers), none of them can stand for election to their own employing
Authority. This makes sense from the point of view of them not being able to make decisions
affecting their own employment conditions and the Welsh Government recognises the need
for checks and balances to ensure the integrity and impartiality of advice offered by officers
to Elected Members. However, given that Local Authorities are major employers in all areas of
Wales, these restrictions may be preventing a wide range of suitable candidates from diverse
backgrounds from coming forward to stand for election in their local area.

Whilst any person who is disqualified currently from standing may resign their post to stand

for election, this is a significant disincentive due to the risk it carries for the individual. We are
therefore seeking views on whether this disqualification should be reviewed to make it easier for
the majority of Council officers to put themselves forward. In line with the recommendations of

44 Disqualification of Membership of the National Assembly for Wales, Constitutional and Legislative Affairs Committee,
National Assembly for Wales, 2014 http:/Avww.senedd.assembly.wales/mglssueHistoryHome.aspx?lld=3542

45 Various restrictions are set out in the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
See http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i—am—a/candidate—or—aientllocaI—elections—engIand—and—wales

Page 14


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=3542
http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/i-am-a/candidate-or-agent/local-elections-england-and-wales

37

White Paper - Power to Local People

the Electoral Commission,*® we propose that Local Authority officers — other than those holding
politically restricted posts — should be entitled to stand for election to their own Authority. Only
if elected should they be required to resign their paid employment with the Authority. This will
widen the pool of potential candidates while ensuring there is no conflict of interest once the
candidate is elected.

3.13 The Role and Responsibilities of the Chief Executive

The term “Chief Executive” (occasionally “Managing Director”) is widely used throughout Local
Government in Wales to denote the head of a Local Authority’s administration, but the title

is not found in Local Government legislation. The principal responsibility of Chief Executives

is to ensure the good governance of their Local Authority so that the organisation is capable

of delivering the Executive’s objectives and discharging the other statutory functions of the
Authority, in a way which is lawful and fiscally appropriate.

Section 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 places a duty on Local Authorities to
designate one of their officers as the “head of their paid service” and Local Authorities must
provide the Head of Paid Service with the staff, accommodation and other resources to allow
him or her to perform their duties. The 1989 Act also places certain duties on the Head of Paid
Service, namely that they must report to the Local Authority on the following “matters”:

e the manner in which the discharge by the Authority of their different functions is
coordinated;

e the number and grades of staff required by the Authority for the discharge of their
functions;

e the organisation of the Authority’s staff; and

e the appointment and proper management of the Authority’s staff.

The statutory role of Head of Paid Service is almost always exercised by the officer more usually
referred to as the Chief Executive (or Managing Director), but there is nothing in legislation to
require the Head of Paid Service to be combined with that of the Chief Executive, nor is there
any statutory definition of any other duties of a Chief Executive in a Local Authority.

Chief Executives, where they are also the Head of Paid Service, are afforded an unusual

degree of protection in their role, along with some other chief officers. This is to protect them
from political interference. However, if the Chief Executive is failing in their responsibilities,

this imperils local democracy and there must be a clear audit trail of objective setting and
performance management to support the Council in taking decisive action. It is for this reason
we have set out our intention in 3.3 above that the Leader should be required to manage the
performance of the Chief Executive on behalf of the Council, and make annual reports to the
Council on their performance. The protection afforded to chief officers, including Heads of Paid
Service, must not prevent the Council from dismissing them without compensation where they
are not performing their duties responsibly.

46 Standing for election in the United Kingdom, Report arfl@@g@rdddmdations, Electoral Commission, 2015 http://www.
electoralcommission.org.uk/


http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/
http://www.electoralcommission.org.uk/

38

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

We believe Local Authorities must have a Chief Executive and that this person must be
designated the Head of Paid Service. This requirement should not prevent a Chief Executive
from being appointed jointly by two or more Local Authorities. In addition, as part of ensuring
local accountability for performance and improvement, we propose to put five specific duties on
the Chief Executive to:

1. make arrangements to prepare and publish a corporate plan;

2. make arrangements to prepare and publish annual self-assessments of corporate
improvement and service performance;

3. commission a peer review every two years and prepare a report for the Council on
actions to be taken following the recommendations of the peer review;

4. putin place a performance management system for all employees of the Local
Authority; and

5. promote engagement and diversity in democracy.

The purpose of these duties is to ensure the effective governance of Local Authorities and to
provide the Council with a sound basis for judging the performance of the Chief Executive.
The first three are discussed in detail in Chapters 6 and 7 below. The requirement for a
performance management system, linked to the corporate plan, is self-explanatory. The duty to
promote engagement and diversity in democracy is discussed in 3.6 above.

In addition, we believe the Chief Executive should act as the Electoral Registration Officer and
Returning Officer for Local Authority elections in the area, and that there should be no separate
payments for these functions, which we consider central to the role of the Chief Executive.
When the opportunity arises, we will legislate to give effect to this.

3.14 Term Limits for Chief Executives of Local Authorities

The Welsh Government believes there should be term limits on the appointment of Chief
Executives. There is reason to believe that, in some circumstances, Chief Executives retaining
their posts for long periods can lead to an entrenchment of power and influence within the
Authority which can serve as an obstacle to effective relations between Elected Members and
officers and threaten the independence of the Executive.” This phenomenon is not restricted to
Local Authorities.*®

In the Republic of Ireland, Chief Executives of Local Authorities are recruited through a
competitive recruitment process organised by the Public Appointments Service. They are
appointed for a period of seven years and the appointment may be extended by a maximum of
three years.

In New Zealand, the Local Authority has to appoint a Chief Executive for a term of no more than
five years. In the year before the contract expires, the Local Authority must review the Chief
Executive’s performance and their skill mix, and consider how the skill mix fits with the Local
Authority’s expected future needs. Based on that review, the Local Authority can then decide

47 See for example the findings of the Peer Review of Carmarthenshire County Council, WLGA, 2014
http://www.wlga.gov.uk/previous-peer-reviews/

48 See, for example, Long CEO Tenure Can Hurt PerformaFr)wce, Luc:)l-,Alr<6anuri & Andrews, Harvard Business Review, March 2013
age


http://www.wlga.gov.uk/previous-peer-reviews/

39

White Paper - Power to Local People

either to reappoint the incumbent for another two years, without advertising or any other
process, or to advertise the pending vacancy and start afresh.

We would therefore welcome views on a proposal to either set a limit on the length of an
appointment of a Chief Executive or set a term period which would lead to a review before
re-appointment could be considered. We consider that the Public Services Staff Commission,
once established, would be best placed to take forward this work and develop proposals.

3.15 The Cost of Senior Management in Local Government

With regard to the pay of the officers of a Local Authority, we have already taken a number

of steps to increase transparency so that the public can find out who earns what in Local
Government. Under the Localism Act 2011, Councils must publish pay policy statements
which set out the Council’s policy for remunerating chief officers, as well as the lowest paid
employees. The Localism Act 2011 provides Welsh Ministers with the power to issue guidance,
which Councils must have regard to, on the preparation of pay policy statements. Our current
Guidance recommends a full Council vote on the salary of new appointments and severance
packages of £100,000 or above.*® Under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (Wales)
Regulations 2006, any decision to determine or vary the remuneration of chief officers must be
made by full Council. Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2005, Local Authorities
are required to publish details of the salaries of Chief Executives and chief officers.

A new system for guarding against excessive salary awards for Chief Executives in Local
Authorities was introduced in April 2014. This requires Local Authorities to consult with the
Independent Remuneration Panel before deciding on any variation to the salary of their Chief
Executive which is proportionally higher or lower than other employees. We believe similar
safeguards should be introduced for all chief officers across Local Authorities in Wales. The Local
Government (Wales) Bill proposes to extend the powers introduced by the Local Government
(Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013 to cover all chief officers of Local Authorities in Wales, but only
does so temporarily and only in relation to Local Authority mergers. We intend to make this
element of control a permanent reform which will apply to all Local Authorities in the future.

The salaries of the senior management team in Local Authorities are determined by the Council.
The salary range for Chief Executives of Local Authorities in Wales in 2012-13, excluding any
extra fees they earn as Returning Officers for elections, was in the range £105,851 (Conwy) to
£194,661 (Pembrokeshire). In comparison, in 2012-13 the salaries of Chief Executives of NHS
Health Boards in Wales were in the range £135,000 to £200,000; Chief Constables, £133,068
to £154,370; and Chief Fire Officers, £116,387 to £131,187.%° The Authorities in England most
comparable in terms of their functions to Welsh Local Authorities are the Unitary Authorities.
The average (mean) salary of a Chief Executive of a Unitary Authority in England in 2013 was
£147,150, reaching £168,483 in the top quartile and £131,278 in the bottom quartile.”’

49 In other words, by a vote of all Elected Members, both Executive and non-executive. It is not a decision that may be taken by
the Executive alone or by a committee of the Council.

50 Senior management pay across the Welsh public sector, Wales Audit Office, February 2014
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/senior-management-pay-across-welsh-public-sector-memorandum-public-accounts-
committee

51 SOLACE evidence to the Communities and Local Government Select Committee Inquiry into Local Government Chief Officer
Remuneration http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-
government-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/chief-officers-pay/

Page 147


 http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/senior-management-pay-across-welsh-public-sector-memorandum-public-accounts-committee
 http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/senior-management-pay-across-welsh-public-sector-memorandum-public-accounts-committee
 http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/chief-officers-pay/
 http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/chief-officers-pay/
 http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/communities-and-local-government-committee/inquiries/parliament-2010/chief-officers-pay/

40

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (Wales) 2005, Local Authorities are required to
publish details of their senior management, as defined by the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local
Authority Accounting. The number varies considerably from place to place. According to Local
Authority statements of accounts for 2013 14, in Blaenau Gwent and Neath Port Talbot there
were just three senior managers, whilst in Caerphilly, Ceredigion and the Vale of Glamorgan
there were four. Nine Local Authorities reported having ten or more senior managers, including
15 in Denbighshire and Merthyr Tydfil, and 17 in Conwy. Senior managers (excluding Chief
Executives) earn salaries from £60,000 to almost £150,000. Across all Local Authorities in
Wales, the total cost of Chief Executives and senior management was £25.7 million in 2013-14.

There is little justification for the wide variation in both the number and salaries of these senior
posts, which is unrelated to the size of Councils. There is a good case for considering greater
consistency across Wales.

The Welsh Government considers that the cost of senior management teams in Local
Government in Wales is excessive. We intend to act to reduce the cost of politics and
management of Local Government in Wales.

3.16 Senior Appointments to the New Authorities

We also need to consider the appointments procedure for Chief Executives and chief officers to
the new Authorities. However, the issue of senior appointments in Local Government is part of
the wider consideration that needs to be given to the development of leadership in the public
service in Wales. The Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery made a number
of recommendations on leadership, culture and values. The Welsh Government committed to
addressing these in the White Paper Devolution, Democracy and Delivery: Improving public
services for people in Wales, by saying we were “exploring options for strengthening the
process for senior public sector appointments, including developing a common framework

of principles and considering the potential role of a public sector appointments commission”.
There are existing models in New Zealand, the Republic of Ireland and Northern Ireland which
could be adapted, one example of which is given below.

Page 148



41

White Paper - Power to Local People

CASE STUDY: Public Services Leadership — New Zealand

There is much to learn from New Zealand about creating and maintaining a cadre of
leaders and nurturing leadership capacity. The public service has a more defined single
identity called ‘New Zealand State Services’, which includes over 100 organisations

— the civil service, a wide range of government sponsored bodies and government
owned enterprises, Crown Agents, the Police, further and higher education institutions,
and health boards. New Zealand State Services does not cover Local Government,

but leaders do work towards agreed national objectives. The role of the State Services
Commissioner includes promoting collaboration, developing high-calibre leaders and
evaluating their performance, overseeing workforce and personnel matters, and advising
on the design and efficiency of public services.

The movement of leaders between ‘Crown Entities’ appears to be a cultural norm in
New Zealand. Some ideas, such as common values, collective objectives, standards,
and whole public service performance reporting, are becoming part of they way they
do business. Growing talent at entry level and middle management is also important to
provide strength, depth, challenge and capacity into the leadership cadre.

As a small nation, New Zealand routinely recruits talent from abroad, including from
Wales. Economic migration from New Zealand is also common. New Zealand State
Services maintain links with their leaders who choose to work abroad. Their talents and
experience are utilised whilst abroad and when they return.

There also appears to be a stronger and more integrated delivery relationship between the
public and private sectors. In New Zealand, public organisations often own organisations
run on a commercial basis, providing services such as utilities, forestry and transportation.
Whilst the primary intention is service delivery, as a by-product there is also a more fluid
interchange at senior levels between the public and private sectors. This provides a wider
and more dynamic leadership cadre at political, Board and officer levels.

Page 149



42

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

The policy objective would be to give a more structured approach to developing the skills and
careers of public service leaders in Wales, including the kind of entrepreneurial skills which
Local Authority leaders will require to work with communities to establish new co-operative
and social enterprise models of service delivery. There are a range of different options available.
It may be possible to establish a Public Sector Appointments Commission to manage all

senior appointments to Local Government. Its role would be to ensure all senior officers

had appropriate leadership skills and competencies. Potentially this pool of leaders could be
employed on a common basis so that as they moved between roles and between organisations
in Wales, the public service was not subject to unnecessary severance and recruitment costs.

Alternatively, a Public Sector Appointments Commission could test the competence of potential
candidates, based on role descriptions and grading provided by the Public Services Staff
Commission (see 2.9 above). Local Authorities would be required to make appointments from
among candidates who were approved by the Commission.

If there was no Public Sector Appointments Commission, the Public Services Staff Commission
could be tasked with developing a framework and process for evaluating and grading all
senior roles in the new Authorities, a role not dissimilar to that of the Commissioner for Public
Appointments in Northern Ireland. It would remain the responsibility of the Local Authorities
or shadow Authorities to make the new appointments but there would be consistency in the
processes followed and the role descriptions and remuneration packages of the appointees.

The approaches outlined above would have the advantage of building a cadre of leaders with
shared public service values, one of the central recommendations of the Commission on Public
Service Governance and Delivery. We welcome your views on the establishment and remit of a
Public Sector Appointments Commission.

3.17 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

e |ocal Government elections

e The roles and responsibilities of Leaders, Cabinet Members and Elected Members
e Standards Committees

e Diversity of Elected Members

e Remuneration of Elected Members

e Number of Elected Members

e Restrictions on Elected Members and Electoral qualification

e Recall of Elected Members

e The role and responsibilities of Chief Executives

e Term limits for Chief Executives

e Remuneration and appontment of senior officers

Page 150



43

White Paper - Power to Local People

4. Connecting with Communities

At the heart of our vision for Local Government in Wales is a new relationship
with local communities. We propose to achieve this by giving Elected Members a
leadership role at the head of Area Boards within their Local Authorities, in order
to ensure the new, larger Authorities are closer to their communities.

As part of this, we need to raise the ambition of Community Councils so they are

better placed to deliver important community services in the future. This means
building their capacity and capability, as well as strengthening their governance
and their engagement with other services and the third sector. We propose to
give a power to Local Authorities to review Community Councils in order to
achieve these objectives, and to complete these reviews by 2022.

4.1 Introduction

Rising pressures on public services and diminishing resources means in future Local Authorities
may have to do less directly in some areas themselves. Activist Councils must be agents of
change in communities, supporting and enabling communities to do more for themselves. Local
Authorities have always had a role in building community capacity, capability and resilience but
traditional service based departmental structures and Cabinet portfolios have sometimes served
to reinforce silos, rather than joining up services based on community needs.

There is growing consensus that the future of public services lies in the quality of the
relationship between service providers and local people®? and we agree with the Wales Council
for Voluntary Action that we should be “putting people at the centre”, treating people and
communities as equals in design and delivery.> We commissioned research into how we could
better bring the power of local people into local public services.>* This clearly showed we can
and should be involving services users, the people who support them and front-line staff at
every stage: prioritising, commissioning, designing, delivering and assessing services. This is not
about consultation. It is essential, of course, that Councils should engage and consult with the
public over big strategic decisions, like the annual budget or Council Tax levels. But consultation
is not the same as involving people routinely in how services are delivered.

For most people, most of the time, Council services happen as a matter of routine. The bins are
collected, the day care centre opens, there is internet access in the library. Most of us engage
more intensively from time to time, such as when we have to choose schools for our children,

52 See, for example, The Relational State, IPPR, 2012 http://www.ippr.org/publications/the-relational-state-how-recognising-the-
importance-of-human-relationships-could-revolutionise-the-role-of-the-state
Making Sense of the Future, INLOGOV, University of Birmingham, 2013 http:/Avww.birmingham.ac.uk/schools/government-
society/departments/local-government-studies/news/2013/07/new-book.aspx
Moving beyond the market: a new agenda for public services, NEF, 2014
http://www.neweconomics.org/blog/entry/the-market-is-failing-public-services-whats-the-alternative
The Condition of Britain, IPPR, 2014; http://www.ippr.org/publications/the-condition-of-britain-strategies-for-social-renewal

53 Putting people at the centre, WCVA, 2014 http://www.wcva.org.uk/about-us/news/2013/10/putting-people-at-the-centre-
will-transform-public-services

54 Bringing the Power of the Citizen into Local Public Services — an Evidence Review, Tony Bovaird and Elke Loeffler, Welsh

Government Social Research, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/gatisticsiasn:cli-—research/democracy—community—governance/?lang:en
age


 http://www.ippr.org/publications/the-relational-state-how-recognising-the-importance-of-human-relationships-could-revolutionise-the-role-of-the-state
 http://www.ippr.org/publications/the-relational-state-how-recognising-the-importance-of-human-relationships-could-revolutionise-the-role-of-the-state
http://www.birmingham.ac.uk/schools/government-society/departments/local-government-studies/news/2013/07/new-book.aspx
http://www.birmingham.ac.uk/schools/government-society/departments/local-government-studies/news/2013/07/new-book.aspx
http://www.neweconomics.org/blog/entry/the-market-is-failing-public-services-whats-the-alternative
http://www.ippr.org/publications/the-condition-of-britain-strategies-for-social-renewal
http://www.wcva.org.uk/about-us/news/2013/10/putting-people-at-the-centre-will-transform-public-services
http://www.wcva.org.uk/about-us/news/2013/10/putting-people-at-the-centre-will-transform-public-services
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en 

44

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

arrange home services for an elderly parent or respite care for a disabled child. At these times,
people expect to have a say because what happens affects us greatly. They may need to make
new travel arrangements, or change their work patterns, or make adaptations to our home.
As service users, or families of service users, their own contribution is an essential part of the
solution.

People also want a say before Local Authority services are changed or stopped. Sometimes

they value such services sufficiently to get involved in community action to preserve them.
Community bodies have a right to be given that opportunity and to be granted sufficient

time to develop proposals and make arrangements. Councils can play a crucial role helping
communities come together to form social enterprises or community trusts to take over facilities
and services which are important to them. We will deal with this aspect in the next Chapter.

However, people demand more than this of our Councils in the 21st Century. They want to
know their Councils are shaping the places where they live to make them great places to be.
People want to know their Council is attracting investment and jobs, connecting the places
where people live with the places where they work, joining people together through superfast
broadband, making sure there are rich and vibrant amenities — lively high streets and shopping
centres, theatres, museums, sports stadiums, conference centres, parks and green spaces,
waterfronts and great events. In Wales, we want activist Councils.

This demands civic leadership. It depends on trust between Councils and residents, and people
feeling able to influence decisions. It means the Council workforce involving people in decisions
and shaping services, and Councillors who stand up for those they represent to make sure this
happens. Of all the public services, Local Government is unique in having elected representatives
whose whole purpose is to nurture this relationship with the public. It is time to revitalise the
civic leadership role of Elected Members .

4.2 Community Leadership

The Local Government Act 2000 introduced the concept of community leadership. This was

not a new concept for Local Authorities and recognised the important role they have always
played in standing up for the people they represent. However, the Act enabled Local Authorities
to exercise this role through the preparation of Community Strategies, in conjunction with

local public service partners. These strategies are intended to enhance local well-being by
improving policy and service coordination, tackling cross-cutting issues and targeting resources
at community policies.>® They are also intended to shift the focus from the service provider to
the service user.

The Welsh Government’s evaluation of Community Strategies®® found they were not engaging
Elected Members and local communities, and were being submerged under a welter of

other partnerships, plans and strategies. In response, the Welsh Government rationalised the
statutory plans, leading to the introduction of Single Integrated Plans in 2013. The Well-being
of Future Generations (Wales) Bill goes further by proposing to make Public Services Boards

55 The Limits of Co-ordination: Community Strategies as Multi-purpose Vehicles in Wales, Sullivan & Williams,
Local Government Studies, Vol.35, No. 2, pp.161-180, April 2009

56 People, Plans and Partnerships: A National Evaluation of Community Strategies in Wales, Welsh Assembly Government,

2006,1.9 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/research/communitystrategies/?lang=en
age


 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/research/communitystrategies/?lang=en

45

White Paper - Power to Local People

statutory partnerships, whose members® share joint responsibility for preparing local well-being
assessments and Local Well-being Plans, which will replace Community Strategies and Single
Integrated Plans.

While this will strengthen the integration of public services, with a strategic focus on “place’,
we believe there needs to be a strengthening of the role of Elected Members within larger Local
Authorities to ensure voices in their area are heard and given a clear path to influence decision-
making in their Local Authority and Public Services Board. We believe the representative role of
Elected Members can be strengthened by putting in place new area governance arrangements
which give a prominent role to Elected Members.

4.3 Community Governance in Wales

Community governance is the way in which people in local areas or neighbourhoods organise
themselves to identify their priorities, manage their assets and influence the decisions of public
services. There are a variety of community governance approaches in Wales, some statutory,
many voluntary (but governed by charitable law), and some informal. These include but are not
limited to:

e Area Committee arrangements in Local Authorities;
e statutory bodies, such as Community Councils and Community Health Councils;

e partnerships between Local Authorities, other public services, voluntary groups and
others, such as neighbourhood partnerships and area boards;

e third sector bodies such as Community Voluntary Councils, community development
trusts, advocacy groups, social enterprises;

e partnerships which are a result of public funded programmes such as Communities First
and regeneration partnerships;

e partnerships developed by other public services, such as environmental partnerships and
the Partnerships and Communities Together (PACT) community engagement approach of
the Police.

This crowded landscape is rich, but also makes it difficult for the views of the community to

be expressed and heard in a coherent way. Individual groups, including those representing the
vulnerable and marginalised, can struggle to get access to decision makers, or enter into a
dialogue with public services. Building relationships of trust with public services is problematic
and ‘bottom up’ initiatives are difficult to develop and implement. Without a conduit for
communities and Local Authorities to engage on a continuing basis, engagement usually
happens too close to decisions being made or even after decisions have been made. This results
in lost opportunities for communities to manage their future.

The Welsh Government is proposing Elected Members should have a strengthened role in
leading their communities and providing this conduit. We believe this is essential to ensure open
and transparent decision-making and so people can see the difference their involvement in local
democracy makes. This will demand new skills of Elected Members. As the former Archbishop
of Canterbury put it in his Bevan Foundation lecture of 2002:

57 The proposed statutory members of Public Services Boards will be Local Authorities, Local Health Boards, Fire and Rescue
Authorities and Natural Resources Wales.
Page 153



46

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

“one of the things we are short of at the moment is brokering skills in communities ...
By brokering, | mean the presence of those who are able to facilitate conversation about
common goals, conversation beyond competition, and to ask about corporate needs and
opportunities.”

We will expect to see a system of community governance form the core of an Authority’s values
and determine the design of its corporate systems and operating model, that is, its management
and workforce structures, its performance systems and its engagement processes.

4.4 Community Governance Case Studies

The Commission for Public Service Governance and Delivery recommended that Local
Authorities should develop, adopt and implement a neighbourhood management®® or similar
approach to engaging with local people to identify, prioritise and address local social, economic
and environmental issues. The Welsh Government agrees. We commissioned research into

the extensive literature on community governance to help develop our options.>® This research
highlights the key rationales for adopting an area or neighbourhood approach as:

e civic rationale: allowing a more meaningful dialogue between people and public service
providers;

e social rationale: involving people in commissioning and delivering public services;

e political rationale: enabling people to understand how decisions are made locally and
how they can influence those decisions;

e economic rationale: commissioning services in a joined up way to address the specific
needs of different neighbourhoods.

These support precisely the reform we wish to see in the relationship between Local
Government and local communities.

Neighbourhood or area management can take a number of different forms with different
names but they have a great deal in common, as the following case studies illustrate.

58 For further information on neighbourhood management see, for example, Neighbourhood Management Pathfinders:
Final Evaluation Report http:// www.sqw.co.uk/files/5713/8712/8264/30.pdf

59 Community Democratic Governance: Evidence Synthesis and Advice, Tony Bovaird, INLOGOV, University of Birmingham,
Welsh Government Social Research, 2014. http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-

governance/?lang=en
Page 154


http://www.sqw.co.uk/files/5713/8712/8264/80.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en 
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en 

47

White Paper - Power to Local People

CASE STUDY: Neighbourhood Partnership — Wales

The neighbourhood partnerships approach in Cardiff was developed by the Cardiff
Partnership Board as a response to significant inequities in outcomes for people living

in different areas of the city.60 There are six multi-agency neighbourhood partnerships,
each led by a lead Elected Member and supported by a neighbourhood officer who is
an employee of Cardiff Council. Each partnership has an action plan which addresses
the neighbourhood’s priorities within the framework of Cardiff’s Single Integrated Plan,
for example, by providing community grants or shaping local programmes to tackle the
problem of young people not in employment, education or training. The Cardiff Council
ward Members for each neighbourhood meet together regularly to review progress and
provide strategic oversight.

The Wales Audit Office conducted a two-part review of Cardiff's neighbourhood approach,
in 2012 and 2013.61 Their overall conclusion was that by working collaboratively with
partners, the Council has engaged with local people to identify local priorities and support
activities and schemes which deliver improvements but the sustainability of arrangements
and performance management need further development.

Similar approaches are emerging elsewhere. For example, Newport is implementing an
approach based on three areas, while in Monmouthshire there are four areas. Powys is
piloting a similar approach in Newtown, anticipating roll out focusing on seven market
towns and their surrounding areas across the county.

60 http://Awww.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/content.asp?nav=263&parent_directory_id=2
61 ibid

CASE STUDY: Area Boards — Wiltshire

The Wiltshire Area Boards are a way of working to bring local decision-making back into
the heart of the community. They are a formal part of Wiltshire Council that try to find
solutions for local issues such as road repairs, traffic problems and speeding in villages,
litter, facilities for young people and affordable housing.

People who work with the 18 Area Boards include Councillors, community area managers,
democratic service officers, together with one member of the Council’s Cabinet. It also
includes the local NHS, fire and emergency services, Police, town and parish councils,
community area partnerships and many other groups.

By working in partnership with local communities, the Council believes it can achieve
much more than it ever could on its own. They hope this will lead to better services, better
communities and a better quality of life for everyone in Wiltshire.

Page 155


http://www.cardiffpartnership.co.uk/content.asp?nav=263&parent_directory_id=2

48

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

CASE STUDY: Community Boards — New York

There are 59 Community Boards in New York City. The Boards are made up of members
appointed from the neighbourhoods in the community, with an ex officio role for the New
York City Councillors for the area.

The Boards have a strong advocacy role. The Community Board’s district manager will deal
directly with the service delivery organisations in the area to resolve problems and improve
services. The organisation of front-line services is aligned with the Community Board
areas. Each Board has a local community plan and each year prepares a ‘Statement of
Community District Needs’ which it presents to the New York City Mayor and City Council.
The Mayor must show how he has responded to the Community Boards’ statements of
needs in his annual budget.

All Community Board meetings are open to the public who may address the Board on any
community matters.

CASE STUDY: Counties and Municipal Districts - Ireland

In Ireland, the reforms introduced by the Local Government Act 2014 abolished Town
Councils, the lower tier of government. The reforms are designed to enhance democratic
governance, subsidiarity and accountability, removing the anomaly of residents in many
towns having double votes and two sets of Councillors (Town and County), with some
small centres having a Town Council while certain other larger centres had not.

The 31 Counties are now divided into 95 Municipal Districts. The Councillors elected to
the Municipal Districts collectively form the County Council. The County Council provides
a single county wide executive and operational structure and exercises strategic functions.
The Municipal Districts have community functions delegated to them. They are decision-
making bodies but they are not corporate structures.

Page 156



49

White Paper - Power to Local People

4.5 Member-led Community Governance

The Welsh Government considers that an inclusive and participative neighbourhood or area
approach, led by Elected Members, is a model of community governance which can and
should be adopted by all Local Authorities in Wales. This will ensure, with fewer, larger Local
Authorities, that communities play a greater role than at present.

The case studies above are a mix of statutory and voluntary arrangements. Neither is necessarily
more effective. However, the Welsh Government does not consider the Area Committees which
exist in some Welsh Local Authorities are fit for purpose. Just as we are asking the Executive

in Local Authorities to share more power with ordinary Elected Members, so Elected Members
must share power with their communities. This is because we do not believe that representative
democracy and participative democracy are mutually exclusive. Area Committees which do not
give an equal place at the table to community bodies, the third sector or other public services,
and which engage directly with and are directly accessible to the public, including children and
young people, are not sustainable.

Our research suggested a number of ways forward, from entirely voluntary arrangements to
an imposed national system.? Our preferred option is a national framework which requires
Local Authorities to put in place a community governance system meeting certain guidelines,
but passing responsibility to Local Authorities for how this is designed in their area. In particular,
this would include how the ‘operational” Area Boards, whose focus is on making an immediate
and tangible difference in communities, will work with the ‘strategic’ Public Services Boards
proposed under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill, whose focus is generally

on the longer term. We are therefore intending to introduce legislation to ensure Local
Authorities establish ‘Area Boards’ which reflect modern, inclusive, participatory principles,
with a guaranteed role for community bodies, the third sector, Community Councils and other
public services.

We recognise the potential for increasing complexity if Area Boards are imposed on top of
existing structures, but we do not believe this is a significant risk. In areas which are already
implementing neighbourhood or area approaches, this is encouragement to go further, faster.
In areas where there are currently Area Committees, these should be replaced with a more
inclusive approach. In Local Authorities where no such approach is currently in hand, this is a
clear signal that the Welsh Government considers Member-led community governance to be an
essential part of local democracy.

The real issue is the extent to which Area Boards might have responsibilities and budgets
delegated to them and whether they are able to influence services in their area by entering
into a dialogue directly with the Local Authority officers who have day to day responsibility for
delivering those services. Leaders and Executives in Local Authorities must recognise the value
of supporting Member-led community development and be bold and ambitious in empowering
Area Boards to achieve this.

In addition to managing local responsibilities and budgets, there is an opportunity for Area
Boards to take on the current and future responsibilities for area based initiatives, including
those funded by UK and Welsh Government programmes. Work that has been undertaken on

62 Community Democratic Governance: Evidence Synthesis and Advice, Tony Bovaird, INLOGOV, University of Birmingham,
Welsh Government Social Research, 2014. http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-

governance/?lang=en
Page 157


http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en

50

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Total Place and community budgeting has a direct relevance here.®®* The Welsh Government
considers there are significant further opportunities for rationalising partnership working at the
local level and bringing it under the control of Elected Members. This is an agenda which should
be taken forward vigorously by Local Authorities.

4.6 Definition of Areas

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill makes provision for the Welsh Ministers to
determine the ‘communities’ in each Local Authority area or, where they have not done so, for
Local Authorities to do so themselves. In the Bill, ‘communities’ has a general meaning of places
within the Local Authority, which together cover the whole of the Local Authority area. It does
not mean communities, as defined in the Local Government Act 1972, which are the small
geographic units that form the basis for Community Councils.

In the Bill, the reason for defining communities is to ensure the assessment of local well-being
is conducted in a way which enables the Public Services Board to identify the different needs of
different parts of the Local Authority area. We believe the communities which will be identified
under the Bill, when it is enacted, should form the basis for Local Authorities” Member-led Area
Boards in the future. However, our view is that no Local Authority can engage effectively with
large numbers of community governance structures, such as the 111 Community Councils in
Powys. Local Authorities should take a pragmatic view, drawing on best practice elsewhere.

4.7 Community Councils

The report of the Commission for Public Service Governance and Delivery (3.120-3.130)
expressed major concerns around the number, scale, representativeness and accountability of
Community Councils, concluding the sector was in need of reform and Community Council
areas should be merged or enlarged. The Welsh Government agrees.

Community Councils: Headline Facts®

735 Community Councils cover approximately 96% of Wales’ land surface, including 70%
of its population. There are few Community Councils in Cardiff, Merthyr Tydfil, Newport,
Neath Port Talbot, Rhondda Cynon Taf and Swansea.

Community Councils spend over £40 million a year, of which £30 million is raised through a
precept on the Local Authority Council Tax. On average, Community Council precepts rose
by 88% between 2002-03 and 2012-13. The highest precept is £959,930.

At the last election, only one in five Community Councillors was elected through public
poll. 67% of seats were uncontested and there were no candidates in a further 12% of
seats.

On average, 45% of County Councillors are also Community Councillors. This ranges from
none in Merthyr Tydfil to 87% in Wrexham and 99% in Flintshire.

63 Total Place and, more recently, community budgeting are two similar approaches which aim to take a ‘whole area’ approach
to public services, leading to better services at less cost. They seek to identify and avoid overlap and duplication between
organisations, delivering a step change in both service improvement and efficiency at the local level, See, for example,
http://www.communitybudgets.org.uk/

64 Developing a Comprehensive Understanding of Community and Town Councils in Wales: Evidence review for the Welsh
Government, Woods, Aberystwyth University, 2013 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-
understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en

Page 158


http://www.communitybudgets.org.uk/
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en

51

White Paper - Power to Local People

There are 8,069 Community Councillors. 68% are men; 80% are aged over 50, 60% over
60. 99.5% are white.

72% of Community Councils serve populations of less than 2,500, but they range from 179
(Ganllwyd) to 45,145 (Barry).

There is just one Community Council in Merthyr Tydfil, 77 in Pembrokeshire, and 111 in
Powys.

One of the great strengths of Community Councils is that they are closer to local people than
any other tier of government. Yet, in practice, the quality and openness of interaction with the
public by Community Councils can vary significantly.®®

As Community Councils are not required to submit reports or be subject to performance or
improvement regimes, there has historically been a dearth of information about their activities
and added value. A report by the Wales Audit Office in 2013 on Community Council accounts
found systemic weaknesses, and in 2014 they reported there had been little improvement.%¢
The Welsh Government commissioned research into their role, functions and potential in
2002,%” a survey of Community Councils in 2010% and further research in 2012.%° The reports
identified a range of good practice and potential for further development but they also
acknowledged some key issues:

e the limited extent to which Local Authorities have delegated functions to
Community Councils;

* arange of capacity issues associated with smaller Community Councils;
e the quality of their relationship with Local Authorities;

e the legitimacy of their democratic mandate;

e the financial management structures of smaller Community Councils;

e the demographic profile of Community Councillors; and

e their connection with local communities.

In 2014, the Welsh Government commissioned a survey of the public’s perceptions of

Community Councils.” The report highlights that there is generally a high level of awareness
of Community Councils, they are valued by communities and effective engagement increases
satisfaction. However, there is a lack of awareness of what they do and some confusion with

65 ibid section 23

66 Improving Financial Management and Governance: issues from the Audit of Community Council Accounts 2011-12, WAOQ,
2013 http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/improving-financial-management-and-governance-issues-audit-community-
council-accounts; Financial Management and Governance in Local Councils 2012-13, WAQ, 2014. http://www.wao.gov.uk/
publication/financial-management-and-governance-local-councils-2012-13

67 Research Study into the Role, Functions and Future Potential of Community Councils in Wales, University of Wales
Aberystwyth for Welsh Government, 2003 http://Awww.aber.ac.uk/communitygovernance/39204_ENGLISH.pdf

68 Community and Town Councils Survey 2010: Findings report, Welsh Government, 2011
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/research/commtcsurv1011/?lang=en

69 Developing a Comprehensive Understanding of Community and Town Councils in Wales: Evidence review for the Welsh
Government, Aberystwyth University for Welsh Government, 2013 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-
comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en

70 Community and Town Councils in Wales, IFF Research for Welsh Government, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-
research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en

Page 159


http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/improving-financial-management-and-governance-issues-audit-community-council-accounts
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/improving-financial-management-and-governance-issues-audit-community-council-accounts
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/financial-management-and-governance-local-councils-2012-13
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/financial-management-and-governance-local-councils-2012-13
http://�  Research Study into the Role, Functions and Future Potential of Community Councils in Wales
http://www.aber.ac.uk/communitygovernance/39204_ENGLISH.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/research/commtcsurv1011/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/research/commtcsurv1011/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/developing-comprehensive-understanding-community-town-councils-wales/?lang=en

52

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Local Authorities’ functions. There is considerable confusion over the amount of precept raised
by Community Councils.

4.8 Local Authority Review of Community Councils

The Welsh Government recognises the good work that Community Councils can do (see 5.2
below, for example). However, we also believe there is a clear case for reform. Community
Councils must be more ambitious, partnership orientated, open and transparent if they are

to play an active role in meeting the needs of communities and providing vital public services
during a period of continuing financial austerity. They can no longer continue to do the

same things in the same way, raising the same precept and be merely ‘the icing on the cake’.
In particular, we wish to see Community Councils being more actively involved in participating
in services which meet the needs of vulnerable groups in communities, such as children and
families, young people, and the frail elderly.

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill will require Community Councils with a
turnover of £200,000 or more to show how they are contributing to achieving the well-being
objectives in their area, as set by the Public Services Board. This is an important reform, because
it establishes the work of Community Councils as part of the wider public service and requires
them, locally, to contribute to shared public service objectives. This is a proper and effective use
of public money.

However, only a small number of Community Councils, fewer than ten percent, will be affected
by the Bill’s provisions. We believe all Community Councils are part of the public service and
should be contributing to the well-being objectives in their Local Authority area, working with
the Elected Member-led Area Boards proposed above. This is why we concur with the findings
of the Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery that there should be fewer, larger
Community Councils.

Many Community Councils have also argued the Principal Local Authorities should delegate
more responsibilities to them. We agree, but in order for this to happen they must have
appropriate capacity and capability. Implementing structural reform, as proposed by the
Commission, either through merging or enlarging Community Council areas, will help
achieve this.

The Welsh Government is responsible for leading reform of Local Authorities in Wales. On the
principle of subsidiarity, we believe reform of the Community Council sector should be led by
the Local Authorities, as happened previously under the Local Government Acts of 1929 and
1958. They are best placed to do this through their community leadership responsibilities,

and as part of establishing coherent Member-led community governance in their areas. Local
Authorities currently have powers to conduct community reviews, and the Local Democracy and
Boundary Commission for Wales has a role in reviewing all Local Government areas in Wales
and the electoral arrangements for Community Council areas.

We propose to give more extensive powers to Local Authorities to review the structure, role,
and governance of Community Councils within their areas, with a view to achieving fewer,
larger Community Councils, and for this to be completed by 2022. We welcome views on how
this could be achieved effectively.

Page 160



53

White Paper - Power to Local People

4.9 Community Council Governance and Standards

In addition to the structural reform of Community Councils, detailed above, there is a strong
case for bringing more consistency to the sector, with higher standards of governance

and financial management, professional capacity and capability, and greater democratic
accountability. This would enable Local Authorities to work effectively with the sector,

and provide communities with more confidence in their Community Councils. The Welsh
Government is proposing a number of ‘competency’ tests, with Community Councils who meet
these tests being deemed ‘competent’. These tests might include:

e ademocracy test: at least two-thirds of the Councillors on a Community Council have
been declared elected at either an ordinary election or a by-election;

e a capability test: the Community Council must employ a clerk with relevant professional
qualifications. Relevant qualifications might include Certificate in Local Council
Administration; Certificate of Higher Education in Local Policy; Certificate of Higher
Education in Local Council Administration; the first level of the foundation degree in
Community Engagement and Governance awarded by the University of Gloucestershire;
or qualifying professional status such as a lawyer or accountant;

® a capacity test: the Council has a minimum annual budget of £200,000; and

e a governance test: the Council has implemented a sound system of financial
management and internal control in line with statutory requirements,”’ and meets
certain other criteria such as having a website on which it publishes agendas, minutes
and accounts and being contactable by email.”?

We propose that competent Community Councils should acquire a number of privileges over
other Community Councils:

e we will extend the general power of competence to competent Community Councils,
while prescribing that Community Council funding can not be used for political
purposes. A competent Community Council would not be subject to the section 137
limits of the Local Government Act 1972;

e they will be deemed to be community bodies, with certain rights or entitlements, as set
out in the next Chapter; and

e they will not necessarily be subject to capping of the precept. We propose other
Community Councils should be subject to a cap on the annual increase in the precept
which could be the same as the percentage increase in the Principal Local Authority’s
Council Tax in the same financial year.

More generally, given their greater capacity and capability and on the principle of subsidiarity,
we would expect to see more extensive delegation of functions from Principal Local Authorities
to competent Community Councils.

Community Councils which can demonstrate they meet these competency tests will need to
pass a resolution to that effect and notify a committee of the Local Authority in their area.
The Local Authority would be required to nominate one of its committees for this purpose.

71 The Accounts and Audit (Wales) Regulations 2005

72 Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 2013
Page 161



54

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

The committee nominated by the Local Authority should have powers to require a Community
Council at any time to demonstrate its continuing competence and if it is not satisfied, revoke
the Community Council’'s competency qualification.

At present, fewer than ten percent of Community Councils pass the proposed capacity test
(annual budget of £200,000). We wish to see this number rise significantly. We will expect the
review of Community Councils by Local Authorities to significantly reduce the overall number of
Community Councils and increase the number of potential competent Community Councils.

We will also consider what other governance and transparency arrangements should apply

to Community Councils, as they do to Elected Members of Local Authorities, in order to
improve their accountability. This might mean, for example, a requirement on the Chair of the
Community Council to publish an annual report, which could also incorporate the reporting
requirement which is proposed in the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill, to set
objectives for, or otherwise manage the performance of, the clerk to the Community Council,
and for the public to have a right to attend, speak at and record meetings of their Community
Council, including film and video recording. We will also clarify the legislative framework
governing community polls.

4.10 Community Councillors serving on more than one Community Council

In 3.12 above we seek views on whether a Community Councillor should continue to be able
to serve as an Elected Member of a Principal Local Authority at the same time. At present, some
Community Councillors also serve on more than one Community Council. We are seeking views
on whether a person should be able to serve on more than one Community Council at the
same time.

4.11 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

e Member-led Area Boards

e The reform of Community Councils

Page 162



55

White Paper - Power to Local People

5. Power to Local Communities

In order to realise our ambition of Local Authorities which actively share power
and responsibility with the communities they serve, we set out in this Chapter
the role we see for mutualism, co-operation and shared ownership in the
transformation of public services. We set out the way in which communities can
engage with Local Authorities in joint endeavour and how people can protect
land and property of community value for the future.

We intend to achieve this by giving community bodies a number of rights which
they can exercise in relation to services and assets.

5.1 Introduction

Effective community involvement requires us to establish a framework which allows for greater
sharing of power and responsibility between Local Authorities and the communities they
serve. This will enable communities to go beyond having their voice heard to actively taking
responsibility for the changes and improvements they wish to see in their community.

Our vision for Local Authorities in Wales is that they become activist Councils, taking action to
support and improve the well-being and resilience of their communities.

We believe that control over public services in a place should be democratically led, and

we will retain the public sector as the primary deliverer of our priorities in Wales. Improving
performance and cost reduction can be assisted by contestability through comparison, challenge
and collaboration.

The Welsh Co-operative and Mutuals Commission argued in February 2014 that a historic
opportunity has opened up for an alternative approach to economic development, public policy
and service provision, based on mutualism, co-operation and shared ownership, creating the
opportunity for better government and a fairer society.

The Commission concluded that new ways of delivering public services must be found, with co-
operatives and mutuals playing a vital role in this process, encouraging innovation, developing
new sources of income and meeting people’s needs. The Commission believes strongly that
public service providers should seek advice on co-operative and mutual business models from
specialist business advisors, and engage early and in a meaningful way with its workforce

when they are considering changes. However, it found that there are at present few sources of
specialist expertise.

We will work with Local Authorities and the third sector to create meaningful contestability,

so that Local Authorities procure services from the best value provider, subject to exacting social
principles. We will help Councils work with other Councils, Community Councils, co-operatives

and mutuals, and their local community to develop new models of service delivery. We welcome
insourcing where this provides better value and better services for our communities.

Page 163



56

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

5.2 New Models for Future Delivery

There is a long tradition of ethical entrepreneurship in Wales. The Welshman Robert Owen

was one of the founding fathers of the co-operative movement in the nineteenth century.

His legacy in Wales today includes hundreds of small community trusts, co-operative firms,
mutuals and social enterprises. But there are also some big players — the housing associations
who build, manage and maintain much of our social housing; Glas Cymru, owner of DWwr Cymru
Welsh Water; agricultural and dairy co-operatives; firms at the cutting edge of innovation

such as Dulas and Aber Instruments; as well as credit unions and building societies such as the
Principality. The Welsh Co-operative and Mutuals Commission recently identified a range of
new opportunities for ethical enterprise in major sectors such as energy, social care, leisure and
transport.”

Some Local Authorities have shown growing enterprise in stimulating opportunities for social
and community enterprise, although their actions are often motivated by financial necessity
rather than innovation and opportunity. Therefore, we believe communities must be empowered
to initiate action themselves. We will give community bodies a range of rights which will enable
them to become involved in local services and take responsibility for community assets.

Local Authorities will need to provide the leadership and expertise to make things happen,

and Elected Members will have a crucial role as agents of change in the community.

In July 2013, for example, Torfaen County Borough Council transferred three major sports and
leisure facilities — Pontypool Ski Slope, Cwmbran Stadium and Fairwater Leisure Centre —to a
community trust. Torfaen Leisure Trust is run by a board of trustees made up of local volunteers
with a huge range of business and public sector experience, as well as Elected Members.

The Trust is now able to access the finance to make major improvements. Just across the Afon
Liwyd river from Cwmbran, Croesyceiliog and Llanyrafon Community Council have created a
community trust jointly with the Woodland Road Sports Association to run the Woodland Road
centre. The centre has over 35,000 visits every year and the community trust will enable them
to bid for funding to improve the facilities. During 2014, Neath Port Talbot County Borough
Council transferred a number of library facilities to different community groups, including to
community trusts and Community Councils. In Powys, a dance company which has been run
by the Local Authority for the past 35 years is at present being handed over to a charitable
incorporated organisation with a board of trustees.

The Welsh Government believes there is significant untapped potential in the power of
community enterprise. The Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act 2014 will require Local
Authorities to promote the development of co-operatives and mutuals in the field of social care.
In the coming months, we intend to work with and through the Wales Co-operative Centre

to develop best practice guidance for Local Authorities and facilitate the engagement of social
enterprises, co-operatives and community groups in future service provision. We also provide
support for the Wales Council for Voluntary Action, who are leading the way on innovative
funding models, such as the Wales Well-being Bond. We now need to empower communities to
innovate.

Managing this complex environment will require a different approach to local governance and
leadership of the highest calibre. This is not a license or an encouragement for Local Authorities

73 Report of the Welsh Co-operative and Mutuals Commission, Welsh Government, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/

businessandeconomy/business—waIes/welsh—coop—muttljgIs—commission/?langzen
age


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/businessandeconomy/business-wales/welsh-coop-mutuals-commission/?lang=en

57

White Paper - Power to Local People

to wash their hands of some services or not to care about some aspects of well-being in their
area. Quite the opposite. In addition, in transferring assets or services to community bodies or
social enterprises, it is essential Local Authorities ensure the rights of children and young people
and Welsh language speakers are protected.

5.3 Community Participation

The Welsh Government considers that a community’s ability effectively to influence how local
services are delivered is dependent on their being able to engage in discussions with a Local
Authority about the services that matter to them.

Where a community body (see 5.6 below) believes it could help improve a service, it will be

able to make a request to the Authority setting out how it considers it could help improve that
service. The Local Authority would be required to respond promptly and engage actively with
the community body to take the work forward, unless there were valid reasons for not doing so.
There would need to be safeguards to prevent abuse and vexatious requests.

We envisage community bodies using such a power to open a dialogue with their Local
Authority as to how a service could better meet the needs of the community or specific users.
This might mean, for instance, agreeing improvements in the way services are designed,

how they are delivered, such as where, when and by whom, or enhancing the service with
additional community effort where appropriate, such as volunteers working alongside

Council staff or joining up statutory and voluntary services. This will provide a formal route for
communities to work with Local Authorities, combining the experience and insight of service
users and communities alongside professional expertise.”

A community body could, subject to their having the necessary capacity and capability, propose
that they take on the delivery of the service themselves. If the Local Authority agreed, in most
circumstances this would then trigger an appropriate procurement process.

This proposal will require Local Authorities to develop new skills to facilitate joint working
around the needs of services users. They will need to focus not only on the resources available
to them within the Council but also on harnessing the capabilities of communities and the third
sector. This will need a significant cultural change within Local Government and leadership
which actively seeks opportunities to share power with communities.

5.4 Property Transfer to the Community

Local Authorities own a large variety of property or assets, both land and buildings, which
contribute to community well-being. In the broadest sense, these assets already belong to the
community but in certain circumstances, Local Authorities may wish to transfer the running or
ownership of property to a community body. Asset transfer is not a new concept. The Local
Government Act 1972 (General Disposal Consent (Wales) 2003) provides that Local Authorities
may dispose of land, including for less than market value, where the disposal is in the interests
of the economic, social or environmental well-being of its area.

The ownership or management of property by a community can deliver positive benefits by
increasing community confidence, allowing the community to drive its own regeneration

74 The theoretical underpinning for this approach is set out in a briefing note commissioned by the Welsh Government,
Bringing the power of the citizen into local public services, Bovaird and Loeffler, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-
research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en

Page 165


http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en

58

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

objectives, tailor services to their needs and increase local jobs and skills. The Welsh Government
has an excellent record of supporting communities to own and manage property and

land. The Community Asset Transfer Programme was a £ 13 million joint venture between

the Welsh Government and the Big Lottery Fund, while the current Community Facilities
Programme offers capital grants of up to £500,000 to community and voluntary bodies,
including social enterprises. As the proposed merger of Local Authorities proceeds, the Welsh
Government expects the new Local Authorities will have assets which they will wish to release.
These provisions are intended to facilitate more widespread transfer of assets to the community.

At present, asset transfer must be initiated by the Local Authority. We are proposing that
eligible community bodies should be able to start the process of asset transfer through a
request to their Local Authority. This right could also be used by a community body where a
Local Authority is proposing to close a facility and has not first offered the community sufficient
opportunity to take it over. This will guarantee community bodies a certain amount of time in
which to develop their plans.

A community body would need to demonstrate the viability of its proposed use of the property
and evidence that it has the capacity to appropriately manage and develop the property.
Community bodies will need to demonstrate community support for their proposals and a
commitment to accountability, open access and maximising the use of an asset by and for

the community. There will be a need to ensure community assets are retained in community
ownership, with appropriate safeguards to prevent sale into the private sector.

Following feedback received from a number of stakeholders and departmental representatives
within Welsh Government regarding the challenges of budgetary pressures, inconsistencies in
approach in terms of asset transfers, expectation of increased numbers of community asset
transfers, expectations of community groups, together with capacity and capability concerns,
a best practice toolkit is being developed, in conjunction with partners from across the wider
public and third sector. The toolkit will help community bodies to demonstrate the viability for
the proposed use of the property, and develop capacity and capability in managing the asset
following transfer.

Community asset transfers are not intended as a route to surplus asset disposal but should be
seen as an opportunity to help a neighbourhood develop a thriving and resilient community
and sustain long-term use of property, assets and services. The toolkit will be an important
instrument to help realise this ambition. It is expected that the document will be published

in March 2015. Details of surplus public sector assets will also be made available through the
SpaceCymru portal on the AssetsCymru website.

5.5 Community Ownership

It is not only land or buildings owned by the Local Authority that can contribute to the well-
being of a community. Communities may wish to have a greater say over the future use of
property in private ownership, such as a village pub or shop, or property owned by another
public body. These facilities can often have a significant influence on community cohesion,
local employment opportunities or the protection of Welsh language communities. This would
mean communities having the right to ‘first refusal’ when these properties came up for sale,
and a period during which the community body could raise the necessary funds to buy the
property at an agreed market value. It would also give communities an accelerated procedure
for bringing abandoned or neglected property back into productive use.

Page 166



59

White Paper - Power to Local People

Rural communities in Scotland have had the ‘right to buy’ land and property for the last ten
years through the Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003. The Community Empowerment (Scotland)
Bill, which is currently passing through the Scottish Parliament, includes provisions to extend this
right to urban communities. According to data in the Scottish Register of Community Interests
in Land (December 2014),7> 175 applications had been received since the 2003 Act came into
force, with another 34 registrations ongoing. Of these, the right to buy has been activated in

17 cases, that is, those which are in the process of purchasing and those that have purchased.

Whilst purchases under the right to buy are generally made at market value there have been
instances where a nominal amount is paid. The Machrihanish Airbase Community Company
bought the 1,025 acre former Machrihanish Airbase estate from the Ministry of Defence for
£1in May 2012. In addition to purchasing land, examples of purchases include a sporting
estate (Assynt Foundation), forestry (Bute Community Land Company & Crossgates Community
Woodland), Army/Air force bases (Comrie Development Trust & Machrihanish Airbase
Community Company), a lighthouse (Covesea Lighthouse Community Company) and a church
(Catrine Community Trust).

Sunart Community Company is purchasing a raw water intake and associated infrastructure
on the edge of their community from Scottish Water. The infrastructure is no longer used as
a water supply. The community proposes to adapt this to provide a micro-hydro generation
facility, which once operational will be maintained on a regular basis.

We intend that communities in Wales should have similar rights giving them an opportunity to
safeguard assets of community value. We wish to do this in a way which keeps bureaucracy to a
minimum, which helps answer questions about access to funds as well as opportunities to buy,
and which includes protections for private property owners. We will be consulting further on the
detail of these proposals following discussions with representative organisations.

As part of the work being taken forward by the National Asset Working Group to develop
community asset transfer guidance, we are exploring with Cabinet Office whether e-PIMS Lite,
the Wales public sector land and property database, could be used as the register to record
assets of community value in Wales.

5.6 Community Bodies

With rights come responsibilities. It is essential that the proposed community rights set out
above are delivered in a manner which minimises risk or negative impact on the Local Authority,
the wider public sector, other communities or local people. This is of particular relevance in
respect of community ownership where the delivery of benefits to one community could have a
detrimental effect on other communities. The public would require assurance that these rights
could not be abused by special interest groups that did not genuinely represent the community’s
interests.

Broadly speaking, we will define community bodies as voluntary sector organisations,
co-operatives, mutuals, social enterprises and Community Councils. In the case of Community
Councils, we are proposing that only competent Community Councils, in the meaning set out in
the previous Chapter, would be eligible to exercise these rights.

75 http://rcil.ros.gov.uk/RCIL/default.asp?category=rcil&service=home
Page 167


http://rcil.ros.gov.uk/RCIL/default.asp?category=rcil&service=home

60

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Any community body wishing to take on a more active role in delivering services would be
required to meet certain standards with regards their organisation and membership, including
having well-defined aims and purposes which relate to improving the economic, social or
environmental well-being of the community. There would need to be appropriate standards of
governance, financial management and transparency which would be defined in legislation.

In order to ensure the body adequately represented the entire community, membership

would have to be open, although the majority of members would need to be members of the
community the body was representing, with these members having control of the body.

Any community group seeking to initiate asset transfer or purchase property of community
value would be required to meet appropriate governance and financial standards, such as
being registered as a company limited by guarantee with appropriate financial management
arrangements. It is also envisaged that the body would be required to be of a certain size.

We expect that Elected Members of Local Authorities will have a role to play in facilitating
the use of these entitlements through their role on Area Boards (see 4.5 above). For example,
this could mean helping community bodies identify opportunities to exercise their rights,
encouraging joint working between community bodies with common aims, and signposting
community groups to support and advice.

5.7 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

e Community participation
e Property transfer and community ownership

Page 168



61

White Paper - Power to Local People

6. Corporate Governance and Improvement

We believe visionary and focused leadership is the most important factor for
ensuring Local Authorities are able to provide sustainable outcomes for local
areas. This leadership must be supported by a capable, adaptive and strategic
corporate management team. In this Chapter we discuss how Local Authorities
might be best supported to improve their leadership capacity and capability.

We propose the following changes:

strengthening the role of Local Authority Audit Committees;
repealing Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009;

introducing a system of annual self-assessment, complemented by biennial
peer-review, to support Local Authorities to improve their corporate
capability and capacity; and

giving Welsh Minsters powers to commission independent reviews of Local
Authority corporate capability and capacity, and dependent of the findings,
to take action to support change and improvement.

We also ask for views on whether there are any elements of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 that should be restated within the new
arrangements, and whether they can be built on or strengthened.

6.1 Introduction

The public and the people who work for Local Authorities expect them to be well run.

In the context of the immense pressures facing public services, their leaders must be capable
of steering their organisations through some of the most profound changes since Local
Government was established. This will require visionary leadership and sound corporate
governance which is capable of innovating and taking managed risks to achieve the
transformation necessary. Openness, transparency and challenge are at the heart of managing
this change.

In recent cases where the Welsh Government has formally intervened in Local Authorities
experiencing service failure, the diagnosis has always pointed to corporate failings and
governance weaknesses. Often this has been due to leadership and management being
unprepared for the pressures they are experiencing, sometimes compounded by an unhealthy
culture which holds power for its own purposes, rather than to deliver services for the public.
As we set out in 3.1 above, it has also resulted from a blurring of the roles of the political
Executive and the senior management team. This must change.

There is no common, consistent and shared understanding of how administrative costs relate
to service delivery across Local Government in Wales. Given the significant financial challenges
we face, compiling and using good quality information on how we spend our money is
essential, particularly in relation to workforce planning, developing better delivery and creating

effective shared services. The Welsh Goveranr;ent q%sgcommissioned an independent review of
age



62

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

administrative costs across all Local Authorities in Wales. This review will identify and compile
consistent data that will enable us to compare and contrast patterns of spending between
Authorities, identify best organisational practices, and make recommendations to help focus
their resources to front-line services. We anticipate publishing this research in the summer

of 2015.

Removing cost from unnecessary bureaucracy and redirecting it to the frontline is essential.
However, the Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery found that in releasing
efficiency savings, Authorities’ corporate capacity has often been the casualty of cuts and this
may have restricted some Authorities’ ability to improve. It is essential Local Authorities retain
resilient governance capability and strategic capacity. Local Authorities are large, complex
organisations, spending hundreds of millions of pounds of public money. A capable, adaptive
and strategic corporate apparatus is a prerequisite for managing change and improving services.

6.2 Corporate Governance

Corporate governance is about how well an organisation is running its business. As set out in
2.6 above, the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill establishes five ways of working,
which provide the context within which all public bodies should operate their approach to
corporate governance.

As a minimum, effective corporate governance must focus on:

e how the organisation identifies and manages the risks it faces;

e whether there are appropriate internal controls in place, for example, in relation to
corporate and workforce planning, performance management, grants management,
procurement, major programmes and project management, fraud and corruption,
and business continuity;

e whether the Authority is able to demonstrate compliance with equalities,
Welsh language and other statutory duties and legislative requirements; and

e whether there are finance systems and procedures in place to manage and monitor
budgets, and to promote economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources.

We set out in 3.13 above our proposal to make it a statutory obligation of the Chief Executive
to make arrangements for securing systematic improvement in their Authority through a
number of specific duties. The processes outlined above enable the Chief Executive to give
assurance to the Executive and the public that the Local Authority is well run and the public’s
taxes are well spent. In addition, in order to ensure a Local Authority operates within the

law, it is the duty of the Monitoring Officer to report to Elected Members if any decision of
the Authority is likely to be illegal. Monitoring Officers, therefore, play an important role in
reminding Members and officers that they must act within the law and with honesty, integrity
and propriety.

Local Authorities are required under the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 to establish
an Audit Committee. Effective challenge by the Audit Committee is a key part of the corporate
governance assurance process. Strengthening the role of internal audit procedures and of

the Audit Committee will be essential if Local Authorities are to be less reliant on external
assurance. External audit will continue to play a crucial role in determining whether internal
controls are adequate.

Page 170



63

White Paper - Power to Local People

On the basis of these corporate governance processes, the senior management is able to
determine what the priority matters for improvement are. If corporate governance does not
operate effectively, the risk of financial deficit and service failure rises, fraud and corruption
become more probable, and the public is more likely to come to harm.

6.3 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009

Welsh Government has been working to develop support for improvement in Local Government
for over a decade. Most recently, the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 placed a duty

on Local Authorities to make arrangements to secure continuous improvement by setting
improvement objectives and publishing their plans for achieving this improvement for each
financial year.

The 2009 Measure aimed to establish a broad definition of improvement that includes action
Authorities would undertake to improve strategic effectiveness (i.e. delivering the Authority’s
community strategy), service quality, service availability, fairness (i.e. equality and social
inclusion), sustainability, and efficiency and innovation. The Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 gives Authorities broad powers which allow them to collaborate with others in order

to achieve these objectives. The intention was to bring greater focus to delivery and align
performance more closely with community strategies. The requirement to publish information
is intended to enable the public and other stakeholders, including Welsh Government, to have
better access to improvement data. The Wales Audit Office, in conjunction with other external
review bodies, publishes an annual assessment of whether an Authority has achieved its
planned improvements and whether it has the capacity to improve further.

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 gives the Welsh Ministers powers to offer support
to failing Local Authorities and to intervene where necessary. It also places responsibility on the
Auditor General for Wales to coordinate more effectively the work of auditors and inspectorates
with Authorities.

To assist Local Authorities in achieving the improvement objectives they have identified,

the Welsh Government has concluded an Outcome Agreement with each Authority. Outcome
Agreements are linked to a grant, which will be paid in full or in part to an Authority, according
to the extent to which the Authority has achieved the outcomes in its Agreement.

Evaluation of the impact of Outcome Agreements — and by extension Part 1 of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 — found that they have generally been effective in achieving
better corporate focus on improvement and outcomes, although it was difficult to assess
whether they had led to performance improvements.’® The Learning to Improve’’ report found
improvement plans have fallen short in supporting the public to hold their Councils to account,
and are not sufficiently used by local Scrutiny Committees. Learning to Improve also raises
questions about the consistency, objectivity and usefulness of the Welsh Audit Office’s annual
improvement assessments in supporting Local Authorities to improve. The annual assessments
focus on making improvement ‘auditable’ has led to too much reliance on external assessment
rather than local accountability. This does not always provide either the Local Authorities,

Welsh Ministers or the public with the assurance they are seeking. As Learning to Improve states

76 Do Outcome Based Approaches to Service Delivery Work? Local Authority Outcome Agreements in Wales, Dr Jennifer Law,
University of South Wales, 2013, http://caspp.southwales.ac.uk/publications/

77 Learning to Improve, Welsh Government, 2013, http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/7945310/?lang=en

Page 171


http://www.google.co.uk/url?url=http://caspp.southwales.ac.uk/media/files/documents/2013-06-24/publication-local-authority-outcome.pdf&rct=j&frm=1&q=&esrc=s&sa=U&ei=XiOYVI6JNe2f7gbI-4HwDg&ved=0CBQQFjAA&sig2=_sDnNPNEu2mIGWxhEjwSVw&usg=AFQjCNFslMZtQ01JXBPUo3NgVCFaFF8Ing
http://caspp.southwales.ac.uk/publications/
http://Learning to Improve
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/7945310/?lang=en

64

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

(Part 2, p.80), “there have been a number of examples of councils — in Wales and other parts of
the UK — whose management processes have been judged to be satisfactory by inspectors and
auditors but where serious problems with performance have subsequently come to light".

The Welsh Government believes a more risk-based approach to improvement and innovation
would permit Local Authorities to respond more quickly and effectively to the challenges they
face and return accountability for improvement to the local leadership. We therefore intend
to repeal the provisions in Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009, put specific
improvement duties on the Chief Executive and strengthen Local Authorities’ internal
accountability processes. We are seeking views on whether any aspects of Part 1 of the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 should be restated in new legislation.

National Parks Authorities and Fire and Rescue Authorities currently fall within the scope of the
2009 Measure. It is not our intention for the reforms set out in this White Paper to apply to
these Authorities. We will consult separately on proposals for reform of these Authorities.

6.4 Managing Improvement

Repeal of Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 would require the
strengthening of Local Authorities’ corporate governance arrangements, including the role

of the Audit Committee. We therefore propose to amend the Local Government (\Wales)
Measure 2011 to clarify the responsibilities and remit of Audit Committees, rename them
Corporate Governance and Audit Committees, and expand their independent membership,
including requiring that they be chaired by a suitably appointed independent person. The Audit
Committee will be a powerful force to assist Chief Executives of Local Authorities to discharge
their new statutory improvement functions, set out in 3.13 and below, in order to provide the
Executive with assurance that the Authority is well run and has the systems and procedures in
place to secure continuing improvement.

We are proposing that in order to discharge their improvement functions, the Chief Executive
should be required to undertake an annual self-assessment of the Authority’s corporate
governance and service performance, and to provide a report to the Leader on matters of
concern. The report should include how the Chief Executive has taken action in response to
reports of the Audit Committee, self-assessment and peer review, and is to be published.

We are also proposing the Chief Executive should in addition make arrangements every two
years for a peer review to be undertaken, in order to provide external challenge to the self-
assessment process.

These proposals would implement our policy objective of ensuring Local Authorities are
accountable to Elected Members and the public for their performance and improvement, based
on sound corporate governance and independent challenge. The proposals also clarify the
distinction in roles between the Executive and the senior management of the Authority.

We suggest the new approach might be framed around the following principles:

e Rapid and responsive: providing timely and relevant evidence to management and
members.

e Risk based: focused on where there are problems or weaknesses.

e Trusted and respected: commanding the confidence of those who are subject to the
arrangements and those who use the data.

Page 172



65

White Paper - Power to Local People

e Open and transparent: outcomes from the work must be frank, honest, clear and in plain
language.

e Consistent and mutually reinforcing: avoiding duplication and nugatory work.

As discussed in Chapter 2, we would expect the values set out in each Local Authority’s
constitution to reflect its approach to transparent corporate governance and how it engages
with Elected Members and the public on these issues.

We believe such a system can be developed and that all partners will be committed to working
constructively to design it. Whilst the Welsh Government will set out in legislation a requirement
for Local Authorities to undertake self-assessment and peer review, we propose the specifics of
the new arrangements would be set out in regulations and/or statutory guidance rather than in
primary legislation. This will enable us to develop arrangements in partnership with stakeholders
to ensure they are fit for purpose and capable of changing over time as conditions change.

6.5 Self-assessment and Peer Review

An approach based on annual self-assessment and biennial peer review will allow Authorities
the freedom to determine the best arrangements to secure improvement in the way they
conduct their business, suited to their own circumstances. There will continue to be a role for
the Wales Audit Office to provide critical independent assessment, for the social services and
education Inspectorates to assess service performance and, where absolutely necessary, swift
intervention from Welsh Government in the event of failure which has not been addressed by
the Authority.

Peer review involves giving suitably qualified and experienced professionals full and open access
to an Authority’'s staff and systems to identify areas for improvement. Peer reviews are already
established in Local Health Boards and are embedded in the new three-year budgeting and
planning regime.”® Many Authorities in England and Wales have already conducted peer reviews
and these have proved to be honest and informative. For example, see the reviews of Blaenau
Gwent, Powys, Cardiff and Carmarthenshire.” The reviews are typically ‘short and sharp’
lasting no more than a week. The reviewers are normally Executive Members and senior officers
from other Local Authorities (including from outside Wales), retired Members and officers,

and professionals with expertise in particular areas, such as the law, ICT, HR and finance.
Reviews should also include suitably qualified individuals from the private and third sector.
Trust, credibility and transparency are critical elements which make peer review effective.

The Local Government Association has produced a number of guides, case studies and an
evaluation® as to the effectiveness of peer review, or ‘peer challenge’ as it is also known.

The findings of this evaluation show that peer review can bring about positive impact in five key
areas: greater self-awareness, improved external reputation, behaviour change, organisational
change, and service transformation.

78 http://www.hiw.org.uk/the-peer-review-programme
79 http://www.wlga.gov.uk/previous-peer-reviews/

80 Corporate peer challenge adding value (2013) and Supporting Councils to succeed: Independent evaluation of the LGA's

corporate peer challenge programme (2014), Local Govgnmeni%sgociation http://www.local.gov.uk/peer-challenge
age


http://www.hiw.org.uk/the-peer-review-programme 
http://www.wlga.gov.uk/previous-peer-reviews/
http://www.local.gov.uk/peer-challenge

66

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

A peer review of an Authority is a ‘reality check” and an essential part of encouraging
organisations to be more ambitions. A formal and regular programme of peer review would also
help to develop a wider culture of sharing and learning.

Self-assessment and peer reviews might include the following aspects:

e strategic vision for the Authority;

e corporate planning, including financial management;

® governance arrangements;

e quality and timeliness of management and service information;
e |eadership, recruitment, talent development and retention;

e equality and diversity, and Welsh language standards;

e efficiency;

e procurement and the value delivered to local communities through third party
expenditure;

e engagement with the public, workforce and partners;
e responding to demographic, financial and demand pressures;
e service innovation; and

e effective working arrangements and collaboration with other Public Services.

We believe this approach will enable rapid and responsive assessment of an Authority’s
capability as well as being highly flexible to local circumstances. Peer reviews should be open
and transparent. We would require the results of these reviews and the Local Authority’s
response to them to be published as a matter of routine and considered by the Audit
Committee, and by the full Council.

6.6 Powers to Intervene

With greater emphasis on local accountability, it is appropriate to consider whether existing
arrangements for intervention by the Welsh Ministers remain appropriate. In certain
circumstances, the Welsh Government will continue to have a role in intervening as a last resort.
The Welsh Ministers have powers to intervene where there are failings within specified service
areas, such as social services or education. Given the risk of harm to vulnerable individuals
where these services fail, the public will continue to expect the Welsh Government to take
action when required. Therefore, we do not propose to change these powers.

We also need to consider the Welsh Ministers’ powers to intervene in Local Authorities where
they are considered to be failing at a corporate level. The Local Government (Wales) Measure
2009 makes provision for the Welsh Ministers to intervene on the basis of advice received

from the Auditor General for Wales. Where this has happened over recent years, there is good
evidence from the reports of the Wales Audit Office and the Inspectorates that problems were
entrenched and often known about for some time, but local leadership had not taken action or
sought support from the Welsh Ministers at an early stage.

We believe the proposals in Chapters 6 and 7 to strengthen corporate governance and

performance management will reduce the risk of this happening in future. Nevertheless, where

there is evidence that performance is falling short of the mark for a sustained period, the public
Page 174



67

White Paper - Power to Local People

would expect the Welsh Ministers to intervene and provide support to the Authority to improve.
If the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 is repealed, as we intend, we believe there is

a need to legislate to ensure the Welsh Ministers continue to have powers to intervene in the
event of corporate or service failure.

We propose the Welsh Ministers should have the power to commission an independent review
of the corporate governance of a Local Authority. An independent review might be triggered
when the Authority’s performance is lagging significantly, or for a sustained period, behind its
peers in key areas; where there are concerns raised by the Authority itself or its Members; where
concerns are raised through whistleblowing; where information and intelligence provided by
auditors and inspectorates identifies concerns; or there is significant public concern about an
issue.

Depending on the evidence and advice put forward as a result of an independent review,

the Welsh Ministers would need to consider whether additional support or formal intervention is
necessary. We envisage a differentiated approach, for example, directing the Local Authority to
take action, mandating peer led support, or stepping in directly to provide support, for example
through the use of commissioners.

In addition, we propose to consider the current Local Government and Support and Intervention
Protocol®! in light of the changes proposed in this White Paper to ensure it remains fit for
purpose.

6.7 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

¢ The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009
e Strengthening the role of Corporate Governance and Audit Committees
e Self-assessment and peer review

e Ministerial intervention

81 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publ icationslgg—support—intervention—protocol/?Iangzen
age


 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/lg-support-intervention-protocol/?lang=en

68

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

7. Performance in Local Government

In this Chapter we discuss the management and improvement of service delivery
in Local Authorities. Key to this is effective corporate planning to inform decisions
and policy development. We consider the importance of management information
and data in service planning, performance management and assessment by
Scrutiny Committees, the public, external review bodies and other stakeholders.

We propose the following changes:

e a statutory requirement for all Local Authorities to produce and publish
a corporate plan which covers the short, medium and long term. This will
be complemented by a requirement for the Local Authority to produce an
Annual Report setting out their performance over the preceding year. The
corporate plan and Annual Report will incorporate the Authority’s well-
being objectives, as intended by the Well-being of Future Generations
(Wales) Bill;

the creation of a single online information portal where comparable
information will be published regarding the performance of all Local
Authorities, as well as other key documents such as the corporate plan,
self-assessment, peer review and inspection reports; and

a statutory requirement for all Local Authorities to have an online (and
offline) complaints process. We will require Local Authorities to publish
information on complaints, including how complaints have been considered
and action taken.

7.1 Introduction

People expect and deserve excellent public services in their Local Authority area. Expectations
are changing. The public expects services to be responsive, personalised and increasingly
delivered or accessed through digital channels. Previous chapters explain our vision for
community-centred Local Authorities which are a distinct, democratically accountable part
of the governance of Wales. Authorities are directly accountable for the performance and
improvement of the services provided by them to their local communities.

The Welsh Government sets the policy and legal frameworks within which Local Authorities
operate. It is the Welsh Government’s role to set out national expectations and to articulate
the standards which local people can expect Authorities to meet. While ensuring that
minimum standards are delivered across Wales, Local Government’s role is to ensure services
are appropriate to the communities that they live in, and should increasingly be focused

on prevention and early intervention. One size does not fit all and Local Authorities have a
responsibility to ensure they are considering what is most appropriate for all the different
communities that they serve. Providing the right services, however, depends on effective
corporate planning based on robust evidence, a performance management framework based
on timely management information and procedures for benchmarking performance against
the best. It also requires Local Authorities to work in collaboration with public sector partners.

Page 176



69

White Paper - Power to Local People

Where Local Authorities can bring forward a sound business case for service transformation
which requires additional revenue at the outset in order to generate future savings, the Welsh
Government can assist through our Invest-to-Save fund.

The Commission for Public Service Governance and Delivery identified performance
management arrangements in public services in Wales, including in Local Government,

as an area of concern. The Commission drew attention to the complexity of performance
management information, the multiplicity of indicators and fragmentary performance
management systems. Without a foundation of effective performance management, it is
difficult for an Authority to identify current performance levels, let alone develop a plan to
improve or sustain services. Poor information on performance weakens governance, prevents
managers from making the right decisions, frustrates improvement and hinders scrutiny.

We agree with the Commission’s analysis. This Chapter focuses on the arrangements which are
needed to ensure Local Authorities are delivering good and improving services.

7.2 Corporate Planning

For Authorities to perform at their best, they must understand the aims, objectives and goals
to which they are working and use them to shape their corporate planning. These goals will be
determined by local priorities as well as national policy direction set by the Welsh Government.

It is the intention of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill that the National
Assembly for Wales will, for the first time, set out long-term well-being goals for Wales.

There will be national indicators to measure progress towards the achievement of the well-being
goals. Local Authorities and other public services would align their objectives to the achievement
of the national well-being goals. This would mean a much improved focus on what Local
Authorities are seeking to achieve in order to improve the economic, social and environmental
well-being of Wales, for current and future generations.

Our proposals for a new performance framework will start with those national goals and
indicators. The local well-being plan, required by the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales)
Bill, will set out the collective public service plan for an area, developed by the Public Services
Board in conjunction with the people and communities who live there. Based on evidence,
the well-being plan will identify the outcomes which are the priorities of all public services

for achieving the long term well-being in their area. These will include the Local Authority’s
priorities for action in planning its service provision needs.

The Leader’s manifesto (3.3 above) will set out the Local Authority Executive’s political priorities
and in 3.13 we set out our proposal that Chief Executives of Local Authorities must produce

a corporate plan to put these actions into effect. The corporate plan is a tool of management
at present and we intend that to continue but the Council should no longer approve the plan.
This is meant to clarify the functions of Elected Members of the Council (Executive and non-
executive) and the administrative management of the Authority respectively. It will increase the
responsibility on the Executive and Scrutiny Committees to hold the Chief Executive to account
for delivering the Council’s priorities. The Council must approve the budget and its committees
and the Executive will be required to scrutinise the senior management team on delivery of their
objectives through the corporate plan. Many are already doing this, of course, but we believe it
is time to make it a statutory requirement.

Local Authorities are highly complex organisations. Each year, they spend many billions of
pounds of public money, delivering hundreds of services to millions of people. We should expect

Page 177



70

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

them to be run with high standards of financial rigour, careful consideration of the current

and future needs of their people and communities, and focused on continuing performance
improvement. It is important that the range of services is managed coherently so as to make the
maximum use of skills, resources and experience.

The corporate plan will set out how the Authority intends to address the Executive’s priorities

in the short, medium and long term. It will set out what the Local Authority plans to achieve,
how they will achieve it and what funding will be required to deliver this. It will bring together
the Authority’s arrangements for strategic planning, financial planning and workforce planning.
This public document will support the Authority in engaging with the public about strategic
issues which affect the whole Local Authority area, as well as issues which affect specific
communities and or particular services.

We will work with Local Authorities and other stakeholders to develop guidance to help

Local Authorities prepare their corporate plan. We will expect the corporate plan to explain
throughout how duties in respect of the Welsh language and equalities will be delivered. As a
minimum we envisage the corporate plan would include:

e strategic population outcomes for the area, as agreed in the local Well-being Plan;

e corporate priorities for service delivery and improvement, including Welsh language
standards, and the steps to achieve the objectives in the local well-being plan;

e financial management plans, including medium-term financial planning, corporate
procurement strategies and asset management plans;

e workforce plans, including the strategic equalities plan;
e the risk register;
e existing service performance and benchmarking data;

e public engagement and involvement strategy, including in relation to setting of annual
budgets and council tax;

e planned performance levels for the short, medium and long term; and

e an Annual Report setting out achievements and performance outcomes of the previous
year, which could also be used discharge the Local Authority’s proposed duty under the
Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill to report on how they have delivered their
objectives in a manner consistent with the sustainable development principles.

The Auditor General for Wales is the statutory external auditor for Local Authorities in Wales.
This means that he audits their accounts and his role includes examining how public bodies
manage and spend public money and how they achieve value in the delivery of public services.
In addition, it is proposed there will be a new duty on the Auditor General under the Well-being
of Future Generations (Wales) Bill that requires him to examine and report on the application

of the sustainable development principles in both the setting and the achieving of objectives

by Local Authorities. This means looking at the arrangements they have in place to ensure they
take account of the long term, the need for an integrated approach, working with others,
involving people, and taking preventative action in both setting and taking steps to meet their
well-being objectives.

The Auditor General would therefore be able to consider issues such as whether the body
can show that it has organised itself to have robust mechanisms and procedures in place and

Page 178



71

White Paper - Power to Local People

whether these are actually being used, that is, are the sustainable development principles being
applied when the body is making key decisions about setting well-being objectives and also
when taking steps to achieve them.

The statutory corporate plan we are proposing for Local Authorities could be an essential source
of evidence for the Auditor General both in his routine auditing of Local Authorities and in his
examination of the application of the sustainable development principles. It will also be vital for
Scrutiny Committees to challenge the Executive effectively, and to provide the public with the
information they need to understand how public funding is being spent.

7.3 Comparing services through objective real-time data

Timely and accurate management information and the ability to analyse this information
effectively will be essential to support the development of the corporate plan and to underpin
self-assessment and peer review.

Effective use of good quality and timely information is critical to delivering better service
outcomes and achieving improvement. There are two main elements of information that we
wish to consider:

e the data required so the performance of Authorities can be compared, such as national
performance tables and comparative statistics, enabling the Authority to be held to
account by elected representatives and the public; and

e the information about an Authority which would be used by its management and the
scrutiny process to maximise capability and delivery.

The Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery argued the current plethora of
performance management frameworks imposed by the Welsh Government are too complex,
bureaucratic, costly and insufficiently focused on outcomes for people.

In Improving public services for people in Wales,®? we committed to strengthening performance
management across public services through developing a common approach for performance
measurement. This would focus on outcomes, as well as rationalising and aligning the many
sets of performance measures. The Government accepts the challenge and will develop a new
approach to performance data across the range of its activities, starting from the premise that
we must collect fewer, more meaningful measures.

The right information used by managers to support the improvement of services is critical.
When published it can be a powerful motivation for improvement. The Welsh Government
accepted this sometime ago and created the web-based ‘mylocalschool’®® information source
which provides detailed data on individual schools. More recently, the Welsh Local Government
Association has launched the ‘mylocalcouncil’® website and the Local Government Association
in England has also developed ‘LG Inform."® While these websites provide information on Local
Authority services, they give no meaningful context to help the public or Elected Members
interpret variations. The challenge now is to encourage the widespread use of data and analysis.

82 Improving public services for people in Wales, Welsh Government, 2014
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/devolution-democracy-delivery/?lang=en

83 http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
84 http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/

85 http://Ilginform.local.gov.uk/
Page 179


http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/devolution-democracy-delivery/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/devolution-democracy-delivery/?lang=en
http://mylocalschool.wales.gov.uk/
http://www.mylocalcouncil.info/
http://lginform.local.gov.uk/

72

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Driving up public service performance requires the pull of public demand as much as the push
of Government expectation.

We believe the use of digital technology should be expanded across all public services to ensure
all those with an interest have access to data for their communities, for their Local Authority and
for Wales as a whole. Therefore we propose establishing a single, accessible portal to provide
regular, timely, and comparable information to challenge variations in performance. We propose
including data for the UK to ensure our services are compared against the very best. Contextual
information which can help to interpret raw data should also be made available on this portal.
This could include reports by the Wales Audit Office and the Inspectorates, self-assessment and
peer review reports, the corporate plan and complaints information. We would require Local
Authorities to publish this information, using agreed definitions, by a set date.

We aim to work with public sector organisations, regulators, auditors and inspectorates to
produce:

® a more strategic approach to performance management across the whole public sector;

e outcome indicators and performance measures to support public service leaders in their
decision-making;

e Dbetter value for money from collecting performance information; and

® more transparent reporting of information which will have a greater impact.
We will consult on how they are designed and developed in due course.

In the future, corporate plans will include a standardised set of performance outcomes and
measures. We have also received evidence during our recent consultation that the inclusion of
minimum standards® would drive performance and this is something we will consider as part of
our new performance management framework. In setting minimum standards of performance,
it may be appropriate to consider the use of financial penalties for non-compliance. We are
seeking views on the use of minimum standards and financial penalties.

7.4 Procurement supporting sustainable provision of services

Collectively, Local Government is responsible for almost two-thirds of total annual public
procurement expenditure in Wales. It is essential the public have confidence their taxes are
being well spent. Governance of procurement is managed through a non-statutory Procurement
Board and locally procurement capability is assured through Procurement Fitness Tests.

The Procurement Board oversees the procurement improvement plan across Wales and also
receives reports on the performance of individual Local Authorities. In order to develop better
understanding of procurement outcomes and to support collaboration across Wales, we will
work with Local Government to agree a common structure for classification of procurement
expenditure.

7.5 Digital Councils

We have seen examples of ways in which digital technology is being used to engage with the
public, enhance transparency and improve services, and so improve performance in a number

86 See for example the WLGA response to the Reforming Local Government White Paper http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/

localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?status=closed&lang=en
age 18


 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?status=closed&lang=en
 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?status=closed&lang=en

73

White Paper - Power to Local People

of areas of public service delivery, including education and social services. Local Authorities have
the opportunity to become digital pioneers, creating bespoke services which can be adapted by
other public service users. However, while there are certainly examples of good digital practice
among Welsh Local Authorities, we are not yet witnessing the wholesale transformation of
both the corporate model, public engagement and service delivery through the use of digital
technology which is evident in other sectors. We question whether most Local Authorities fully
understand the kind of cultural change required to achieve the greatest impact.

It is not an issue of better network management, the corporate needs of the Authority, or
infrastructure issues, although we expect Local Authorities to make use of the new Public
Service Broadband Aggregation contract. The focus needs to be on ease of use and open
access, not command and control. It is about the potential of digital technology to improve
service delivery and the service experience of residents, communities and front-line staff through
much greater ease of access. This includes the use of data collected by Local Authorities, which
could be a rich source of information for future service configuration.

In the Reforming Local Government White Paper we set out our intention to legislate to
require that all full Council and Executive meetings must be broadcast online, at the same time
encouraging the broadcasting of committees. We now wish to go further to ensure the work
of Councils is as fully accessible to the public as possible, having regard to restrictions around
confidentiality of data and commercially sensitive information for example, so that they can
engage more closely in decisions about matters that affect them. The broadcasting requirement
will provide an accurate public record of Local Authority proceedings, therefore we believe

it is for individual Authorities to decide whether the public may film or record any of their
proceedings. We will enable Local Authorities to make provision for recording of proceedings
through their standing orders. However, given the importance of social media in stimulating
dialogue and engagement, we consider the public should have a right to report live from any
Council proceedings through written or electronic media.

We also consider that the public should have a right to have their say on matters being
discussed by the Council. We therefore intend to put a duty on Local Authorities to make
arrangements to enable the public to make their views known on any open agenda items of the
full Council, the Executive or any Committees of a Local Authority, and for those views to be
taken into account. This will require that existing requirements to publish agendas and meeting
papers in advance must be closely adhered to.

7.6 Complaints

All feedback, including complaints, offers valuable information which can lead to improvements,
but there has to be the right organisational ethos to enable this to happen. Complaints, often

a mechanism through which people interact with their Local Authority, should be reported on,
where appropriate, in an accessible, open and transparent way. Analysis and understanding

of complaints is essential for informing service improvement and for improving governance
arrangements. It is therefore important complaints and concerns are considered, even if it is not
possible or appropriate to fully address them.

Page 181



74

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

A recent review of complaints handling in the NHS®” raises a number of issues that apply in
the Local Government setting. Those who need to complain must have confidence in the
complaints process and where the issues raised are serious, it is particularly important that the
process is timely and independent. The review also highlights that it should not be painful or
difficult to complain and when it is necessary to make a complaint, the onus should not be on
the individual complaining to follow up progress.

The Older People’s Commissioner produced a scoping study® of complaints procedures in 2010
which highlights the importance of complaints in improving services, and issues faced by older
people in particular. The report raised issues with regards to individuals tracking their complaint,
but also the need for greater transparency in the way that organisations publish information in a
comparable way.

We intend to require all Local Authorities to establish a streamlined online complaints process.
The use of digital technology can facilitate the processing and tracking of complaints, provide
an auditable trail and enable the Authority to build up a comprehensive picture of issues with
service delivery, governance and the views of the public. We propose to require the Local
Authority to provide a regular report on complaints to the Authority’s Audit Committee.

This report will include information about the Authority’s approach to complaints handling
and how they are used to improve services, as well as data such as number and categories of
complaints raised and resolved.

7.7 We would like your views

The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

Corporate planning

Single information portal
e Minimum performance outcomes and financial penalties

Complaints

87 A Review of the NHS Hospitals Complaints System Putting Patients Back in the Picture, Ann Clwyd MP and Professor Tricia
Hart, October 2013 https://Awww.gov.uk/government/publications/nhs-hospitals-complaints-system-review

88 A Scoping Study of Complaints, Susan Lambert for the Older People’s Commissioner for Wales, 2010
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/news/news/11-07-28/A_Scoping_Study_of_Complaints_for_the_Older_People_s_
Commissioner_for_Wales.aspx

Page 182


A Review of the NHS Hospitals Complaints System Putting Patients Back in the Picture, 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/nhs-hospitals-complaints-system-review
A Scoping Study of Complaints, Susan Lambert for the Older People’s Commissioner for Wales, 2010
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/news/news/11-07-28/A_Scoping_Study_of_Complaints_for_the_Older_People_s_Commissioner_for_Wales.aspx
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/en/news/news/11-07-28/A_Scoping_Study_of_Complaints_for_the_Older_People_s_Commissioner_for_Wales.aspx

75

White Paper - Power to Local People

8. Strengthening the Role of Review

This Chapter discusses the role of scrutiny by Elected Members (internal review)
and audit, inspection and regulation bodies (external review) in supporting Local
Authorities to deliver better outcomes for local areas. We do not believe internal
and external review processes work together well enough. We discuss how we
will strengthen internal review to ensure it has more impact on Local Authority
decision-making. We also discuss the benefits of sharing information between the
different external review bodies and with internal review.

We propose the following changes:

e requiring Local Authorities to set out, regularly, the ‘key decisions’ they
will be considering so as to enable internal review to be planned more
effectively;

strengthening Scrutiny Committees’ forward planning by requiring them
to make reference to ‘key decisions’ and corporate plans, as well as setting

out what they intend to scrutinise and who they will engage with in doing
So;

requiring external review bodies to share information with each other and
with local Scrutiny Committees;

requiring external review bodies to co-ordinate their work in respect
of Local Authorities and produce a combined assessment of each Local
Authority every two years; and

requiring external review bodies to produce a joint annual assessment of
the state of Local Government in Wales.

We also ask for views on whether we should take further steps to protect the
independence of the Democratic Services functions and the support they provide
for Elected Members’ scrutiny responsibilities.

8.1 Introduction

The Commission for Public Service Governance and Delivery considered scrutiny to play a key
role in democratic accountability. According to the Centre for Public Scrutiny:

“Public scrutiny is an essential part of ensuring that government remains effective and
accountable. Public scrutiny can be defined as the activity by one elected or appointed
organisation... examining and monitoring all or part of the activity of a public sector body
with the aim of improving the quality of public services.” &

However, the Commission found weaknesses both in the exercise of scrutiny functions and
the status and resources it is afforded by Local Authorities. The Commission also noted the
lack of integration of audit, inspection and regulation bodies and internal scrutiny by Elected

89 http://www.cfps.org.uk/
Page 183


http://www.cfps.org.uk/

76

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Members. We agree that internal and external review is critical to securing corporate and service
improvement through holding to account and challenge and that in order to be more effective
internal and external review should work more effectively together to support improvement.

Performance and improvement is first and foremost the responsibility of the Local Authorities
concerned and better leadership is needed in this area to reduce significantly the incidence

of adverse audit and inspection reports and Welsh Government interventions as a result of

poor performance. Audit and inspection have too often been the first line of defence against
poor performance, rather than the last. The Welsh Government’s role is to set the overall
regulatory framework. Local Government should pursue and exceed the minimum standards
and requirements, with local Scrutiny Committees holding Authorities to account. The audit and
inspection bodies are there to provide independent assurance that internal controls are working
effectively and to challenge under-performance. In addition to this regulatory function, they also
have a crucial role in sharing good practice on improvement.

Good leaders, whether political or operational, embrace challenge from internal and external
scrutiny. Challenge is not about defending the current position but listening to different
perspectives and seeking out alternative options in order to make services better, whether that is
more relevant, more efficient or more effective. While the cost of scrutiny, audit and inspection
should be proportionate, it must not be considered a bureaucratic cost, it is the investment we
make in improvement. Review, whether carried out internally by Elected Members, or externally
by audit and inspection bodies, must be well informed, drawing on information, intelligence
and data from a wide range of sources. Reporting should be timely, objective, evidence based
and placed in the public domain.

8.2 Internal Review - Scrutiny by Elected Members

Internal review by Elected Members, or scrutiny, contributes to decision-making processes that
are clear and accessible to the public, holding to public account those making decisions.

Scrutiny Committees are appointed by the full Council to examine the work of the Executive
and other functions of the Authority, such as planning and regulatory functions. Their role

is to support the Authority to maintain high service delivery standards, and to steer them
towards improved efficiency and effectiveness, and better outcomes for local communities.
Good scrutiny involves service users and the public and ensures they have opportunities to
influence and improve the services they receive. The Local Government Act 2000 requires Local
Authorities to have one or more Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Overview and Scrutiny Committees can:

e review or scrutinise decisions made by the Local Authority in the exercise of functions
(whether they are functions which are the responsibility of the Executive or not);

e make reports or recommendations accordingly; and

e make recommendations on matters which affect the area or its inhabitants.

Page 184



77

White Paper - Power to Local People

Internal review by Elected Members can be divided into four broad categories:

Horizon-scanning scrutiny: looks at future social, economic, political and other changes
which are likely to have an impact on Local Government, in order to help Authorities adapt
to them accordingly. For example, this might mean examining the likely impact of changes
to the welfare system, or the impact of an ageing population, or of major advances in
digital technology.

Thematic scrutiny: examines a specific topic or area that has been highlighted as a matter of
concern, such as systemic child abuse or modern slavery. In this way, scrutiny can help the
Authority develop its policies and respond more effectively to local needs.

Pre-decision scrutiny: examines an Authority’s proposals, objectives and draft programmes
in order to inform their development before they are implemented. In this way, scrutiny
can help the Authority to achieve optimum impact by avoiding mistakes and grasping
opportunities in its policy-making and service delivery.

Post-decision scrutiny: examines the implementation of Authority policy and performance
in terms of service delivery. It enables the Authority to review the effects of its decision-
making, learn lessons, helping it to recognise any unforeseen consequences and assisting it
to revise its policy and practice accordingly.

Scrutiny annual reports describe the work and outputs of Scrutiny Committee reviews, and give
an early indication of future areas of planned review. They are formally reported to full Council.

8.3 Effective Internal Review

The Centre for Public Scrutiny has been undertaking work on the financial ‘return on
investment’ as well as the ‘social return on investment’ of Scrutiny Committees.®® The Centre
has developed a model for establishing the return on investment of scrutiny. Their research
shows that the impact of scrutiny can be measured and can offer a significant business benefit
when done well.

In order to deliver on this, effective internal review must be appropriately resourced.

Those supporting internal review should be highly skilled at analysis and interpreting
information, and be aware of innovation from across the sector. Those scrutinising must provide
constructive challenge to the Executive and senior management, ensuring they are aspirational
in their goals, innovative in their approach, and proportionate in managing risk.

90 Tipping the Scales, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012 http:/Avww.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7137&offset=25; Measuring
what matters, Centre for Public Scrutiny http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=106&0offset=0; Valuing Inclusion, Centre

for Public Scrutiny, 2012 http:/Awvww.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7303&offset=0
Page 185


Tipping the Scales, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012; Measuring what matters, Centre for Public Scrutiny; Valuing Inclusion, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7137&offset=25
Tipping the Scales, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012; Measuring what matters, Centre for Public Scrutiny; Valuing Inclusion, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012
Tipping the Scales, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012; Measuring what matters, Centre for Public Scrutiny; Valuing Inclusion, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=106&offset=0
Tipping the Scales, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012; Measuring what matters, Centre for Public Scrutiny; Valuing Inclusion, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7303&offset=0

78

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

A number of areas for improvement have been identified in current arrangements®' such as:

e improving the information available to undertake internal review;

® improving the planning process for internal review;

e ensuring that the impact of internal review is appropriately evidenced;

e recognising the importance, status and value of internal review;

e resourcing internal review appropriately;

e ensuring the process of internal review effectively engages with communities; and

e recognising that internal review is an essential part of the system for securing service
improvement.

8.4 Strengthening Internal Review by Elected Members

We believe the relationship between the Executive and Scrutiny Committees is crucial. To be
most effective it needs to be an open and engaged relationship. And, for internal review to be a
critical part of improvement arrangements, Scrutiny Committees must be independent and have
effective powers at their disposal.

In the Reforming Local Government White Paper we asked for views about how we could
strengthen scrutiny to support service improvements. We have set out below a number of
proposals for consideration which we believe will achieve this.

8.4.1 Ensuring Local Authorities resource local review

In 2009, the Councillors Commission Expert Panel for Wales published its report Are We
Being Served.®? Several of the issues they examined related to the experience of Councillors
since the introduction of Executive structures which make the majority of decisions.

Their recommendations included giving consideration to introducing a legal separation of
the Executive and Non-executive functions of the Council, with separate funding streams,
which would protect the independent and unbiased provision of support for Elected
Members’ scrutiny responsibilities.

The Welsh Government set out proposals to strengthen scrutiny and community leadership
in A Shared Responsibility.®® Subsequently the Welsh Government legislated to strengthen
the role and independence of scrutiny in the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011

and made provision for the delegation of functions to Elected Members in relation to their

91 Good Scrutiny? Good Question!, Wales Audit Office, 2014 http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/good-scrutiny-good-question-
auditor-general-wales-improvement-study-scrutiny-local; Final Report, Commission on Public Service Governance and
Delivery, 2014 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/public-service-governance-and-delivery/report/?lang=en; Annual
Survey of Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government - 2013-14, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2014 http:/Awvww.cfps.org.uk/
publications?item=11650&0offset=0; Joining Up the Dots: Overview and Scrutiny in Local Government Since 2003, Centre
for Public Scrutiny, 2012 http:/Awvww.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7042&offset=50; Explanatory Memorandum Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2011, National Assembly for Wales http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/
lgmeasure11/?lang=en; Chief Inspector’s Annual Report 2012-13, Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales http:/cssiw.
org.uk/our-reports/annual-reports/2012-2013/?skip=1&lang=en; Annual Report 2012-13, Estyn http://www.estyn.gov.uk/
english/annual-report/annual-report-2012-2013/

92 Are we being served? The Report of the Councillor Commission Expert Panel Wales, 2009 http://www.wlga.gov.uk/
publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/are-we-being-served-the-report-of-the-councillor-commission-expert-panel-
wales

93 A Shared Responsibility, Welsh Assembly Government, 2007

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovern ment/publications/sharedreSé)onsibiIity/?langzen
Page 18


http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/good-scrutiny-good-question-auditor-general-wales-improvement-study-scrutiny-local
http://www.wao.gov.uk/publication/good-scrutiny-good-question-auditor-general-wales-improvement-study-scrutiny-local
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/improvingservices/public-service-governance-and-delivery/report/?lang=en
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=11650&offset=0
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=11650&offset=0
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7042&offset=50
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/lgmeasure11/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/lgmeasure11/?lang=en
http://cssiw.org.uk/our-reports/annual-reports/2012-2013/?skip=1&lang=en
http://cssiw.org.uk/our-reports/annual-reports/2012-2013/?skip=1&lang=en
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/annual-report/annual-report-2012-2013/
http://www.estyn.gov.uk/english/annual-report/annual-report-2012-2013/
  http://www.wlga.gov.uk/publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/are-we-being-served-the-report-of-the-councillor-commission-expert-panel-wale
  http://www.wlga.gov.uk/publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/are-we-being-served-the-report-of-the-councillor-commission-expert-panel-wale
  http://www.wlga.gov.uk/publications-and-consultation-responses-imp/are-we-being-served-the-report-of-the-councillor-commission-expert-panel-wale
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/sharedresponsibility/?lang=en

79

White Paper - Power to Local People

electoral division, and for Members to refer matters to a Scrutiny Committee. The Welsh
Government also made provision in relation to Democratic Services. The Democratic
Services regime attempts to strengthen the hand of the non-executive Member but in
practice the effectiveness of this varies from Council to Council.

The Centre for Public Scrutiny has also recently highlighted concerns about decreasing
resources to support scrutiny. Overview and Scrutiny Committees have had their resources
reduced by 20% in real terms over the last five years.®* Given the importance of internal
review in supporting service improvement, this needs to be addressed. Scrutiny must have
appropriate and sufficient support, in the form of skilled officers and its own budget.

To further support this we believe that there should be a requirement for the Head of
Democratic Services to be a Chief Officer.

Following our recent review of the implementation of the Local Government (Wales)
Measure 2011, we also intend to remove the requirement that the Monitoring Officer may
not also be the Head of Democratic Services. The evidence we received suggested this
prohibition is unnecessary and, indeed, that there is a great deal in common between the
two roles.

We are also seeking views on whether we should take further steps to protect the
independence of the Democratic Services functions and the support they provide for
Elected Members' scrutiny responsibilities.

8.4.2 Strengthening Pre-decision Scrutiny

Reviewing a decision before it is made is more effective than looking at a decision after

it is made. Pre-decision scrutiny allows Scrutiny Committees the opportunity to challenge
assumptions that may have been made in the lead-up to a decision or how decision-makers
have considered the positive impact or any risks that might arise. The Committee will

often bring a different perspective which can improve the robustness of decision-making.
Many believe that pre-decision scrutiny allows greater influence over decision-making.®
Currently, however, there is no statutory requirement for Local Authority Executives to
inform Scrutiny Committees of their proposed decisions.

In England, the concept of a “key decision” is defined in regulations.®® A key decision is
defined as:

“an executive decision, which is likely a) to result in the relevant local authority incurring
expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, significant [...] or b) to be
significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising
two or more wards or electoral divisions [...]".

Individual Councils in England have adopted varying definitions for what a key decision
is, but they all reflect these two broad requirements. Since 2012 councils in England have
been obliged only to give 28 days notice of planned key decisions (and there is also some
provision for a shorter timescale in the case of urgency). In practice, however, most have
chosen to retain a formal Forward Plan which is published every month, which sets out
planned key decisions for the subsequent four months.

94 Joining Up the Dots, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7042&offset=50

95 Report into How the Local Government Act 2000 is Working, The Transport, Local Government and the Regions Committee
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200102/cmselect/cmtlgr/602/60203.htm

96 The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and A]c-c8e%s to Information)(England) Regulations 2012
age


Joining Up the Dots, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2012
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=7042&offset=50
Report into How the Local Government Act 2000 is Working, The Transport, Local Government and the Regions Committee
http://www.publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm200102/cmselect/cmtlgr/602/60203.htm

80

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

Generally only “key decisions” made by the Authority are subject to call-in for consideration
by a Scrutiny Committee. Key decisions will for the most part be decisions made by
individual Cabinet Members (where a power for individual Cabinet Members to make
decisions is delegated from the Cabinet) or by Cabinet as a whole.

In Wales, the concept of a “key decision” does not exist but could be introduced to support
more effective use of planning for pre-decision scrutiny.®” We are seeking views on how this
might best be introduced in Wales.

8.4.3 Planning for Scrutiny

The Wales Audit Office report Good Scrutiny? Good Question!®® highlights the importance
of effective planning of scrutiny. The Centre for Public Scrutiny has already done work to
support better planning arrangements, and there is evidence of some good annual scrutiny
programme planning within Local Authorities.®® The Local Government (Wales) Measure
2011 already requires Scrutiny Committees to publish forward plans of their scrutiny work
programme and consult with electors, but we are seeking a step change that will increase
the impact of scrutiny by widening its focus to consider national goals as well as local
priorities into its work planning. In Chapter 7 we set out proposals that Chief Executives of
Local Authorities must set out short, medium and long term performance aspirations and
performance plans as part of their corporate planning arrangements. For internal review to
add real value to their Local Authority, Scrutiny Committees should mirror this approach to
planning. We believe there is merit in requiring Scrutiny Committees to do the same and
establish short, medium and long term scrutiny plans linked to the national goals and their
Authority’s corporate plan, local well-being plan (as proposed in the Well-being of Future
Generations (Wales) Bill) and key decisions.

To support others in contributing to the scrutiny process and strengthen the voice of local
people, we propose that Scrutiny Committees should be required to set out in their forward
plans how they will engage with service users and the public. This should include identifying
which community groups and representatives they intend to call upon and engage with. In
considering their calls for evidence, Scrutiny Committees should make particular reference
to under-represented groups and increasingly consider the appropriateness of co-opting
individuals to contribute to the debate. Guidance'® was issued on co-option under the
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and we would encourage Scrutiny Committees to
make reference to this.

8.4.4 Voting Rights on Scrutiny Committees

In Chapter 3, we explored the case for co-opting additional members both to the Cabinet
and committees of the Council, including Scrutiny Committees, in order to improve diversity
and secure more balanced representation when required. Currently, the law permits
co-opted members of advisory committees to the Council to have voting rights, but it does
not permit co-opted members of Scrutiny Committees to have voting rights.

The Welsh Government believes this restricts Scrutiny Committees from making the most

97 Practice guide 2: Pre-decision scrutiny, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2014 http:/Awww.cfps.org.uk/practice-guides
98 Good Scrutiny? Good Question!, Wales Audit Office, 2014 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0

99 A cunning plan? Devising a scrutiny work programme, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2011 http:/Avww.cfps.org.uk/
publications?item=113&offset=0

100 Statutory Guidance from the Local Government Measure 2011, Welsh Government, 2012 http://wales.gov.uk/topics/
localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
Page 188


Practice guide 2: Pre-decision scrutiny, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2014
http://www.cfps.org.uk/practice-guides
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0
http://A cunning plan? Devising a scrutiny work programme
1 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0
1 http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=113&offset=0
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en
http://wales.gov.uk/topics/localgovernment/publications/statguide/?lang=en

White Paper - Power to Local People

of the experience and knowledge of experts, service users and under-represented people.
We believe consideration should be given to permitting Councils to grant voting rights to
co-opted members of Scrutiny Committees in appropriate circumstances.

8.4.5 A Local Public Accounts Committee

Local Government and public services more generally are working in a complex world.

This requires stronger public scrutiny and accountability for partnerships and joint or pooled
budgets. To meet this challenge, the Centre for Public Scrutiny has developed a proposal for
local Public Accounts Committees.™!

This proposal would involve the introduction of independent, local Public Accounts
Committees, with oversight over all public expenditure in a local area. A local Public
Accounts Committee would have the power to scrutinise public expenditure in a local area.
Its focus would be on the value for money achieved by the combined spending of public
money in the local area, with a particular remit to assess whether planned outcomes are
being achieved through partnership-working and pooled or joint budgets agreed under
place-based finance arrangements. Local Public Accounts Committees could provide place
based accountability and be an important link to Public Services Boards.

This work is due to be piloted in Westminster and Kensington and Chelsea Councils.
We believe these proposals could merit further consideration and we are seeking views on
the concept of introducing such a model in Wales.

8.5 Giving Communities a Voice in Scrutiny

People want to be involved and engaged if they believe they can make a difference. In Chapters
4 and 5, we set out our proposals to enhance engagement with local people and communities.
This includes engagement in the assessment of service provision, such as through participation
in scrutiny.’ While this is already happening in some places, it is neither systematic nor
embedded as part of the culture of our public service organisations.

For example, the Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW) has changed the way
they carry out inspections of services to place the views of people using services at the heart
of their work. They now spend more time listening, talking to people and observing. In 2013
and 2014, CSSIW piloted ‘independent visitor’ schemes in care homes for older people and
people with a disability, and children’s homes. Their National Advisory Board includes a wide
range of representation from among service users, third sector and professional organisations.
We consider this an example of good practice from which Local Government could have much
to learn.

We intend to strengthen the opportunity for people to directly contribute to service
improvement through local scrutiny, by requiring opportunities to be made available for

local community based representative bodies to engage with scrutiny. For example, Scrutiny
Committee calls for evidence should be directed to local community based representative

bodies through the Area Boards we propose in Chapter 4 above, and information on which
groups that Scrutiny Committee intends to engage with should be included in its forward plan.
In addition, individuals and representative bodies should be able to petition Scrutiny Committees

101 A local Public Accounts Committee for every place: a CfPS proposal, Centre for Public Scrutiny, 2013
http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=11575&offset=0

102 Bringing the power of the citizen into local public services: an evidence review, Tony Bovaird, INLOGOV, Welsh Government

Social Research, 2014. http://wales.gov.uk/statistics—ang—research/democracy—community—govemance/?Iangzen
age


http://www.cfps.org.uk/publications?item=11575&offset=0
Bringing the power of the citizen into local public services: an evidence review
http://wales.gov.uk/statistics-and-research/democracy-community-governance/?lang=en

82

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

on matters of Authority wide concern. Scrutiny Committees would be required to consider the
appropriateness of exploring the matters raised and respond to the petitioner.

Direct engagement of the public with their elected representatives is a crucial part of the local
democratic process. Some Local Authorities in Wales, such as Cardiff, already offer people the
opportunity to question the Leader of the Council, and we propose this opportunity should be
offered within all Local Authority areas.

8.6 Scrutiny of Regional Collaborative Working

Local Authorities are increasingly commissioning services jointly to be delivered across a regional
area. These include services such as education improvement services, social services, children’s
services and technical services. Local Government has raised the issue of simplifying the scrutiny
arrangements for services delivered collaboratively across a region.'*

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 enables Local Authorities to form Joint Overview
and Scrutiny Committees to undertake this task. However, the evidence suggests these powers
are rarely used and, in some cases, may be exercised in addition to, rather than instead of,
scrutiny by individual Authorities. It is onerous and bureaucratic for regional delivery bodies,
whose services have been commissioned by Local Authorities jointly, to be subject to scrutiny
separately by each of the relevant Local Authorities. We are therefore seeking views on whether
it would be beneficial to simplify regional scrutiny. For example, legislation could require that
where services have been commissioned jointly, they must be scrutinised by a Joint Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, made up of elected members of the commissioning Authorities.

The Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee could be required to address any concerns raised by
local Scrutiny Committees and report to them on action taken.

8.7 External Review — Scrutiny by Audit, Inspection and Regulation Bodies
The Welsh Government defines audit, inspection and regulation as follows:

Audit is concerned with accuracy. It considers whether a set of data about an organisation
(e.q. its financial statements) is properly calculated and fairly presented.

Inspection is concerned with competence. It considers whether an organisation and/or
the services it provides are of an adequate standard, whether in terms of public need or
expectation or of an accepted professional practice.

Regulation is concerned with compliance. It considers whether an organisation’s activities
conform to legal or similar requirement; and may lead to formal action if they are found not
to be.

The key bodies in Wales in relation to Local Government are the Auditor General for Wales and
the Wales Audit Office, Estyn (education and children’s services) and the Care and Social Services
Inspectorate Wales (CSSIW).

External audit, inspection and regulation are vital parts of our current approach to testing and
improving public services. We believe they play a valuable role in providing an authoritative
and independent view of Local Authority performance which encompasses both corporate

103 See for example, 3.5 in the Consultation — summary of responses to the White Paper, Devolution, Democracy and Delivery:
Reforming Local Government http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?

status=closed&lang=en
Page 190


Consultation – summary of responses
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?status=closed&lang=en 
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/white-paper-reforming-local-government/?status=closed&lang=en 

83

White Paper - Power to Local People

governance and service provision. Existing legislation defines the roles and duties of the audit,
inspection and regulation bodies and provides a framework in which they operate.

Audit, inspection and regulation bodies play a critical role in working with Local Authorities to
test a number of aspects of their business including propriety, accountability, service standards
and improvement. Sometimes, their work is seen as burdensome or a distraction from the
business of delivering services. While this may be understandable when staff and resources are
pressed, external scrutiny plays a critical role in ensuring services are fit for purpose.

8.8 Strengthening Links between External and Internal Review

The Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery proposed that “auditors, inspectors
and requlators who report on individual organisations must do so directly to the appropriate
Scrutiny or Audit Committee. Where appropriate, they should assist the committee in its
consideration and holding the executive to account.” \We agree. We believe this is critical to
ensuring a stronger, more flexible and adaptive relationship between external review bodies
which can better support Local Authorities to improve.

A strong relationship between internal review and review by external bodies is essential in
ensuring a Local Authority is held to account for its governance arrangements and planning

for improvement at the corporate centre and improving the Authority. We therefore intend to
require external review bodies to share audit, inspection and regulatory reports with the relevant
Audit or Scrutiny Committee. These committees would be required to review them and provide
recommendations to the Authority. Where appropriate or when requested, the external review
bodies would be required to present their findings and recommendations to members of the
relevant Audit or Scrutiny Committee.

The Welsh Government is currently funding a project under the Scrutiny Development Fund to
test this approach. The project is based in Cardiff Council, where the scrutiny team is working
with external review bodies to make recommendations on how the functions of local scrutiny
and external review can be better aligned and mutually supportive. A report is scheduled to be
published in May 2015. In practice, some of this is beginning to happen.

Work is already underway to strengthen these links. Estyn and CSSIW are already sharing their
reports with Elected Members. CSSIW has also developed their “New Deal” offer, working
with Scrutiny Committee chairs and Elected Members to provide them with training to increase
awareness and understanding of the sector and support them in their scrutiny process,
providing regular publications to keep Members informed of best practice, and regular reports
on local issues through dedicated Area Managers.

8.9 Strengthening Links between External Review Bodies

In Chapter 6, we set out a new system to drive improvement through self-assessment and peer
review. We believe that by bringing together these evaluations, alongside reports from external
review bodies it is possible to evaluate the ‘whole system’ at both a Local Authority level and for
Local Government as a whole.

We propose to require the Wales Audit Office, Estyn and CSSIW to come together, drawing on
existing reports and information, to produce a single ‘whole system’ assessment of each Local
Authority. We anticipate this report would be produced on a biennial basis initially, alternating
with the peer review cycle, to support Authorities to develop a better understanding of their

Page 191



84

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

corporate ‘health’ and allow them to consider any additional action they need to take or
support they might require to address issues or concerns.

To complement these assessments we will require the Wales Audit Office, Estyn and CSSIW to
produce a single annual assessment of the state of Local Government in Wales and present this
to Welsh Ministers and the National Assembly for Wales. This will support the major programme
of Local Government reform and highlight areas for improvement support across the whole
sector.

The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009 (section 23) already requires the external

review bodies to work together to coordinate their inspections to minimise the impact on

Local Authorities and produce a timetable of work. Given our intention to repeal the Local
Government (Wales) Measure 2009, we will restate these requirements in new legislation.

To encourage greater openness and transparency, we will require this information to be included
on the single information portal (see 7.3 above).

8.10 The Review of Audit, Inspection and Regulation

The Welsh Government recently commissioned an independent review of audit, inspection

and regulation in Wales, encompassing the Wales Audit Office, Estyn, CSSIW and Healthcare
Inspectorate Wales.* Following this review we are proposing a threefold approach. The Welsh
Government will set the overall regulatory framework and it will be for local leaders and
decision-makers to ensure they are complying with the framework and attaining national
standards. Secondly, it is for Local Government scrutiny to hold the Executive to account, and to
pursue performance excellence and challenge underperformance rigorously. Finally, it is for the
audit and inspection bodies to identify areas for improvement and, in extreme circumstances,
advise Welsh Ministers on the need for intervention.

The first phase of this review aimed to establish the purpose of audit, inspection and regulation.
It resulted in the development of an external review framework, setting out the purpose, core
functions and attributes of audit, inspection and regulation. These are set out below, we are
seeking views on them.

This external review framework supports the need for a more effective and joined-up approach
to audit, inspection and regulation, allowing for the identification of potential problems more
quickly and informing improvement activities more effectively. The external review framework
was developed as a means to identify current good practice and identify current barriers to

the provision of a system which is well coordinated and successful in promoting improvement.
As such, it can be used as a model to identify when and where external review work well in
Wales and how this good practice can replicated elsewhere.

Purpose:

e Protecting the interests of citizens by holding the use of public resources to account and
by rigorously telling the story of how citizens experience services.

e Contributing to the wider improvement framework, within organisations, the Welsh
Government and wider public sector.

104 Phase 1 — Draft Report: Review of Audit, Inspection and Regulation, Shared Intelligence for Welsh Government,
2014 http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/phase 1-draft-report-review-of-audit-inspection-
regulation/?skip=1&lang=en %20 (Additional Concluding Section to be published early 2015)

Page 192


http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/phase1-draft-report-review-of-audit-inspection-regulation/?skip=1&lang=en%20
http://wales.gov.uk/consultations/localgovernment/phase1-draft-report-review-of-audit-inspection-regulation/?skip=1&lang=en%20

85

White Paper - Power to Local People

Core Functions:

e Assessing compliance with governance, financial stewardship and probity standards and
regulations.

e Assuring the quality and cost effectiveness of service provision.

e Public reporting on the stewardship of public resources, service delivery against standards
and the adherence to regulations.

e Contributing to improvement including by encouraging self improvement, acting upon a
critical report and encouraging wider sectoral support.

e |dentifying, acting upon and reporting early signs of ‘failure’ within a service or
organisation.

e Informing policy and practice, beyond individual organisations.
Key attributes:

e Proportionality: proportionate to the risk, potential for improvement, likely benefit and
interests of citizens. It applies in terms of deciding whether to use external review and in
deciding its nature, scope and duration.

¢ Independence: it must not be constrained by any party in reaching its conclusions
and publishing its findings. It must be free to make judgements about service delivery
and report its findings into the public domain, and it must be able to decide how it
discharges its responsibilities, once its focus has been agreed.

e Accountability: external review must demonstrate and report on the impact of its
activities. Assessments and findings must be fair and capable of being defended.

e (Collaboration: external review must collaborate in the interests of greater local impact,
greater cost effectiveness and to reduce the burden on those being reviewed.

e Value for money: external review should be able to demonstrate it delivers benefits
commensurate with its cost.

e Transparency: external review must be transparent in all its activities, its focus, decision
making criteria, business processes, assessments and reporting. Reports must be clear,
independent and consistent.

e Professionalism and competence: external review must be conducted in a way which
demonstrates professional integrity and competence. It should be credible, consistent
and impartial in all its activities.

It is clear audit, inspection and regulation should be focused on the outcomes which

are achieved, rather than processes and methodologies used to deliver those outcomes,
except where these processes are hindering delivery and improvement. As such, the
arrangements which each Authority puts in place to deliver services should remain largely a
matter for them, so long as they are clearly delivering the outcomes.

In view of our proposal to repeal Part 1 of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009,

we propose to continue looking at the role of audit, inspection and regulation as part of the
development of the new arrangements. This includes the promotion of a more joined up
approach in relation to audit, inspection and regulation, and the benefits this could realise.

Page 193



86

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

8.11 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:

e Democratic services

e Strengthening internal scrutiny

e Encouraging public voice

e Regional scrutiny arrangements

e Strengthening links between external scrutiny

e The external review framework

Page 194



87

White Paper - Power to Local People

9 Reforming Local Government Finance

This Chapter discusses how the funding of Local Government will need to change
to support the reforms outlined elsewhere in this paper and to provide a more
effective framework for funding Authorities. It also discusses the need for clearer
financial governance and accounting arrangements and how these may be
simplified in the future.

We propose a phased approach to developing a Local Government finance system
fit for the new Authorities, which in the shorter-term will include the necessary
changes to effect mergers and the reforms proposed in this paper.

In the longer-term, we intend to consult on and bring forward further legislation
to effect more fundamental changes to the Local Government finance system.
The longer-term approach will enable us to design a system which takes account
of wider changes to the powers and fiscal responsibilities of the Assembly,

and could allow Local Authorities to raise more of their finance themselves.

9.1 Introduction

Reforming Local Government and the earlier Chapters of this White Paper set out what we
want from Local Government in Wales and our proposals for reforming the way in which it
operates and delivers services to produce improved performance and clearer accountability.
These ambitions will need to be supported by changes to the way local services are funded and
to the mechanisms for distributing, raising, managing and accounting for the funding.

Local Authorities in Wales (County and County Borough Councils) currently spend over

£8 billion a year on running costs and capital spending in delivering services. This spending

is funded from a number of sources. These include Welsh Government general and specific
grants, redistributed non domestic rates, grants from other bodies, income from Council Tax,
fees and charges, capital receipts and borrowing. Authorities also manage significant reserves
and balances. The largest single source of funding is the Welsh Government’s Revenue Support
Grant which currently contributes around £3.3 billion a year, whilst centrally redistributed

non domestic rates contribute a further £1 billion. The future financial and demand pressures
have been well documented but the relative protection afforded to Local Government funding
in Wales and the contributions from the various funding streams means, despite the recent
reductions to the funding provided through the Revenue Support Grant, overall spending by
Authorities in Wales has continued to increase, albeit modestly.

The current system for funding local services is complex. It is formed of different but closely
interconnected parts and reflects choices made over time and for different aspects of the
system. There are also specific arrangements for funding certain parts of Local Government

not included in the figures above. Some of these, such as Fire and Rescue Authorities and
Community Councils, form part of the Reforming Local Government agenda but there are
others which do not. For example, the funding for police services in Wales is partly devolved
and partly not — the Welsh Government distributes Revenue Support Grant and non domestic
rates to Police forces in Wales and manages the framework for the Police component of Council

Tax, whilst the Home Office is responsible for overallgolicy, spending plans and certain funding
Page 19



Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

streams including the Police Grant. This means there may be limits to the extent to which
we might be able to develop and redesign parts of the system within the current devolution
settlement for Wales. The opportunities for change could be much greater should a different
range of powers be devolved to Wales at a future date.

9.2 Our Vision

We will review the mechanisms for funding Local Authorities and the frameworks which
underpin the management of their income and expenditure to ensure they provide fit for
purpose financial systems for the new Authorities. However, the mechanisms need to do
more than this. They need to provide a funding environment which supports the reforms set
out elsewhere in this White Paper. This means having financial mechanisms which enable the
provision of better services as part of a stronger framework for determining which services
are provided and how; for deciding how the available resources are used to fund them; for
ensuring funding is used efficiently and to greatest effect; and for building clearer lines of
accountability between the decision-makers and local people, including where possible the
greater involvement of local people in making such decisions.

In particular, we want to consider how we can develop stronger links between funding,
performance and the delivery of strategic outcomes. We will also seek to simplify the current
funding arrangements where this is practicable and to ensure Local Government’s funding and
budgetary arrangements are more inclusive and transparent and are connected to our proposals
for community governance and the role of Councillors, including their role in scrutinising
proposals and decisions. This will entail greater access to information about how each Authority
proposes to use its funding, how effective it has been in using it, and the extent to which this
results in the delivery of better services. This will be a critical component of the corporate plan
(Chapter 7). We also want a system which can be more responsive to the needs of Wales.

The current system remains robust and sustainable, but many of its features were designed with
the needs of the UK as a whole in mind.

The Welsh Government’s role in relation to funding and financial management is to create
the framework within which Local Government can operate to best effect. Authorities have
clear responsibilities for setting budgets, taking account of local priorities, and for ensuring
they manage their resources prudently, efficiently and effectively and deliver value for money.
We want to maintain, and where possible reinforce, clear lines of accountability.

Our aim therefore is to develop:

e an effective and efficient system for funding the new Authorities;

e the framework for financial governance to ensure it provides for the effective
management of resources by the new Authorities and provides clear lines of
accountability; and

e funding and financial regimes which support the reform of Local Government
democracy, governance and performance.

As such, the features of the new framework should include the following:

e create stronger links between funding and the delivery of outcomes, enabling
improvement in service delivery, performance and efficiency;

e reflect existing patterns of need whilst, over time, seeking to reduce the disparity in need

across Wales;
Page 196



89

White Paper - Power to Local People

® encourage and enable innovative approaches to delivering services, for individual
Authorities and for Authorities in partnership with public sector partners and other
bodies;

e provide greater freedom to make decisions locally, allied to clear improvements in
performance. Foster better planning with a more integrated and sustainable approach to
balancing funding and service pressures;

e enable Authorities to manage demand for services over the longer term;

e offer a wider range of options for funding delivery, including more flexible arrangements
for funding joint ventures;

e engage local communities in important choices and decisions;

e provide clearer information about how funding decisions have been made and by whom;
and

e ensure this information is easily accessible to all.

9.3 Our Approach

We need to take a more strategic and longer term approach to reform of the finance system
and its interconnected parts. We must ensure the approach integrates effectively with the way
the Welsh Government takes forward wider constitutional and fiscal reforms, in particular, the
need for a consistent framework for administering devolved taxes. Fundamental changes to
the funding arrangements are not without their risks and any significant change may result in
large or more frequent movements in funding between public service organisations. A feature
of any new funding system should be that it is sufficiently stable to ensure where movements
in funding are necessary, they do not pose a risk to the financial stability of organisations as a
whole or to the key services which they provide to the public. We will need to take such risks
into account in developing our proposals, as there cannot be any expectation of large injections
of new money to mitigate such effects. Not all of these changes would need primary legislation,
we can make many changes through secondary legislation, guidance or the promotion of good
practice.

We intend to approach the reform of the funding framework in distinct phases. The first phase
will identify and implement the essential changes needed to effect the merger of Authorities
and the reforms set out in this paper. Any legislative changes required will be incorporated into
the second Bill, referred to earlier in this White Paper, or taken forward in secondary legislation
under existing powers.

The next phase will consider more fundamental changes to the way Local Government is
funded. This may include looking at the balance between funding which is provided centrally
and that which is generated locally through local taxes and other charges. It may also include
considering whether the current forms of local taxation (Council Tax and non-domestic rates)
need to be redesigned. It will also consider the findings of relevant work which is underway
elsewhere, such as the report of Independent Commission on Local Government Finance in
England, due to be published later this year. We expect this to lead to a further White Paper
after the next Assembly elections in 2016.

This approach will enable us to design a system which takes account of wider changes to the
powers and fiscal responsibilities of the Assembly, notably, the full devolution of non-domestic
rates in April 2015, non-domestic rates revaluation in 2017 and new devolved taxes expected

Page 197



90

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

to come into effect in April 2018. We will therefore develop and consult on more detailed
proposals in due course.

Reforming Local Government offers a once-in-a-generation opportunity to effect a new
approach and any fundamental reform of the funding will require considerable time and
preparation to develop, design and implement. Therefore, we are seeking initial views on how
the funding framework might be improved. The following sections distinguish between the
areas which we believe will need to be addressed in readiness for the merger and reform of
Local Authorities and those which might form part of a more fundamental and longer-term
review of the funding framework.

9.3.1 Sources of funding

Local Government services and capital investments are currently funded through a mix of
centrally provided and locally raised funding. The balance between these sources reflects
the fact Local Authorities have a range of statutory duties to provide certain services but
have discretionary powers to deliver additional services and also have some discretion as to
the way in which they deliver certain statutory functions.

Within Local Government, there is a question as to whether the balance between the
funding provided centrally and that generated locally should change. For example, a change
in the balance of funding to give Local Government more discretion over local sources of
funding could result in Authorities having greater flexibility to meet financial challenges.
Any such change would need to go hand in hand with Authorities being more directly
accountable to local people for the use of the funding at their disposal and improving long
term financial and service planning to ensure the available funding is used to best effect.

This might include new or stronger mechanisms to ensure funding is used strategically,
for example targeting it towards preventative spend which delivers sustainable
improvements in public services. Funding should have clear links to the delivery of
national policy outcomes and the approach to performance improvement set out in
Chapter 6. It might also include consideration of how the funding system could reflect
success in achieving longer term positive outcomes or, if necessary, deter or address poor
performance.

9.3.2 General revenue funding - local taxation

The approach to funding the general revenue costs of Local Government in Wales

has existed in its current form since 1993 when Council Tax was introduced. For Local
Authorities, the main Welsh Government component of funding is made up of Revenue
Support Grant and redistributed non domestic rates. It is determined by assessing the
relative need of each Authority, based on a number of agreed indicators, and taking
account of its ability to raise Council Tax (this depends on the number and value of
properties liable for Council Tax in each area — its tax base). This annual process is carried
out in detailed consultation with Local Government and is subject to formal approval in the
Assembly.

Both Council Tax and non-domestic rates bear many similarities to previous funding
mechanisms, in that they are related to the value of the property (domestic or non
domestic) on which they are levied and the fact that they are raised within each Authority
to generate funding for the local services provided in that area.

Whilst both systems have had their critics, they have stood the test of time as mechanisms

for raising revenue to fund local services. The most comprehensive review of the Council
Page 198



91

White Paper - Power to Local People

Tax system, the 2007 Lyons Review, % concluded that the system was “not broken”.

The Review made a number of recommendations for improving the system, including the
revaluation of properties and the extension of the bandings: these were implemented

in Wales. Apart from a few specific exemptions, non domestic rates apply to all non
domestic property, including public property and property occupied by non profit making
organisations. Changes to the system in 1990 introduced a national approach with receipts
being pooled and redistributed to iron out local variations and ensure sufficient funding

is available for Authorities with small tax bases. Very few Authorities in Wales consistently
raise more in non-domestic rates than they receive from the national pool.

Much of this local variation will be reduced by having a smaller number of larger Authorities
and there will be substantial scope for economies of scale in administration and collection.
However, replacing or redesigning either system would be costly and complex and could
result in substantial shifts in liability for some tax-payers. Any replacement system would
therefore need to offer clear benefits or improvements to justify the investment. We would
also wish to ensure any large-scale redesign complements the approach taken in Wales

to the collection and management of devolved taxes through the creation of the Welsh
Revenue Authority and aligns to the tax principles of fairness, simplicity, stability and
supporting growth outlined by the Welsh Government in November 2014. Therefore, as
outlined in Reforming Local Government, we do not anticipate making major changes to
the main features of the Local Government finance system in advance of the second Bill.

However, in the shorter term, we intend to take the opportunity to simplify and
streamline the existing systems as much as possible to support greater efficiency and
clearer accountability. Both the Council Tax and non domestic rates systems have grown
incrementally over the past 20 years, with various relief schemes — such as Council Tax
reduction schemes — new provisions, discounts, exemptions and so forth being added

on. There are also some inconsistencies. We wish to review and design out some of

these complexities to develop simpler, more understandable systems which are easier to
manage. There is also a question as to how much local discretion should be allowed in the
administration of the schemes. Non domestic rates are set nationally, whilst Authorities
have discretion to set their Council Tax, with the Welsh Ministers having powers to impose
limits (caps) where they consider increases to be unreasonable. We are seeking views on
whether specific parts of the existing local taxation systems could be simplified.

9.3.3 General revenue funding — distribution

The available Welsh Government funding provided through the Revenue Support Grant
and non-domestic rates is distributed between Local Authorities using a formula which

is reviewed annually. It incorporates a series of indicators of the social and economic
characteristics for each Authority, providing an assessment of their relative need on an
objective basis. We intend to retain this needs-based formula approach but the process of
mergers will require the development of a new basis for distributing the funding.

In the short term, we intend to consider any changes to the distribution system which are
necessary to enable the Welsh Government to continue to distribute revenue funding to
Authorities during the period of transition to new Authorities. Any necessary changes will
be included in the second Bill or effected as part of secondary legislation.

105 The Lyons Inquiry into Local Government, 2007 http://www.lyonsinquiry.org.uk/

Page 199


http://www.lyonsinquiry.org.uk/

92

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

In the longer term, we will conduct a fundamental review of the current distribution
mechanism to ensure it can assess the relative need of the new Authorities, whilst
ensuring the funding methodology does not in itself reinforce disparities in need across
Wales. The review will look at the underlying methodology as well as the formula itself.
Thecurrent approach draws on past spending patterns whereas we will want to explore the
scope for the distribution to reflect a more outcome-based approach to performance and
improvement. As well as reviewing the formula and the component indicators, we want

to ensure the new distribution is as clear and simple as possible. We already publish
comprehensive details about the way the funding is distributed but transparency is about
clarity as well as openness.

The new approach will also need to take account of any changes to other tiers of Local
Government where reform might have implications for the way those Authorities are
funded. These might include, for example, Fire and Rescue Authorities and Community
Councils (see 4.9 above). As each of these tiers is funded in a different way at present,
we will also aim to develop funding arrangements which allow for a simpler and more
consistent approach. We will develop this new approach in consultation with Local
Government.

9.3.4 General revenue funding — council tax

The Reforming Local Government White Paper noted there should be no need for the
overall Council Tax requirement to increase as a consequence of mergers whilst recognising
there might be local impacts on Council Tax levels as a result of the redistribution of
funding. It asked for views on the most equitable approach to raising revenues for local
services and we will take the responses into account in designing the funding systems for
the new Authorities.

9.3.5 Other revenue funding and flexibility

Welsh Authorities also receive a considerable amount of revenue funding in the form of
specific grants from the Welsh Government (around £700 million a year) and from other
government bodies. These grants provide funding for specified purposes and Ministerial
priorities. We recognise there are administrative overheads associated with managing
funding in this form and that Authorities want greater flexibility in how they use such
funding. However, there is a balance to be struck in ensuring some funding is available
for, and is targeted towards, national priorities and new initiatives. We will explore, as part
of our initial work and the longer term review, the scope for managing such resources in
ways which contribute to the delivery of better services and provide clearer accountability,
including whether such funding might be better deployed by channelling it to other
providers.

Authorities also generate over £1 billion a year in locally-raised fees and charges and other
income. Greater local flexibility over the setting of fees and charges might assist Authorities
in managing financial challenges. The Welsh Government recognises there may be some
benefits in giving local discretion over the setting of fees and charges. A general power of
competence, as referred to in Chapter 2, would provide for this but we would also want
sufficient controls in place to ensure key services are affordable for those who need them
and the services are delivered in ways which are consistent with national priorities.

Page 200



93

White Paper - Power to Local People

Another source of funding available to Local Authorities is repayable grants administered by
the Invest-to-Save Fund. Approximately £20m is available for distribution to public services
each year through an annual bidding round. The Invest-to-Save Fund is also well positioned
to provide support for innovation and service redesign.

We will also consider other areas where greater flexibility might offer Local Authorities
more control over the planning and management of their budgets. We are seeking views
on how greater flexibility can be designed into a new Local Government finance system,
whilst safeqguarding the need to target appropriate spend towards national priorities.

9.3.6 Capital funding

Like revenue spending, capital spending and investment is supported through a mix of
central and local funding. The Welsh Government provides capital funding through general
and specific grants, as well as through access to Invest-to-Save funds. Support for the

cost of borrowing is provided through the Revenue Support Grant and through the Local
Government Borrowing Initiative. Local Authorities complement this with the use of capital
receipts and locally funded borrowing. Local Authorities also manage substantial portfolios
of capital assets although these vary considerably from Authority to Authority.

There is already a well established framework governing capital spending which gives Local
Authorities considerable autonomy whilst ensuring that any borrowing is prudent and
affordable and assets are managed appropriately. Building on this, we want to ensure the
capital funding system is fit for the 21st Century and to explore innovative approaches to
funding and ways of ensuring capital infrastructure is developed strategically and managed
effectively to deliver the best outcomes. Such considerations will form part of the longer
term work on reforming the Local Government finance system. We are seeking views on
whether there are any changes that would be achievable and desirable in the shorter term
and as part of the second Bill.

9.3.7 Funding other tiers of Local Government

As well as the Local Authorities, the current funding arrangements encompass a number of
other tiers of Local Government, including Police and Crime Commissioners, Community
Councils, Fire and Rescue Authorities, and National Park Authorities and a number of
smaller authorities, boards and committees. These do not all fall within the scope of
Reforming Local Government but we will examine the options for making the funding
arrangements more coherent and effective for those bodies which do.

Community Councils are currently funded mainly through each Community Council issuing
a precept for Council Tax to its Local Authority. The precept for a particular Community
Council forms part of the Council Tax bill for each household in the relevant area. These
precepts are subject to different rules from those over the Council Tax set by a Local
Authority or a Police and Crime Commissioner.

The proposals for community governance in Chapters 4 and 5 will have implications for
the way services and functions are carried out within communities and, in turn, for the way
such services are funded. We will want to ensure any new funding arrangements provide
clear accountability and maximise the opportunity for communities to be engaged in
decision making.

Fire and Rescue Authorities are funded through a levy on their component Local

Authorities. The levy is apportioned according to the population base of the constituent

Authorities but is funded from each Authority’s general revenue funding. This means it is
Page 201



94

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

funded through a combination of the Revenue Support Grant, redistributed non-domestic
rates and Council Tax but the contribution from each of these sources is not identifiable.
The arrangements will need to be reviewed in light of any reforms to how fire and rescue
services are governed. The Welsh Government will be consulting separately on proposals
for the governance of Fire and Rescue Authorities and any associated changes to funding
arrangements.

Outside the scope of this White Paper, changes to the functions and governance of National
Park Authorities are also being considered. We will keep the financial arrangements under
review to ensure they support the effective operation and oversight of the national parks,
integrate more effectively with other parts of the Local Government finance system and
align with the vision outlined earlier in this chapter.

9.4 Financial Governance

The current framework for governing financial and accounting practices and audit requirements
for Local Government finance is set out over an extensive body of primary and secondary
legislation, supplemented by numerous pieces of statutory and professional guidance and codes
of practice. In addition to the management of the various funding streams referred to above,

it encompasses the management of reserves, treasury management functions, the management
of assets and liabilities, the preparation of accounts, and forward planning to name but a few.
One of the key features of the regime however, is that it is based on the principle that each
Authority is a separate, democratically accountable body which has a considerable degree

of flexibility in the way in which it exercises the duties placed upon it and provides services.

The framework requires prudence in financial management and requires those responsible

for making decisions to do so transparently and be accountable for the decisions they make.
There are also specific fiduciary duties on each Authority’s Section 151 Officer, as appointed
under the Local Government Act 1972. All Local Authorities are subject to rigorous external
audit.

We do not propose to change this central principle as we believe it is fundamental to the way
Local Government operates and its relationship with the Welsh Government. Neither do we
intend to separate the approach in Wales from that which currently exists and works within
UK-wide professional frameworks. However, we will look to update, streamline and consolidate
aspects of the framework to ensure decisions can be made in ways which lead to improved
delivery and performance and focus spending where it has the greatest impact. We intend to
consider improvements to the current system both in terms of accountability and community
engagement, and also in terms of financial planning and access to information.

9.4.1 Accounting, accountability and engagement

The arrangements for financial governance should make the responsibilities for decision-
making more transparent and provide clearer lines of accountability between the Welsh
Government (and other funding bodies), Local Government and local people. Our vision for
the future framework is one of greater openness and accountability, where people actively
engage in the spending decisions which affect their daily lives and the end result carries
with it a clear rationale. In support of this approach to openness and transparency and
greater community engagement, we intend to issue statutory guidance on how Authorities
should engage with the local community when determining their annual budget and
Council Tax requirement. We would expect all Authorities to improve the transparency and
accessibility of published accounting information by making information such as budgets,

Page 202



95

White Paper - Power to Local People

balances and past expenditure levels available on the single information portal when
established.

9.4.2 Financial planning

A key requirement of the future governance framework is that it needs to reconcile the
enduring reality of funding constraints with the expected growth in demand for certain
local services. We recognise this means difficult choices for spending. The corporate
planning requirement set out in Chapter 7 will support more robust medium and long term
financial management, asset management and workforce planning.

The Welsh Government has a clear policy to provide indicative settlements for Local
Government where we have forward indications regarding the Welsh Government Budget
from the UK Government. We do not intend to change this policy and we will use this
information to support medium and longer term financial planning. Simpler, clearer
financial planning systems should stimulate better focused and better performing local
services which take account of priorities and funding pressures now and in the future.

9.5 We would like your views
The Consultation Survey asks questions on the following themes:
e Qur vision and the proposed phased approach
e Balance of funding and flexibility
e General revenue funding — local taxation
e General revenue funding — distribution

e Financial governance and accounting arrangements

Page 203



96

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

10. Conclusion

This White Paper sets out our vision for the future of Local Government in Wales. We want high
performing, inclusive and accountable Local Authorities which operate transparently and openly,
and plan effectively. We want Local Authorities, and Community Councils, to make best use of
the resources available to them, sharing power and responsibility with the communities they
serve.

Delivering this vision will need a proper relationship between those who provide a service and
those who rely on it, through stronger local democracy and more effective scrutiny.

The Welsh Government cannot deliver the changes needed on its own, and neither should it.
All our public services face complex and unprecedented challenges, as well as a future that

will be politically, socially and technologically dynamic. Success will require astute and adaptive
leadership commensurate with the challenges we face. We will find and we will support that
leadership wherever it grows — in our Local Authorities, in our other public services, and most of
all our communities themselves.

Page 204



White Paper - Power to Local People

11. Glossary of Terms

Term

Explanation

Audit

Audit is concerned with accuracy. It considers whether a set of data
about an organisation (e.qg. its financial statements) is properly calculated
and fairly presented. The independent examination of data, statements,
records, operations and performance (financial or otherwise) of a Local
Authority to ensure public money is being spent efficiently and effectively.

Cabinet

The Leader and Cabinet model was introduced following the Local
Government Act 2000. The Cabinet consists of the Leader and other
Cabinet Members, usually formed by the majority party in the Local
Authority. Each member of the Cabinet holds a separate portfolio, such as
education, social services, culture, etc.

The Leader and Cabinet are responsible for policies, plans and strategies,
and for recommending them to the full Council.

Community
Council

A Community Council is a public representative body. It is established to
attend to local interests and to organise community activities. Community
Councillors are elected to a Community Council by public poll.

Community of
Interest

A ‘community of interest’ is defined not by space, but by some common
bond (e.g. feeling of attachment) or entity (e.g. farming, church group). It
is a gathering of people assembled around a topic of common interest. Its
members take part in the community to exchange information, to obtain
answers to questions or problems, or to improve their understanding of a
subject.

Community of
place

A community of place or place-based community is a community of
people who are bound together because of where they reside, work, visit
or otherwise spend a continuous portion of their time. Such a community
can be a neighborhood, town, coffeehouse, workplace, gathering place,
public space or any other geographically specific place that a number of
people share, have in common or visit frequently.

Constitution

Local Authorities are required by law to have a constitution which sets
out their standing orders (the rules under which they operate) and various
other matters such as how elected members must behave, and job
descriptions for key roles.

Council

The Council is the full body of elected members in a Local Authority,
including members of the Executive and all other Elected Members. It does
not include any employees of the Local Authority. Some decisions may
only be taken by full Council and may not be delegated to the Executive,
committees of the Council or to employees.

Councillor

Another term for an Elected Member. It can refer to Elected Members
of Principal Local Authorities or Community Councils — the meaning is
generally clear from the context.

Elected Member

A person elected by public poll to a Local Authority

Executive

Within the context of this White Paper, this is another term for the Leader
and Cabinet.

Page 205

97



98

Devolution, Democracy and Delivery

External review

Critical review of the decisions and actions of a Local Authority by external
bodies, in particular the Wales Audit Office, and the bodies charged with
inspecting social services (Care and Social Services Inspectorate Wales) and
education (Estyn).

Head of Paid A statutory role charged with providing and managing the staff of a Local
Service Authority.
Inspection Inspection is concerned with competence. It considers whether an

organisation and/or the services it provides are of an adequate standard,
whether in terms of public need or expectation or of an accepted
professional practice.

Internal review

In this paper, this phrase is mostly synonymous with scrutiny, but it
also includes other mechanisms such as review by the Executive of
its performance or effectiveness, or the actions of internal audit and
governance functions.

Local Authority

A County or County Borough Council in Wales. See also Unitary Authority.
In this document we use the term Local Authority except where specified.

Local Government

Local government is a form of public administration which exists as a
lower tier of administration. The term is used to contrast with offices
at a higher level referred to as central or national government (i.e. the
Whitehall Government or the Welsh Government).

Local government act within powers delegated to them by legislation or
directives of the higher level of government.

Local Service
Board

Local Service Boards (LSBs) are non-statutory partnerships across the 22
Local Authority areas in Wales. They agree and oversee a single-integrated
plan for the area; the single integrated plan brings together four statutory
plans (the Community Strategy, the Children and Young People’s Plan, the
Health, Social Care and Well-being Strategy and the Community Safety
Partnership Plan).

The membership, structure and approach of LSBs vary across Wales, but
all have the key leaders and chief executives of the major public service
providers in the area.

Non-executive

An Elected Member who does not sit on the Cabinet of a Local Authority

member
Officers Individuals employed by a Local Authority.
Peer Review Critical review of the decisions and actions of a Local Authority conducted

on the invitation of the Local Authority by capable individuals such as
senior officers from another public body or retired senior officers.

Public service

The concept of public service is based on a social consensus that certain
services should be available to all, regardless of income. Public services
benefit all of society rather than just the individual who uses the service.

A public service is a service which is provided by government to people
living within its jurisdiction, either directly (through the public sector) or by
financing provision of services.

Page 206




White Paper - Power to Local People

Public Services
Board

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Bill proposes to change
Local Service Boards into statutory Public Services Boards.

Regulation

Regulation is concerned with compliance. It considers whether an
organisation’s activities conform to legal or similar requirement; and may
lead to formal action if they are found not to be.

Scrutiny

Investigation, enquiry or examination of the decisions of a Local Authority
executive, or of the actions or decisions of a Local Authority officer, or into
policy areas.

Seat

A place in an elected legislative or other body, individuals are elected to a
seat by public poll.

Self-Assessment

Critical review of the capability and capacity of a Local Authority
conducted by the Authority itself. Self-assessment is used to explore
strengths and identify areas for self-improvement. Focused on supporting
an organisation to develop their ambition and approaches to system and
service transformation.

Social enterprises,
mutual,
cooperative

and collective
ownership models

A business or service with primarily social objectives whose surpluses are
principally reinvested for that purpose in the community, rather than being
driven by the need to maximise profit for shareholders and owners

The key characteristics of a social enterprise are:

1. They trade, i.e. sell, goods and/or services and any profit or ‘surplus’
made as a result of their trading activities is either ploughed back into
the business or distributed to the community they serve.

2. They have a clear social purpose. This may include job creation, or the
provision of local facilities e.g. a nursery, community shop, or social care
for the elderly.

3. They are owned and managed by their employees.

A social enterprise can be a Community Interest Company, a Company
Limited by Guarantee, a Company Limited by shares, or an Industrial
or Provident Society. Many also take charitable status, such as Housing
Associations.

Term Limit

A statutory restriction on the number of terms an official or officeholder
may serve.

Uncontested seat

A seat on an elected legislative or other body where only one candidate
is put forward. As such no votes are actually cast and the candidate is by
definition the victor.

Unitary Authority

A Unitary Authority discharges all the main functions of a Local Authority.
In England, and in Wales in the past, these functions have been shared
between different tiers of Local Government, such as County and District
Councils. In this document we use the term Local Authority except where
specified.

Page 207

99



Page 208



ATODIAD / APPENDIX
2

Page 209



National Assembly for Wales — Finance Committee — 21 January 2015

Amendments to the
Public Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

Introduction

The legislation governing the Ombudsman’s office is the Public Services
Ombudsman (Wales) Act 2005. At the time it was enacted, it was considered to be
at the cutting edge of ombudsman legislation and is still highly regarded in the UK
and internationally™.

In 2015 the Act will be ten years old. New legislation has been introduced in the
Republic of Ireland and elsewhere since 2005, while new legislation, drawing on the
Welsh experience but designed to further develop it, is being introduced in Northern
Ireland.

In addition, the Law Commission reviewed the legislation governing public services
ombudsmen in England and Wales.? It commented favourably on the existing Public
Services Ombudsman (Wales) Act but did make a number of recommendations for
change one of which is referred to in section 2.5.

| have been in post since August 2014; during that time | have now had the
opportunity to discuss legislative issues with my peers in all jurisdictions of the UK.

This paper sets out five key areas for change which have been informed from the
experience of the office, developments of best practice elsewhere as well as the
recommendations of the Law Commission.

The paper focuses on these five discrete parts in the hope that the suggested
changes will be uncontroversial and can enjoy broad support for review and
enactment by the Assembly in 2015. The suggested changes reflect four
underlying priorities:

e Future proofing: the proposals are intended to ensure that the legislation
continues to be fit for purpose, but that it also addresses future challenges which
will affect service users in an ageing society where there are greater levels of
physical and emotional vulnerability.

! Ombudsman Legislation — time for a review? Peter Tyndall March 2013
? Law Com No 329 14 July 2011 http://lawcommission.justice.gov.uk/areas/public-services-ombudsmen.htm

Page 210




Social justice: the proposals ensure that citizens from more deprived
backgrounds, who may be more reliant on public services, will find it easier to
make a complaint.

Citizen Centred: proposals will strengthen the citizen’s voice and ensure that
wherever possible processes will follow the citizen rather than the sector or the
silo.

Drive complaint handling and public service improvement: these proposals
will make a real contribution to public service improvement and reform whilst
offering excellent value for money. The changes can be achieved whilst
maintaining the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (PSOW) budget at no
more than 0.03% of the Welsh Budget block.

2. Five Areas for Change

2.1  Own initiative investigations

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

Virtually without exception, public services ombudsmen throughout Europe,
and indeed, internationally, have the power to undertake investigations on
their own initiative. The Ombudsman in the Republic of Ireland already has
such a power and it will shortly be introduced in Northern Ireland also.
Outside of the UK, only five members of the Council of Europe have
ombudsmen who do not have own initiative powers: Belgium, Luxembourg,
Azerbaijan, Kyrgyzstan and Liechtenstein.

This is a power normally used sparingly to investigate where there is an
obvious problem but no complaint has come forward or, more usually, to
extend an investigation into a complaint to other bodies where it appears that
the maladministration or service failure identified is likely to be systemic and
affecting people other than the complainant.

The Ombudsman in the Republic of Ireland undertook five own initiative
reviews between 2001 and 2010 on issues ranging from subventions in
nursing home care, tax refunds to widows, refuse collection charges and the
rights to nursing home care for elderly people.®

It would be important to frame any changes in such a way as to ensure that
the power would be used only where appropriate and cases could be referred
to regulators or commissioners where this was a more suitable alternative.

This power is likely to become more important as we see the impact of an
ageing society with citizens in vulnerable positions either unable or afraid to
complain.

A Paper Prepared by the Office of the Northern Ireland Ombudsman on a Power to Commence and Own Initiative

Investigation

Page 211



2.2 Access — oral complaints

(@)

(b)

The current legislation is generally helpful in providing access to the office.
The Ombudsman’s service is free of charge and the requirement for bodies in
jurisdiction to tell people about their right to complain has ensured that people
can access the office as they need to. There is a requirement that all
complaints should be in writing. Whilst the Ombudsman has discretion to
accept a complaint in another form if appropriate, this has to be considered on
a case by case basis.

However, in view of the changing nature of electronic communication, and the
considerable equalities issues about potentially excluding people who cannot
write, including, for example, people with learning disabilities, there is a case
to be made for modernising this area of the legislation so that it is explicit in
the legislation that complaints may be made orally with the Ombudsman being
obliged to justify to a body being investigated why he has decided to set aside
the requirement for a complaint to be made in writing in individual cases. At
UK level 94% of the population attain literacy level 1 or above, in Wales it is
only 87%. Access for people who cannot write should not be discretionary.
They should have the same access as any other service user in Wales. In
England legislation has recently been reformed for the Local Government
Ombudsman. There is a danger that in Wales we have a greater need but are
lagging behind in this regard.

2.3 Complaint Standards Authority

(@)

In Wales, we have developed the model complaints policy to help to achieve
consistency across public service providers. Take up has been patchy, but is
improving. Adoption is voluntary, but strongly encouraged. In theory, with the
recent changes to the social services statutory complaints procedure, all public
services devolved to Wales should be operating a streamline two stage
complaints procedure. However, the problem lies with enforcement. | am
conscious of the arrangement in Scotland where a few years ago, the Scottish
Ombudsman was given the role of Complaints Standards Authority. | know
that the Scottish Ombudsman has found this arrangement to be particularly
effective in enabling him to tackle problems in the standards of complaint
handling within the bodies in his jurisdiction. | believe that there is a case for
adopting such an approach in Wales so that any guidance | give to bodies on
complaints handling has statutory force so that | can help support
improvement in public sector complaints handling.

2.4  Extension and reform of jurisdiction- Healthcare

(@)

With an ever ageing society the integration of health and social care is an
important part of public policy. Recently my jurisdiction was extended to
include self-funded social care and hospice care; however | cannot investigate
private healthcare, unless it was commissioned by the NHS.

Page 212


apxce_6
Highlight

apxce_7
Highlight


(b) Recently there was a case that | could not resolve where a patient had been
treated by the NHS, then privately (self funded) and then again in the NHS.
The patient sadly died. | was unable to investigate the private funded
healthcare. Clearly there is a need to reform legislation where a patient
chooses to be treated in both public and private sectors that the complaints
process follows the citizen not the sector®. It has been recommended that the
remit of the Parliamentary Health Service Ombudsman should be extended to
cover the whole private healthcare sector.”

(c) The inclusion of private sector providers raises issues around funding of
complaints handling and also compliance. Whilst the investigation of private
social care complaints is currently resourced from the public funding that I
receive through the National Assembly, there might be a view that a different
arrangement should be considered if private healthcare providers also came
into jurisdiction.

(d) Private sector ombudsman schemes are normally funded by the bodies in their
jurisdiction. This is usually underpinned by statute. The funding mechanism
may be an annual levy, or based on case by case charging, or often on a
combination of both.

(e) This has the dual function of ensuring that the cost does not fall to the public
purse while also engaging the “polluter pays” principle, giving providers an
incentive to avoid error and resolve complaints as a means of not incurring the
costs. There is again a strong case for ensuring this is the case for any
private provider in the office’s jurisdiction.  This hybrid funding model is
already in place at the New South Wales Ombudsman’s office, for example.®
However, as Lesley Griffiths noted as Local Government Minister: “The
suggestion of a levy, for example, would be very challenging to put into
practice”.” The introduction of such a system is clearly a policy choice for the

Committee.

() Where the bodies in jurisdiction are public bodies, the existing powers of
recommendation work well and there is no evident need for change. Thus far,
no public service provider has refused to implement a recommendation.
However, where private bodies are in jurisdiction, as is now the case with
social care providers, the democratic process cannot be engaged in the same
way and compliance may be harder to secure. Private sector ombudsman
schemes normally have binding powers and it would be helpful to consider
including this provision in respect of private providers only in the future.

* With the Wales Act 2014 having received Royal Assent | am also aware that an amendment may be required to
Schedule 3 of the PSOW (Wales) Act 2005 to give me jurisdiction to consider complaints against the new Welsh
Revenue Authority

>DoH Review of the Regulation of Cosmetic Interventions
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment data/file/192028/Review of the Regulation of Cosmetic
_Interventions.pdf

® Ombudsman Legislation — time for a review? Peter Tyndall March 2013

7 Letter from Lesley Griffiths AM to Christine Chapman Chair of Communities, Equalities and Local Government
Committee

Page 213


https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/192028/Review_of_the_Regulation_of_Cosmetic_Interventions.pdf�
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/192028/Review_of_the_Regulation_of_Cosmetic_Interventions.pdf�

2.5

3.1

3.2

(@

There is also an anomaly in the existing legislation whereby individual family
health service providers (e.g. GPs or dentists, rather than surgeries or
practices) are in jurisdiction. This has the unfortunate effect of personalising
complaints in this sector whereas elsewhere, it is the public service provider,
rather than an individual, who is in jurisdiction. Any change would have the
effect of my naming the relevant practice or surgery in any report rather than
an individual practitioner. This may also be unfair if the practitioner
responsible for any service failure has since moved from the particular practice
or surgery. However, | already have the power to name any person (other
than the listed authority being investigated) if, having taken into account the
interests of person aggrieved in any complaint or any other person | think it is
appropriate and | consider it is in the public interest to do so.

Links with the courts

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

The Law Commission identified a number of areas where changes to
legislation would be desirable. There is currently a statutory bar which
prevents the PSOW from considering a complaint where the case could be
considered by the courts. However, there is discretion to set this requirement
aside. The Law Commission take the view that this bar should be set aside
entirely, so that complainants can choose which is the more appropriate route
for them.

In addition, there is currently no provision to allow the PSOW to consider a
complaint when a judge determines that it would be the better means of
resolution. Changing the law to allow the Administrative Court to “stay” cases
and to refer them to the Ombudsman would address this issue, but the Law
Commission recommend that the discretion as to whether to investigate or not
should remain with the Ombudsman as at present.

Finally, the Law Commission have suggested that the PSOW should be able
to refer a case to the court for determination of a point of law. They suggest
that this will enable the PSOW to seek clarity on a legal point which might
otherwise hinder or prevent an investigation as well as seeking clarity where
there is doubt as to whether a matter is in jurisdiction.

This latter point clearly impact on the English and Welsh court system and
advice is sought as to whether this latter change could fall within the purview
of an amended PSOW Act.

The Cost of Change

Own initiative investigations

Two full time investigation officers £80k-£100k, including on-costs.

Access — oral complaints

No cost.

Page 214



3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

Complaint Standards Authority
e Two full time investigation officers — £80k-£100k, including on-costs.

Extension and reform of Jurisdiction- Healthcare
e Dependent on public or private funding method — £0k-£40k-£50k provision
(dependent on policy choice re levy).

Links with the courts
e £20k Referrals from/to courts.

Total costs: £180k- £270k per annum.

The Case for Change

In considering the case of change, | have been keen to focus on:

¢ the need to future-proof the legislation and organisation

e improving social justice and making sure that voices of complainants from more
disadvantaged backgrounds are heard

e making sure the Ombudsman’s work is Citizen Centred, rather than constrained
to individual sectors or silos.

e driving improvement in public services and in complaint handling

e affordability and value for money.

| believe the suggested changes address these priorities, and hope that they will
enjoy broad support.

Nick Bennett
Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
January 2015

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkkhkkhkhkkhkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkkhkkhkhkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkhkkkhkkkkkkkkhkkhkkhkkkkkkkkkk

Page 215



Cynulliad
Cenedlaethol

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid Cymru

. . National
Finance Committee Assembly for

Wales

> 2

Bae Caerdydd / Cardiff Bay
Caerdydd / Cardiff
CF99 TNA

26 January 2015
Dear Sir/Madam

Consultation on an inquiry into the consideration of powers of the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales

The National Assembly for Wales’ Finance Committee is undertaking an inquiry to
consider extending the powers of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales (“the
Ombudsman”), should the evidence support the extension of the Ombudsman’s
powers the Committee may consider the introduction of a Committee Bill. The
terms of reference for the inquiry are available on the Committee’s webpage.

Background
The role of the Ombudsman was established by the Public Services Ombudsman
(Wales) Act 2005.

The current Ombudsman, Nick Bennett and his predecessor, Peter Tyndall have
both called for changes to the Act during their role. Five main areas have been
highlighted for potential legislative changes to strengthen the Ombudsman’s role,
including:

= own-initiative powers - this would enable the Ombudsman to initiate his
own investigations without having first received a complaint about an issue;

Page 216


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=229
http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=11936
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/10/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/10/contents

»= oral complaints - at present, the Ombudsman can only accept complaints in
writing;

= complaints handling across public services - this would enable the
Ombudsman to have a role in advising on complaints handling across
public services;

= the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction (to include private health services) -this
would extend the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction to enable him/her to
investigate when a patient has received private healthcare (self-funded,
rather than being commissioned by the NHS) in conjunction with public
healthcare; and

* |inks with the courts - the removal of the statutory bar to allow the
Ombudsman to consider a case that has or had the possibility of recourse
to a court, tribunal or other mechanism for review (this would give
complainants the opportunity to decide which route is most appropriate for
them).

The Ombudsman has submitted a paper to the Finance Committee which provides
further background information and details of these proposals. To assist with its
inquiry, the Committee would welcome your views on the questions attached at
Annexe A.

Invitation to contribute to the inquiry

The Committee welcomes responses in Welsh or English from both individuals and
organisations and will hold oral evidence sessions in due course.

Submissions should be no longer than five sides of A4, with numbered paragraphs,
and should focus on matters set out above. Please see guidance for those providing
evidence for committees.

If you wish to submit evidence, please send an electronic copy (preferably not in
PDF) of your submission to SeneddFinance@Assembly.Wales

Alternatively, you can write to:
Committee Clerk
Finance Committee
National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay, CF99 TNA.

Page 217


http://www.senedd.assembly.wales/documents/s35930/Background%20Paper%20-%20Public%20Services%20Ombudsman%20for%20Wales.pdf
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Providing-evidence-for-committees.aspx
http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Providing-evidence-for-committees.aspx
mailto:SeneddFinance@Assembly.Wales

Submissions should arrive by 20 March 2015. It may not be possible to take into
account responses received after this date.

The Committee would be grateful if you could forward a copy of this letter to any
individuals or organisations that might like to contribute to the review. A copy of
this letter will be placed on the National Assembly’s website with an open invitation
to submit views.

Disclosure of Information

The Assembly’s policy on disclosure of information is available, please ensure that
you have considered these details carefully before submitting information to the
Committee. Alternatively a hard copy of this policy can be requested by contacting
the Clerk (Leanne Hatcher 0300 200 6343).

Yours faithfully,

gy Dasio

Jocelyn Davies AC /| AM
Cadeirydd / Chair

Page 218


http://www.assemblywales.org/help/privacy/help-inquiry-privacy.htm

Annexe A
Consultation Questions

1. What are your views on the effectiveness of the current Public Services
Ombudsman (Wales) Act 20057

Own initiative investigations

2. Currently, the Ombudsman may only investigate a matter that is the subject of a
complaint made to him/her. What are your views on ‘own initiative’ investigations
powers, which would enable the Ombudsman to initiate his/her own investigations
without having first received a complaint about an issue. Please explain your
answer.

3. Do you have any concerns that own-initiative investigation powers could result
in the Ombudsman’s responsibilities overlapping with the responsibilities of other

bodies? How could this be managed?

4. Do you have a view on the likely financial costs and benefits of the Ombudsman
having own-initiative powers?

Oral Complaints
5. At present, the Ombudsman can only accept complaints in writing. What are your
views on the Ombudsman being able to accept complaints made orally? Please

explain your answer.

6. What other type/form of submission should be acceptable (e.g. email, website
form, text messages)

7. Do you have a view on the financial costs and benefits of this provision?

Complaints handling across public services

8. At present there is no consistency in the way public bodies deal with complaints.
Adoption of the model complaints policy issued by the Welsh government is

Page 219


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/10/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/10/contents

voluntary. What are your views on the Ombudsman preparing a model complaints
policy which public bodies would be obliged to adopt. Please explain your answer.

9. Do you have a view on the financial costs and benefits of this provision?
Ombudsman’s jurisdiction

10. What are your general views on the Ombudsman’s current jurisdiction?

11. At present the Ombudsman can investigate private health care that has been
commissioned by the NHS. The Ombudsman would like the jurisdiction to be
extended to enable him/her to investigate when a patient has received private
healthcare (self-funded not commissioned by the NHS) in conjunction with public
healthcare. This would enable the complaints process to follow the citizen rather
than the sector. What are your views on extending the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction in

this way?

12. How do you think the investigation of private health care complaints should be
funded? (Possibilities include a levy, charging on a case by case basis or no charge.)

13. Do you have a view on the financial costs and benefits of this provision?

Links with the courts

14. What are your views on the removal of the statutory bar to allow the
Ombudsman to consider a case which has or had the possibility of recourse to a
court, tribunal or other mechanism for review? (ie this would give complainants the

opportunity to decide which route is most appropriate for them.)

15. What are your views on the Ombudsman being able to refer cases to the Courts
for a determination on a point of law?

16. Do you have a view on the financial costs and benefits of this provision?

Page 220



Other issues

17. Do you have any specific examples where the Ombudsman having the
additional powers proposed could have been useful in securing a successful
conclusion to an issue?

18. Schedule 3 of the current 2005 Act, provides a list of authorities that are within
the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction to investigate complaints. Please provide details of
any other bodies/organisations that should be included in this list?

19. If extended powers were given to the Ombudsman in a new Bill/Act, at what
point should the impact of this legislation be evaluated?

20. What unintended consequences could arise as a result of these provisions
becoming legislation and what steps could be taken to deal with these
consequences?

21. What factors should be measured to determine the cost-benefit analysis of this
legislation being brought forward?

22. Do you have any comments on the following issues:

» jurisdiction - changes to the devolution settlement have led to new areas
coming into jurisdiction over time, should consideration be given to other
bodies being included in the Ombudsman’s jurisdiction;

= recommendations and findings - should the recommendations of the
Ombudsman to public bodies be binding. This would mean that bodies
cannot decide to reject the findings;

= protecting the title - there has been a proliferation of schemes calling
themselves ombudsmen, often without satisfying the key criteria of the
concept such as independence from those in jurisdiction and being free to
the complainant. Should anyone intending to use the title ombudsman gain
approval from the Ombudsman;

» code of conduct complaints - the Ombudsman would prefer to focus on the
element of his work that deals with service users and service delivery, rather
than local authority and town and community councils’ resolutions. Whilst a

Page 221


http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2005/10/schedule/3
apxce_8
Highlight


local resolution procedures exists and has been adopted by 22 local
authorities, variance exists in practice.

23. Do you have any views on any aspects of future planned or proposed public
sector reforms that would impact on the role of the Ombudsman?

24. Do you have any other issues or concerns about the current Act and are there
any other areas that need reform or updating?

Page 222


apxce_9
Highlight

apxce_10
Highlight

apxce_11
Highlight

apxce_12
Highlight


Awena Walkden
§

From: Jenna Redfern <jenna.redfern@WLGA.GOV.UK> on behalf of Daniel Hurford
<daniel.hurford@WLGA.GOV.UK>

Sent: 05 February 2015 09:18

To: Daniel Hurford

Subject: Inquiry into powers of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Attachments: 150126 - Finance Committee - Ombudsman Inquiry.pdf; 150126 - Finance

Committee - Ombudsman Inquiry - Background Paper.pdf

To Chief Executives, Monitoring Officers and Heads of Policy
Dear all,

The Assembly’s Finance Committee has launched an Inquiry into the powers of the Public Services
Ombudsman for Wales. Attached is the Committee’s consultation letter, the deadline for which is 20"
March 2015. The Committee has however requested that the WLGA give oral evidence on 25" February
with written evidence submitted by the 18" February.

The Public Services Ombudsman Nick Bennett recently gave evidence to committee (as had Peter Tyndall
previously) regarding where he felt that his powers could be clarified, updated or strengthened. It appears
as a result however that the Committee is keen to explore whether the 2005 Ombudsman Act should be
amended on its 10" anniversary this year — it seems as though the Committee is keen to be the first
Committee to sponsor a Bill this term too.

Although the Ombudsman's proposals (below) appear largely sensible, we are concerned at the timing and
would be concerned if this led to rushed legislation (it is particularly surprising that there is legislative
space given the wider and more significant Bills in the legislative programme currently); there has been no
prior dialogue or engagement around the proposals or around what other potential policy changes are
needed in the Ombudsman's or complaints arena more broadly. The recently White Paper also proposes
some changes, notably around the ethical framework.

Steve Thomas and | met with the Ombudsman Nick Bennett on Monday to discuss his proposals, which are outlined
below including our initial thoughts (his proposals are outlined in more detail in the attached ‘Background Paper’)
are as follows:

1. Introducing ‘Own-initiative’ powers — this would enable the Ombudsman to initiate his own
investigations without having first received a complaint about an issue; - in principle this might be
appropriate, but would need appropriate safeguards and also clear processes to avoid duplication
with, for example, the AGW

2. Allowing Oral complaints - at present, the Ombudsman can only accept complaints in writing; - in
principle this seems appropriate and could be managed via digital recording '

3. Statutory Complaints Process and Complaints Authority function — ensuring consistency across
public services and allowing performance to be compared and shared to identify any service
specific or systemic improvement; -21 of 22 councils already follow the model approach anyway, so
statutory basis will have limited impact. There is scope for improved sharing of information to
inform service design or performance improvements.

4. The Ombudsman’s jurisdiction (to include private health services) — this would extend the
Ombudsman’s jurisdiction to include private health services where patients had accessed public
and private health care; - in principle support

1
Page 223



5. Links with the courts - the removal of the statutory bar to allow the Ombudsman to consider a
case which has or had the possibility of recourse to a court, tribunal or other mechanism for review
(this would give complainants the opportunity to decide which route is most appropriate for them).
—unclear of the benefit. We understand WG feel that the current statutory bar is appropriate.

There would of course be issues in terms of adequate and proportionate resourcing of the Ombudsman’s
office in the current financial climate.

“The Committee’s Inquiry however goes further, asking wider questions, including:
code of conduct complaints — the Ombudsman would prefer to focus on the element of his work
that deals with service users and service delivery, rather than local authority and town and
community councils® resolutions. Whilst a local resolution procedures exists and has been adopted

by 22 local authorities, variance exists in practice."

This will need to be considered in light of proposals in the White Paper (page 31 and Page 35) referring to
the ethical framework and proposals around local resolution, right to recall members and right of appeal.

Steve and | will be giving evidence to the Committee and we would therefore welcome colleagues' initial
views on the attached please.

Regards,

Daniel

Daniel Hurford
Head of Policy (Improvement and Governance), Welsh Local Government Association
Pennaeth Polisiau (Gwella a Llywodraethu), Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru

029 20468615 - 07900 240939
www.wlga.gov.uk @welshlga

sk ok 3k ok ok ok sk ok ok ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sl sk sk sk sk sk skl sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk ok sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk ok skl sk

Privileged/Confidential Information may be contained in this message. If you are not the addressee
indicated in this message (or responsible for delivery of the message to such person), you may not copy or
deliver this message to anyone. In such case, you should destroy this message and kindly notify the sender
by reply email. Please advise immediately if you or your employer does not consent to Internet email for
messages of this kind. Opinions, conclusions and other information in this message that do not relate to the
official business of the Welsh Local Government Association shall be understood as neither given nor
endorsed by it. All e-mail sent to or from this address will be processed by the Association E-mail system
and may be subject to scrutiny by someone other than the addressee.

3k ok sfe ok ok ok e ok ofe o 2k ok s sk she sk s sk o sk sk ke ske sk sk sl sk sk sk sk skl ske sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok dk e ol ke sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ke sk ok Efallai bOd
gwybodaeth gyfrinachol yn y neges yma. Os nad ydych chi'n ymwneud 4 hi yn benodol - nac yn gyfrifol am
ei rhoi i'r sawl sydd wedi'i enwi - chewch chi ddim copio na throsglwyddo'r neges. Yn y cyfryw achos,
dylech chi ddileu'r neges a rhoi gwybod i'r sawl a'i hanfonodd trwy ebost yn ddiymdroi. Rhowch wybod i'r
anfonwr os nad ydych chi neu'ch cyflogwr yn gadael i neb anfon negeseuon o'r fath ar y we. Dyw
Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol Cymru ddim yn hyrwyddo nac yn cymeradwyo unrhyw farn, casgliad na
gwybodaeth nad yw'n berthnasol i'w gwaith swyddogol yn y neges yma. Sustem ebost WLGA fydd yn
prosesu pob neges at y cyfeiriad yma neu oddi wrtho ac, o bosibl, bydd rhywun arall ar wahan i'r sawl sydd

wedi’i enwi yn ei harchwilio.
e sfe ok ofe ok ok s e sfe sfe ok sk s e sk ofe ok sk sk sk sk ke sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok sk sk sk sk sk e sl sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk ok

2
Page 224



Agenda Item 8

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
F

Page 235



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

MEETING: STANDARDS COMMITTEE
DATE: 12.03.2015
TITLE OF REPORT: BRIEFING NOTES FOR OFFICERS AND

COUNTY COUNCIL MEMBERS

REPORT BY: AWENA WALKDEN

PURPOSE OF REPORT: TO UPDATE THE STANDARDS
COMMITTEE ON RECENT BRIEFING
NOTES DRAFTED BY THE LEGAL
DEPARTMENT

Following our meeting on the 11" September 2014, further work has been undertaken by
the Legal Section in developing additional briefing notes on issues we believe would

benefit from further explanation.
The Legal Section has recently drafted the following briefing notes:-

1. Local Guidance on the Officers’ Code of Conduct (Appendix 1)
2. Briefing Note on Dispensations (Appendix 2)

Local Guidance on the Officers’ Code of Conduct
The Officers’ Code of Conduct provides an overview of the standards of conduct expected
from an officer of the Council and can be found in section 5.2 of the Constitution

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-

elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-

code-of-conduct/

Following on from the Frequently Asked Questions on Gifts and Hospitality for Members,
published last year, it was felt that some further clarification was needed on gifts and

hospitality for officers (as well as other interests).

The draft Guidance has already gone out for consultation to the Heads of Service and the

CC-017471-AP/250203 (250494) Page 1

Page 236


http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/

draft in Appendix 1 incorporates their comments.

We have also updated the forms on which officers should declare their interests. These
forms have not yet been out for consultation but the drafts are attached at Appendix 1 for

your views.

Our intention is to publish these documents on the Council’s intranet following on from

completion of this task and to send it out via Y Ddolen for officers’ attention.
Dispensations

At the last meeting of the Standards Committee it was agreed that a Guide should be put
together for members on dispensations.

We attach the Guide in draft form for your comments.

Recommendation

For the Standards Committee to:-

1. Approve / amend the draft documents at Appendices 1 and 2

2. Authorise publication to officers and members respectively.

CC-017471-AP/250203 (250494) Page 2

Page 237



ATODIAD / APPENDIX
1

Page 238



Draft Local Guidance on the Officers’ Code of Conduct

Section 5.2 of our Constitution includes the Officerss Code of Conduct
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-
elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-
code-of-conduct/.

This Guidance seeks to provide advice on key elements of the Code, focusing on
behaviour, declarations of interest and gifts and hospitality.

1. GENERAL PRINCIPLES

The County Council subscribes to the statutory principles of conduct in public life, and
commends them as the underlying principles that should guide the conduct of all Members
and Officers.

The statutory principles require that we all carry out our duties with due regard to:-

1. Selflessness

2. Honesty

3. Integrity and propriety
4. Legality

5. Stewardship

6. Objectivity

7. Equality and Respect
8. Openness

9. Accountability

10.Leadership

2. THE EXPECTED STANDARDS

e We have a duty to uphold the law and to act on all occasions in accordance with
the public trust placed in us, and in such a way as to preserve public confidence in
the Council.

e We have a general duty to act in the interests of the Council as a whole and the
local community.

e As well as avoiding actual impropriety, we should avoid the appearance of improper
behaviour.

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 1

Page 239


http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constitution-52-officers-code-of-conduct/

Where we have private interests which conflict with our public duty, we must resolve this
conflict in favour of the public interest.

e We should make relevant declarations of interest any financial or non-financial
interests which could bring about conflict with the Council’s interests whenever our
personal interests may be in conflict with the public interest: Such declarations
should be made to our manager / supervisor on the “declaration of interest” form
attached at Annex 1,

We must not make, or become involved with any official or professional decisions about
matters in which we have a personal interest, and should declare all personal interests we
have in relation to items discussed in Council meetings on the “Declaration of Interest in
meetings” form attached at Annex 2,

e We should respect the role of our elected Members and treat them with courtesy.
The Council has adopted a Protocol to govern the relationship between Members
and Officers and we should abide by its provisions; which are to be found at:
(http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-
elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constituion-531-
relationship-protocol-for-members-and-officers/)

¢ When making appointments, awarding contracts, or transacting other business, we
should ensure that our decisions are made solely on merit.

We should ensure that confidential material, including material about individuals, is
handled in accordance with the expected standards set out by the Council's Data
Protection Policy
(http://monitor.anglesey.qov.uk/corporate-resource/information-governance-data-
protection/data-protection/data-protection-policy-information-on-security-policies-and-
related-documents/

3. PERSONAL INTERESTS — FINANCIAL (STANDING REGISTER)

All Officers holding politically restricted or sensitive posts** should register their
personal interests in relation to:

- outside employment;

- contracts with the Council;

- any rights over land in the Council’s area;

- tenancies of Council property;

- ownership of a business (or shares in a business) which has a place of
business, or owns land, in the Council’s area (but excluding shareholdings
with a nominal value of less than £25,000 or constituting less than 1% of the
issued share capital).

1 4 Officers should check their job descriptions to confirm whether their post has been assigned this designation.

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 2

Page 240


http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constituion-531-relationship-protocol-for-members-and-officers/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constituion-531-relationship-protocol-for-members-and-officers/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-5-codes-and-protocols/constituion-531-relationship-protocol-for-members-and-officers/
http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/corporate-resource/information-governance-data-protection/data-protection/data-protection-policy-information-on-security-policies-and-related-documents/
http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/corporate-resource/information-governance-data-protection/data-protection/data-protection-policy-information-on-security-policies-and-related-documents/
http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/corporate-resource/information-governance-data-protection/data-protection/data-protection-policy-information-on-security-policies-and-related-documents/

The Register will be kept by the Head of Democratic Services. Entries in the
Register should be kept up to date and any updates to this will need to be
completed via the Head of Democratic Services.

The register is available for public inspection during office hours.
Employees holding politically restricted or sensitive posts*1 are also advised to
declare the direct financial interests of close family members? and members of their

household (eg: spouse/partner, children, parents, brothers and sisters), where
those interests are known and they conflict with the interests of the Authority.

4. PERSONAL INTERESTS - OTHER

Employees holding politically restricted or sensitive posts.*1 are also urged to register,
and declare whenever appropriate (i.e. in meetings/other communications when the
interest is relevant) their membership or association with clubs, societies, any
organisations not open to the public, and voluntary bodies.

A Register for this purpose will be kept by the Head of Democratic Services and will
be open to public inspection.

5. DECLARING AN INTEREST — ALL OFFICERS

PLEASE NOTE: You only need to disclose personal interests which conflict, or may
conflict, with your duties to the Council. If you are at all unsure, you should disclose
your interest using the relevant form or discuss this with your manager.

Additionally, in the conduct of our responsibilities as Council officers we should all
immediately declare any relevant financial or personal interests (as defined in 3 and 4
above) to our line managers whenever a failure to do so would undermine public
confidence in our activities (eg in meetings / other communications when the interest
is relevant). Line managers should make alternative arrangements in these
circumstances i.e. we should not participate in or influence matters in which we (or our
families/friends)) might benefit or lose out. This applies to all officers, including those
who are not in politically restricted or sensitive posts. It may also be necessary to
complete the “declaration of interest” form at Annex 1 or 2, and your line manager can
advise you of which one may be appropriate.

Interests or involvement which could conflict with the interests of the Council could be
either financial and / or non-financial, for example:

e Partnership in a business

e Work done for any person or organisation other than as an employee of the
Council.

? Close family members would include spouse / partner, sibling, grandparents, first cousins, aunts, uncles,

nephews and nieces.
CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 3

Page 241



e Serving as a member of a group, committee or board which may work in conflict
with the Council.

e Applications submitted by relatives or friends for consideration by the Council, i.e.
tendering for work.

e School Governor within the Authority.

If you have a personal interest in any matter which arises at any meeting where you
are reporting or advising (or might be called upon to advise, or otherwise be able to
influence) any Councillor(s) of the Council, or any third party, you must declare the
interest, and take no part in the consideration or determination of the matter. Any
such declaration made at an official meeting will be recorded in the minutes. If
appropriate, arrangements should be made for another employee to attend and report
and / or advise on the matter. An example would be involvement in a meeting
regarding a school, where your son or daughter attends.

If you have a personal interest which could conflict with the interest of the Council,
then you may only remain in the meeting and participate in the proceedings, if the person
presiding at the meeting (having taken advice from the Monitoring Officer) is satisfied that
to do so would be in the interest of the Council or local people.

6. GIFTS & HOSPITALITY

e We must consider the position carefully before accepting any personal gift or offers
of hospitality. The principle is that we must avoid placing ourselves in a position
where acceptance of such gift or hospitality might be perceived to influence our
decisions or judgment in respect of awarding contracts, making appointments,
deciding on planning applications etc.

e The Council has a Register for recording the receipt of gifts and hospitality and we
are required to register gifts, and invitations which are accepted, in that Register;
which is kept by the Head of Democratic Services.

e We should refuse all personal gifts and offers of hospitality if we think that may
damage public confidence in us or in the Council.

e We may receive tokens of goodwill when attending conferences or when on civic
visits. We may from time to time receive diaries, pens, calendars and so on.
These do not require registration. Anything received over the value, or reasonably
estimated value, of £10 should be registered. We also advise that as a matter of
good practice, all gifts / hospitality received worth less than £10 should be recorded
with your line manager.

e Hospitality may be defined as anything beyond the offer of non-alcoholic drinks and
light refreshment. We should only accept hospitality if there is a genuine need for
the Council to be represented at a function or event. The more “lavish” the
hospitality the more important that we exercise caution.

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 4

Page 242



¢ When receiving hospitality, Members and Officers should be particularly sensitive
as to its timing in relation to decisions which the Council may be taking and which
may have a beneficial or adverse impact on those providing hospitality.

e Where visits to inspect equipment, or related to the award of any contract are
required, Members and Officers should ensure that the Council meets the cost of
any such visits so as to avoid prejudicing the integrity of subsequent purchasing
decisions.

e Members and Officers should not avail themselves of the services of contractors
employed by the Council for acquiring materials, labour or plant at cost, trade or
discounted prices.

e Hospitality received through attendance at relevant conferences and courses is
acceptable where it is clear that hospitality is corporate rather than personal, and
where such hospitality does not compromise purchasing decisions.

e Acceptance of hospitality should be authorised in advance by line managers and
recorded in the Register kept by the Head of Democratic Services.

7. CHECKLIST (GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY)

The following checklist of queries should help you to decide whether a gift or an offer of
hospitality should be accepted or tactfully declined:-

¢ |s the donor, or event, significant in the community or area? If so, is the refusal
likely to cause offence?

e Are you expected to attend because of your position in the community or area?

e Will the event be attended by others of a similar standing in the community or in
other communities?

e What do you think is the motivation behind the invitation?

e Would acceptance of the invitation be, in the way, inappropriate or place you under
pressure in relation to any current or future issue involving the Council?

e Could you justify the decision to the Council press and public?
¢ Is the extent of the hospitality, or the nature of the gift reasonable and appropriate?
e Are you likely to be expected to respond to the hospitality, and if so, how?

¢ Are you comfortable about the decision?

8. CORRUPTION

8.1 You must be aware that it is a serious criminal offence under the Bribery Act
2010 to receive or give any gift, loan or reward or advantage in your official

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 5

Page 243



capacity “for doing, or not doing, anything”, or “showing favour, or disfavour to
any person. If an allegation is made against you, it will be for you to demonstrate
that any such rewards had not been corruptly obtained.

8.2 For your own protection, if anyone approaches you in a way which seems to you,
or might seem to a third party, to be aimed at obtaining some form of preferential
treatment, or in any suspicious circumstances in connection with a contract, you
must report the matter to your line manager.

9. RELATIONSHIPS WITH CONTRACTORS

¢ All relationships of a business nature must be made known to the relevant line
manager.

e Orders and contracts must be awarded on merit, by fair competition, in accordance
with the Council's Contract Procedure Rules

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-
elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-49-
contract-procedure-rules/

http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-
elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-48-
financial-procedure-rules/ .

e No special favour should be shown to businesses run by, for example, friends,
partners or relatives. No part of the local community should be discriminated
against.

e Officers involved in the tendering process and/or in dealing with contractors should
be clear on the separation of client and contractor roles within the Council. Officers
who have both a client and contractor responsibility must be aware of the need for
accountability and openness.

e Officers in contractor or client units must exercise fairness and impartiality when
dealing with all customers, suppliers, contractors and sub-contractors.

e Officers who are privy to confidential information on tenders or costs for either
internal or external contractors should not disclose that information to any
unauthorised party or organisation.

e Officers contemplating a management buy-out should, as soon as they have
formed a definite intent, inform the relevant line manager and withdraw from the
contract awarding process.

e Officers should ensure that no special favour is shown to current or recent former
Officers or their partners, close relatives or associates, in awarding contracts to
businesses run by them or employing them in a senior or managerial capacity.

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 6

Page 244


http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-49-contract-procedure-rules/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-49-contract-procedure-rules/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-49-contract-procedure-rules/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-48-financial-procedure-rules/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-48-financial-procedure-rules/
http://www.anglesey.gov.uk/council-and-democracy/councillors-democracy-and-elections/constitution/constitution-part-4-rules-of-procedure/constitution-48-financial-procedure-rules/

e Section 117 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires you to make a formal
declaration about contracts or personal contracts with the Council in which you

have a pecuniary interest. Such declarations should be registered on the
Declaration of Interest Form (Annex 1).

10. BREACH OF THE CODE

Breaches of the Officers’ Code may be dealt with under the Council’s Disciplinary
Procedure http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/at-work/conduct-at-work/disciplinary-procedure/.

CC-017792-AP/238501 (244640) Page 7

Page 245


http://monitor.anglesey.gov.uk/at-work/conduct-at-work/disciplinary-procedure/

CYNGOR SIR

~ - YNYS MON
WS ISLE OF ANGLESEY
S>> COUNTY COUNCL

Hysbysiad o Fuddiant Personol / Notification of Personal Interest

Noder os gwelwch yn dda: Nid oes ond angen i chi ddatgelu diddordeb personol os yw’n
gwrthdaro gyda’ch dyletswyddau yn y Cyngor neu os gall wrthdaro a nhw. Os nad ydych
yn sicr, dylech ddatgelu eich diddordeb trwy ddefnyddio’r ffurflen hon neu drafod y mater

gyda’ch rheolydd llinell.

Please note- you need only disclose a personal interest which conflicts, or may conflict,

with your duties in the Council. If you are at all unsure, you should disclose your interest

using this form or discuss this with your line manager.

Enw y Gweithiwr
Employee Name

Swydd
Job Title

Math o Ddatganiad /
Type of Declaration

Manylion / Details

Perthynas/ Relationship:

Cynghorydd/ (O
Councillor

Contractwr/ O
Contractor

Gweithiwr/ O

Enw / Name:

Swyddogaeth / Post Title:

Natur fy mherthynas gyda’r unigolyn/
Nature of my relationship to the named person:

Employee Manyldeb o unrhyw gysylltiad neu gwrthdaro rhwng
buddiannau /Details of any potential contact/conflict

Arall/ O of interest:

Other

Gwasanaeth

Service

CC-017471-AW/248469

Page 246




Buddiant personol neu aelodaeth o
gyfluniant, busnes, partneriaeth,
corf proffesiynol neu gymdeithas
gyfrinachol megis; Corff
Llywodraethol Ysgol, r6l mewn
cyfluniant gwirfoddol, cysylltiad a
busnes teuluol. /

Personal interest or membership of
an organisation, business,
partnership, professional body or
secret society e.g. School Governing
Body, voluntary organisation role,
involvement in a family business.

Disgrifiad o fy muddiant / Description of my interest:

Enw a lleoliad yr cyfluniant o dan sylw (os yn
cymwysiadol) / Name and location of organisation
concerned (if applicable):

Dyddiad Cychwyn / Starting date:

Budd ariannol/ ymhlygiad / Financial benefit/
implication:

Manylion y camau a ellir eu cymryd i warchod
buddiant y Cyngor /Details of steps that could be
taken to protect the Council’s interest:

CC-017471-AW/248469

Page 247




Buddiant mewn tir o fewn y Sir

Cyfeiriad neu disgrifiad o dir neu
eiddo yr ydych gyda fuddiant ynddo,
natur y fuddiant a defnydd vy tir.
Nodwch:

(a) Dylid datgan buddiant fel
rhydd-ddeiliad neu
lesddaliwr am brydles o0 12
mis neu fwy;

(b) Dylid datgan buddiant fel
deiliad opsiwn neu ddarpar
brynwr;

(c) Dylid datgan os ydych chi
eich hun yn ceisio cadarnhau
caniatad cynllunio neu
unrhyw ganiatad neu
benderfyniad gan y Cyngor ;

(ch) Nid oes angen datgan
buddion tir nag eiddo tu
allan y Sir.

Interest in Land within the County

Address or description of land or
property in which you have an
interest, the nature of the interest
and the use to which the land is put.
Please note:

(a) Interests as a freeholder or
leaseholder for a lease of 12
months or more should be
declared;

(b) Interest as an option holder
or prospective purchaser
should be declared;

(c) Interests by which you are
directly concerned in seeking
planning permission or some
other consent or decision of
the Council should be
declared;

(d) You need not declare
interest in land or property
outside the County.

CC-017471-AW/248469

Page 248




Gwybodaeth ychwanegol/ Unrhyw
ddatgeliad arall

Rhowch unrhyw wybodaeth arall y
dylech ei ddatgelu am eich
buddiannau busnes, cyllid neu
bersonol.

Further information/ Any other
declaration

Please give any further information
you may wish to record about your
business, financial or personal
interests.

Hysbysu newidiadau

Notification of Changes

Rwyf yn ymgymryd i hysbysu’r Cyngor o unrhyw
newidiadau a all ddigwydd o fewn 28 diwrnod o’r
newid, gan gyflwyno Ffurflen 1 newydd i fy rheolwr
llinell.

| undertake to notify the Council in writing of any
changes which may occur within 28 days from the
date of the change, by submitting a new Form 1 to
my line manager.

Dyddiad/
Date

Llofnod/
Signature

CC-017471-AW/248469

Page 249




CYNGOR SIR
~ = YNYS MON
s> ISLE OF ANGLESEY
S>> COUNTY COUNCL

Hysbysiad o Fuddiant Personol mewn cyfarfod /
Notification of Personal Interest in a meeting

Noder os gwelwch yn dda: Nid oes ond angen i chi ddatgelu diddordeb personol os yw’n
gwrthdaro gyda’ch dyletswyddau yn y Cyngor neu os gall wrthdaro a nhw. Os nad ydych
yn sicr, dylech ddatgelu eich diddordeb trwy ddefnyddio’r ffurflen hon neu drafod y mater
gyda’ch rheolydd llinell.

Please note- You need only disclose a personal interest which conflicts or may conflict,
with your duties in the Council. If you are at all unsure, you should disclose your interest
using this form or discuss this with your line manager.

Enw y Gweithiwr
Employee Name

Swydd
Job Title

Gwasanaeth
Department

Rwyf i, yr uchod, yn eich hysbysu yn ysgrifenedig o fuddiant personol a ddatgelais yny
cyfarfod canlynol:

| give you written notification of a personal interest disclosed by me at the following
meeting:

.................................................................................................... (enw’r pwyllgor/name of meeting)
a gynhaliwyd ar /held on........cccoeeveeeceeineieececeeere, (dyddiad y cyfarfod / date of meeting)

Manylion y buddiant personol / Detail of Personal Interest:

Llofnod / Dyddiad/
Signature Date

CC-017471-AW/248468
Page 250




MEWN GRYM / ALREADY IN FORCE

Cyngor Sir Ynys Mon — Isle of Anglesey County Council

Cofrestr Derbyn Rhoddion neu Letygarwch - Swyddogion

Register of Gifts or Hospitality - Officers

Manylion y Derbyniwyd gan:
Dyddiad/Date Enw/Name Rhoddion/Lletygarwch Received from:
Details of Gifts or Hospitality
Arwyddwyd/Signed

Dyddiad/Date

CC-017792-AW/244025

Page 251




ATODIAD / APPENDIX
2

Page 252



A Members’ Guide to Dispensations

This Guide explains:
(a) what is a dispensation
(b) when might it be appropriate to apply for a dispensation
(c) the purpose and effect of a dispensation
(d) the procedure for requesting a dispensation
(e) the criteria to be used in deciding applications for dispensations
(f) the possible terms of a dispensation
What is a dispensation

A dispensation is a special permission granted by the Standards Committee which
allows a Member to participate in discussion or decision even when the Member has
a prejudicial interest i.e. the kind of interest that would usually require them to cease
the communication/leave the meeting.

When might it be appropriate to request a dispensation?

The Code of Conduct requires that if an elected (or co-opted) Member has a
prejudicial interest in a matter to be discussed at a meeting then they may not speak
or vote on the matter and must leave the meeting room whilst the matter is under
consideration.

The Members’ Code of Conduct provides for certain circumstances in which a
Member with a prejudicial interest may, nevertheless, participate in discussion and
voting. These include membership of some outside bodies, voting on Members’
allowances, Executive Members attending Scrutiny Committee when their decisions
are the subject of scrutiny, and exercising rights to public speaking in the same way
as other members of the public. Full details are contained in paragraphs 12, 13 and
14 of the Members’ Code.

However, if a Member has a prejudicial interest which is not overreached by the
Code of Conduct, then may still request a dispensation from the Standards
Committee, which may be permitted if one or more of the statutory grounds can be
established.

Purpose and effect of a Dispensation

In specified circumstances a Member may be granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee which enables the Member to take part in Council business
where this would otherwise be prohibited because they have a Prejudicial Interest in
the subject matter under discussion. If a dispensation is granted, provided a Member
acts within the terms of their dispensation, and during the lifetime of their
dispensation, then their participation will not constitute a breach of the Code.

CC-017471-A)/ 229350

Page 253



The Procedure for Requesting a Dispensation

Any Member who wishes to apply for a dispensation should complete the Application
Form (attached/link??) and submit it to the Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer
will assist and advise any Member wishing to make such an application and, while
requests for dispensations are usually made on an individual basis, with the
agreement of all those Members affected, the Monitoring Officer has from time to
time obtained “block” dispensations.

Any application will be considered by a Sub-Committee of the Standards Committee
which will usually be convened at the minimum notice legally permitted.

It is helpful if the applicant can provide more time but it is accepted that such
applications will often have to be dealt with quickly.

Members are advised to have due regard to the Forward Work Programmes of their
Committees in order to try and foresee any dispensations they may wish to apply for.

The Criterial to be Used in Deciding Dispensation Applications

There are nine statutory grounds on which the Standards Committee may grant a
dispensation and these are annexed at Enclosure 2. In summary the grounds are:-

- At least half the Members of the Council/relevant Committee shares the same
interest

- The lack of participation by some Members would affect political balance and
skew the decision

- The interest is commonplace or the involvement of the Member would not
damage public confidence or is in the interests of the inhabitants of the area

- The Member has a particular role or expertise

In reaching a decision on an application for dispensation the Standards Committee
will take into account certain factors, which will include the following:-

- the nature of the Member’s interest;

- the extent to which the request may have been avoided, or other
arrangements made;

- the need to maintain public confidence in the conduct of Council business;

- the extent to which there is some personal benefit to the Member and the
extent to which there is a public benefit arising from granting the dispensation;

- the possible outcome of any vote;

- the need for efficient and effective conduct of business;
CC-017471-AJ/ 229350

Page 254



- any other relevant circumstances.
The Possible Terms of a Dispensation

Dispensations may be restricted or unrestricted e.g. may be to allow a Member to
speak on an issue but not to vote. It may be granted whenever the issue arises
during the remainder of the Member’s term of office or it may be restricted to a single
meeting or a number of meetings specifically identified by date or subject matter.

Note

The Standards Committee has discretion as to whether or not to grant any
application. The Committee may grant a partial dispensation even in circumstances
where the request is for a full dispensation. Hearing from the applicant is often
important and any Member applying for a dispensation would be well advised
(though not technically essential) to attend the Standards Committee when it
considers the Member’s application.

Any Member who has been granted a dispensation must declare the nature and
existence of the dispensation before the commencement of any business to which
the dispensation relates. A copy of the dispensation will be kept with the Register of
Members'’ Interests and reference should be included to in within the minutes for any
formal meeting in which the Member has relied upon the dispensation.

CC-017471-A)/ 229350

Page 255



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL STANDARDS COMMITTEE

APPLICATION TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE FOR DISPENSATION PURSUANT TO

S12001 No. 2279 (W. 169)

1. Name of Applicant :

2. Address of Applicant :

3. Relevant Authority :

4. Committee/Committees :

5. Interest Registered pursuant to Section 81 (1) & (2) of the Local Government Act

2000 (if applicable):

6. Details of interest in respect of which Dispensation sought :

7. Statutory Grounds relied upon in support of the Application :

8. Date application submitted :

9. Date by which Decision required :

Signed ... ——— Dated ........ccoviviiiiiinn,
A. Decision of Standards Committee :

B. Date Decision made :

C. Parties to be notified :

C-011897-LB/145519

Page 256



APPLICATION FOR DISPENSATION TO THE
STANDARDS COMMITTEE BY MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL

Please give full details of the following in support of your application for a dispensation.
You should refer to the accompanying “Guide to Dispensation”. If you need any help in
completing this form please contact Lynn Ball, Monitoring Officer on 01248 752586 or by
email lynn.ball@anglesey.gov.uk

Name of Councillor:

Address:

Relevant Authority:

Type of Meeting (name committee if
relevant):

Date of meeting (if known) :

Agenda item for which dispensation is
sought:

Level of Dispensation sought (ie to
speak only or to speak and vote):

Statutory grounds relied upon in support
of the application:

Details of the Prejudicial Interest:

CC-017471-AP/236434 Page 1

Page 257




Do you seek a dispensation just for the
one meeting or for a longer period? If
longer, please state a period. (N.B. all
dispensations granted expire at the next
council elections:

Reasons(s) to support the application
and why you consider the Standards
Committee should grant a dispensation
(use a separate sheet of paper if
necessary):

Date by which decision required:

Signed:

Date:

CC-017471-AP/236434

Page 258

Page 2




CYNULLIAD CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES

OFFERYNNAU STATUDOL

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2001 Rhif 2279 (Cy. 169 )

LLYWODRAETH LEOL,
CYMRU

Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau
(Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru)
2001

NODYN ESBONIADOL

(Nid yw'r nodyn hwn yn rhan'a’r“Rheoliadau)

STAY :

O dan adran 51 o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Leol 2000 ("y
Ddeddf") mae'n ofynnol i gynghorau sir a chynghorau
bwrdeistref sirol, awdurdodau. tdn ac awdurdodau
Parciau Cenedlaethol yng Nghymru ("awdurdodau
perthnasol") fabwysiadu cod ymddygiad ar gyfer
aelodau ac aelodau cyfetholedig sy'n gorfod
ymgorffori unrhyw ddarpariaethau gorfodol o unrhyw
god ymddygiad enghreifftiol a gyhoeddir gan
Gynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru o dan adran 50(2) o'r
Ddeddf. o

Mae adran 81(1) a (2) o'r Ddeddf yn darparu bod yn
rhaid i'r swyddog monitro ym mhob awdurdod
perthnasol sefydlu a chadw cofrestr o fuddiannau
aelodau ac aelodau cyfetholedig yr awdurdod a bod
darpariaethau gorfodol y cod enghreifftiol sy'n
gymwysadwy i bob awdurdod perthnasol yn gorfod ei
gwneud yn ofynnol i aelodau ac aelodau cyfetholediog
pob awdurdod gofrestru unrhyw fuddiannau ariannol
ac eraill a bennir yn y darpariaethau gorfodol yng
nghofrestr yr awdurdod hwnnw.

O dan adran 81(3) a (4) o'r Ddeddf rhaid i'r
darpariaethau gorfodol hynny ei gwneud yn ofynnol
hefyd i aelod neu aelod cyfetholedig o awdurdod
perthnasol sydd a buddiant o'r fath ei ddatgelu cyn
cymryd rhan mewn unrhyw fusnes gan yr awdurdod
sy'n berthnasol i'r buddiant a gwneud darpariaeth i atal
yr aelod neu'r aelod cyfetholedig hwnnw rhag cymryd
rhan mewn unrhyw fusnes gan yr awdurdod y mae'r
buddiant a ddatgelwyd yn berthnasol iddo neu i
gyfyngu ar y rhan y mae'n ei chymryd ynddo.

2001 No. 2279 (W. 169)

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ,
WALES

The Standards Committees (Grant
of Dispensations) (Wales)
Regulations 2001

EXPLANATORY NOTE

(This note does not form part of the Regulations)

County and county borough councils, community
councils, fire authorities and National Park authorities
in Wales ("relevant authorities") are required by
section 51 of the Local Government Act 2000 ("the
Act") to adopt a code of conduct for members and co-
opted members which must incorporate any mandatory
provisions of any model code of conduct issued by the
National Assembly for Wales under section 50(2) of
the Act.

Section 81(1) and (2) of the Act provides that the
monitoring officer of each relevant authority must
establish and maintain a register of interests of the
members and co-opted members of the authority and
that the mandatory provisions of the model code
applicable to each relevant authority must require the
members and co-opted members of each authority to
register in that authority's register such financial and
other interests as are specified in the mandatory
provisions.

Under section 81(3) and (4) of the Act those
mandatory provisions must also require a member or
co-opted member of a relevant authority who has such
an interest to disclose it before taking part in any
business of the authority which relates to it and make
provision for preventing or restricting the participation
of that member or co-opted member in any business of
the authority to which the disclosed interest relates.

Page 259



Mae adran 81(4) o'r Ddeddf yn darparu nad yw
unrhyw gyfranogiad gan aelod neu aelod cyfetholedig
o awdurdod perthnasol mewn unrhyw fusnes a
waherddir gan y darpariaethau gorfodol yn fethiant i
gydymffurfio 4 chod ymddygiad yr awdurdod os yw'r
aelod neu'r aelod cyfetholedig wedi gweithredu yn
unol a gollyngiad rhag y gwaharddiad a gafodd ei
ganiatdu gan bwyllgor safonau'r awdurdod yn unol a
rheoliadau a wneir o dan is-adran (5).

Mae'r rheoliadau hyn yn rhagnodi'r amgylchiadau y
caiff pwyllgorau safonau'r awdurdodau perthasol
ganiatdu gollyngiadau o'r fath odanynt.

Section 81(4) of the Act provides that any
participation by a member or co-opted member of a
relevant authority in any business which is prohibited
by the mandatory provisions is not a failure to comply
with the authority's code of conduct if the member or
co-opted member has acted in accordance with a
dispensation from the prohibition granted by the
authority's standards committee in accordance with
regulations made under subsection (5).

These regulations prescribe the circumstances in
which standards committees of relevant authorities
may grant such dispensations.

Page 260



OFFERYNNAU STATUDOL

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2001 Rhif 2279 (Cy. 169 )

LLYWODRAETH LEOL,
CYMRU

Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau
(Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru)
2001

Wedi'u gwneud 21 Mehefin 2001

Yn dod i rym 28 Gorffennaf 2001

Mae Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru yn gwneud y
Rheoliadau canlynol drwy arfer y pwerau a roddwyd
iddo gan adran 81(5) ac (8) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth
Leol 2000(a).

Enw, cychwyn, cymhwyso a dehongli

1.- (1) Enw'r Rheoliadau hyn yw Rheoliadau
Pwyllgorau Safonau (Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru)
2001 a deuvant i rym ar 28 Gorffennaf 2001.

(2) Mae'r Rheoliadau hyn yn gymwys i Gymru yn unig.
(3) Yn y Rheoliadau hyn -

mae "aelod"
cyfetholedig;

("member") yn cynnwys aelod

ystyr "awdurdod perthnasol" ("relevant authority”)
yw cyngor sir neu gyngor bwrdeistref sirol, cyngor
cymuned, awdurdod tan neu awdurdod Parc
Cenedlaethol;

ystyr "buddiant" ("interest") yw buddiant y mae'n
ofynnol ei gofrestru yng nghofrestr buddiannau'r
awdurdod perthnasol;

ystyr "corff gwirfoddol" ("voluntary organisation")
yw corff (heblaw awdurdod lleol neu gorff cyhoeddus
arall) sy'n cynnal ei weithgareddau heblaw ar gyfer
gwneud elw;

acystyr "y Ddeddf"
Llywodraeth Leol 2000.

("the Act") yw Deddf

2001 No. 2279 (W. 169 )

LOCAL GOVERNMENT,
WALES

The Standards Committees (Grant
of Dispensations) (Wales)
Regulations 2001

Made 21st June 2001

Coming into force 28th July 2001

The National Assembly for Wales makes the following
Regulations in exercise of the power given to it by
section 81(5) and (8) of the Local Government Act
2000(a).

Name, commencement, application and
interpretation

1.- (1) The name of these Regulations is the
Standards Committees (Grant of Dispensations)
(Wales) Regulations 2001 and they shall come into
force on 28th July 2001.

(2) These Regulations apply to Wales only.
(3) In these Regulations -

"interest" ("buddiant") means an interest which is
required to be registered in the relevant authority's
register of interests;

"member" ("aelod") includes a co-opted member;

"relevant authority" ("awdurdod perthnasol")
means a county or county borough council, a
community council, a fire authority or a National Park
authority;

"the Act" ("y Ddeddf") means the Local Government
Act 2000; and

"voluntary organisation" ("corff gwirfoddol") means
a body (other than a local authority or other public
body) whose activities are carried on otherwise than
for profit.

(a) 2000 p. 22.

(a) 2000 c. 22.

Page 261



Yr amgylchiadau lle gellir caniatau gollyngiadau

2. Caiff pwyllgor safonau awdurdod perthnasol
ganiatdu gollyngiadau o dan adran 81(4) o'r Ddeddf -

(a) os oes gan ddim llai na hanner aelodau'r
awdurdod perthnasol neu hanner aelodau un o
bwyllgorau'r awdurdod (yn 6l fel y digwydd) y mae'r
busnes i gael ei ystyried ganddo fuddiant sy'n
berthnasol i'r busnes hwnnw;

(b) os oes gan ddim llai na hanner aelodau
gweithrediaeth arweinydd a chabinet y mae'r busnes i
gael ei ystyried ganddo fuddiant sy'n berthnasol i'r
busnes hwnnw a bod naill ai paragraff (ch) neu
baragraff (d) hefyd yn gymwys;

(c) yn achos cyngor sir neu gyngor bwrdeistref sirol,
os byddai anallu aelod i gymryd rhan yn tarfu ar
gydbwysedd gwleidyddol yr awdurdod perthnasol
neu'r pwyllgor o'r awdurdod y mae'r busnes i'w
ystyried ganddo i'r fath raddau nes y byddai'r canlyniad
yn debygol o gael ei effeithio;

(ch) os yw natur buddiant yr aelod yn gyfryw fel na
fyddai cyfranogiad yr aelod yn y busnes y mae'r
buddiant yn berthnasol iddo yn niweidio hyder y
cyhoedd yn y modd y mae busnes yr awdurdod
perthnasol yn cael ei gynnal;

(d) os yw'r buddiant yn gyffredin i'r aelod ac i gyfran
arwyddocaol o'r cyhoedd;

(dd) os oes cyfiawnhad i'r aelod gymryd rhan yn y
busnes y mae'r buddiant yn berthnasol iddo oherwydd
rol neu arbenigedd penodol yr aelod;

(e) os yw'r busnes y mae'r buddiant yn berthnasol
iddo i'w ystyried gan bwyllgor trosolygu a chraffu i'r
awdurdod perthnasol ac nad yw buddiant yr aelod yn
fuddiant ariannol;

(f) os yw'r busnes sydd i'w ystyried yn berthnasol i
arian neu eiddo corff gwirfoddol y mae'r aelod yn
aelod o'i bwyllgor neu ei fwrdd rheoli heblaw fel
cynrychiolydd yr awdurdod perthnasol ac nad oes gan
yr aelod unrhyw fuddiant arall yn y busnes hwnnw ar
yr amod na fydd unrhyw ollyngiad yn ymestyn i
gymryd rhan mewn unrhyw bleidlais mewn perthynas
a'r busnes hwnnw; neu e

(ff) os yw'n ymddangos i'r pwyllgor ei bod o les i
drigolion ardal yr awdurdod perthnasol i'r anallu gael
ei godi, ar yr amod bod hysbysiad ysgrifenedig bod y
gollyngiad yn cael ei ganiatau yn cael ei roi i Gynulliad
Cenedlaethol Cymru o fewn saith diwrnod a hynny
mewn unrhyw fodd y gall ei bennu.

Circumstances in which dispensations may be
granted

2. The standards committee of a relevant authority
may grant dispensations under section 81(4) of the Act
where -

(a) no fewer than half of the members of the relevant
authority or of a committee of the authority (as the case
may be) by which the business is to be considered has
an interest which relates to that business;

(b) no fewer than half of the members of a leader and
cabinet executive of the relevant authority by which
the business is to be considered has an interest which
relates to that business and either paragraph (d) or (e)
also applies;

(c) in the case of a county or county borough council,
the inability of the member to participate would upset
the political balance of the relevant authority or of the
committee of the authority by which the business is to
be considered to such an extent that the outcome would
be likely to be affected,

(d) the nature of the member's interest is such that
the member's participation in the business to which the
interest relates would not damage public confidence in
the conduct of the relevant authority's business;

(e) the interest is common to the member and a
significant proportion of the general public;

(f) the participation of the member in the business to
which the interest relates is justified by the member's
particular role or expertise;

(g) the business to which the interest relates is to be
considered by an overview and scrutiny committee of
the relevant authority and the member's interest is not
a pecuniary interest;

(h) the business which is to be considered relates to
the finances or property of a voluntary organisation of
whose management committee or board the member is
a member otherwise than as a representative of the
relevant authority and the member has no other interest
in that business provided that any dispensation shall
not extend to participation in any vote with respect to
that business; or

(i) it appears to the committee to be in the interests
of the inhabitants of the area of the relevant authority
that the disability should be removed provided that
written notification of the grant of the dispensation is
given to the National Assembly for Wales within seven
days in such manner as it may specify.

Page 262



Llofnodwyd ar ran Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymruo  Signed on behalf of the National Assembly for Wales
dan adran 66(1) o Ddeddf Llywodraeth Cymru  under section 66(1) of the Government of Wales Act

1998(a). 1998(a).
21 Mehefin 2001 21st June 2001
D. Elis-Thomas
Llywydd y Cynulliad Cenedlaethol The Presiding Officer of the National Assembly
(a) 1998 p. 38. (a) 1998 c. 38.
3

Page 263



CYNULLIAD CENEDLAETHOL CYMRU

NATIONAL ASSEMBLY FOR WALES

OFFERYNNAU STATUDOL

STATUTORY INSTRUMENTS

2001 Rhif 2279 (Cy. 169 )

LLYWODRAETH LEOL,
CYMRU

Rheoliadau Pwyllgorau Safonau
(Caniatau Gollyngiadau) (Cymru)
2001

©® Hawlfraint y Goron 2001

Argraffwyd a chyhoeddwyd yn y Deyrnas Unedig gan The Stationery
Office Limited o dan awdurdod ac arolygiaeth Carol Tullo, Rheolwr
Gwasg Ei Mawrhydi ac Argraffydd Deddfau Seneddol y Frenhines.

£2.00

W/321/07/01 ON

2001 No. 2279 (W. 169 )

LOCAL GOVERNMENT,
WALES

The Standards Committees (Grant
of Dispensations) (Wales)
Regulations 2001

© Crown copyright 2001

Printed and Published in the UK by the Stationery Office Limited
under the authority and superintendence of Carol Tullo,
Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office and Queen’s Printer of
Acts of Parliament.

N 0-11-090284-X

Ils‘a “ l
97780110 902845“

Page 264



Agenda Item 9

ATODIAD / ENCLOSURE
FF

Page 265



ISLE OF ANGLESEY COUNTY COUNCIL

Report to: Executive and Council

Date: 9™ February 2015 and 26™ February 2015
Subject: Extending Term of Standards Committee
Portfolio Holder(s): Councillor Alwyn Rowlands

Head of Service: Lynn Ball

Report Author: Awena Walkden

Tel: 01248 752134

E-mail: awxce@anglesey.gov.uk

Local Members: N/A

A —Recommendation/s and reason/s

The Executive recommends to Council that :-

1. Council approve the reappointment of the independent Members of the Standards
Committee for a further term of 4 years, from 17" December 2015.

2. Council provides authority to the Monitoring Officer to make all consequential
amendments to the Council’'s Constitution, and the Standards Committee’s
Constitution, to extend all future appointments to an automatic two terms for all
independent Members of the Standards Committee.

BACKGROUND

3. Part 3 of the Local Government Act 2000 (as amended by the Local Government Act
2006) requires that the Council have a Standards Committee consisting of no fewer
than 5, and no more than 9, Members.

4. At least one Member (in this Council we have two) must be a Town or Community
Councillor, collectively nominated by the Town and Community Councils. The
Committee also includes two County Council Members.

5. The current independent Members of the Standards Committee will cease to hold
office on the 17" December 2015 in accordance with their current single term.

6. All independent Members of the Standards Committee hold office for 4 years but are
eligible to apply again for one further term.

CC-017471-AP/237458

Page 1 of 4

Page 266



7. An earlier decision of the Council prevents these Members from being automatically
appointed for another term without going through a competitive external appointments
process.

8. However, the statutory regulations provide that there is no need to pursue a
recruitment process in order to be appointed for a second term.

9. The Monitoring Officer has informally consulted with the current independent Members
of the Standards Committee on their willingness to be reappointment for a further term
of 4 years; and all such Members have confirmed that they would be happy to accept
such reappointment.

10. The Monitoring Officer is of the view that appointing the existing independent Members
of the Standards Committee would be a better course of action than recruitment
because:-

1) Legislation specifically permits it, but provides a maximum of two terms to ensure
that the Committee is refreshed and renewed on a regular basis.

2) There is no longer justification for continuing with the current local choice
arrangements. That is, it can no longer be suggested that the Standards
Committee has become jaded as a result of having to deal with numerous
complaints and cross complaints. Nowadays, complaints are rare and most of the
work of the Standards Committee is self-motivated rather than responsive.

3) Significant time and resources have been invested by the Council in following the
statutory process required for the recruitment and selection of the current
independent Members of the Standards Committee. Similarly much work, by
Officers and the Members themselves, has been undertaken in training and
developing in their role. It would be a wasted investment for all concerned not to
take the opportunity of maximising the investment by gaining a further four year
term.

4) The independent Members of the Standards Committee have acquired experience
and confidence in their role and have done so diligently and professionally,
including their valuable contribution to the North Wales Standards Committee
Forum. Extending their term of office would be an opportunity to build on this.

5) Any independent Member of the Standards Committee who did not wish to
undertake a second term, or who is unable to complete the term, would be replaced
through the statutory process and the Standards Committee Appointments Panel is
already in place.

6) Regulation is due to come into force (as yet date unknown) which would allow (but
not compel) Councils to establish regional Standards Committees. Should this
Council chose to go down that route then a recruitment, selection and development

CC-017471-AP/237458

Page 2 of 4

Page 267



process during 2015/16 may not prove to be the best use of resources.

B — What other options did you consider and why did you reject them and/or opt for
this option?

Should Council refuse the recommendation then the only alternative option would be
automatically triggered in any event.

C — Why is this a decision for the Executive?

The automatic appointment of the Standards Committee for a second term will require
Constitutional change which can only be approved by the full Council after prior
consideration from the Executive.

CH —Is this decision consistent with policy approved by the full Council?

N/A - This is a Council decision

D - Is this decision within the budget approved by the Council?

There are no budgetary considerations.

DD — Who did you consult? What did they say?

1 | Chief Executive / Strategic
Leadership Team (SLT)

(mandatory)

2 | Finance/ Section 151
(mandatory)

3 | Legal / Monitoring Officer Report commissioned by the Monitoring
(mandatory) Officer

4 | Human Resources (HR)

5 | Property

6 | Information Communication
Technology (ICT)

7 | Scrutiny

8 | Local Members

9 | Any external bodies / other/s

CC-017471-AP/237458

Page 3 of 4

Page 268



Independent Members  of the
Standards Committee

Group Leaders

Please refer to paragraph 9

Who  supported the

acknowledging that it is a matter for all

Members of the Council

concept

but

E — Risks and any mitigation (if relevant)

Economic

Anti-poverty

Crime and Disorder

Environmental

Equalities

Outcome Agreements

N OO IWIN|F-

Other

F - Appendices:

None

FF - Background papers (please contact the author of the Report for any further

information):

None

CC-017471-AP/237458

Page 269

Page 4 of 4



YMESTYN TYMOR Y PWYLLGOR SAFONAU

Penderfynwyd argymell i’r Cyngor Sir :-

‘Bod y Cyngor yn cymeradwyo ailbenodi’r Aelodau annibynnol ar y Pwyllgor
Safonau am dymor pellach o 4 blynedd, o 17 Rhagfyr 2015.

Bod y Cyngor yn dirprwyo’r awdurdod i’r Swyddog Monitro wneud yr holl
newidiadau dilyniadol i Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor, ac i Gyfansoddiad y Pwyllgor
Safonau er mwyn ymestyn yn awtomatig yr holl benodiadau yn y dyfodol i ddau
dymor i holl Aelodau Annibynnol y Pwyllgor Safonau’.

PENDERFYNWYD cymeradwyo argymhelliad y Pwyllgor Gwaith yn y mater hwn

EXTENDING THE TERM OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Reported - that the Executive upon consideration of the above at their meeting on
ot February, 2015 had RESOLVED to recommend to the County Council that :-

‘The Council approve the reappointment of the independent Members of the
Standards Committee for a further term of 4 years, from 17th December, 2015;

The Council delegates authority to the Monitoring Officer to make all
consequential amendments to the Council’s Constitution, and the Standards
Committee’s Constitution, to extend all future appointments to an automatic
two terms for all independent Members of the Standards Committee’.

RESOLVED to endorse the recommendation of the Executive in this respect.

CC-017471-AP/250413 Page 1

Page 270



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Meeting
	3 Standards Committee Forum
	Enc C Eng

	4 Conduct Complaints to the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales
	5 Training for Town and Community Councils on the Code of Conduct
	6 Review of Registers
	7 Consultation on White Paper
	e2.1.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2.1 Own initiative investigations
	2.2 Access – oral complaints
	2.3 Complaint Standards Authority
	2.4 Extension and reform of jurisdiction- Healthcare
	2.5 Links with the courts
	3.1 Own initiative investigations
	3.2 Access – oral complaints
	3.3 Complaint Standards Authority
	3.4 Extension and reform of Jurisdiction- Healthcare
	3.5 Links with the courts



	8 Latest Briefing Notes
	9 Extending the Term of the Standards Committee



